Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Cabinet

TUESDAY, 19TH JUNE, 2007 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Meehan (Chair), Reith (Vice-Chair), Adje, Amin, Basu, Canver,
Diakides, Haley, B. Harris and Santry

Please note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is being filmed. The images and sound recording may be used
for training purposes within the Council.

Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, by entering the
meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for
webcasting and/or training purposes.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Executive Committees
Manager (Committee Clerk) at the meeting.

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
(if any)

2. URGENT BUSINESS
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item below. New items of exempt business will be dealt with at item

below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST



A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member's judgement of the public interest.

MINUTES (PAGES 1-10)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 24 April
2007.

DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS
To consider any requests received in accordance with Standing Orders.

MATTERS, IF ANY, REFERRED TO THE EXECUTIVE FOR CONSIDERATION BY
THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (PAGES 11 - 52)



(a) Report of the Scrutiny Review of Extended Services In and Around Schools
(To be introduced by Councillor Newton).

(b) Report of the Scrutiny Review of Fly Tipping (To be introduced by Councillor
Winskill).

Note by Head of Local Democracy and Member Services

Following consideration of the Fly Tipping Scrutiny Review by the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee there were further developments.

The Panel’s report acknowledged that a substantial amount of Fly Tipping was
associated with Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO). There were now two
internal projects dealing with this issue.

e A Value for Money Review of Planning Enforcement which would consider
planning policy and enforcement to restrain the development in HMOs; and

e A pilot of HMO discretionary licensing which would look at ways of controlling
poor HMO management

Consequently the Panel wished to add the following additional recommendation
to the report -

That the Director of Urban Environment ensure that the prevention of Fly Tipping
is a priority output and that proposals arising from the two internal projects dealing
with Houses in Multiple Occupation be reported back to the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee within three months of them being completed.

(The Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee concurs).
PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT - APRIL 2007 (PAGES 53 - 122)
(Report of the Chief Executive — To be introduced by the Leader) To provide highlight

reports for all the Council’s corporately significant projects, covering the period up to
the end of April 2007.

TOWARDS EXCELLENCE - THE COUNCIL'S END OF YEAR PERFORMANCE -
APRIL 2006 TO MARCH 2007 (PAGES 123 - 172)

(Report of the Chief Executive — To be introduced by the Leader): To review 2006/07
service performance against the Council’s basket of key indicators reported in a
balanced scorecard format.

THE DRAFT COUNCIL PLAN 2007 - 2010 (PAGES 173 - 220)



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

(Report of the Chief Executive): To present the draft Council Plan for 2007 — 10.
ACHIEVING EXCELLENCE (PAGES 221 - 242)

(Report of the Chief Executive — To be introduced by the Leader) To set out a
framework designed to deliver excellent services.

FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2006/07 (PAGES 243 - 276)

(Report of the Acting Director of Finance- To be introduced by the Cabinet Member
for Resources): To report the out-turn for revenue and capital spending for 2006/07
and approve any carry forward requests.

CONNEXIONS SERVICES FROM APRIL 2008 (PAGES 277 - 288)

(Report of the Director of the Children and Young People’s Service — To be
introduced by the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People): To report on the
development of proposals for the delivery of Connexions services from April 2008.

HARINGEY CATERING SERVICE (PAGES 289 - 298)

(Report of the Director of the Children and the Young People’s Service — To be
introduced by the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People): To propose
arrangements for school catering.

PROVISION FOR GYPSIES AND TRAVELLERS (PAGES 299 - 316)

(Report of the Director of Urban Environment — To be introduced by the Leader): To
consider the recommendations of the CRE report ‘Common Ground’ together with the
CRE feedback and agree the proposed strategic approach in Haringey.

HOMES FOR HARINGEY (QUARTERLY REPORT) (PAGES 317 - 334)

(Report of the Director of Urban Environment — To be introduced by the Cabinet
Member for Housing): To provide a quarterly update on Homes for Haringey
Performance and Finance.

EXECUTIVE RESPONSE TO THE SCUTINY REVIEW OF ACCESS TO HEALTH
SERVICES FOR ADULTS WITH PROFOUND AND MULTIPLE LEARNING
DISABILITIES (PAGES 335 - 346)

(Report of the Director of Adult, Culture and Community Services — To be introduced
by the Cabinet Member for Adult, Social Care and Wellbeing): To propose a Cabinet
response to the recent Scrutiny Review.



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

ESTABLISHMENT OF THE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE AND VOLUNTARY
SECTOR GRANTS COMMITTEE (PAGES 347 - 350)

(Report of the Chief Executive — To be introduced by the Leader): To recommend the
establishment of the two decision making committees of the Executive for the
2007/08 municipal year, their membership and terms of reference.

APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES TO SERVE ON THE HARINGEY
STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP AND ITS THEME BOARDS (PAGES 351 - 356)

(Report of the Chief Executive — To be introduced by the Leader): To propose the

appointment of Members to serve on the Haringey Strategic Partnership and its
Theme Boards.

URGENT ACTIONS IN CONSULTATION WITH CABINET MEMBERS (PAGES 357
- 360)

(Report of the Chief Executive): To inform the Cabinet of urgent actions taken by
Directors in consultation with the Leader or Cabinet Members.

DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS (PAGES 361 - 366)

(Report of the Chief Executive): To inform the Cabinet of delegated decisions and
significant actions taken.

MINUTES OF SUB-BODIES (PAGES 367 - 378)

Procurement Committee — 17 April 2007

Procurement Committee — 17 May 2007

Executive Member Crime and Community Safety — 18 May 2007
NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any items admitted at item 2 above.
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any items admitted at 2 above.

Yuniea Semambo Richard Burbidge

Head of Local Democracy Executive Committees Manager

and Member Services Tel: 020-8489 2923

5" Floor Fax: 020-8489 2660

River Park House Email: richard.burbidge@haringey.gov.uk
225 High Road



Wood Green
London N22 8HQ 11 June 2007



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 24 APRIL 2007

Councillors *Meehan (Chair), *Reith (Vice-Chair), *Amin, *Basu, Canver, *Diakides,
Haley, *B. Harris, *Mallett and *Santry

*Present

Also Present: Councillor Engert, Newton, Hoban and Williams.

MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

TEX201. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda ltem 1)

Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillors Canver and
Haley. Apologies for lateness were submitted by Councillors Amin and
B.Harris.

TEX202. | MINUTES (Agenda Item 4)
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 20 | HLDMS
March 2007 be confirmed that signed.

TEX203. | PRESENTATIONS/DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS (Agenda
Item 5)

Annual Audit and Inspection Letter

We received a presentation from Mike Haworth-Maden and Sheila Hill of
the Audit Commission on the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter. We
noted that the Letter provided an overall summary of the Audit
Commission's assessment of the Council and that it drew on the findings
and conclusions from:

« the audit of the Council;

* the corporate assessment undertaken in June 2006;

* inspections that had been undertaken in the last year; and

* a wider analysis of the Council's performance and its
improvement over the last year, as measured through the
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) framework.

We also noted that although the letter was addressed to the Council and
had been written for Councillors that it was available as a public
document for stakeholders, including members of the community served
by the Council.

We were advised that the Letter's main messages were:

 the Council was improving well and has been assessed as a
three-star authority under the CPA framework;

» the Council received an unqualified opinion on its 2005/06
financial statements; and




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 24 APRIL 2007

+ the Council received an unqualified conclusion on its
arrangements for securing value for money during 2005/06.

In terms of action needed by the Council, we noted that the Council
needed to:

 improve social services for adults, in particular to support better
adults with mental health problems;

» develop further its approach to tackling homelessness and
regenerating the Borough;

» continue to enhance risk management across the Council and
its partnerships;

« continue to implement its action plan to improve the project and
financial management of major projects; and

* embed the improved arrangements for securing value for money
Council-wide.

Questions having been put by Members of the Executive and answers
given, our Chair thanked Mike Haworth-Maden and Sheila Hill for their
attendance and their presentation.

TEX204.

ANNUAL AUDIT AND INSPECTION LETTER (Report of the Acting
Director of Finance — Agenda ltem 6)

RESOLVED:

That approval be granted to the following actions in response to
the issues set out in the Audit Commission’s annual audit and
inspection letter —

Improve social services for adults, in particular to support better
adults with mental health problems.

An action plan that included particular improvements in mental
health services had been developed and was now being
implemented.

Develop further its approach to tackling homelessness and
regenerating the borough

An updated homelessness strategy was approved in March 2007
and this was a key driver for tackling this issue.

A number of key regeneration projects were being progressed
through the existing project management arrangements.

Continue to enhance risk management across the Council and its
partnerships

The Council was continuing to enhance its risk management
processes and this was a key feature of business planning.

DF




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 24 APRIL 2007

Continue to implement its action plan to improve the project and
financial management of major projects

The action plan had been implemented and the progress of major
projects would continue to be monitored through the programme
highlight reporting process.

Embed the improved arrangements for securing value for money
Council-wide

The Council would continue its drive for improving value for
money. It was a key component of the business planning process
and a rolling programme of value for money reviews was
continuing. An additional structured programme for achieving
excellent services and delivering more efficiency savings was
being developed.

TEX205.

MATTERS, IF ANY, REFERRED TO THE EXECUTIVE FOR
CONSIDERATION BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
(Agenda ltem 7)

Scrutiny Review of Improving the Health of People with Profound and

Multiple Learning Disabilities

We received a presentation which outlined the key findings contained in
the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Review on
Improving the Health of People with Profound and Multiple Learning
Disabilities. Having noted that a number of the recommendations would
involve discussions with the TCPT, we

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and, in accordance with the
requirements of the Constitution, officers be requested to submit
an Executive response to our meeting on 19 June 2007 including
a detailed tabulated implementation action plan.

DACCS

TEX206.

PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT - FEBRUARY 2007 (Report of
the Chief Executive — Agenda Iltem 8)

In response to questions asked we noted the following —

e Bright Futures and the BSF Programme - The PFI Deed of
Variation would be signed by the end of May and it was not
anticipated that this would affect the BSF capital programme.

e Bright Futures and the BSF Programme — A delay in the St.
Thomas More School scheme had arisen because of a change of
project managers. New project managers had now been
appointed and it was hoped that part of the lost time could be
recovered.

e Sure Start Children’s Centres - Approval had now been received
from the Sure Start Central Unit in respect of Welbourne and




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 24 APRIL 2007

Earlsmead. Although approval for Seven Sisters was still awaited,
there was not though to be a problem.

e Sure Start Children’s Centres — The reduction in the contingency
for the South Haringey Children’s Centre was thought to be as a
result of a design error which was to be addressed under the
terms of the contract.

e Sure Start Children’s Centres — Recharge of Corporate Legal and
Procurement Costs. A written response would be provided to
Councillor Engert and to all Members of the Executive on the
outcome of a review.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

DCYPS

TEX207.

THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE - FEBRUARY 2007 (Joint Report of
the Chief Executive and the Acting Director of Finance — Agenda Item 9)

RESOLVED:
1. That the report be noted.

2. That approval be granted to the virements set out in section 14 of
the interleaved report.

DF

TEX208.

BEST VALUE INDICATOR TARGETS FOR 2007/08 - 2009/10 (Report
of the Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Performance, Partnerships and
Communications) — Agenda ltem 10)

Our Chair agreed to accept the report as urgent business. The report
was late because of the need to complete necessary consultations. The
report was too urgent to await the next meeting because the Council was
required to publish its performance against the best value performance
indicators at the end of April with the Council Plan for 2007/10.

RESOLVED:
That approval be granted to the targets for the Best Value

performance indicators as set out in the Appendix to the
interleaved report.

ACE-
PPPC

TEX209.

REORGANISATION OF MOSELLE AND WILLIAM C. HARVEY
SPECIAL SCHOOLS TO INCLUSIVE LEARNING CAMPUS (Report of
the Director of the Children and Young People’s Service — Agenda ltem
11)

RESOLVED:

That approval be granted to the commencement of statutory
consultation on the re-organisation of Moselle and William C.
Harvey special schools into one primary and one secondary
special school and it be noted that this would enable the first

DCYPS




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 24 APRIL 2007

stage of the Inclusive Learning Campuses to commence.

TEX210.

DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (Report of the
Report of the Director of Urban Environment — Agenda ltem 12)

Our Chair agreed to accept the report as urgent business. The report
was late because of the need to complete necessary consultations. The
report was too urgent to await the next meeting because the Council had
to submit the draft Statement of Community Involvement to the
Government Office for London in May 2007.

RESOLVED:

1. That approval be granted to the Draft Statement of Community
Involvement for submission to the Government Office for London
and for public consultation for a period of six weeks .

2. That authority to approve any changes prior to submission and to
publish a public notice of submission and consultation be
delegated to the Assistant Director (Planning Policy and
Development) in consultation with the Executive Member for
enterprise and regeneration.

DUE

DUE

TEX211.

REVIEW OF EXISTING CPZ SCHEME FOR HIGHGATE STATION
(Report of the Director of Urban Environment — Agenda ltem 13)

Our Chair agreed to accept the report as urgent business. The report
was late because of the need to complete necessary consultations. The
report was too urgent to await the next meeting because the budget
provision allocated for the Highgate Station CPZ review was £40,000.
Actual 2006/07 spend having been £14,000, the balance of £26,000 was
the subject of a carry forward request for 2007/08 and any income
generated from the extension would contribute towards the parking
income budget for 2007/08.

In response to questions asked we noted that while it customary to
review any CPZ scheme implemented after 12 months operation,
representations from residents of roads not included could be
considered in advance of that review. The Council had no powers to
impose parking controls in private roads like Grange Road but if there
was undue demand for parking consideration could be given to the
introduction of measures if residents there made representations. A
check would be made on whether a section of North Road had been
omitted from the proposed CPZ and a written response would be
provided to Councillor Williams and all Members of the Executive. We
noted that if the CPZ was approved it was intended to move to its
immediate implementation.

RESOLVED:

1. That, having considered the objections as set out in the
interleaved report, the implementation of the Highgate Station

DUE

DUE




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 24 APRIL 2007

(Outer) Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) as shown in Appendix
IV to the report be approved.

2. That Council Officers be authorised to make the Traffic
management Orders (TMOs) and to take all the necessary
steps necessary for the introduction of a Highgate Station
(Outer) CPZ operational between 10 a.m. and 12 noon on
Monday to Friday.

3. That residents be informed of the decision and implementation
programme by way of a letter to all properties within the
original Highgate Station review area.

DUE

DUE

TEX212.

REVIEW OF FEES AND PARKING CHARGES POLICY - RESULTS
OF STATUTORY CONSULTATION (Report of the Director of Urban
Environment — Agenda Item 14)

Our Chair agreed to accept the report as urgent business. The report
was late because of the need to complete necessary consultations. The
report was too urgent to await the next meeting because based on
current assumptions included in the report, the proposed fee structure
would also contribute towards achieving the Council’s external incomes

policy.

In response to a question it was confirmed that a ten page petition had
been received from residents of the Tottenham Hale area and
considered and that one page of it had been included in Appendix B for
illustrative purposes.

With the consent of our Chair, Councillors Newton and Williams
addressed our meeting and expressed concern that sufficient
consideration had not been given to the outcome of the consultation and,
in particular, to some of the principal objections raised, namely that the
initiative would affect only those resident in CPZ areas, that the charges
were disproportionate and linked to raising money and that the
proposed bands were incompatible with DVLA/not cost neutral/penalised
average cars.

We noted that the proposed charging model would only affect vehicle
owners in CPZ areas as it was in these zones that the Council had
mechanisms in place to influence vehicle ownership. It was proposed
that residential permit structure take account of the emissions based
best practice model currently used by DVLA and introduce a sliding
scale for the cost of parking permits encouraging the use of vehicles in
lower carbon dioxide emission bands. An incremental charge would be
introduced for second and subsequent permits per household. We also
noted that the estimated income generated by the proposed permit fees
would more or less recover the costs, including overheads, associated
with administering, issuing and enforcing parking permits. There were a
number of other initiatives also underway within the Council to tackle
climate change and efforts would continue to explore other ways of
ensuring the commitment to reduce carbon dioxide emissions under the




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 24 APRIL 2007

Nottingham Declaration would be met.

RESOLVED:

1. That, having considered the objections referred to in the DUE
interleaved report, approval be granted to the implementation of
the proposed charges including the new permit charging structure
based on the carbon dioxide emissions of vehicles and a
differential charging structure for second and subsequent permits.

2. That a review of the policy agreed in 1 above be conducted, DUE
commencing in May 2008.

3. That, in view of the consultation response to the increase in DUE
visitors permits, approval be granted to an increase in the charge
from 30 pence to 40 pence for a two hour permit retaining the
proposed option to purchase a one hour permit and continue with
the current level of concessionary entitlement.

4. That the new charges be implemented with effect from 1 July DUE
2007.

TEX213. | LOCAL IMPLEMENTATION PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT
2008/09 - 2010/11 (Report of the Director of Urban Environment —
Agenda Item 15)
Our Chair agreed to accept the report as urgent business. The report
was late because of the need to complete necessary consultations. The
report was too urgent to await the next meeting because the Council was
required to submit a LIP funding submission to Transport for London by
15 June.
RESOLVED:

1. That approval be granted to the Local Implementation Plan (LIP) | DUE
Annual Progress Report (APR) funding submission as the basis
for the Council’s bid to Transport for London for 2008/9 for
transport schemes.

2. That authority to approve the full LIP APR submission to | DUE
Transport for London be delegated to the Director of Urban
Environment in consultation with the Executive Member for
Environment.

TEX214. | COMMISSION FOR SOCIAL CARE INSPECTION OF HARINGEY

MENTAL HEALTH - UPDATE ON IMPLEMENTATION OF ACTION
PLAN (Report of the Director of Adult, Culture and Community Services
— Agenda ltem 16)

RESOLVED:

1. That the good progress made in implementing many of the




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 24 APRIL 2007

recommendations from the CSCI Inspection be noted.

2. That it also be noted that a small number of the recommendations
would be put into effect somewhat later than planned, in order for
these to be dealt with as part of, or following the forthcoming
reconfiguration of Community Mental Health Services.

3. That a further progress report be submitted in six months time.

DACCS

TEX215.

ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND POLICY (Report of the Director of
Urban Environment — Agenda ltem 17)

Our Chair agreed to accept the report as urgent business. The report
was late because of the need to complete necessary consultations. The
report was too urgent to await the next meeting because of the need to
commence a consultation process for the draft enforcement policy and
strategy.

RESOLVED:

That approval be granted to the proposed Enforcement Strategy
and Policy as set out in the Appendix to the interleaved report and
to the proposals for consultation on the draft implementation plan
to the Strategy and Policy.

DUE

TEX216.

GRANT AIDING STANDARDS (Report of the Assistant Chief Executive
(Policy, Performance, Partnerships and Communications) — Agenda ltem
18)

RESOLVED:

1. That approval be granted to the funding of the Voluntary
and Community Sector being disbursed as either grants
or contracts.

2. That approval be granted to the grant aiding standards set out in
the interleaved report, and that they be applied to all
disbursements by way of grant except where there was guidance
or statute which required otherwise, with such exceptions to
be agreed by the Assistant Chief Executive (Policy,
Performance, Partnerships and Communications).

3. That with effect from the 1 July 2007 if funding was to be
disbursed using a grant, the standards set out in the interleaved
report be adopted.

4. That a further report be submitted on the wider financial
relationship of the Council with the Voluntary and
Community Sector.

ACE-
PPPC

ACE-
PPPC

ACE-
PPPC

ACE-
PPPC

TEX217.

REVIEW OF COUNCIL REPRESENTATION ON OUTSIDE BODIES
(Joint Report of the Interim Director of Corporate Services and the




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 24 APRIL 2007

Assistant Chief Executive (People and Organisational Development —
Agenda ltem 19)

RESOLVED:

1.

That approval be granted in principle to the following and
officers be instructed to come back with specific proposals for
action -

e The Council to continue to send representatives to
Association, Statutory and Partnership bodies and issues
to do with monitoring the effectiveness of Partnership
Bodies and addressing governance issues raised by this
kind of work be addressed by a subsequent report; and

e The Council to continue to send representatives to
Community bodies, including those that were charitable
trusts/companies, but officers conduct a review of each of
these bodies according to the following criteria of whether
the particular organisation :

» had published annual accounts and that these were
published on time;

» had a written constitution;

> had aims that were consistent with Council’'s Community
Strategy;

» had a guarantee limiting liability, where appropriate;

» had a health and safety policy and whether this was
implemented

» had an employment policy, if it was an employer.

» had regularly conducted CRB checks, where relevant.

» had any appropriate licenses.

» was such as to require the nature and size of

representation currently in place (i.e. Member or Officer,
Member of Committee, Director, Trustee).

That the results of the review be included in a further report
inviting the Council to confirm or amend their existing
authorised representation on these bodies.

That the full Council deal with the appointments to outside
bodies as detailed at paragraph 12.10 of the interleaved
report and that amendments to the Constitution be processed
to reflect this decision.

That the further work identified in paragraph 12.13 of the
report be undertaken including proposals for giving support to
Members and officers involving training where appropriate for
their role as representatives.

DCS/
ACE-
POD

DCS/
ACE-
POD

DCS/
ACE-
POD

DCS/
ACE-
POD

TEX218.

URGENT ACTIONS IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LEADER OR
EXECUTIVE MEMBERS (Report of the Chief Executive — Agenda ltem




Page 10

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE
TUESDAY, 24 APRIL 2007

20)
RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and any necessary action approved.

TEX219. | DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNFICANT ACTIONS (Report of the
Chief Executive — Agenda ltem 21)

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and any necessary action approved.

TEX220. | MINUTES OF SUB-BODIES (Agenda ltem 22)
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Procurement Committee held on 13
March 2007 be noted and any necessary action approved.

TEX221. | CHAIR’S REPORT

Our Chair reported that Justin Holliday (Assistant Chief Executive-
Policy, Performance, Partnerships and Communications) would shortly
be leaving the Council’s service to take up a post with the Home Office.

We asked that our thanks be placed on record for his services to the
Council over the past ten years.

GEORGE MEEHAN
Chair




Page 11 Agenda ltem 6

|
!

Haringey Council

Scrutiny Review of Extended
Services in and Around Schools
May 2007

Review Panel Membership

Councillor Martin Newton (Chair)
Councillor Gail Engert

Councillor John Oakes

Councillor Bernice Vanier



Page 12

Contents

Page
1. Executive Summary
2. Background and Reasons for Review
3. Way in which Scrutiny Carried Out
4. The Role of the Local Authority
5. Assessment of Council’s Performance
6. Value for Money
7. The Panel's Views

10) 0 I - NN Ny s JE VRN

Importance of Extended Schools
The Council's Approach

Funding

Involving Private Schools
Preparing list of Providers
Services for the wider Community
. Audit of Need

8. Further Reports

NOOGORAWLWN -
© WO ~N~N~ND

—
o

8. Recommendations



Page 13

Scrutiny Review of Extended Services in and Around Schools
1. Executive Summary

The Review Panel was asked to scrutinise the way in which extended
services in and around schools was being developed in Haringey. Whilst the
Panel limited its scrutiny to the Council's role and responsibilities in extended
services it considered:

»  The advantages resulting from schools providing extended
services,
) The Government’s targets and the advice given by them and other
bodies,
»  The action being taken by the Council and local schools to
implement the Government's targets.

The Panel’s views are contained in Section 7 and its recommendations are
set out in Section 8.

2. Background and Reasons for the Review

2.1 An extended school is one that provides a range of services and activities
often beyond the school day to help meet the needs of, children, their
families and the wider communities.

2.2 The idea of extended schools has been developed over the past decade as
the government has tackled ways in which to improve pupil attainment and in
particular support pupils in disadvantaged communities. The need to drive
up standards has been emphasized in a range of government publications
including the 2005 white paper entitled “Higher Standards, Better Schools for
All - More Choice for Parents and Pupils”.

2.3 Extended schools whilst linked, particularly through OFSTED, to the
educational agenda have also been developed in the context of other
government agendas such as widening participation and neighbourhood
renewal and programmes including Learning Communities. The concept is
also closely linked to the government'’s plans to improve services to children
and families with the focus on the five key outcomes for children identified in
the Green Paper Every Child Matters 2004 and the Childcare Act 2006.

2.4 In June 2005 the Department for Education and Skills published “Access to
Opportunities and Services for All - An Extended Schools Prospectus” which
set out a core offer of extended services which the government expects to be
available in or through schools by 2010. These may be summarised as:-

. A varied menu of activities (study support) with the aim of

motivating and reengaging children and young people
. Parenting support including family learning sessions

I



Page 14

. Swift and easy referral to a wide range of specialist support
services e.g. speech therapy

. High quality childcare from 8am to 6pm, either on a school site or
through other local providers

. Wider community access to school buildings facilities.

2.5 The Government envisages that working with other agencies and
organisations to offer access to extended services will help to drive
improvement to ensure that schools make an important contribution to the
“Every Child Matters” outcomes. In effect their proposals are based on the
realisation that how a child performs in the classroom depends on more than
what happens in the classroom.

2.6 The Department for Education and Skills believe that schools developing
extended services can:

Improve pupil attendance and motivation

Re-engage hard-to-reach children

Respond to pupils’ individualised needs with a personal offer
Enhance children’s and families access to services

Improve parental engagement

Enable teachers to focus on teaching and learning.

¢ & o o ¢ =

2.7 Ofsted have stated that, “the major benefits of extended services were the
gains children young people and adults made in their self-confidence and the
development of more positive attitudes to learning and to what they might
achieve.” Evidence from pilot and pathfinder projects suggest that this is so
and the Association of Teachers and Lecturers consider that extended
schools, “impact positively on pupil attainment, motivation, attendance,
punctuality and behaviour”.

2.8 Haringey Council, like every other education authority in the country, is
dealing with the complex changes required to bring about the government’s
vision for children. The development of Children’s Trust arrangements is just
one aspect of this work, but an essential linchpin to it is the idea of schools
providing extended services not just to pupils and their parents, but to the
rest of the community. Schools are seen as having facilities which could be
used by the whole community thereby increasing the cost effectiveness of
public services.

2.9 In order to assist the Council, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee set up a
scrutiny review panel to consider the current position in Haringey regarding
the provision of extended services in and around schools to ensure there
was a good use of existing resources thereby providing value for money
and to make recommendations on:-

. The problems and restraints in providing extended facilities and



Page 15

possible solutions

. The way in which the services which need to be provided to meet
demand are identified in consultation with the local community,
including the local authority’s strategic role and the process for
determining how shortfalls should be met and that the new
services are sustainable

. The specific action being taken to reach disadvantaged children,
people with special needs and hard to reach groups.

3. The Way in Which the Scrutiny Exercise Has Been Carried Out

3.1 It was accepted at the outset of this review that scrutiny should be limited to
the council's roles and responsibilities. There was no point in making
detailed recommendations to schools as to how they should carry out new
tasks since they were already receiving advice from the Government,
OFSTED and the Local Authority.

3.2 The Review Panel considered that it was essential that they saw how
schools with extended services operated. They therefore visited Gladesmore
Community School - where considerable strides had been made in providing
extended services - and talked to both pupils and staff. A visit was also
made to Millfield Community School (Hackney) which had been visited by the
Prime Minister, Secretary of State for Education and many other politicians
and was widely acknowledged to be a trail-blazer in the provision of
extended services. This School had marketed a DVD on how to create a
successful extended day programme and a copy of this was purchased and
examined.

3.3 , Members visited the independent Highgate and Channing Schools and had
discussions with their headteachers and bursars to see how they might be
able to contribute to the extended schools initiative.

3.4 The panel also had four meetings:

1) To agree the terms of reference for the review.

2) With the Director of Children and Young People Services to establish
what she considered to be the Council’s role and whether sufficient
resources were allocated to it.

3) With the Council's officers directly responsible for advising on extended
services to establish what they did and how.

4) With providers to establish whether there were any gaps in services,
whether consultation processes were good and if the arrangements for
providing a particular service were value for money

3.5 A small number of local residents living near schools which provided
extended services were consulted about whether they used the services.
This indicated that where a family was aware of them, at least one of their
members made use of the services provided. Some families were not aware



Page 16

of extended services but indicated if they had been aware they would have
made some use of them.

3.6 Attached at appendix A is a list of documents which were consulted during
the course of the review and Appendix B lists the people who helped.

4. The Role of the Local Authority

The Council’s role may be summarised as:-

. A strategic commissioner of overview of provision to ensure that
services are developed coherently within a community

. Using the expertise and experience of service providers when
planning for the expansion of services provided in an area

. Establishing systems for measuring the impact of extended

services on the standards and achievements of children and
young people, in particular the most vulnerable and ensuring that
the overall provision offers value for money

. Ensuring a continuity of provision of support services between
children’s centres and schools
. Advising schools on the management systems they could adopt

to manage extended service, the kind of services which they can
provide and ways and means of raising additional resources.

5. Assessment of the Council’s Performance to Date

5.1 Good progress has been made in ensuring that Haringey and its schools
meet the challenges posed by the government’s extended services agenda.
The Children and Young People’s Service is on course to comply with the
Government's targets. Three children networks have been established to
commission family support, outreach and community involvement in the
borough. Teams are being established within each network which will offer
family support services within the new children’s centres and schools.
Speech and other therapy services are also delivered within the children’s
network together with other health services. It is anticipated that these
networks will help schools to develop extensive services and fulfill the
council’s function of offering a strategic approach to the establishment of
services within a locality, which are then delivered by a number of schools.

5.2 The concept of extended schools is closely linked to the development of the
new children centres whose function is to ensure the availability of childcare
for children from 8am to 6pm 48 weeks per year. This will be a statutory
requirement from next year. Each centre requires its own childcare plan
which must be based on local demand and the ability to deliver sustainable
childcare. Although some of these may be provided in private or voluntary
settings outside schools a number will be situated on school premises and be
run as an extended service by school governing bodies. A coherent fee
structure for the services provided at children’s centres has been agreed by



Page 17

the Council's Executive and children’s centres and schools have been
advised.

5.3 The Council's commitment to provide extended services is reflected in the bid
to locate a new community secondary school at Wood Green. It is proposed
that this school will provide beyond the normal school day a range of
extended learning, leisure and social opportunities for young people, their
families and other members of the community to include sport, leisure,
cultural/arts activities, lettings and social events. The school provision will
also include lifelong learning opportunities which will respond to the needs of
the communities it serves.

5.4 The Council has already started to assess the need for extended services in
each network. This is not an easy task but communities are being involved
through the networks and partnership arrangements. This line of approach is
in accordance with Ofsted suggestion that schools, children centres and local
authorities make intelligent use of the local network of statutory and voluntary
services when setting up extended services across an area. Ofsted also
thought that extended services were most successful when settings ensured
that they complemented and enhanced what already existed so that they
took full account of what was already being provided locally. Whilst initially
the development of extended services in schools needed to be a process
which took place over time with services gradually being extended as needs
were identified it might now be appropriate to consider undertaking a
detailed audit of need.

5.5 The Council also takes very seriously its role in advising schools. Last year's
annual conference for governors was devoted to the extended schools
agenda and was addressed by, amongst others, the headteacher of Millfield
Community School who is recognised as a leader in this field. The theme of
this conference was strengthening services and engaging communities and
advice was given on how to do this and also on the different management
arrangements which could be adopted by schools to run extended services.
This is particularly important because good management arrangements, with
a dedicated member of school staff being specifically responsible for
extended services and for raising revenue, is more likely to result in the
provision of well advertised sustainable services.

5.6 Discussions are taking place between the local authority and providers as to
the kinds of services which could be provided in schools and it is essential
that all agencies are involved in this process and that, where appropriate,
agencies jointly commission a service. This issue is important as it is only
through detailed consultation with providers that cost effective services,
which deliver value for money, whilst meeting the needs of the whole
community, can be provided in a sustainable way. The importance of family
support cannot be over emphasised although local authorities adopt different
approaches. Luton Council for instance has a family room and a family
support worker in every school.



Page 18

5.7 ltis clear that schools are being encouraged to work together to provide

extended services. For instance the Family Support Service in operation at
Northumberland Park School covers an area in which there are 12 schools.
This service is also an example of what can be achieved through joint
commissioning.

5.8 It is essential that all extended services are monitored to ensure that they are

7.1

effective and it is intended that this will be done through the Children’s
Networks. Local partnership boards with community representatives will be
formed to do this. Demand and take up of places was being monitored so
that services could be gradually shaped to reflect community need and want.
As already indicated this gradual change is in accordance with Ofsted’s view
that, “the most successful providers shaped the provision gradually to reflect
their community’s needs and wants in collaboration with other agencies.”

Value for Money

The development of the Council's extended schools, strategy is carried out
by the Children’s Network Manager (who is a head teacher on a year’s
secondment) and an Extended Schools Co-ordinator. They receive advice
from the Extended Schools Remodelling Consultants who are involved in the
“‘remodeling training” programme for schools. From what the Panel saw
these arrangements appear to be cost effective and are driving the extended
schools’ agenda forward. However, in the time available the Panel was not
able to carry out a detailed scrutiny of the money spent each year, the work
carried out by these officers and the outcomes or to compare this with what
happened at other local authorities. Without this comprehensive analysis it is
not possible for the Panel to positively confirm that the Council is receiving
value for money. If it is decided that this work is necessary then this detailed
process should be carried out as a separate scrutiny exercise next year.

The Panel’s Views
The Importance of Extended Schools

The Panel recognised the importance of the extended school initiative and
the immense benefits to local residents if Haringey were able to transform
this vision into reality. The advantages of extended schools in meeting pupils
and families individualised needs was particularly important in a multi-
cultural community like Haringey where for many families English was an
additional language. The provision by local schools of services to all
residents was also likely to promote and encourage community ties and
reduce social tensions as well as complementing the action taken by
Neighbourhood Partnerships.

It was generally accepted by most authorities (see paragraph 2.6) that the
individual support and encouragement given to families through extended



Page 19

schools resulted in improved parental engagement and had a positive impact
on pupil attainment and behaviour. The extended school initiative also
ensured that optimum use was made of school facilities and that the
maximum number of cost-effective services tailored to meet each localities
needs were available to local residents.

7.2 The Council’'s Approach to Extended Schools

7.3

7.4

As already indicated the Panel was generally satisfied that the Council was
tackling the development of extended schools in a co-coordinated and
effective manner. If, however, the Council is to derive the maximum
advantage from the extended schools initiative it is essential that they
involve the private and voluntary sectors as well. The Panels views about
funding, the involvement of private schools, identifying community needs
and the action necessary to ensure that a wide range of cost-effective
services are available for the use of local residents are set out in the
sections that follows:

Funding

The Department for Education and Skills allocated start-up funding to local
authorities for the development of extended services. However, the Panel
share the concerns, expressed by others, e.g. the Association of Teachers
and Lecturers, about the fragmented nature of the funding, its insufficiency
and its full-term nature as it runs out in 2008. Ofsted have also commented
that, “short-term funding make it difficult for services to plan strategically”.
The Panel supports the suggestions that the Department needs to
commission an independent review of this funding regime to ensure that its
weaknesses are effectively rectified, as it is imperative that a viable funding
regime is in place if the vision of extended services is to be translated into
reality.

As part of its brief the independent review should also look at the way in
which people will pay for extended services, including the new child care
centres, and the manner in which the benefits structure will operate. Itis
essential once again that robust arrangements are in place if the new
services are to be sustainable.

Involving Private Schools in the Provision of Extended Services

If the extended schools initiative is to be fully effective it is important that all
schools not just state ones are involved. Private schools are at present
considering the Charity Commission’s consultation paper on the
implementation of the Charities Act 2008, so it seemed a good time to
discuss extended services with them. Panel members therefore met the
Head Teachers and Bursars of Highgate and Channing Schools about their
possible involvement in providing extended services. Both Schools
responded positively and indicated that they were involved in projects with



7.5

7.6

Page 20

state schools although, in Channing’s case not with Haringey schools.
Highgate also make many of their facilities, such as their swimming pool,
available to the local community and schools at a reasonable charge. They
were also keen to provide extended services to local pupils. In the Panel's
view it is essential that the Council’s officers, in consultation with executive
members, have detailed discussions with the two schools on ways in which
they could provide extended services.

Preparing a Comprehensive List of Service Providers

There needs to be more consultation with providers on the kind of services
required in schools and from whom. It is accepted that this is a difficult task
involving the use of additional resources, which are not at present available.
However it is clear from the Panel's limited investigation that there are a
number of providers who could provide self-funding services or indeed
improve the level of services available. Just as crucially it is necessary to
continue to develop monitoring arrangements and for the results to be
available to all interested parties so as to ensure that the extended services
provided are appropriate and cost effective. As a long-term aim there needs
to be a comprehensive list of providers together with information about the
quality of the services they provide.

Provision of Services for the Wider Community

It is also essential that consideration is given not just to providing services for
children in school and their parents but also for the wider community. Adult
learning is one particular area which could be part of extended

services, with lessons being given on school premises out of school hours.
This is also an area where local businesses may well be prepared to invest
to ensure that, not just their own employees, but also members of the wider
community (potential employees) have the opportunity to take advantage of
further education.

7.7 Audit of Need

One of the problems which was highlighted by the review was that some of
the new services being provided at schools were already adequately
provided elsewhere, albeit at a higher charge. The long-term aim of
extended services should be primarily to complete the patchwork of services
required to meet the needs of all sections of the community rather than to
increase competition.

This issue could be tackled by carrying out a comprehensive audit of need.
The findings from the audit would then act as a driver for the provision of
services. It is accepted that the preparation of such an audit will involve the
use of scarce resources and could be costly to undertake. It would also only
show a snapshot of need at a particular moment of time so would need
constant updating. More preferable would be the continued development of



7.8

Page 21

processes to identify need. This in our view could be done through the
continued development of the multi disciplinary teams that support Children’'s
Networks to ensure that all providers have an opportunity to feed in details of
the services they provide and their assessment of need. This would also help
address the concerns expressed in Paragraphs 7.5 and 7.6. It is also
essential to ensure that feedback on services provided are used to update
not just need but the way in which the service is provided.

The way in which local communities are represented on Children’s Networks
also needs to be constantly reviewed to ensure that the arrangements are
effective.

Areas which need to be the subject of further reports

Communications - Services for children, including education, have been
targeted by the government in recent years as an area for improvement.
Consequently the way in which such services are delivered has changed
enormously over the past few years and the pace of change is likely to
continue unabated in the conceivable future. One problem which can arise in
times of changes is a breakdown in communications, not just between
agencies but also between staff working in the same organisation. There
were some indications during the Panel's scrutiny that this was an issue
which could arise unless special care was taken to prevent it. It is strongly
recommended, therefore, that the issue of communication should be followed
up with a report on progress being submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee in October 2007.

Pupils with additional needs but without a statement -The Director of the
Children and Young People’s Service agreed with the Panel that meeting the
needs of children with special needs (autistic pupils) was an essential
component of extended services. However looked after children and those
with special needs should have no problem in accessing extended services,
as sufficient money was being held in the budget for vulnerable children.
The Panel is, however, concerned about those children who do not have a
statement and yet have special needs. Unfortunately people on the
borderline are the ones who are most likely to suffer under any system, so
special care needs to be taken to identify such children and to ensure that
their needs are meet.

Continuation of service provision when pupils change schools - It is
essential that services provided in one school continue to be available as a
child moves from nursery to primary school and then on to secondary school.
This is an issue which needs to be borne in mind as services develop.

Consistent charges and concessions -There needs to be continual
discussions with schools and other providers to ensure that there is Borough-
wide consistency with service charges and concessions.



Page 22

Management of schools’ extended services - Although the Council is
doing all it can to help schools it is clear that this is an ongoing process which
must continue into the future. Appropriate school management
arrangements for extended services are essential if such services are to be
sustainable.

Advertising - It is essential that the services provided are properly
advertised so that all sections of the community can be aware of them.
Effective advertisement of services is also another way of helping to identify
need.

Recommendations

That the Leader writes to the Secretary of State for Education and Skills
supporting the proposal that he should commission an independent
review:
| to ensure that a viable extended schools funding regime is in place;

and

ll. to look at the way people pay for extended services, including the new

child care centres and the manner in which the benefits structure
relates to this. (Paragraph 7.3)

That senior staff from the Children and Young People’s Services, in
consultation with the Executive Member, have discussions with Highgate
and Channing Schools about partnership arrangements whereby they
provide extended services to local residents and schools and report on the
results in the update to Overview and Scrutiny Committee before the
recommendations are carried forward to the Executive in October 2007.
(Paragraph 7.4)

That the existing Children’s Network structure identifies:

. the extended services required by the wider community together
with information as to how this need is met;

. a comprehensive list of suppliers who could most cost effectively
meet the local community’'s needs;

o the schools in the area covered by each Children’s Network

which are best able to provide the facilities for each service and
the arrangements for so doing;

. the arrangements for identifying which Children’'s Network
provides services to those residents who live on the borders of an
area covered by the Network. (Paragraphs 7.5, 7.6 and 7.7)

That Schools be encouraged to purchase the Millfield Community School’s
excellent DVD on creating a successful extended day programme.
(Paragraph 3.2)

10



Page 23

S  That the Director of Children and Young People reports on all the
recommendations to the October 2007 Overview and Scrutiny Committee
meeting including progress on:

.

progress in helping schools to develop appropriate arrangements

for the development of extended services;

the action being taken to ensure that there are effective lines of

communication to ensure that Council staff and other agencies

are kept informed of current developments;

the action being taken to ensure provision of services continues

as children and young people move from one educational

establishment to another;

The action being taken to try to ensure that charges and
concessions levied by schools are consistent;

The way in which services are advertised. (Paragraph 7.8)

i



Page 24

Appendix A
Main Documents Referred to during this Review
Legislation

1. Education Act 2002

2. The Schools Company Regulations 2002
3. Children Act 2004

4. Childcare Act 2006

Government Policy and Guidance

1. Bringing Britain Together; a national strategy for neighbourhood

renewal - Social exclusion Unit 1998

Schools succeeding success — 2001 White Paper

Extended schools proving opportunities and services for all —-

Department for Education and Skills 2002 '

Every Child Matters - 2003 Green Paper

Extended schools pathfinder evaluation: issues for schools and local

education authorities - Department for Education and Skills 2003

6. Evaluation of the Extended Schools Pathfinder Projects - Department
for Education and Skills 2004

7. Family literacy, language and numeracy: A guide for Extended Schools
- Department for Education and Skills 2004

8. Building schools for the future: a new approach to capital investment -
Department for Education and Skills 2004

9. Every Child Matters: next steps - Department for Education and Skills
2004

10. Full service extended schools: requirements And specification -
Department for Education and Skills 2004

11. Education improvement Partnerships. Local collaboration for school
improvement and better service delivery - Department for Education
and Skills 2005

12.Extended schools: access to opportunities and services for all —
Department for Education and Skills 2005

13. Children’s workforce strategy - Department for Education and Skills
2005

14. Higher standards, better schools for all — White Parer2005

15.Choice for parents, the best start for children: making it happen. An
action plan for the 10 year strategy: sure start children’s centres,
extended schools and childcare - Department for Education and Skills
2006

16. Planning and funding extended schools: a guide for schools, local
authorities and their partner organisations - Department for Education
and Skills 2006

17. Evaluation of the full service extended schools initiative, second year
thematic papers - Department for Education and Skills 2006

18. Extended services; supporting school improvement - Department for
Education and Skills 2006

wmn

o



Page 25

19. Extended schools and health services - working together for better

outcomes for children and families - Departments for Health and
Education and Skills 2006

20.Neigbourhood Management and Extended services in and around

Schools — Department for Communities and Local Government

21.Extended schools: improving access to sexual health advice services -

Department for Education and Skills 2006

22.Extended services - Department for Education and Skills 2006
23.Planning and funding external schools - Department for Education and

Skills 2006

Others

1.

2.

9.

Adding value: adult learning and extended services — National Institute
of Adults Continuing education 2006

Frequently asked questions on extended schools ~ Local Government
Association briefing 2003

Schools for the Community - freedoms and flexibilities Local
Government Association briefing 2003

Visit to Newcastle “schools for the community” project — Local
Government Association report 2002

The development of Montagu Community Full Service School -
Newcastle City Council Local Education Authority 2004

Extended schools theory, practice and issues — Infed Encyclopaedia
2005

Extended schools — position statements — Association of Teachers and
Lecturers 2004 -6

Extended Services in Schools: Baseline survey of maintained schools
in 2005 —~ BMRB Social Research

Arrangements for the use of school premises by others — Durham
County Council 2004

10.South Tyneside Local Authority strategy for the development of

extended services in and around schools 2005

11. Papers considered by the Millfields Community School Children’s

Centre Steering Group

12.Improving schools improving communities — Millfields Community

School

13. Extended schools - a guide for governors 2006
14.Extended services in schools and children’s centres —Ofsted 2006
15. More than the sun - mobilising the whole council and its partners to

support school success - Audit Commission

Haringey

1

2
3

Extended services in and around schools — Children's service
delivery/business plan 2005

Haringey Extended Schools Strategy 2005

Children’s networks as a framework for the delivery of the Children’s
Service: including children’s centres, play provision and extended
schools — Report to Executive 26 July 2005



Page 26

Papers on Extended schools considered at the Annual Governors
Conference 2006

Haringey Council's proposal for the new school in Haringey Heartlands
— report to Executive 21 November 2006

Delivering early childhood services in Haringey — report to Executive 19
December 2006

Extended School Provision 2005-6 and 2006-07 — Gladesmore
Community school

Internet Sites

CoONOOAWN =

ATL the education union

Training and Development Agency for schools
Teachernet

Harinet

Department for Education and Skills

Sure start

Every Child Matters

Local Government Association

Other local authorities



Appendix B

Contributors to the Review

Page 27

The Scrutiny Review Panel wish to thank the following who gave advice and help

during the course of this review:

Name Organisation or Title

Sharon Shoesmith Director of Children and Young People’s Services
Barbara Elliot Head Teacher - Channing School

Roy Hill Bursar - Channing School

Adam Pettitt Head Teacher - Highgate School

Sean McGeeney Bursar — Highgate School

Robert Singh Children Network’s Manager

Carol Mackinnon

Extended School’s Co-ordinator

Zena Brabazon

Head of Partnerships

Tony Hartley Head of Gladesmore Community School
Goldwater Ojokor Deputy Head of Gladesmore Community School
Dame Anna Hassan Head of Millfields Community School

Kim Price Extended School Co-Ordinator, Millfields School
Geraldine Waterman Head of Bruce Grove Primary School

Mary Evans Play Service

Marion Lucas D’Souza

Play Service

Belinda Evans

Youth Service

Pat Dufty Haringey Adult Learning Service
Christina Francis Kidscope After School Club

Hilda Djaba Connexions — North London Manager
Jim Shepley HAVCO/YMCA

Bob Gray Communications and CIS Manager
Jeanne Cantorna Job Centre Plus

Turker Chakici Hornsey Ataturk School

Deborah Goodman

Director of Operations —Primary Care Trust

Dwynwen Stepien

Children’s Network Manager (North)

Alison Botham

Children’s Network Manager ( West)

Gill Pinkerton

Muswell Hill & Highgate NLC [Highgate Primary]

Beverly Randell

Wood Green NLC [Pupil Support Centre]

Angela Holder

Wood Green Bank School [Lordship Lane]

Margarita Mooney

N.E Tottenham NLC [St Francis De Sales Infant]




Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29

Report of the Scrutiny Review on
Fly tipping

April 2007



COINoOoOAWN

Page 30

Contents

Chair’s Foreword

Executive Summary

Background and reasons for the review
The Law and fly tipping

How the Scrutiny was carried out
Present Situation

Preventative Action

Costs and effective use of resources
Recommendations

Appendices

Fly tipping legislation

Notes of Resident’s Focus groups
Results of Councillors’ questionnaire
Contributors to the review

ooOow>»



1.

Page 31

Chair’s Foreword

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

There is a great deal of national and local concern about the environmental and
financial cost of fly tipping.

This Scrutiny Panel was convened as a result of suggestions from residents
and councillors who were concerned that the efforts made to improve the
Borough under the Better Haringey banner are being undermined by the
thoughtless dumping of residential and commercial waste by a tiny minority.

During our research, panel members were impressed by the determination and
enthusiasm shown by waste management and enforcement officers whose job
itis to tackle this problem.

If one recommendation is to be taken forwafd it is that there must be a clear
Borough wide determination to eradicate the problem.

Haringey must provide adequate resources to tackle fly tipping and take the
lead in inspiring our partner organisations in a concerted effort to beat the
tippers.

Executive Summary

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

To ensure that the review was properly focussed and able to achieve maximum
effect it was agreed that it should concentrate on prevention methods.

Since the introduction of the Better Haringey programme with more resources
and the use of CCTV, there has been a gradual decrease in reported fly
tipping. The panel looked at ways to ensure that fly tipping will continue to
decrease.

As part of the review, the Panel examined national and regional legislation,
talked to officers, residents and stakeholders and examined best practice
elsewhere.

The Panel's recommendations are set out in Paragraph 9.

Background And Reasons For The Review

3.1

3.2

3.3

Better Haringey, now in its fourth year, was set up in response to residents’
priorities in wishing to see Haringey as cleaner, greener and safer. It is a
priority programme for the Council aimed at making visible improvements to
the Environment. Fly tipping (which is regarded as an anti-social problem) has
been identified as an issue that needs to be addressed in order to continue the
success of Better Haringey.

The House of Commons Environment Committee, in common with many
experts, believes that litter accumulates as part of a self perpetuating spiral of
decline which can lead to increased criminal activity and the fear of such
activity. Improving the environment and cleaning up areas can, therefore help
to reduce the amount of crime.

In recent years, as the problems associated with fly-tipping intensified and
environmental pressures increased, the need to find a solution became more



Page 32

urgent. The problem has been discussed by a number of bodies and
organisations. These include:

The European Community

various government departments,

The House of Commons Environmental Audit Committee;
Greater London Authority,

Local Government Association,

Local authorities.

3.4. The Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) who are
committed to tackling the illegal disposal of waste, have consulted widely on a
comprehensive fly-tipping strategy aimed at enhancing and improving the
powers available to deal with this issue. The responses it received were used
to help frame new legislation. The Department also commissioned the Jill
Dando Institute to carry out further research into the causes and incentives for
fly-tipping, and is considering amendments to the Waste Carrier registration
system.

3.5 The Environment Agency and the Local Government Association have agreed
a protocol for dealing with fly-tipping. The Agency has also developed a web-
based fly-tipping database, known as “Flycapture”. It has been operational
since April 2004 and is a strategic tool that will inform policy and strategy
decisions as well as enabling resources to be concentrated on hot spots.
Flycapture includes the facility to record registration details of vehicles involved
in fly-tipping to determine whether they have been involved in similar crimes
elsewhere. However it would seem that there is room for local interpretation
regarding what is counted as a fly tip making it difficult to use this information to
compare performance against other local authorities.

3.6 The European Community has also been involved in this issue and has passed
a number of waste directives including those regulating the disposal of ‘fridges
and other electrical and electronic equipment.

3.7 Initially the Panel had proposed to involve the Jill Dando Institute of Crime
Science, the acknowledged experts in fly tipping. However the Panel was
impressed by both the proactive and reactive action already taken by the
Service to prevent fly tipping. It was also pleased that all of the
recommendations made by the Jill Dando Institute were already being
implemented in Haringey. For this reason it was not considered necessary to
involve them or other external agencies in this review.

4. The Law and Fly tipping

4.1 Although there is no legal definition of fly tipping, it is usually described as the
unlawful disposal of waste and illegal dumping of items such as:

» general household waste

« large domestic items (eg ‘fridges and mattresses)
» commercial waste (eg builders’ rubble, tyres)

« garden refuse

« litter, refuse accumulation



Page 33

« SOil

4.2 Fly tipping is illegal and Appendix A summarises the legislation relating to Fly
tipping and the enforcement action that can be taken.

5. The Way in which the Scrutiny Exercise has been carried out

5.1 The Membership of the Panel was Councillors Winskill, Hare and Lister.
5.2 During the course of the review we:

e  Thoroughly researched relevant background documents and identified key
national and regional stakeholders who had undertaken relevant research

. Held two Resident Focus Groups (Appendix B)

Announced details of the review in two consecutive editions of Haringey

People

The Chair went on a tour of known hotspots

Met with officers from the Waste Management and Enforcement Teams

Consulted with other Boroughs

Heard the views from a consultant on Waste Management

Sought the views of Accord, the Council’'s Waste collection and street

cleansing Contractor

Consulted with the Police Safer Neighbourhood Teams

»  Consulted, via a questionnaire, with all councillors as well as businesses and
residents’ associations (Appendix C)

® & ¢ o o L ]

6. The Present Situation In Haringey

Where does it occur?




6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Page 34

Incidents of dumping are mainly concentrated in the N17, N15 and N22
postcode areas, which cover Bruce Grove, West Green and Noel Park. In
January 2007 these three postcodes made up 75% of the reports of fly tipping
made by residents in the Borough.

Private Land - Where dumping occurs on private land which is accessible to the
public, the Council can take action against the land owner or occupier to have
the land cleared, if necessary, it can require the owner/occupier to take action
to prevent a re-occurrence of the dumping by erecting fences to restrict access.
In 18 months over 1000 notices were served on owners for the removal of
dumped waste and in a majority of cases no further action was necessary.

Only in a minority of cases was it necessary to serve Notices requiring fencing
to be erected to avoid further dumping.

The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 extends powers to
require private land owners to “gate” a property and it is the intention of
Enforcement Services to make use of these new powers as required. They
could be used for instances where private alleys were constantly used as a
dumping ground. Prior to these powers being introduced, Haringey Council
undertook a series of proactive interventions where known hot spot alleys were
causing problems to local residents. This included “gating” 12 alleys with the
costs being met by regeneration grants. There is also limited funding available
for unadopted alleys to be gated. Owners or occupiers of privately owned alleys
may also be prepared to pay for them to be gated to prevent fly tipping.

How much is dumped

Both Haringey Accord and the Waste Management Service collect data on
levels of fly tipping.

As Figure 1 below shows, there has been a decline in the number of incidents
of fly tipping since September 2006. This is due mainly to changes in reporting
methods and the success of the Fly tipping hot spots action plan.(referred to in
Paragraph 6.9). Prior to the winter of 2006 the incidence of fly tipping was
reported by Accord in terms of the number of bags collected (i.e. 6 black bags
in one location would be 6 Fly tips). Now it is recorded by a location rather than
number of bags i.e. 6 bags in one location is 1 Fly tip.

Figure 1: Trend of Total incidents of fly tipping in Haringey, January 06 — March 07



7000

6000

5000

4000 +

i Jan I Feb Mar J Aprit | May June July I Alig | Sept | Oct | Dec Jan ] Feb [ Mar |
f sso6_| 5369 [ sa16 | sapv | saia | gao1 | sosa | 6193 | 6366 | 63co | 6zei | soma | amee | 4615 | 508 |

What material is dumped?

6.6 The Haringey Accord Call Centre uses the Flycapture categories of waste,
including a ‘General’ category, which includes black bags, broken furniture,
household items etc.

Figure 2 — Analysis of waste by percentage of total

g0 | SAUG-06% |

70 ijsep_OG % 66—7——1—— _

’ N -
R 40 § -

, § |

20 1 1314 § .

8
10 47 5 3 6 4 ’ 5 \ T
o LN e ‘ N ; @ i ' \%
Tyres PC Monitors Gas bottles/  Fridges Televisions  General
batteries

6.7  During December the Waste Management Service monitored the work of the
Accord managed dumps’ clearance service. Their findings showed that the vast
majority of fly tipped waste was actually household waste often gathered in
small piles on pavements and awaiting collection, from flats above shops. A
further quarter of dumps recorded were found to be commercial waste —
predominantly orange Accord trade bags. In terms of the size of fly tips more
than half were found to be around the size of a car boot load or less.



6.8

6.9

Page 36

The Panel was told that the survey had indicated that not much commercial
waste was dumped, but, what is, causes concern - especially dumping outside
normal business trading hours. There was, however, evidence that commercial
dumping was a significant problem in industrial estates in the east of the
Borough. Also the Borough suffers from some dumping of items such as tyres,
car batteries and TV's which are all now considered to be hazardous waste.

The Council has worked extensively with Accord in identifying hotspot sites,
devising action plans for each location and executing them. As a result a
significant number of sites have been tackled. In just over a year Enforcement
Services have eradicated 75 of the Borough'’s identified top fly tipping hotspots.
and a second tranche of sites has now been identified for action.

7. Preventative Action taken by the Council

7.1

The Jill Dando Institute, who carried out significant research in this area
identified five types of intervention that can prevent fly tipping. These are:-

Increasing the effort for the potential offender
Increasing the risks to the potential offender
Reducing the rewards for the potential offender
Reducing provocations of potential offenders
Removing the excuses available to potential offenders

Increasing the effort

In most cases fly tipping takes very little effort. Perversely it can take more effort to
dispose of rubbish legally than to tip it illegally. Therefore efforts must be taken to
alter the balance and make it easier to get rid of rubbish lawfully.

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

The Panel heard that the Environmental Crime Group are committed to
reducing the availability and accessibility of fly tipping hotspot and are
undertaking a number of projects.

An example is the three year Better Haringey Eyesores project which is carried
out by the Heavy Enforcement Team (HET). Many fly-tipping hotspots are
easily accessed and on poorly maintained land, owned or controlled by large
organisations. Through partnership work and service of legal notices the HET,
without any cost to the council, has cleared large dumping hot spots at these
locations and had larger more robust fencing installed as a formidable obstacle
to access.

Phase three of the project which is due to start in 2007, targets eyesores on
industrial estates. These are common targets for fly-tippers. The “eyesores”
project is also designed to develop “target hardening” strategies such as gating
entrances and exits to make it more difficult for offenders to access potential
fly-tip areas.

There is also a Strategic Team who initiate long term borough wide projects
and investigate long term solutions to hotspots.



Page 37

Increase the risk

Currently fly tipping is not very risky as the chances of detection and prosecution are
relatively slim. It is also difficult to trace the person who dumped the waste. It is not
hard to find a quiet time and place to dump rubbish and it is quick and easy to do so.
Even if offenders are caught the penalties are not high.

7.6

7.7

7.8

The Council has implemented several initiatives aimed at increasing the risk to
offenders, and combined these are reasonably effective. In October 2005
Street Enforcement Team and the Street Warden Teams became operational.
(in partnership with Waste Management) with the aim of ensuring that:-

* all commercial properties have a commercial waste contract
» businesses and the public are advised and educated about how to lawfully
dispose of their waste.

This Team also investigates fly tipping on the public highway or land adjacent
to it, and, where appropriate, takes enforcement action.

Two officers are allocated to the borough wide Rapid Response Team who
answer any complaint or enquiry within 24 hrs. They also investigate waste
complaints and any potential fly-tipping within the borough.

Accord informed the Panel that they would like to continue working alongside
enforcement and perhaps provide a vehicle with driver, to thoroughly search
dumped bags to obtain evidence of the dumper. The Waste Management
Service supports this initiative and would welcome the introduction of a pilot
scheme, which, if successful, could be made permanent. Such close working
could help ensure that a higher volume of bag searches are made at confined
dumping hotspots and increase the risk to fly tippers of being detected.

CCTV

7.9

7.10

The use of CCTV cameras is effective in creating a risk and detecting fly-
tipping offenders. Street Enforcement services currently have ten CCTV
cameras that are under their control and on specific operations. For specific
operations the Street Enforcement Team have access to the central CCTV
network controlled at Ashley Road Depot.

Throughout the review the Panel received requests from the public that more
use should be made of CCTV cameras in preventing fly tipping. However,
officers stressed that whilst CCTV cameras could act as a deterrent to the
average offender, they would only offer limited effectiveness when used for
criminal enforcement. Surveillance work was notoriously resource intensive and
could often be unfruitful. However, joint working between agencies and shared
usage of CCTV assets should be fully exploited.

Notices

7.11

Many known regular fly tipping hotspots are sign posted, warning potential
offenders of the penalties for unlawful fly tipping. Light weight signs have been
designed and manufactured in several languages and are placed on lamp
columns near to fly tipping hot spots to warn potential offenders not to
unlawfully fly tip at these locations, or risk prosecution.



Page 38

Partnership Working

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

The Council in partnership with the Police Safer Neighbourhoods Teams have
initiated “Operation Stop It". Vehicles carrying waste are stopped and drivers
checked to ensure that they are registered waste carriers. The legislation
allows officers to issue a fixed penalty notice of £300 to the owner/driver who
does not have the appropriate documentation. Since April 2006 when this
power became available over 400 vehicles have been stopped and searched.
lllegal operators who drive through or use Haringey as a dumping ground now
take a very real risk.

The Panel noted that each ward now has a dedicated Police Safer
Neighbourhood Team whose officers can observe and report fly-tipping to
Waste Management. Whilst enforcement and prevention of fly-tipping remain
predominantly a local authority responsibility, there is an important role to be
played by these teams in passing on intelligence and conducting joint
operations. The Council needs to ensure that the benefits from liaising with
Safer Neighbourhood Teams are maximised.

Operation “Mystery Shopper” is used by the Environmental Crime Group to
create a risk for potential fly tippers. Local papers are monitored for adverts
offering “white van with man” services; the service provider is contacted and a
“sting” operation executed. If the van driver/ owner is not an authorised waste
carrier they are subject to a £300 fixed penalty notice or are prosecuted.

This type of operation creates a risk for waste carriers who operate illegally
within the Borough and feedback shows that, as a result “‘cowboy” waste
carriers are ceasing to operate and fly tip in the Borough. Legal waste carriers
fully support this type of action which removes cheap unlawful competition.

Clear enforcement policies and strategies have been agreed with the legal
team, which has instigated several successful prosecution cases. As a result,
high fines and full costs have been awarded to the Council. These successes
have been publicised by the Council's press team as has the enforcement
team’s activities against fly tipping. This has supported the development of a
risk culture amongst potential fly tippers.

Close partnership work has been developed with the local Magistrates’ Courts.
For instance the Panel was advised that a visit was being arranged to
Tottenham and Wood Green Magistrates’ Courts for a presentation to
magistrates about the anti-social nature of fly tipping, its effects on
neighbourhoods and the costs to the Council of prevention and clear up. The
Panel considered that the Council should urge the Magistrates Association and
local magistrates to be robust with offenders. It was also suggested that the
Magistrates Association should be asked to consider sentencing offenders to
work on the Community Payback Scheme.

The report commissioned by the Panel from Essellar Waste Management
Consultants confirmed that the Council makes good use of existing legislation.
Local businesses consulted as part of the review, all supported the view that
the highest penalties should be imposed and maximum publicity given to the
sentence.



Page 39

Community Payback Scheme

7.19 The Waste Management Service has been working in partnership with

Probation and the Police on the Community Payback Scheme. Community
Payback involves offenders with unpaid work orders being used to carry out
work for the local community. This Scheme aims to clear fly tipped material
from unregistered land and land with complicated ownership arrangements. It is
hoped this scheme will be expanded further in the future.

Reduce the Rewards

A major motive for fly tipping is to avoid the costs associated with legitimate means of
disposal. Businesses such as builders, gardeners and garages may generate large
amounts of commercial and hazardous waste and the financial gains from fly tipping
can be substantial.

7.20

7.21

7.22

There are many ways in which Haringey has tried to reduce the rewards from
fly tipping. For instance Waste Management has carried out bench marking
programmes to ensure that waste disposal charges are competitive. This is
because:-

. high charges encourage potential offenders to fly tip
. the more cheap but legitimate waste disposal service operators within
the Borough, the less likely unlawful waste carriers will be used.

As part of the Better Haringey brief, the Environmental Crime Group and Waste
Management are working on a borough wide communication strategy to ensure
that all commercial and domestic waste producers in the borough are well
informed and aware of the Council's waste disposal services.

A Resident Focus Group and other residents suggested that the Council’s
collection charge for bulky waste should either be free, or a reduced rate
should apply to those on a low income, benefits and the elderly. Their opinion
was that if the £16.84 charge was removed, people might be more willing to
have rubbish cleared from their premises, thus avoiding fly tipping. However
the Panel heard from officers that residents could access the free Community
Clear Up Skip Service if they wished. Moreover an evaluation of Council bulky
waste collection services in England published in the Chartered Institute of
Waste Management’s Scientific and Technical Review, found that 75% of
Authorities charge for bulky waste collection at an average cost of £18 for three
items. The study also found that there has been a widespread shift from free
collections to a charging system. Of the Councils that do charge, 43% give
discounts to residents on low incomes. The Authorities most likely to provide a
free service are those serving densely populated, less affluent metropolitan
areas. This is the situation in London where 44% of London boroughs provide
a free collection service. On balance the Panel favoured reducing or completely
removing the charge for specific sections of the community.

Reduce Provocations

If is important that Reuse and Recycling Centres are located in accessible sites and
are convenient to use e.g. no long queues to reduce the incentive to fly tip.



Page 40

Re -Use and Recycling Centres

7.23

7.24

7.25

Remove

There are two Reuse and Recycling Centres in Haringey, one in the east and
one in the west of the Borough. They are open seven days a week from
8.30am to 4pm on weekdays and 9am-4pm at weekends. Both centres are
closed on Christmas Day, Boxing Day, New Year's day and Good Friday.

A scheme to allow householders with vans access to Reuse and Recycling
Centres has been developed. However the Panel heard from residents that
there is not enough publicity in respect of opening hours and actual location of
centres, particular the Hornsey Reuse and Recycling Centre. The Waste
Management Service has been addressing this. For instance, details of Reuse
and recycling Centre locations and opening arrangements for Bank holiday
refuse collection days are advertised in Haringey people and the local press.
Also, the recent recycling leaflet delivered to 40,000 households contained
details of locations and opening arrangements for the Reuse and recycling
Centres.

Haringey Reuse and Recycling Centres are not allowed to accept trade waste
but it has been agreed that the Centre will provide information about the
disposal of commercial waste. At present certain types of hazardous waste,
such as asbestos and paint are collected from residents under a contract with
the City of London. It was suggested that consideration should be given to the
possibility of expanding the range of hazardous waste that can be accepted at
the Reuse and Recycling Centres. For instance from July 2007 it will be
possible to dispose of gas discharge ( fluorescent) lamps at the Reuse and
Recycling Centres.

Excuses

7.26

7.27

Individuals who fly tip often rationalise and excuse their behaviour. Fly tippers
think it is acceptable to tip their rubbish where there is already waste material.
Some even think that this behaviour is legitimate. Tactics to remove these
excuses are required in an effective strategy to reduce fly tipping.

The Panel looked at how accessible and convenient it was to dispose of
rubbish legally and found that the Council offers a range of collection services
for residents (which are outlined below)as well as the two reuse and recycle
centres at Park View Road, N17 and Hornsey High Street, N8.

Table 1 Summary of collection services in Haringey

Collection Frequency Cost to Items collected

Service residents :

Community Once peryearto | Free All bulky items except

clear ups eligible hazardous  waste, green

households waste and building waste

White goods On demand Free ‘Fridges, freezers, washing

collection machines, dishwashers,
ovens, IT equipment, gas
bottles, car tyres and car
batteries




Page 41

Bulky waste On demand £16.84 for 6 | All bulky items except

collection items hazardous waste

Community By arrangement Free All bulky items except

skips with The Waste hazardous waste, green
Management waste and building waste
team

More frequent collections in problem areas

7.28

Waste Management Services provides households without off-street storage
space with higher frequency collections to avoid waste being left on the street
throughout the week. Waste is left out on specific days in specific time slots.
Waste left out at other times is considered to have been fly tipped. This scheme
mainly applies to flats above shops.

Timed Collections

7.29

7.30

Since first being introduced on Green Lanes, timed trade waste collections have
been introduced to a number of other roads in the borough. This scheme has
been very successful as it has been shown to improve amenity and cleanliness
and the Council would like to extend it. However Accord are reluctant to expand
this scheme as they consider that the Council has not invested the additional
sums in the contract for the roll out of timed collections to more roads. They state
that they would be unable to comply with strict time bandings for all of the roads
unless more funding is made available.

However the Panel noted timed collections would make enforcement easier
although it might require additional resources and that in other Boroughs a timed
collection service appeared to be common practice. This needs to be taken into
account as part of the discussions on the renewal of the Waste Contract which
are already taking place.

Communications

7.31

7.32

7.33

An important element of the Haringey Communications Plan is to raise
awareness about fly tipping. Leaflets have been published encouraging residents
to report fly tipping, for example the ‘On the street’ guide. In addition, leaflets
have been distributed to all borough households encouraging people, to use the
Reuse and Recycle Centres, community clear up service and the free white
good collection service.

More information about such services which may help to eliminate fly tipping is
planned in further recycling publications. All Waste Management Service leaflets
will now carry information about the wide range of services on offer to help
people dispose of their waste responsibly. Successful operations and
prosecutions are also advertised in local newspapers to support the view that fly
tipping is illegal, anti-social and will not be tolerated.

The Panel heard evidence from residents who felt that it is not always clear who
they should contact about waste matters. Many felt that there should be a single
telephone number for residents and traders to report missed collections and fly
tipped rubbish as well as requesting bulky waste collection and replacement bins
and recycling boxes. Although there is a single number (020 8885 7700) it is

11




7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

7.38

7.39

7.40

Page 42

clear that the perception is one of confusion and measures should be taken to
promote the single number.

The monthly Clean Sweep campaigns have focused on tackling ‘grot spots’ and
cracking down on a range of environmental crime, including fly tipping.

Publicity for these campaigns carries the Accord Call Centre number to
encourage residents to report problems with rubbish and forms an important
part of ongoing communications around tackling fly tipping.

Environmental Crime Officers have carried out nearly 1500 visits in 2006/07
(880 in 2005/6) educating, advising and warning commercial traders of their
responsibilities for the correct disposal of their waste. They also frequently
carry out business waste “duty of care audits” in target areas where fly tipping
has increased.

There has been a wide campaign throughout the Borough informing residents
about the Waste Management Service. This communication strategy is also re-
enforced by the Commercial Food Team who, when inspecting food premises,
enquire whether a commercial waste contract is held by the premises.

Information/warning signs are placed at recycling stations and on bins making
it clear that it is not acceptable to leave waste anywhere other than inside the
waste/recycling receptacles. These signs are also used to advise and deter
offenders from continuing to use a known fly tipping hotspot. If a sign clearly
states it is an offence to leave waste at these locations it is difficult for an
offender to plead ignorance if caught.

Over the next year it is planned to launch a communication campaign to
educate businesses and residents about the dangers of using unregistered
waste collectors. Once this education campaign has been completed, officers
will issue fixed penalty notices to residents and businesses that use
unregistered waste collectors.

The Panel discussed the possibility of local businesses giving out leaflets to
customers purchasing new white goods on how to dispose of their old items.

A number of schools have taken part in Junior Wardens activities with the local
Neighbourhood Street Wardens. This has either been stand-alone project work,
or as part of the Clean Sweep campaign. The Junior Citizens activities include
briefing children on what to do if they see rubbish dumped in the street.

Costs and effective use of resources

8.1

The Integrated Waste Management and Transport contract provides that there
is a fixed cost of £723,000 per annum to remove fly tipped waste on public land
(including land under Homes for Haringey management). In this review the
Panel were not able to conclude to what extent the amount represented value
for money. To do so would require comprehensive analysis and comparison.If it
is decided that this work is necessary then this detailed process should be
carried out as a separate scrutiny exercise next year.

12



8.2

8.3

8.4

Page 43

For 2006/7 Haringey has been given an interim score of 2 compared with 3 in
2005/6 Local Street and environmental cleanliness — Fly-tipping. This is good
because the lower the score the better the performance.

Whilst officers should be congratulated, they should not be complacent. The
Panel suggest that each year Overview and Scrutiny Committee should receive
an annual report on the 20 worst dumping area and the action being taken to
alleviate problems.

Itis also important to ensure that there is no complacency in developing good
practice and ensuring line between prevention and enforcement is right. It is
expected that the Government will shortly release its revised English Waste
Strategy. This is expected to confirm mechanisms to prevent waste production
and make provision available for variable waste charging by local authorities.
The impact of any measures that will increase the cost of waste disposal might
also result in an increase in fly tipping. This potential effect must be taken into
consideration when revising any waste disposal tariffs.

9. Recommendations

1.

That the Council acknowledges that the fight against fly tipping is a continuing
one and its success depends on collective action supporting the objective of
preventing this antisocial behaviour, and making a long term commitment to
properly resourced preventative and enforcement activities.

That the Director of Urban Environment considers:-

a) The appropriate introduction of timed trade waste collections on primary and
secondary roads as part of the specification for the new integrated waste
management and transport contract in 2009.

b) Reducing or removing the charge for bulky waste collection for those on low
incomes, benefits and the elderly (if the cost of administering such a scheme
proves too expensive, then consideration be given to abolishing charges
completely).

c) Further advertising the fact that there is a single borough wide telephone
number to:-

o allow residents and traders to report missed collections, and fly tipped
rubbish,

e request bulky rubbish collection, replacement bins and recycling
boxes,

e answer recycling enquiries.

d) Increasing residents’ awareness of services by improving publicity of the
Council's waste management services and the action taken to reduce fly

tipping.

e) Providing local traders with leaflets for distribution to customers on means of
disposing of unwanted items at the point of purchase of bulky new goods,
such as beds, white goods, televisions etc.

13



Page 44

f) Providing “Haringey People” with regular information of successful
prosecutions against fly tippers as well as news on new initiatives in waste
collection generally.

g) Giving special attention to disCouraging fly tipping in industrial areas including
making full use of CCTV and prosecuting where possible.

h) Liaising with the Parks Department and other appropriate departments to
identify and seek funding to bring small marginal areas of waste land that
currently attract fly tippers back into mainstream use — possibly as allotments,
pocket parks etc.

i) The feasibility of introducing a scheme whereby Accord search dumped bags
to gain evidence as to the identity of fly tippers with targets being set for the
number of searchers per month.

j) Allowing residents’ to use the Reuse and Recycling Centres to dispose of
safely transportable hazardous waste.

That Ward Councillors be encouraged to work with officers to help ensure
hard to reach groups know about waste collection services (If appropriate,
signage should be translated into ethnic languages).

That the Leader of the Council write to all utility companies that own land in
the borough reminding them of their duties to ensure that their land is well
fenced and of their responsibilities to keep their land free of fly tipping.

That officers submit an annual report to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on the current top 20 hotspot sites and the action being taken
to eradicate Fly tipping at those sites.

That Overview and Scrutiny Committee be recommended to consider
commissioning a future Scrutiny Review to examine a breakdown of the
cost of clearing fly tipping etc so that this can be compared with other
Borough's to ensure that the Council is providing a cost effective service.

That Police Safer Neighbourhood Teams'’ Inspectors and appropriate

Haringey officers regularly meet to review fly tipping, reporting levels,
training needs, lines of communication and to decide on possible joint
operations.

That the Head of Legal Services urge the Magistrates Association and
local magistrates to be robust with offenders and to consider the use of
the Community Payback Scheme as a penalty for fly tippers.



Appendix A

Page 45

Current Legal Remedies for Dealing with Waste on Land
Public Health Act 1936 sec 78

Public Health Act 1963 sec 34

Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949 sec 4
Environmental Protection Act 1990 sec 33, 34, 59,87,88,92,93
Refuse Disposal Amenity Act 1978 secs 2,6

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 sec 215
Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003

Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005

Table 01.
Summary of Acts that can be used to deal with waste on land
Ref Act or Regulation  Section Purpose Comments
01 | Public Health Act | 78 Power to cleanse common Default power to recover
1936 courts, yards, passages etc reasonable costs
that are not maintainable at
public expense
02 | Prevention of 4 Power to server notice Default power to recover
Damage by Pests requiring landowner to remove | costs also available
Act 1949 accumulations of waste which | - = :
could provide harbourage for |
vermin L o o -
03 | Public Health Act | 34 Power to remove any Useful for accumulations of
1963 “rubbish” from any land in the | waste in gardens etc
open air that is seriously
detrimental to the
neighbourhood ,
04 | Control of 22(3) Power to Clean land inthe | Recharge canbe madeto
Pollution Act 1974 ~ open air to which the public | owner/ occupier
: ; have access ; i ~
05 | Refuse Disposal 2,6 Powers to remove dumped
(Amenity) Act waste (refuse). Power to
1978 prosecute offenders for
offence of dumping
Duty to remove Abandoned
vehicles
Power to prosecute for
abandonment
FPN also available for
abandonment offence
06 | Environmental 33,34,59, | Extensive range of powers See detail elsewhere in
Protection Act 87, report :
1990 88,92,93
07 | Town & Country 215 Power to serve notice on land
Planning Act 1990 occupiers requiring tidying of
land which is detrimental to
local amenity (removal of
waste)
08 | Anti-Social Power for relevant A number of examples
Behaviour Act organisation to issue ASBOs | already exist




Page 46

12008 : in certain cases of ﬁy»tlppmg G e

09 | Powers of 147 (3) Power of magistrate to impose May be useful in cases
Criminal Courts driving disqualification in where a vehicle has been
(Sentencing) Act cases where vehicles are used to fly-tip material
2000 involved in the commission of

the crime

10 | Proceeds of Crime Powers of courts to conﬁscate { no detail of ﬂy—tlppmg
Act ‘assets etc cases known) .

11 | Clean Extensive powers in relation Introduces use of FPN's for
Neighbourhoods to waste etc. a wide range of waste
Act 2005 related offences

Table 02.

Environmental Protection Act 1990-Relevant sections

Section Purpose Comments

33 Unlawful deposit of Commonly used device for prosecuting fly-
waste on land not tipping cases
having a WM licence
(dumping offence)

34 “Duty of Care” A number of offences are possible under sub-
offences sections of this sec. Can also give werght to
‘ ‘ | prosecution cases under sec 33 above where
; , : |incorrect dis ‘ppsa! is suspected '

59 Powers to require land | Powers to require !andowners/occuplers to
owner/ occupier to clear land under their control which has been
clear land of dumped | tipped on
materials

87 Litter offence “Litter” can have a wide interpretation and many

local authorities historically have used thlS
: i _| section to prosecute for dumping ,

88 Fixed Penalty device FPN can be used in lieu of prosecution of
in lieu of prosecution litterers. Many L.A’s use this FPN for fly-tipping
under sec 87 cases as their primary method of dealing with

the problem of dumping
92 | Litter Clearance Can be used to remedy and help manage
o Notice problems of waste accumulations on land-
S ‘including for example where iandowners have
| allowed their land to become a tipping problem

93 Street Litter Control

Notice ! “ ! !




Page 47

APPENDIX B

Notes of Resident Focus Groups on Fly tipping held on 6 December
2006

There were two residents Focus Groups held on 6 December, one in the
afternoon and one in the evening.

In attendance PM -Mr | Sygrave, Mrs D Miles, Mr D Duckworth, Mr J Russell,
Mrs S Williams, Mrs M Batten, Mr W FNicholls, and Ms V McKone

In attendance Evening — Mr B Dore, Ms M Chowdhury, Mr H Hickey and Ms A
Thomas

The session was facilitated by Janette Gedge, Consultation Manager. Clir
Dave Winskill, Chair of the Scrutiny Review on Fly tipping introduced the
meeting and explained the purpose and details of the Scrutiny review.
Carolyn Banks, Principal Scrutiny Support Officer was in attendance.

What is Fly tipping?

Dumping of waste — domestic, commercial and toxic

Beds and mattresses

Anything out of a car boot

Tyres, gas bottles, car batteries

Dumping of bizarre and mundane objects

Can occur immediately outside residents’ homes and is quite indiscriminate
Dumping on public spaces

It is both illegal and covert

Unsure if green refuse bags on pavements was fly tipping. However this
encouraged other rubbish to be dumped.

Queried whether there was a difference between dumping and Fly tipping and
littering

Why does it occur?

Many can't afford the £15 collection charge

Laziness ~people can't be bothered to dispose of legally. It is easier to walk to
the end of the road to dump.

Cost of Land fill tax too high

Too many Houses in Multiple Occuppation (HMOs)~ there is a direct
correlation between HMOs and dumping, particularly mattresses when new
tenants move into a property. Dumping is from landlords. Council needs to
invest more money into enforcing HMOs.



Page 48

People do not have space to store items until they have 6 items. Difficult for
people who live in small properties or flats.

It is easy and convenient. Some people are ignorant and are not aware of
services and processes for disposal. Others see rubbish dumped and operate
a “Copycat” approach.Insufficient publicity and fear of the consequences. Not
enough offenders are being caught and where they are caught, the fines are
small in comparison with the benefits of fly tipping.

There is a lack of respect for the local area. This is particularly the case with
some communities, such as Eastern European where it is normal to push and
test the boundaries of Authority. In some communities it is considered that
individuals should keep their own space clean and tidy and in fact they
generally have a great deal of pride, but they also consider their responsibility
ends at the boundary of their property.

Issue of recycling/re-use is seen as a problem not a potential resource

Cost of hiring a skip - the license is too high and procedures are not easy.
You have to visit in person and during normal office hours to obtain a license,
its not obtainable by e-mail.

Disposal of car batteries seen as difficult.

There appears to be a link between car crime hotspots and dumping hotspots.

Green waste recycling bags on pavements encourages other bags to be
dumped with them.

Who does it?

Anyone —Residents who buy new gear

White Van Drivers

Builders/ Cowboys —unethical companies

HMO* Landowners

People who don't have access to a car

Ignorant, lazy or poor, mean, disorganised people.

Some people do not read information on disposal.

Or there is a lack of understanding from residents. Perhaps people do not
understand the difference between rubbish and fly tipping.

People who do not care for the environment or those that have a high
tolerance for rubbish/chaos

Travellers/Disenfranchised/Those with no stake or investment in the area i.e.
short term renters

People moving home.

What can be done?

Advertising stickers placed on litter bins. Issue of fridge magnets with disposal
details.



Page 49

Offer rewards for proper disposal/recycling/ reporting €.g. money off Council
Tax or the more you re-cycle the more you get off or Green Stamps.

Introduce a Crimestoppers type reporting system. (i.e. anonymous information
acted on - no need for a name and address of the person reporting to be
given)

Involve Neighbourhood Watch/Residents Groups to report hotspots
Council should design out hotspots

Put more resources into Enforcement Team to increase chances of catching
offenders.

Heavier fines to be issued.

More CCTV cameras

There needs to be social stigma attached to Fly tipping

There are too many phone numbers to contact, it is not clear who you have to
ring to report what. There should be one phone number to contact. Also it
should be made easier to report, there are too many statements that need to
be made and residents often not willing to give their name and address for
fear of reprisals. Protection needed for residents that report. However
residents should be encouraged to report and to do more themselves ie.
curtain twitching which may frighten them off.

More warning signs should be put up, with info on the level of fines that can
be issued

Clirs should be encouraged to be more proactive in walkabouts and in
reporting. Also greater use should be made of Community Wardens.

More resources spent on identifying the causes of fly tipping and in particular
the social conditions that lead to it

Review £15 charge for waste collection —possible free collection or free to
pensioners, disabled and those on benefits

Make it easier to get items taken away i.e. possibly more community skips on
streets regularly/ less forms to complete i.e. for disposal of paint pots,
chemicals

Commercial vehicles should be confiscated if caught Fly tipping. Courts to be
encouraged to be hard, possibly, even by removal of driving license.

Greater use of CCTV. More follow up action and enforcement. Motion
triggered CCTV cameras should be used, particularly useful at entrances to
Industrial Estates

Better street lighting needed. Street lights have been moved to the back edge
of the pavement and there appeared to be less light or rather pools of light



Page 50

with dark spaces between and so Fly tipping was occurring between the
lights.

Need to have a National Campaign to better educate the public and to
generate respect for the environment.

Retailers to charge extra £15 for purchase of items and customers given a
ticket enabling the Council to dispose of items.

Have an “Improve your street programme” Best Street Competitions - similar
to Clean Sweep. Residents Associations should be involved.

Need to ensure that Council services were working in partnership i.e planning,
housing and enforcement such as with regard to HMOs* (see previously)

Invite charities to collect furniture — people don't know that charities will pick
up unwanted furniture.

There was a lack of knowledge about the Recycling and Re-Use Centres.
More publicity, in particular better road signage needed for the Hornsey site.

All Safer Neighbourhood Teams should be asked to deal with Environmental
crimes as seriously as other crimes (as per Harringay Ward)

Make it easier to get a skip (see above)
Further publicity, promotion, education campaigns needed.

There should be more bulky waste collection days and need to ensure that
everything is collected on the day

Lobby Government for more resources

Ensure close liaison with Environment Agency



Page 51

Appendix D

Contributors to the Review

The Scrutiny Review Panel wish to thank the following who gave advice and help
during the course of this review:

Name

Organisation or Title

Robin Payne

Assistant Director Enforcement

Stephen McDonnell

Assistant Director Streetscene

Robert Curtis

Tactical Heavy Enforcement Manager

Michael McNicholas

Head of Waste Management & Transport

Tony Chapman Street Enforcement
John Suddaby Deputy Head of Legal Services
Emma Smyth Waste Management

Joyce Golder

Legal Services

Steve Robinson

Esscllar Waste Management

Kelly Peck

Rapid response Team

Robeson Engur

Strategic Team

Geraldo Eghan

Area Based Officer

Mr I Sygrave

Local Resident

Ms D Miles

Local Resident

Mr D Duckworth

Local Resident

Mr J Russell

Local Resident

Mrs S Williams

Local Resident

Mrs M Batten

Local Resident

Mr W F Nicholls

Local Resident

Ms V McKone

Local Resident

Mr B Dore Local Resident

Ms M Chowdhury Local Resident

Mr H Hickey Local Resident

Ms A Thomas Local Resident

Alec Worley Operations Manager - Accord
Dan Smith Islington Council

Penny Bond

L.B Waltham Forest

Gloria Laycock

Director University College London

[an Kibblewhite

SNT - Inspector for Partnerships and Youth

Janette Gedge

Consultation Manager




Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53 Agenda ltem 7

Haringey Council
Agenda item:
CEMB On May 2007

For The Cabinet On June 2007

Report Title: Programme Highlight Report End April 2007

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference]

Report of: The Chief Executive

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-Key Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To provide highlight reports for all the Council’s corporately significant projects,
covering the period up to the end of April 2007.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1 Following the Audit Commission review of project management, members expressed
concern about the need to strengthen programme and project management
processes.

2.2 The Council’s response to the Audit Commission recommendations was presented to
the Cabinet on 21 February 2006. One of the key actions agreed by members was
that the programme highlight report, which contains progress reports and
management summaries of key Council projects, should be reported to the Cabinet
each month.

2.3 Accordingly, this report sets out the highlight report for projects that report to the
programme up to the end of April 2007. The detailed programme report is shown in
appendix 1, with the main highlights shown in the covering report on an exception
basis. The covering report endeavours to present a more updated position based on
exception information from the February reporting period.

3. Recommendations

3.1 To note the report.

Report Authorised by: Dr Ita O’Donovan, Chief Executive

Contact Officer: Katy Johnson, Policy & Performance
Tel: 020 8489 4282

Susie Owen, Policy & Performance
Tel: 020 8489 4071

Cabinet20070619Item7ProgrammeHighlightReport0.doc 1



Page 54

4. Director of Finance Comments

4.1The Director of Finance has been consulted on this report and comments are as
follows:

e Regeneration — Heartlands Spine Road — negotiations have taken place with National
Grid to discuss the possibility of them contributing to the potential additional cost of
£0.6m in respect of the diversion of a high pressure gas main. National Grid have
indicated that they will look favourably at contributing to any overspend, but this figure
cannot be agreed until the full costs are known. If National Grid cannot meet these
cost overruns then traffic management measures contained in the project will have to
be scaled down to meet the available budget.

e Children’s Centres — phase 2 planning is on-going. The Children and Young People's
Service is reviewing the business plans and ongoing sustainability of the phase 2
centres before committing further capital resources.

e Primary Schools Capital Programme — the 2006/07 year-end scheme variances (as
outlined in the Outturn report) will need to be managed in 2007/08, which will result in
a request to Cabinet to re-profile the programme.

o Equal Pay — Work is progressing on the local negotiations for ‘single status’ pay
arrangements review (incorporating former manual staff): a Pay and Conditions
Proposal has now been submitted to Union representatives and a base budget
contingency sum has been provided. There may be significant costs arising from
backdated or compensation payments and these will need to be contained within
either unsupported capitalisation (subject to Government approval) and the
subsequent additional revenue costs and/or the Council’s reserves. A request for
capitalisation in 2007/08 has now been submitted to DCLG.

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1 There are no specific legal implications to comment on in this report.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1Report to Cabinet on 21 February: Programme and Project Management — Response
to the Audit Commission Review of Project Management.

6.2Detailed project highlight reports.

Cabinet20070619ltem7ProgrammeHighlightReport0.doc 2




Page 55

7. Strategic Implications

7.1 The programme is the vehicle for the Council to deliver corporately
significant projects and projects that are key political priorities. It
underpins the Council’s corporate planning process, ensuring that the
projects we undertake reflect and help to deliver Community Strategy
and corporate priorities.

7.2  This report provides an opportunity to monitor, challenge and support
the Council’s key projects to ensure that they finish on time, to budget
and deliver the outcomes for the community.

8. Financial Implications

8.1 A key driver in developing the programme structure has been to
improve financial oversight of the Council’s key corporate projects.
Accordingly, projects are required to report detailed financial
information in their project highlight reports each month and a budget
summary for each project is shown in Appendix 1 ‘Programme Highlight
Report’.

9. Legal Implications
9.1 There are no legal implications
10. Equalities Implications

10.1 This report deals with the way that we manage projects many of which
have an impact on different sections of our community. Improved
management of these projects will therefore improve the services we
provide to all sections of our community.

10.2 Specifically, the Business Intelligence project aims, amongst other
areas, to capture information on equalities through robust contract
monitoring.

10.3 The Equal Pay Review is a crucial element towards the Council
achieving levels 3 and 4 of the Equalities Standard for Local
Government. It is important that we have undertaken an Equal Pay
Audit and have an implementation plan in place to retain our present
standard.

11. Background

11.1  The programme highlight shown in Appendix 1 provides details of all
the Council’s corporately significant internal and external projects that
report through the Council’s programme structure. The information in
the report is taken from detailed project highlight reports for each
project that have been agreed by the respective Project Boards. Due
to the reporting cycle, there is a time lag in the information presented
and this report shows projects’ status at 31 March 2007.

Cabinet20070619Item7ProgrammeHighlightReport0.doc 3



11.3

12.

12.1

12.2

12.2.1

12.2.2

12.2.3

—| e o o o o o o

Page 56

For each project, there is a management summary that sets out
progress over the reporting period. A traffic lights system, like the one
used in the Finance and Performance report, shows the project status
against key indicators, including:

Overall Status
Status last month
Timescales
Budget
Resources
Issues
Risks
he traffic light annotation is used as follows:

e Green Status: Project progressing to plan and scheduled to deliver

on, or ahead of, time. All risks and issues under control and none
outstanding requiring Cabinet/Senior Management attention.
Committed costs on track and within sanctioned budget

e Amber status: Project is progressing but subject to small delays.

Issues outstanding which could pose significant threat to the
Project. There may be a budget variance but it is less than
£25,000, or 5% of the total budget, whichever is the more
appropriate.

e Red status: Project progress is well off track and implementation

date will be delayed. There are major issues/risks which could
pose immediate threat to the project. The project has stalled
because of lack of project resources and / or there is a budget
variance in excess of 5% of the total budget.

Exception Report
In addition to the management summaries provided for each project in

appendix 1, key highlights from the programme are shown below on
an exception basis.

Regeneration Stream Board

Tottenham Hale Urban Centre

Presently reporting ‘AMBER’ for budget and timescales as there is no
long-term budgetary provision available for this project yet: the
London Development Agency (LDA) are presently meeting most
revenue costs.

There is a risk that we might not be able to secure long term funding
for the full implementation of all elements of the Masterplan. The
present uncertainty will be mitigated as the project team draw up a
detailed implementation plan over the next two or three months. The
team hope to quantify the possible management costs, the cost of the

Cabinet20070619Item7ProgrammeHighlightReport0.doc 4



Page 57

developmental work to bring forward all elements of the Masterplan, and to
explore possible funding options.

12.2.4 Wood Green Town Centre

12.2.5 Presently reporting ‘AMBER’ for budget and issues whilst awaiting
confirmation that last year's underspend will be rolled over.

12.2.6 The Mall’s application for an extension to its western elevations (West
side of the High Road), for the provision of a new department store
received approval from the Council’s Planning Committee on 30" April
2007.

12.2.7 Tottenham High Road Strateqy

12.2.8 The ‘AMBER’ rating for risks, issues and budget is due to a proportion
of the_European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) grant remaining
unallocated and because there is a shortfall in the number of outputs
for the area of space improved.

12.2.9 Government Office for London (GolL) has previously confirmed that it
would consider outputs aside from those originally specified as
eligible, however, it was advised on the 2" of May that this is
dependent upon other programmes’ outputs across London.

12.2.10 The 3.2 UCCG programme is made up of 8 confirmed and active
projects. £52.7k of EDRF grant is presently unallocated, which
represents only 3.07% of total grant. The feasibility of using this
remaining grant money on existing capital projects is being explored.

12.2.11 Growth Area and Community Infrastructure Funds (GAF/CIF)

12.2.12 Mortuary — Budget is presently reporting ‘RED’ this month due to the
need for a redesign of the underground mortuary following the geo-
technical survey of the sub-soil conditions. The survey showed a high
water table and mixed conditions / strata including shale. This has
increased pre-tender estimates of Phase 2 substantially and a value
engineering process has been undertaken.

12.2.13 The original additional funding package for the project is now
insufficient to meet potential estimated costs. Additional work is being
undertaken with the architect to reduce the cost of fees on the project.
The Director and Directorate finance officers are aware of these latest
estimates.

12.2.14 Greater London Stores (GLS) site — Planning permission for the
overall site was granted at Planning Committee on 17" May 2007.
This has resolved the main risk affecting this project, and we would
expect the RAG status to reflect this from next month.

Cabinet20070619Item7ProgrammeHighlightReport0.doc 5



Page 58

12.2.15 Heartlands Spine Road — estimated costs of decontamination work on
the site is £740,000 and for diverting the main gas mains is £600,000.
Work on a more detailed quote for the work is underway and we
expect it to be completed by the end of May.

12.2.16 These estimations have been included in the scheme costs and
consequently the overall cost is likely to be above the £5m budget.
We cannot be certain what proportion of the budget overspend will be
borne by National Grid until the decontamination and gas mains costs
are confirmed.

12.3 Children and Young People Stream Board

12.3.1 Children’s Centres

12.3.2 The review of the financial sustainability of children’s centres is
making good progress. A report to the Cabinet has been timetabled
for July.

12.3.3 This review may result in the number of Children’s Centres delivered
by the Council being rethought. SureStart regulations state that they
will not cut a local authority’s Children’s Centres funding envelope if
that authority reduces the number of Children’s Centres they provide,
as long as the Centres retain the same reach.

12.3.4 The ‘AMBER’ RAG statuses reflect the fact that this is a construction
programme and thus has an inevitable inherent uncertainty.

12.3.5 Primary Schools Capital Programme

12.3.6 The contractor delivering the phase 1 programme at Tetherdown has
informed the architect of a programme risk; however, this should not
affect the new intake in September 2007. There is a risk to the budget
in view of a potential extension of time claim and the outcome of
discussions regarding the final cost of the steelwork.

12.3.7 The reinstatement work at Crowland is due to complete at the end of
May. The decanting of the temporary school into the refurbished
building is planned for the Summer Half Term holiday.

12.4 Wellbeing Stream Board

12.4.1 There are no exception reports for the Wellbeing Stream Board.

Cabinet20070619Item7ProgrammeHighlightReport0.doc 6



Page 59

12.5 Better Haringey Stream Board

12.5.1 Better Haringey Estates Improvement Programme

12.5.2 The AMBER status reflects the slippage into 2007/08, which was
largely due to reprofiling of HfH programme spend in the latter part of
2006/07. Together with the risks associated with managing local
expectations regarding delay on Campsbourne.

12.5.3 The Groundwork Milicent Fawcett / Love Lane pilot project is
progressing. £950k of works completed in 2006/7, with the
Campsbourne (Section 106) delayed to September 2007. Carry
forward works to the value of £408k are to be completed in the first
quarter of 2007/8.

12.5.4 Improving Green & Open Spaces

12.5.1 Sports and Leisure Strategic Renewals 4-year programme of works is
funded through the prudential borrowing of £4.6m. This budget is
heavily front-loaded with £3.462m profiled for 2005/6, the first year.
There is ongoing work to produce the settlement of final account, we
are still awaiting confirmation of figures.

12.5.2 There is arisk of slippage of future projects whilst we await the final
account and the smaller works over the next three years may have to
be re-scoped depending on confirmation of Year 1 Actual Spend.

12.6 People Stream Board

12.6.1 There are no exception reports for the People Stream Board.

12.7 Value for Money Stream Board

12.7.1 Procurement Programme

12.7.2 In order to achieve the £1m savings (£0.5m in each of 2007/8 and
2008/9) we need to have identified procurement projects that offer
sufficient scope for making these savings. Projects to contribute to
the 2007/08 savings target have been identified and are progressing,
projects to contribute to the 2008/09 target are still being researched.
The ‘AMBER’ RAG status for ‘Risks’ and ‘Issues’ reflect this lack of
certainty about 2008/9 savings.

Cabinet20070619ltem7ProgrammeHighlightReport0.doc 7



Page 60

12.8 Customer Focus Stream Board

12.8.1 Due to the low number of projects currently reporting to the Customer
Focus Stream board and the possible restructure of the Programme, it
has been recommended that this stream board is disbanded and
alternative reporting arrangements are found for the projects. The best
fit for Customer Services Implementation Plan is the Value for Money
Stream Board and, for the Customer Focus Projects it is the People
Stream Board, thus it is recommended that they should report to those
Boards respectively.

13. Use of Appendices

13.1  Appendix 1: Programme Highlight Report

Cabinet20070619Item7ProgrammeHighlightReport0.doc 8



Page 61

B HARINGEY COUNCILE

PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT

FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2007

Prepared by

Corporate PMO

Version 0.1

Page 1 of 62 1



Page 62

B HARINGEY COUNCILE

CONTENTS

SECTION 1 — REGENERATION STREAM BOARD ..ottt e 3
(1) HARINGEY HEARTLANDS ... 0ciiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt 3
(2) TOTTENHAM HALE URBAN CENTRE .....ociviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii it 5
(3) WOOD GREEN TOWN CENTRE ......ccciiiiiiiiiii e, 7
4) TOTTENHAM HIGH ROAD STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION ..o 8
(5) GROWTH AREA & COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDS (GAF/CIF) ..o 12
(6) COUNCIL OWNED LAND .....ooiiiiiii s 17
(7) WARDS CORNER ... .o 19
SECTION 2 — CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE STREAM BOARD ......cccooiiiiiiiiieieeeceeeee, 22
(1) BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE......ccouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii it se i 22
(2) CHILDREN'S NETWORKS ...ttt ittt s s s 25
(3) YOUTH SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PROJEGCT ..ottt 27
(4) CHILDREN'S CENTRES ... 00ttt ittt ettt se s 29
(5) PRIMARY SCHOOLS CAPITAL . ...ttt ittt ettt ettt ettt ittt ettt ittt ieeeeeae 30
SECTION 3 — WELL BEING STREAM BOARD .....coiiiiiiii ettt 31
(I E-CARE ..o 31
(2) COMMUNITY CARE STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION......cocciiiiiiie 32
(3) TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION REDUCTION. .....cuuieiieiiiiiii it 34
SECTION 4 - BETTER HARINGEY STREAMBOARD. ........ceuieiiieiei e 35
(1) BETTER HARINGEY ESTATES IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME ..o 35
(2) DELIVERING ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENTS ON HOUSING ESTATES IN

HARINGEY . .ttt sttt ettt ettt ettt et ettt ettt et ettt ettt ittt ittt e 36
(3) RAISING AWARENESS AND INVOLVEMENT ....ccoiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i i 38
(4) ENVIRONMENTAL CLEANLINESS & ENFORCEMENT ....occcviiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeneen 39
(5) IMPROVING GREEN & OPEN SPACES .......ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiei ittt 41
(6) SUSTAINABILITY. .ottt sttt s sttt ettt st e s s s e 44
SECTION 5 - PEOPLE STREAM BOARD.... ..o 45
(N EQUALPAY REVIEW.....0uieeie e et 45
(2) INVESTORS INPEOPLE. .....cuieieiii e, 46
(3) CORPORATE HEALTH & SAFETY ACTION PLAN......ccuuiuieieieiiie e, 47
(4) COMPETENCY FRAMEWORK. .....ouuieiiiii ettt 48
SECTION 6 - VALUE FOR MONEY STREAM BOARD.......coiiii e 50
(1) ASSETS STRATEGY ..iueiitiiiiiiiiitt ittt sttt st ne ittt s s s 50
(2) PROCUREMENT PROGRAMME ......cciciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt see e 53
(3) BENEFITS & LOCAL TAXATION VEM REVIEW ....cccviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 56
(4) TRANSACTIONAL EFFICIENCY .. .oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt ettt ie s 57
SECTION 7 — CUSTOMER FOCUS STREAM BOARD ......coiiiiieiieiitee ettt 60
(1) CUSTOMER FOCUS PROJECTS ...ttt 59
(2) CUSTOMER SERVICES IMPROVEMENT PLAN.......uiuuieiiieie e e 61

Page 2 of 62 2



(1)

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

SECTION 1 - REGENERATION STREAM BOARD

HARINGEY
HEARTLANDS

LEVEL 1 PROJECT

Project Sponsor:
Justin Holliday

Project Manager:
Shifa Mustafa / lan Woolford

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES

Regeneration Stream Board

To commission, prepare a comprehensive (phased) and financially viable masterplan for the
regeneration and development of the Eastern Ultility Lands.

To secure the land known as the “former sand sidings” for the provision of a new eight form entry
secondary school.

To obtain funding for, design, plan and construct a new spine road through the overall site from
North to South.

To obtain agreement from the other major landowners as to the timing and phasing of detailed
planning applications.

To secure a guarantee of the decommissioning of the National Grid (TRANSCO) site.

To encourage private developers to assemble the necessary land (through targeted acquisitions)
as the most effective means of implementing the masterplan.

To meet the output targets of up to: 1,200 new jobs; 1,200 new school places; and 2,000 new
homes

Original End Date: N/A as phased Current End Date: N/A as phased Project Budget: N/A
programme of work programme of work
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

A joint planning application with National Grid for the spine road was approved by PASC on 22nd
January, 2007. The road will provide the key access infrastructure and has been funded by £5m
from the Community Infrastructure Fund. Construction must be completed by March 2008 to meet
the conditions of this fund. Delays were experienced in respect of carrying out the de-
contamination works, but recent negotiations with National Grid and various parties have greatly
improved the position. National Grid are now considering covering further costs related to
decontamination which includes encapsulating the gas mains.

The school site has been purchased: now being progressed by Children & Young People Service

Following the Heartlands Landowners meeting on 19" March, the approach now agreed is that
National Grid/London Development Agency (LDA) will submit an outline ‘masterplan’ planning
application for their lands, within an illustrative series of sketches that set out the context for the
proposed development and demonstrates how it links with the Heartlands area as a whole. This
will comply with the requirements of the Haringey Heartlands Development Framework.

Page 3

cg abed



HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Regeneration Stream Board

» The London Development Agency (LDA) and National Grid have appointed master planners
(1) HARINGEY “MAKE” to prepare an outline ‘masterplan’ planning application. This work is on-going, but it is
HEARTLANDS CONT. expected that MAKE will shortly develop a pre-application consultation programme.

« A definitive time table is still to be agreed but the landowners want to proceed as quickly as
possible, but in any case an outline planning application for the LDA/National Grid lands should be
submitted before the end of the year.

e The LDA has expressed an interest in purchasing the site currently occupied by Olympia Estates
from the Council. In our view it would be very premature to discuss disposing of any of the
Council’s assets within the Heartlands at this time. We feel that more work needs to be done on
the ‘masterplan’ planning application to ascertain the development potential on this site before the
Council can make fully informed decisions on how to proceed.

e GAF 3 expressions of interest have been prepared for decontamination and to relocate business’s
at the Heartlands. These have initially been considered at the Regeneration Stream Board.

Resources:

e There is an issue around procurement of resources and support to manage the programme
effectively. A review is currently being conducted to assess what the resource requirement is.

Page 4

9 abed



(2) TOTTENHAM HALE
URBAN CENTRE

LEVEL 1 PROJECT

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Regeneration Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES

e To commission, prepare, consult, amend and adopt a Masterplan for Tottenham Hale Urban Centre.

e To procure a new 21st century Interchange at Tottenham Hale Station.

e To assemble capital and revenue funding from the public and private sector to deliver the necessary
physical and social infrastructure.

e To bring forward the six key sites for development which are Hale Wharf, the Greater London Supplies
Depot (GLS), Ashley Road Depot, Station Interchange, Retail Park and High Cross Housing Estate.

¢ In general, to implement the objectives of the masterplan in accordance with urban design principles
set out in the Tottenham Hale Urban Centre Design Framework.

Original End Date: N/A as phased Current End Date: N/A as phased Project Budget: N/A as budget is held, spent & monitored by the LDA
programme of work programme of work

Project Sponsor:
David Hennings

Project Manager:
Shifa Mustafa / lan Woolford

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Adoption of Masterplan (SPD)

The Masterplan was adopted as a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) on 31 October 2006.
It is a material planning consideration and will be afforded significant weight when used to determine
planning applications for the Tottenham Hale area.

The final version of the SPD is available in hard copy or electronically on Haringey’s website.

Progress

As a result of last year's competition to design a new footbridge over the River Lee, British
Waterways have now selected a winning scheme. The new bridge, which is designed by Costain,
provides some environmental enhancements, is Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) compliant and
respects the Masterplan’s ‘green link’ axis. No formal announcement has been made on the
outcome of the competition, as there are a few issues to be sorted-out regarding technical
submissions and drainage consent.

British Waterways have programmed work to start on the bridge in September with a view to
completing in March 2008; however, in order to meet this deadline, a planning application will need
to be submitted by the summer.

GO obed

Page 5



HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Regeneration Stream Board

(2)

TOTTENHAM HALE
URBAN CENTRE CONT.

Buchanan’s were appointed by TfL to hold a series of five workshops, which explored design options
for the Tottenham Hale Transport Interchange. The workshops involved all of the relevant
stakeholders and sought to find solutions to diverging aspirations. The final workshop in the series
was held on 18™ April. Buchanans / TfL are to present their findings at a later date.

TfL has commissioned consultant WSP to undertake review work on their preferred option for the
Tottenham gyratory road system. A preliminary design has been prepared by the consultants,
although TfL have yet to share their ideas in detalil.

TfL are yet to present their definitive solution to railway four-tracking

ISIS Waterside Regeneration is in the process of appointing an architectural practice to draw-up
proposals for a mixed-use scheme at Hale Wharf, Tottenham Hale. On 29" March, ISIS held a
stakeholders forum at which community representatives were given the opportunity to watch
presentations from the four architects who are tendering for the project, which are: Allies Morrison,

CZWG, FAT and Hamiltons. A number of community groups have submitted their comments ing

respect of the various schemes, to which the architects will be given the opportunity to respond. The
final decision on the appointment will be made by ISIS, but further community events will be
arranged to give local people the chance to view the emerging proposals.

Timescale

A revised outline application for the GLS site was submitted on 5™ April. The scheme takes into
account the comments raised by CABE in respect of design, and TfL’s proposals for the four-
tracking of the adjoining railway lines. The application for the overall site is due to be considered by
Planning Application Sub-Committee on the 17" May 2007.

The scheme now includes 1210 residential units, a primary school, créche, hotel, offices and retail. It
also includes a 30 metre-wide linear park.

The full application for the GLS site Podium will be determined once the outline scheme for the
overall site has been considered by PASC - this is likely to be in June 2007.

Budget

There is no budgetary provision available, but LDA are meeting most revenue costs.

o

D
o)
o)

Page 6



3)

WOOD GREEN TOWN
CENTRE

Project Sponsor:
David Hennings

Project Manager:
Karen Galey

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Regeneration Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES

To undertake a number of projects to improve the socio-environmental aspects and economic performance

of Wood Green Town Centre (WGTC) in order to secure sustainability and maintain Metropolitan Town

Centre status. Projects/activities and objectives include:

e To develop a Masterplan and planning brief for WGTC using existing evidence bases (e.g. draft spatial
plan for Wood Green) with the inclusion of strategic sites such as Civic Centre, Library and Lymington
Ave. All planning documents to be submitted as part of planning brief for UDP in September 2007.

e To continue to provide a local business support service for SME’s situated in Wood Green through the
Town Centre Manager and associated resources. Provision of services include advice/support and
signposting, networking, resource management and compliance issues

e To benchmark the services within the town centre by obtaining SLA’s (Service Level Agreements)

e To use the results gained from the BIDs feasibility study to feed in to the WGTC strategy so as to find a
sustainable funding mechanism for the Wood Green Town Centre Management function.

Original End Date: tbd Current End Date: tbd Project Budget: £50k Forecast spend: £50k in '07-'08
Spend to date: £0

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

e The Wood Green project board was convened on the 27" April with consultants Urban Practitioners.
A formal work plan is now being drawn with adjusted time scales which will also link closely with the
Heartlands consultation which is due to commence in June.

e The Wood Green Action Group (WGAG) continues to meet regularly and an officer working group
has now been set up to take forward streetscape/scene issues identified.

e The Mall's application for an extension to its western elevations (West side of High Rd) for the
provision of a new department store received approval from the Council’s Planning Committee on 30
April. The scheme will see an additional retail provision of 10,000sgm over 3 floors with S106
contributions for the improvement of immediate environs in the town centre as well as the offering of
new jobs and economic development.

Budget/Issues
e Due to additional work and subsequent extended timescales on the project, officers in Economic
Regeneration are still awaiting a decision on the budget being carried over to this financial year.

/9 obed

Page 7



BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Regeneration Stream Board
R No R i =3\ V:\" N s ([c]; M PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
ROAD STRATEGY e Improve physical regeneration and sustainable development in Tottenham;

IMPLEMENTATION

Development of high quality managed workspace and incubator space for local SME’s in Tottenham,;

Adapt premises to provide improved and increased managed workspace;

Improve the Tottenham High Road town centre, Seven Sisters Road, Park Lane and Fore Street

Edmonton by enhancing the image of the area and attracting and retaining business;

¢ Reinstate the historic features and environment of core centres that had experienced decline and
degradation

e To support delivery of Haringey’s City Growth Strategy through providing opportunities for maximising

the untapped potential of BME entrepreneurs through providing managed workspace and the associated

business support.

Original End Date: December 2006 — | Current End Date: Project Budget: £3679.57k Forecast spend: £2986.7k
ERDF; 2010 -HERS 30" June 2007 — ERDF; 2010 - HERS Spend to date: £2984.8k <o
o o5 g o § 7 | = MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 8
E 5 R o2 b & | & : . . . .
SoGERE 8] @ gl 3 ® | The overall project status is Amber. All projects are live and two further are very close to completion. There | ®
is a small amount of unallocated European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) grant , £52.7k (3.07% of 8
Al A B A A | A |total grant avqilable). . Economic Regeneratipn will alppraise the feasibility of a project at Te_chnopark yvith
Property Services which could take up this final portion of grant. Match funding of £102k will be required to

draw down this grant.

Project Sponsor:

David Hennings Budget

The budget rating is unchanged from last month at Amber. This is because there is a small amount of ERDF
grant unallocated at present and match funding is required to access this. Economic Development Corporate
Finance will load the approved new budgets in May 2007 after the final grant claims for 2006/07 are
confirmed.

Project Manager:
Karen Galey

Economic Regeneration will pursue with Property Services the feasibility of refurbishing an area at the
Technopark to take up the remaining available grant funding and contribute significantly to meeting the
target for business space improved. All live projects are now on site and the Workspace N17 Studios are
now refurbished.

Page 8



(4) TOTTENHAM HIGH
ROAD STRATEGY
IMPLEMENTATION
CONT.

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Regeneration Stream Board

Issues

£52.7k of ERDF grant is presently unallocated however this represents only 3.07% of total grant. Grant
payment is dependent on achieving outputs. There is a possible shortfall in outputs for area of space
improved, but the project at Technopark could significantly reduce this to a level acceptable to GoL. GoL has
previously confirmed it would consider outputs, aside from those originally specified, as eligible if required,
however it advised on 2™ May that this is dependent upon other programmes outputs across London.

Risks
There is risk attached to the output of area of space improved if a project cannot be put in place to achieve
the full target.

UCCG Projects
The UCCG Programme Manager role will be formally transferred from Neighbourhood Management to
Economic Regeneration as the delivery team is now part of the urban Environment Directorate.

e Seven-Sisters Road Shopfronts: Project complete.

e Park Lane Shopfronts: Project complete.

e TGEC refurbished managed work space: The IT training room plans were approved by LDA for grant
funding and works were commissioned and paid for.

e Stoneleigh Road new build Managed Workspace: The timber frame and first fix electrical work was
completed. Windows were delivered and installation commenced and the cladding has been delivered
and partially fixed.

e Bruce Grove THI phase I: Shopfront contractor appointed and construction site meetings being held
with both the shopfront contractor and upper building contractors to facilitate effective co-ordination.
Eight license agreements with shopfront tenants have been finalised. Progress on elevations now
good. Shopfront contractor started 29/01/07. 5 shopfronts (Nos. 538, 544, 546, 550, 552) have been
installed. No. 554 shopfront installation nearly complete. New awning box and fascia board installed
at the Butchers (No. 540) and Supermarket (No. 542). Stone work, led flashings, projecting shop
signs, and awnings cannot be installed until the scaffolding is struck when work to upper facades are
complete — due for completion end of May. Legal problem with the new lease for 548 still remains
although this may be solved in the next week.

Page 9

69 abed



Regeneration Stream Board

(4) TOTTENHAM HIGH
ROAD STRATEGY
IMPLEMENTATION
CONT.

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Effectively 548 is out of the scheme at present but may be brought in the scheme in the next week. Four
Corvinview valuations have been paid for uppers and two valuations paid for shopfront works to T&B.

HERS shop fronts and facades:

o Contractor started on site for 497-507 Tottenham High Road, 15/01/07. Third project meeting held
10/04/07 — main activities on-site have been overhauling windows, installing secondary glazing,
repairing decorative features on the facade and stonework repairs. Roof repairs are now
complete. Temporary roof cover removed and scaffolding struck on roof and side elevations.
Making good progress and on target to finish June 2007. Third valuation invoice received and
passed for payment.

o Contractor appointed for 485-489 High Road and pre-contract meeting held 14/03/07. Anticipated
start date of 14/05/07 subject to obtaining TfL scaffolding licence. Individual grant agreements
signed for all properties in this phase.

536 High Road: Grant application received and confirmed. Applicant was only able to obtain 2
quotes which have been accepted.

614 High Road (Blue School): Scaffolding struck and final roof works completed to old building.
Grant aided portion of works anticipated completion is late June 2007.

Enfield Council Fore Street: Shopfront installations completed, snagging works continued.

Workspace project on Tottenham High Road: Work completed and final sum of £549.5k reported
to GoL for claim.

Non-UCCG Projects

Rangemoor Road: Steel frame delivered and erected, blockwork commenced.

Page 10

0/ abed



Regeneration Stream Board

(4) TOTTENHAM HIGH
ROAD STRATEGY
IMPLEMENTATION
CONT.

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

HERS - Tottenham High Road: There are 2 additional projects being funded by English Heritage under
the HERS scheme with match funding from sources other than ERDF. These are 5 Bruce Grove and St
Marks Methodist Church. Grant applications have been received for both these projects accompanied
with several quotes for the eligible works and final offer to be issued shortly after reconciliation of
available funds has been complete. A grant was also approved for the Seven Sisters Sign, and the work
is to be completed by Library Services. Unfortunately, Library Services have been delayed due to
shortage of resources but intend to go ahead with work in current financial year.

Bruce Grove THI: The next phase of the programme (Groups 2 &3) will not benefit from the
UCCG/ERDF funding. Design and budget verification completed and satisfactory. Drawings and tender
documents complete and procurement of contractor in progress. Contractor selected off CPG framework
agreement and interviewed by design team. Contractor to go through tender process. Planning
application submitted 30/03/07.

Hornsey High Street: Contractor started on site 30th January 2007. Site compound set up on St.
Mary’s Road. New shopfronts have been installed at Nos. 3, 7, 17 & 34. Nos. 1 & 9 to be installed May
2007. Delays have occurred due to utility company delays. Gas pipes that run in front of decorated
features have now been moved by utility company so stone restoration contractors can now commence
works. Third valuation invoice received and passed for payment. Traders informed of programme of
works.

Page 11

1, 8bed



BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Regeneration Stream Board

GROWTH AREA & PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
COMMUNITY e To develop the social and physical infrastructure within Haringey to support housing growth as part of the
INFRASTRUCTURE Offiqe of the I?eputy Prime Minister's (ODPM) London-Stansted- Cambridge- Peterborough Growth

FUNDS (GAF/CIF) Corridor’s delivery plan.

e To acquire SRA/ Rail Property Land for a new secondary school, (GAF2) in the Haringey Heartlands
(Eastern Utility Lands).

e To enable Sustainable Housing Development within the South Tottenham Area, (Markfield), (Green
Spaces) (GAF2).

e To relocate the Mortuary (From Western Utility Lands), (GAF2) to release land for development of
affordable and private homes, together with local retail facilities and associated employment
opportunities.

e To access and enable Residential Development in Tottenham Hale International, (GLS), (GAF2).

e To provide a new Haringey Heartlands Spine Road, (CIF1). n o)
Original End Date: ongoing Current End Date: ongoing Project Budget: £5452k Forecast spend: £5321k (S;
programme of work programme of work Spend to date: £5309k N
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 4

) §)

Markfield Markfield Recreation Ground

e The pre-qualification questionnaires have been returned and 6 contractors are being assessed for the
drainage works. The tender package is currently being produced. Work will begin in August and be
completed in November.

e Detailed designs are being drawn up for the café and playground.

UIUOIN
syl
snjelg
UIUOIN
1se7
snjelg
ae
osowil |
19bpng
S92
Inosay
sonss|
Sy Sy

>
>
>
>
>

Traffic light status -

e The quality of the pre-qualification questionnaires was not as good as expected so the work may have to
re-advertised. Scoring on the current contractors is being finalised with CPG. If we have to advertise
again for a more suitable contractor to carry out the works, this will give us a delay of 1 month. The
project will still be completed this year.

Project Manager:  Silt analysis and water quality testing will take place in the next few weeks.

Shifa Mustafa, lan Woolford; |® The café has to be completed this year so work needs to progress very quickly on this.
Steve Carter e The playground also needs to be completed this year and the funding from the Big Lottery Fund which is
required to make up the total costs of the playground, will hopefully be confirmed in June.

Project Sponsor:
Niall Bolger

Page 12



HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Regeneration Stream Board

(5) GROWTH AREA & RELOCATION OF THE MORTUARY
COMMUNITY Mortuary
LNUFh?l?SS Tc? XS;H:RE e Phase One (Restoration of the Lodge) Approval to proceed with Bolt & Heeks Ltd given by Director. Will
( ) be on site A.S.A.P. (first week May potentially) .The Contract is being completed by Legal Services.
CONT. Tenders for mortuary equipment sub-contractor (specialist) being assessed, two submissions, both

suitable, but some points require clarification with both companies . Tenders for main contract on Phase
Two (the underground mortuary) being prepared for three stage process. First stage has reduced
competitors to two companies from the Framework list.

Planning Application approved at Committee on 26th March. Matter referred to Government Office for
London (GoL) and their approval has now been received on 20th April. LB Haringey condition added
regarding the need for an archaeological investigation has been actioned and Archaeological Solutions

will be on site next week.

Mortuary

VI
siyL
snieis
TIUON
1se
snieig
ae
osawl |
186png
S980
Inosay
sonss|
sy siy
[ ]

AlA]|A A e The foundations and civil engineering to the mortuary have been redesigned following the geo-technical
survey of sub-soil conditions. This showed a high water table and mixed conditions / strata including .y
shale. This has increased pre-tender estimates of Phase Two substantially and a value engineering o)
process has been undertaken. Estimated costs are still above the total agreed project value of £2.38 %3
GLS million. J
(db)

e The original additional funding package for the project is now insufficient to meet potential estimated

= my) —
= =29 5| 2 2 s o . : :
S g' 28 g 2 a§ g 193 g £ i costs. Additional work is being undertaken with the architect to reduce the cost of fees on the project. The
S opP el 8% sl © ? Director and Directorate finance officers are aware of these latest estimates.
A A A Coroner
e Lease for new building in Barnet with Legal Services of both Haringey & Barnet Councils. No additional
information / progress at present on this part of the project.
e The provisional date for the move is now likely to be August 2007.
Spine Road Budget
== -q = g o § @ o | e Total costs for Phase Two as estimated by the Quantity Surveyors give a total pre — tender project cost
zaceec®8| g [ § | & for the whole project of around £ 2.8 million. This includes a 16% figure for preliminaries and 10% for
® © contingencies.
e The tendered price for Phase one showed a saving of 30% on the pre-tender estimate, and the specialist
A|A|A]|A A sub-contractor a saving of some 32%. We would anticipate some savings on Phase Two after the
completion of the tender.

Page 13



BHARINGEY COUNCILE

®)

GROWTH AREA &
COMMUNITY
INFRASTRUCTURE
FUNDS (GAF/CIF)
CONT.

Regeneration Stream Board

Timescale

e Slippage has occurred to project timescales / key milestones in respect of the design & planning
submission and we have made up some time through phased working. The two phase approach enables
tasks to be squeezed a little more into the timeframe to and permit parallel working.

e Planned on site Phase 1 will be at the beginning of May with Phase 2 starting in June 2007.

GLS SITE

e Amended outline planning application for the overall site was submitted on the 5th April 2007.

The application for the overall site will be considered at planning application sub committee on the 17th
May 2007.

The scheme now includes 1210 residential units, a primary school, créche, a hotel, retail and offices.
The scheme includes a 30 metre wide linear park.

The stage 1 report will be considered by the Mayor of London on the 25th April.

A Development Control forum with the public was held on the 26th April at the Welbourne Centre.
Critical areas of work :- Secure comments of Statutory consultees. Complete section 106 negotiations.
Committee report to be drafted.

e |t is anticipated the podium will go to planning application sub committee in June 2007.

7 N"Ap 1

Risks and Issues.

Planning issues as described above. The delivery of this project is dependent on the land owner achieving a
favourable decision on the outline planning application for the overall site. The delays in the application for
the overall site being resolved will impacted on the delivery of the GAF project.

Page 14



BHARINGEY COUNCILE

(55 GROWTH AREA &
COMMUNITY
INFRASTRUCTURE
FUNDS (GAF/CIF)
CONT.

HEARTLANDS SPINE ROAD
Budget

Contamination Y
. Detailed design has been completed on Phases 1 & 3 (existing carriageway), and on Phase 2 (new @;

carriageway). ®
. Decontamination site surveys by Celtic, the National Grid’s contractor are underway. It would appear E#

Agreements

Regeneration Stream Board

PID has now been updated with further consideration to reflect an up-to-date costing and milestone
profile for 2006/07 spend. The total cost of the scheme is now estimated at £5.6m and this has been
reflected in the scheme program that has been revised, although firm costs will only be available once
the tenders have been analysed and the cost of decontamination developed by end May.

The revised PID and costing profiles have now been adjusted to contain the overall scheme costs to
£5m and the Milestones now reflect this programme.

Positive meeting held with DCLG/CIF officers to discuss the budget implications of De-contamination
and gas mains diversions and encapsulations. Agreed to discuss further once firm costs have been
identified.

Discussions are ongoing to seek National Grids agreement to meet costs above the £5m. approved by
DCLG. Once firm costs are available, further meetings will be held to find a positive resolution to this.

from early indications that there are numerous services within the site, and the strategy to protect the
service mains may be more complex than initially predicted. A Strategy report is expected by the end of
May, following discussions with the Environment Agency.

Current estimated cost of these works is about £740,000 and the cost of diverting the main gas mains
is nearly £600,000. These have now been included in the scheme costs that are showing a likely
overall cost above the £5m budget.

Horizontal alignment on Phase 1 (Western Road) identified land transfers/acquisitions from the school,
Chocolate Factory, Parks and Network Rail

Agreement has been reached with the “Guardians of the Wood Green Common” about land exchange
with Wood Green Common.

The agreement with the Chocolate Factory to retain its “right of access” from the land at Western Road
has now been negotiated.

Page 15



BHARINGEY COUNCILE

®)

GROWTH AREA &
COMMUNITY
INFRASTRUCTURE
FUNDS (GAF/CIF)
CONT.

Regeneration Stream Board

Discussions with Education on the report produced by Dearle and Henderson (consultants to
Education) on accommodation works needed at the school have produced a satisfactory agreement
and a report to the Executive has been submitted for the June Executive Committee seeking
ratificationof the vehicle pound. of this land appropriation. Works are programmed to be carried out at
the school during the summer holidays, starting at the end of July.

Discussions are ongoing with Network Rail to reach agreement on the land needed along Western
Road.

Proposals for the accommodation works to the Call Centre have been agreed with Property Services,
and implications of the works have also been discussed with the management of the vehicle pound.

Contract/PQQ

Contract Documents sent out to the 5 contractors included following the PQQ short listing at the end of
February. Completed tenders were returned on 20" April.

It has been agreed to include Phases 1, 2 and 3 into one Highway Contract for the Tender which is
now programmed to start on site in July.

Tenders are now being analysed. And will be reported to the Executive Committee in June.

; A"AD 1
L VMUG

Page 16



(6) COUNCIL OWNED
LAND

Project Sponsor:
Tim Dauncey

Project Manager:
Dinesh Kotecha

Regeneration Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES

o To resolve the future of key surplus, derelict or under used sites in Council ownership.

e To secure economic, community and environmental benefits and where appropriate the long term future
of protected historic buildings.

e To support inward funding and investment.

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Original End Date: N/A as phased
programme of work

Current End Date: N/A as phased
programme of work

Project Budget: £180k (revised from
£280k due to £100k carry over for
Tottenham Town Hall relocation budget)

Spend to date: £160k
Forecast spend: £160k

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Hornsey Town Hall

e The expressions of interest received for the development scheme are being evaluated.

e Work continues on establishing the Community Trust which has now been incorporated as a Company

Limited by Guarantee.

e The Community Partnership Board has met and continues to work on the future business plan and
management arrangements and promoting the Town Hall as a community venue (e.g. an interactive arts
exhibition will be held in the Town Hall on 19" and 20™ May).

Tottenham Town Hall

e Feedback from Newlon is awaited on the Heads of Terms for the Development Agreement.

e Work continues to investigate alternative premises for re-locating voluntary sector groups either within or
outside the Council’s portfolio.

Hornsey Depot

e A team has been established for evaluating the bids received (closing date 2 May). Following evaluation
there will be a presentation to Members on the proposed shortlist.

e Re-location of the Coroner’s Court and Mortuary is progressing satisfactorily. Work continues on
identifying options for re-locating other existing users as necessary.

9
(e
q

Page 17



BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Regeneration Stream Board

(6)

COUNCIL OWNED
LAND CONT.

Bull Lane Playing Fields/Pasteur Gardens/Weir Hall Close

e Attempts are continuing to meet with LB Enfield to discuss S.106 arrangements. Concurrently,
consideration is also being given to alternative options and the Council’s marketing strategy.

Timescales

All projects are actively making progress. The amber status reflects the as yet unresolved issues of
relocation of third party and Council users from Tottenham Town Hall, Hornsey Town Hall and Hornsey
Depot and the risk that planning applications for major schemes may be subject to lengthy appeal
processes.

Page 18

g/ abed



(7)

WARDS CORNER

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Regeneration Stream Board
Project DESCRIPTON / Objectives

To develop Wards Corner.

To improve the public open space that adjoins Wards Corner.

To support other regeneration initiates in the area.

To work with the lead partner to achieve optimum community benefits.

Original End Date: March 2009 Current End Date: April 2010 Project Budget: £TBC Forecast spend: £TBC

Ul U = o Y 73
b8 ss|.S|a8| 8| 2
EFcEddoa| 8|88 5 | &
5 GF ~ & © & o |”c 3 o

Project Sponsor:
Justin Holliday

Project Manager:
Jane Chambers

Spend to date: £TBC
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Wards Corner is recognised as a gateway location within the borough, situated at the apex of Seven Sisters
and Tottenham High Roads. For decades it has been in a dilapidated condition. The proposal which has
been approved by the Council’s Executive on 20" February 2007 is to provide a new landmark mixed use
development scheme situated on Wards Corner and Apex House which will include residential and retail
units alongside improvements to the safety and design of the Seven Sisters underground and railway
stations.

The proposed development at Wards Corner will compliment the Council's High Road Improvement Strategy
and is important for the successful transformation of Tottenham High Road and its environs. The Bridge New
Deal for Communities (NDC) initiative also places a high priority on the site’s redevelopment. Haringey
Council and the Bridge NDC are working together to support the regeneration of this area by seeking to
provide a quality development which will improve the living, working and leisure environment.

At present there are issues which require resolution and the Wards Corner Project Executive Meeting has
started to meet monthly to take the listed issues forward. Work is being undertaken to address the issues
and agree a basis on which the parties can proceed. The current timetable for completion of this
development is 2011. However, this timetable is subject to a number of matters, including the timely
resolution of planning and CPO issues.

Page 19

6/, obed



(7)

WARDS CORNER
CONT.

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Regeneration Stream Board

Budget and Resources

The overall rating is Amber. The current budget for land acquisition, set aside by the developer, including
associated CPO costs is 13.5 million pounds. The NDC budget for the 2007-8 is £500k to support the
development of the scheme including legal, technical and consultation matters. A report setting out the
proposals and the total cost of the project of £2m over 2007-9 was taken to the NDC Board on 28.2.07 and
unanimously approved. Council funding of the project is £0.5m and is funded from the disposal.

Issues
The overall rating is Amber. The issues for this project are:

Achieving the land acquisition within the projected costs — currently on track
Scheme costs and the basis for delivering the required public subsidy

Planning permission and CPO consent

The potential for unfavourable public/community/business response to proposals
An improved transport interchange

The work required to enable Grainger Trust to achieve 65% land acquisition on the Wards Corner site has
been achieved. Completion of this acquisition will move Grainger Trust from a position of minority to majority
land ownership in one step.

Risks
The overall rating is Amber. The risks to the Wards Corner development are:

Timescales:

o Planning — A protracted planning process resulting in significant delay

e CPO - This is time consuming and carries inherent risks. However, the parties are taking steps to
minimise these and have factored in the possibility that there may be a CPO inquiry

e Rights of Light — Consultants have identified an envelope within which a development can take place
without any significant breach of rights of lights. A report will shortly be available.

Page 20

08 abed



Regeneration Stream Board

(7)

WARDS CORNER
CONT.

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Development costs — The mixed land ownership on the site has resulted in high land assembly costs.
The cost of development continues to be carefully considered and controlled, to avoid any resulting
adverse impact on viability

Mayoral support for the scheme — The Mayors tool kit will be used to ensure that the scheme addresses
any issues which should be considered prior to referring the development to the GLA and early contact
will be made.

Engineering — The site is subject to complex engineering constraints due to the configuration of the
tunnels, booking hall and escalators. These constraints limit the size and height of the building.. The
planning advice now being obtained and the meetings with TFl is contributing to the developers making
informed design decisions

Businesses without a legal interest — market traders will benefit from the preparation of information,
advice and sign-posting

English Heritage — there is a new officer involved in the Haringey schemes and early contact and
briefing about the long consultation history on this site will be provided

Page 21

18 abed



BHARINGEY COUNCILE

SECTION 2 — CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE STREAM BOARD
Children & Young People’s Stream Board

(1) BUILDING SCHOOLS PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

FOR THE FUTURE The key objectives of Bright Futures and the BSF programme are to:
¢ Finally break the link between disadvantage and low achievement in order to create prosperous, inclusive and

sustainable communities for the 21 century

e Support secondary schools to achieve the highest standards, to be fully inclusive, to put the aspirations and
achievement of the learner first and to contribute to community cohesion and race equality

¢ Transform outcomes for vulnerable individuals and groups

e Enable secondary schools to have a key role in neighbourhood regeneration and in the wider agenda that
supports the well-being of young people

o Assist all our partners with a stake in the future of young people to work together to provide the best possible

opportunities for young people

LEVEL 1 PROJECT

Original End Date: 2011 Current End Date: 2011 For 2006/07: For 2006/07:
End date last month: 2011 Original Annual Budget: £34,007k Spend to date: £27,178,743
Revised Annual Budget: £27,957k YTD Variance: -£2,480,573 U
Cash Limit Budget: £29,659,316 Projected Variance: -£492,777k Q
L e d 2| o o| 7 | 5 | MANAGEMENT SUMMARY %
cSsphae3| 5 38 2 | 3 . .
o B2l |28 3 | & e Overall: We continue to make steady progress on the programme despite some early stage set %

backs. However, we continue to drive greater clarity within the programme as the new project
managers embed themselves further into the programme and we gain greater insight into many of the

challenges that we face.
e Timescales: Greater pressure placed on the programme, in particular at StTM and WSH, due to poor

performance of the schools’ previous Project Managers (PMs). Expecting delays as the new PMs
transition into their new roles but are expecting recovery initiatives to remedy some of the time lost.

>
>
>
>
>
>
>

Programme Sponsor: Our best indication suggests no material impact on the programme budget or timescales for the
Ita O’Donovan programme on a whole. We have initiated projects at other schools ahead of plan.
Progé?)':;:: SMr:i?:ger: e Resources: New project managers have joined the team. We continue to progress development of
installing client-side capacity.

e Budget: Continual demands being placed on the cash limit budget. Consensus being achieved with
the QS team and we have a better understanding of the tolerances.

Page 22



B HARINGEY COUNCILE

Children & Young People’s Stream Board

(1) BUILDING e Issues and Risks: The risk around the transitional issues of a new project management team
SCHOOLS FOR THE into new roles appears to be reducing. However, issues pertaining to PFI/DoV and the New
FUTURE CONT. School continue.

, g% d 2l o | = - TIMESCALES
EETEER 98| & cﬁ
FoaTd gle | 5|8 |° e CON:
o There has been slippage both in St Thomas More and Woodside High plans. Work has
3 been carried out to arrest the slippage and to ensure there is no mutual impact on the time
AlIA|IAIA|A|A|A | D and budget. All other school projects remain on plan or will be initiated ahead of schedule
e ICT:

o It had been expected that a Procurement recommendation would have been given to the
April 17th Procurement Committee regarding the preferred supplier for the 6FC ICT estate
and interim Managed Service. In the best interests of the 6FC, a decision was made to
seek further clarification on the bids received. This was vital to ensuring that we
understood fully what both vendors were offering to permit a valid and full comparison. This
change in approach and the slight delay it caused meant that no recommendation could be
made prior to the Committee meeting. Delegated authority was agreed at the Procurement
Committee to allow ratification of the decision on the 27th April. No delays are anticipated

in completing the procurement.

cg abed

RESOURCES:
e PRO: Following the termination of Dearle and Henderson as construction Project Managers,

there are still some final issues to resolve regarding their final costs and invoice, which
drives the ‘Amber’ status against resource. It is not expected that there will be any negative
material implications on the budget.

e ICT: A Service Delivery Manager will be recruited to assist with BAU delivery and transition
management

PRG = Programme: core programme governance function, responsible for managing the other streams

CON = Construction: deliver the building projects in the programme, including the design and management of the construction work

ICT = Information & Communications Technology: deliver the Managed ICT service to the schools

PRO = Procurement: procures consultants and services required by the programme, including the design team partners, and construction partners.
TRA = Transformation: manages the interface between schools and programme, ensures new school buildings & technology deliver max benefit to users

Page 23



BHARINGEY COUNCILE

(1) BUILDING
SCHOOLS FOR THE
FUTURE CONT.

Children & Young People’s Stream Board

ISSUES AND RISKS:
e TRA:
o Integration of strategic elements at risk due to limited school capacity and programme
timescales
o School capacity, commitment and ability to manage BSF workloads remains at risk due to
BSF timescales (e.g. ICT Procurement ) due to the transformative nature of the
programme, and its complexity and scale
e CON: The risk to agreeing the Deed of variation with SMIF still remains

g abed

Page 24



CHILDREN’S
NETWORKS

LEVEL 1 PROJECT

NB. This project does
not include the
construction of
Children’s Centres

OTOOTN

siyL

()
()
()
()
()
@

Project Sponsor:
Dr Ita O’Donovan

Project Manager:
Robert Singh

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Children & Young People’s Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

In July 2005 the Council Executive agreed a delivery model for the Children’s Service based on three

Children’s Networks, each consisting of two Network Learning Communities (NLCs) of schools but also

including all services for children and young people from statutory and voluntary agencies. Key aims are:

e Fully implement the Children’s Trust arrangements for the delivery of services.

e Complete the implementation of the Common Assessment Framework by September 2007, including
establishing a decision-making structure to oversee the assessment process

e Implement a protocol for exchanging information (with training, by September 2007) within and between
agencies;

¢ Implement a strategic and operational commissioning strategy

e Implement the Family Support Strategy by March 2007;

e Support schools [at least 30 primary and 4 secondary] to provide a range of extended services by
September 2008.

Original Budget: £700k
Revised Budget: £1,050k

Spend to date: £0
Forecast spend: £1,050k

Original End Date: Dec-2006 Current end date: Mar-2008

End date last month: Mar-2008

> = uy] By} 7y
2 - ) T
c [0 =
D 23| 5 [8a] & @
= = mg «Q »n O o) x
») o (0] C n 7]
— -

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Timescale - The Project is on track in line with the milestones set out in the PID.

e The implementation and use of a common referral is now in place. We are collecting management
information on referral patterns and the use of resources to enable comparison over time, to evaluate
effectiveness and to predict future trends.

There has been a steady increase in the number of referrals since January and during the reporting
period 21 were received and presented to the panel, this is nine less than in the previous month. Of the
72 referrals since January 50 have been from schools and agencies in the South Network. A meeting to
review the present arrangements for assessing referrals will be held in May.

e As reported previously, the new Childcare places Commissioning Panel has been established. The panel
agreed to target wards within the borough with a noticeable lack of provision and to commission
childcare places from a number of identifiable providers. The Panel has identified gaps in provision
during the school holidays as a particular concern and have met with a number of organisations to
discuss and advise on developing proposals. Provision for children with disabilities is a priority.

Page 25

Gg abed



Children & Young People’s Stream Board

3)

CHILDREN’S
NETWORKS, CONT

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

The childcare sufficiency preparation exercise, undertaken by 4Children and funded by the DfES, has
now been completed and a report presented. We are now looking at how the exercise can be progressed
to ensure the Authority meets its statutory duty by April 08.

A report to the Cabinet on Children’s Centres has been timetabled for July and is on track. It will include
a detailed financial analysis.

A meeting to discuss a number of clarification points raised by the Big Lottery Fund (BLF) arising from
our Play funding application was held during the reporting period. There were no areas of significant
concerns raised by the BLF but we were requested to be more precise and exact in a number of targets
areas we had set. It is expected that we will receive final notification by the end of June.

FoIrI]owing a short delay, the date for opening Triangle Children’s Centre has been scheduled for Monday
14" May.

Budget

The £1,050,000 made available by the Schools Forum has been profiled with funding allocated to each
Network Learning Community to have in place Family Support Workers.

Page 26

9g abed



HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Children & Young People’s Stream Board

(3) YOUTH SERVICE PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
IMPROVEMENT The purpose of this project is to secure the improvement of the Youth Service as per the objectives below
PROJECT At the end of the project the Youth Service will:
e Achieve a grading of at least ‘adequate’ in 95% of youth work sessions
e Achieve its performance indicator targets relating to contact, participation, recorded outcomes and
accreditations
e Evidence clear involvement of young people in planning, management and delivery of the Service
e Have a broad range of curriculum reflecting local need
¢ Routinely use management information to inform planning and performance management
Demonstrate value for money

Original End Date: July 2007 Actual End Date: July 2007 Original Budget: £1.598m Spend to date: £118k
End date last month: July 2007 Revised budget: £1.598m Forecast Spend: £1.598m
— MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
3
(0]
8 Improve the quality of youth work practice and consequently achievement ;JU
e A Health Check has been commissioned for mid September to provide an external review of practice |[Q
and assess the improvement in quality g
\l
Improve the extent of the involvement of young people in managing, planning and evaluating youth
work
e We are continuing to work with staff to ensure that the Project and Session planning is fit for purpose.
The competency based induction programme is assisting with this
Project Sponsor: Extend the range of youth work activity
Janette Karklins e Progress towards achieving our Best Value Performance Indicator targets has been good with a
substantial increase from last year (nearly a 100% increase in ‘contact’ and ‘participation’ figures, and
Project Manager: over 400% and 300% increases in recorded outcomes and accredited outcomes respectively).
Belinda Evans Therefore there is every indication that we now have effective systems in place.
e A good news story on this good progress will be published in Haringey People.
e The restructuring is nearing completion with interviews to be held in May 2007. It is anticipated that
the vacancies will be filled by July 2007.

Page 27



(2) YOUTH SERVICE
IMPROVEMENT
PROJECT

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Children & Young People’s Stream Board
Take urgent steps to improve management information in order that the effectiveness of the service

can begin to be measured
¢ Inthe Post Inspection Action Plan, all transformational activities were scheduled for Aug - Oct 06 and

have been achieved.
e Robust financial and performance management systems are now well-established at an individual

and unit level.

Monitor and quality assure youth work rigorously

e In the Post Inspection Action Plan, all transformational activities were scheduled for Dec 06 — March
07. All activities have now taken place and we are assessing if we have achieved the outcomes. Initial
evaluations show that youth workers do understand what is expected in terms of quality of delivery
and the quality check of the Project Plans is flagging up where there are knowledge gaps.

e The induction training for staff, which includes the implementation of the new integrated targeted
youth offer, challenging opinions and attitudes, and influencing staff knowledge on quality youth work
in the 21°' Century.

Page 28

g8 abed



CHILDRENS
CENTRES

Children & Young People’s Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Total of 18 Children’s Centres in place by March 2008 delivering the full ‘core offer’ — with 10 already in

place by March 2006

Original End Date: January 2007
End date last month: July 2007

Current End Date: July 2008

Original Budget: £36.264m
Revised budget: £35.119m
Forecast Spend: £37.379m

Spend to date: - £0k
Projected annual expenditure:
£8.883m

Projected variance for the year: £394k

= k. dq 2| o 7z | o | MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
5 o T o b o) » »
e Sure Start Central unit approval for Seven Sisters received.
A|A |A |A <lA |A e Welbourne and Earlsmead construction works started on Monday 2" April 2007.
e With the exception of Bounds Green Children’s Centre and South Harringay Children’s Centre, all the

projects within the programme are projected to be completed by March 2008 as per the funding target
milestone.

e The DFES bulletin Ref:SSESCGO7_10 advised that in exceptional circumstances and where local
authorities fully meet the criteria, a limited number of projects can be finished after this date.

68 abed

e We are meeting with the Sure start Area Programme Manager at end of May 2007 to seek approval
from the DFES Sure Start Central Unit for agreement to the revised projected expenditure profile and
giving evidence that we meet the DFES criteria.

e The review of the financial sustainability of children’s centres is making good progress. A report to the
Executive has been timetabled for July.

e This review may result in the number of Children’s Centres delivered by the Council being rethought.
SureStart regulations state that they will not cut a local authority’s Children’s Centres funding
envelope if that authority reduces the number of Children’s Centres they provide, as long as the lower
number of Centres retains the same reach.

e Most other indicators are set at amber to reflect that this is a construction programme and thus has an
inevitable inherent uncertainty.

Project Sponsor:
lan Bailey

Project Manager:
David Moore

Page 29



PRIMARY
SCHOOLS CAPITAL

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Children & Young People’s Stream Board
PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

o Delivery of major capital investment within the primary school estate

Project Sponsor:
lan Bailey

Project Manager:
Steve Barns

e Completion of capital repairs and maintenance works across the primary school estate
Original End Date: Jan 2007 Current End Date: July 2007 Original Budget: £36.264m Spend to date: - £86k
End date last month: Jan 2007 Revised budget: £35.119m Projected annual expenditure: £8.883m
Forecast Spend: £37.379m Projected variance for the year: £393k
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

e The programme for delivering the new school places is proceeding broadly to programme. Amber
status overall reflects the risks and challenges inherent in any construction programme on this scale

e The first stage of the construction procurement in respect of Coleridge Primary School expansion was
presented to the April Procurement Committee and approved. Demolition works on the TUC site
begin on 14" May.

e The contractor delivering the phase 1 programme at Tetherdown has informed the architect of a
programme risk; however, this should not affect the new intake in September 2007. There is a risk to
the budget in view of a potential extension of time claim and the outcome of discussions regarding the
final cost of the steelwork.

e The reinstatement work at Crowland is due to complete at the end of May. The decanting of the
temporary school into the refurbished building is planned for the Summer Half Term holiday.

Page 30

06 9bed



OTOOTN

SECTION 3 — WELL BEING STREAM BOARD

(1)

E-CARE PHASE Il

Well Being Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
e Successful Implementation of the FWI Purchasing module to allow for decommissioning of FIFI.
e Entry / updating of social care records on one system (FWi) rather then two (FWi & FIFI).

e Develop an interface to populate SAP with newly created Purchase Orders entered into FWI.

e Pave the way for the second stage of Phase 2 to consider integration between FWI and SAP.

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Phase 2 End Date: Dec-07
End date last month: Dec-07

Current End Date: Dec-07

Phase 2 Budget: £1497k
Revised Budget: £1698k
Forecast spend: £1698k

Spend to date: £43.8k
Profiled budget: £30k
Projected Variance for the

2007/08 Budget: £358k year: -£327k

Project Sponsor:
Catherine Galvin

Project Manager:
Andrew Rostom

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

. Between 16™ — 27" April, the project team conducted a series of workshops with Finance User Group
(FUG) reps and 3™ / 4" tiers to review final proposals of the ‘TO BE’ systems design for the
Framework-I Finance Purchasing module.

. The workshops were completed as planned and the system design was approved in principle.
Attendance at some workshops was below that expected, and this will be raised at the project board.
Development work to ‘configure / build’ the system based on the agreed design will commence from
May.

« Technical work continues with both Data Migration and Interface design.

e The project team will be developing Change Impact analysis plans now that the “TO BE’ system
design has been approved. These plans will be reviewed with all 3" tiers in May, and workshops will

be run with 4™ & 5™ tiers in June to walk staff through key ‘people’, ‘system’ and ‘process’ based
changes.

Issues

e There are currently some “staff” based FWI Usability issues which require resolution by operational
management. Change management activity is taking place to understand the nature / cause of these,
and resolution of these will be addressed during the Change Impact analysis work mentioned above.

Page 31

16 8bed



HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Well Being Stream Board

(2) COMMUNITY CARE PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

STRATEGY
IMPLEMENTATION *

Project Sponsor:
Mary Hennigan

To close and demolish Osborne Grove long-term residential care home for older people and to design
and build a 32 bed respite care home for older people.

To refurbish 3 long-term residential care homes to a high standard.

To explore options for 2 out of borough long term residential care homes.

; ] Original End Date: Mar-07 Current End Date: August-07 | Project Budget: £5.65m Spend to date: £4.260m
Prol.eCt Manager: End date last month: May-07 Forecast spend: £5.65m
David Bray

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Osborne Grove

Ise
e
osowl |
186png
S80
Inosay
sonss|
sysiy

Broadwater Lodge .

Osborne Grove (New Build 32 Bed Respite Care Home)

The contractor’s site meeting, No. 12, was held on the 25" April 2007. The contractor is reporting a
twelve-week delay. The Contract Administrator (CA) has assessed the contractor’s claim for an
extension of time and granted an award of 9 weeks, extending the completion date to the 25™ May

2007. The contractor continues to contest his right for more time.
The Cost Manager, based on this award, will assess the contractor’s entitlement to costs.

The expected completion is the 18" June 2007.
Members have advised that the building will be operated as a Nursing Home for Older People. The

feasibility of opening in autumn 2007 is being explored.

The Red House

Practical completion was achieved on the 2" October 2006.
Haringey’s Design Services continue to progress the final account.
Haringey Council has informed Makers UK Ltd (the main contractor) its intent to claim LADs.

26 abed

Page 32



Well Being Stream Board

(2) COMMUNITY CARE Cooperscroft (TUPE)

STRATEGY The disposal of G ft completed on the 30" September 2006
. e disposal of Cooperscroft completed on the eptemoer .
IMPLEMENTATION £3,138,900.39 received from Rockley Dene.
Project Sponsor: Trentfield

Mary Hennigan
The conveyance completed on the 3rd November 2006.

Project Manager: . .
David Bray . £3,300,333.00 received from the purchaser; Mr Ourris.
Cranwood Cranwood
- = g X g’—, By
g%: ] >3 & 3 g s | 2 | Project complete

Trentfield
T
mr—'-

Q = o —
Ead221,5 € |2 3 | 2
P oY =6 o 3 a |o» & ®
E. & © o2l @ ool o x
S o 0 @ c 7]

3 o — = (2]
oy

Cooperscroft

B HARINGEY COUNCILE

£6 abed

Page 33



siyL

..-A-

A U DDA

Ise
e
osawil |
1ebpng
S99
Jnosay

=2
>

Project Sponsor:
Rupert Brandon

Project Manager:
Mel Cant

senss|

SYsid

>

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

e The project aims to meet the Government target which will require a reduction in TA from 5709 units @
April 2006, to 2604 units by 2010.

Original End Date: Jul-07 Current End Date: Oct-07 Project Budget: £N/A Spend to date: £N/A
End date last month: Oct-07 Forecast spend: £N/A

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

e New project management support identified within Housing Services
e A specialist advisor has joined the project group

e Numbers in TA fell for year end

e Meetings held with CLG to update on progress and agree further actions

6 abed

Page 34



o1
siyL

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

SECTION 4 —- BETTER HARINGEY STREAM BOARD

B R HAR PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
A e To create a 4-8 year Estates Environment Improvement Strategy and Action Plan.
PRU e To engage other Housing providers in the development and delivery of the Strategy.
PROGRZ e To establish and deliver the £880k 2006/7 BHEIP programme.
e To deliver £300k Campsbourne Estate project.
Original End Date: May 07 Current End Date: Sept ‘07 Project Budget: £1.408 million (by end Spend to date: £950k
End date last month: May 07 Sept ‘07) [Revised to include £62k NRF Forecast spend: £1.358m by end
allocation]. June ‘07
=1 o| 7 | 5 | MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
b3l 8 |83l 2| 5
gadoe 2| g #3l § =
op 38 @ =) ] ®

Resources / issues / risks

>

A Al Al A | The Groundwork Milicent Fawcett / Love Lane pilot project is progressing. £950k of works completed in ;JU
2006/7, with the Campsbourne (Section 106) delayed to September 2007. Carry forward works to the value |@Q
of £408k are to be completed in the first quarter of 2007/8. @

Project Sponsor: &
Bob Watts The amber status reflects the slippage into 2007/08, which was largely due to reprofiling of HfH programme
Project Manager: spend lin the latter part of 2006/07. Together with the risks associated with managing local expectations

John Morris ) regarding delay on Campsbourne.

Page 35



CTOON
SiylL
n -

DELIVERING
ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPROVEMENTS
ON HOUSING
ESTATES IN
HARINGEY

UTUON
1se7
n
ae
osawl |
1ebpng
S80
Inosay
E
m

()
()
()
()
@
()
()

Project Sponsor:
Jackie Thomas

Project Manager:
Joanna David

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Better Haringey Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

e The overarching objective is to deliver immediate improvements to environmental services on estates in
preparation for the Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO) inspection. In the longer term, the
objective is to ensure that environmental services delivered by the Council on Haringey housing estates
are high quality, effective and provide value for money (ViM). The project aims to support strong joined
up working between Homes for Haringey, Environmental Services and Neighbourhood Management.
The project comprises of 5 separate workstreams, against which progress is shown below.

Original End Date: April 07 (HfH Current End Date: PID to be revised | Project Budget: N/A contained within Spend to date: N/A
inspection) for 2007/8 extension. existing departmental budgets Forecast spend: N/A
End date last month: April 07

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

This project comprises five separate work-streams, each supported by a small officer group. A key area of
work during April was the Estates Clean Sweep — a targeted programme of work over three days bringing
together a range of Urban Environment Services with Neighbourhood Management and other external
partners to target environmental problems on estates. This project was originally planned to complete at the
end of the financial year 2006/07, however, it has highlighted a range of areas where further work will help to
continue some of the environmental improvements now in place. It is therefore suggested that a revised
project initiation document (PID) is drawn up for inclusion in the 2007/08 Better Haringey programme of
work.

Waste Management and Recycling:
ViM Self Assessment of Waste Management on estates (contract, client side and recycling) has now been
agreed by the ALMO board and the key recommendations accepted by the service.

Area based working
Work is now in progress to deliver the action plan drawn up in response to consultation with HfH estates

staff. A detailed list of estates where access problems obstruct refuse vehicles has been drawn up and the
Highways team are now drawing up a traffic management plan; arrangements for regular estate based
meetings between HfH staff and ACCORD are agreed with a schedule of dates drawn up and a review of
bulky refuse collection arrangements has been carried out and discussions are due to take place with
ACCORD to review current collection arrangements.

Page 36

96 abed



Better Haringey Stream Board

(2) DELIVERING
ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPROVEMENTS ON
HOUSING ESTATES IN
HARINGEY (CONT)

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Grounds Maintenance (including play areas on estates) and Lighting

Better Haringey Clean Sweep on estates took place at the end of April with a programme of activities
including mending paving stones, cutting back hedges, deep cleaning grassed and paved areas and graffiti
removal. This was supported by targeted enforcement action with a uniformed presence on the estates
throughout the week. Highways are carrying out the comprehensive audit of all lighting columns and input
onto the data system, pre inspection.

Enforcement

Delegated powers are being sought to enable Homes for Haringey (HfH) estates staff (Estates Services
Managers) to take enforcement action against tenants for dumping and littering.

Urban Environment enforcement officers are working with estates staff to tackle anti-social behaviour and
take action against a small number of prolific offenders — these cases will be publicised in Home Zone.
Standard letters are now being issued as the first stage of the enforcement process to target anti-social
behaviour on estates.

Priority list of dumping hotspots a standing item at area based working meetings.

Action plans are in place to address the recommendations arising from the VfM reviews of Pest Control and
the Noise Service.

Page 37

/6 abed



(3) RAISING
AWARENESS &
INVOLVEMENT

[easew |

Project Sponsor:
Joanna David

Project Managers:

Jon Clubb
Deborah Hogan
Jude Clements

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Better Haringey Stream Board

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

e To provide information and education, and to show how the individual can make a difference to their local
environment.

¢ Instil a renewed sense of civic pride within the local community.

e To develop new ideas to support the communication of all projects in the Better Haringey programme.

e To engage with specific groups where there is a lack of knowledge or understanding of Council Services
and activities aligned to the Better Haringey programme.

e To develop a detailed understanding of residents’ perceptions and concerns and what we need to do

better.

Original End Date: April ‘08 Current End Date: April ‘08 Theme Budget: £225,400 (2007/8) Spend to date: £6,325
End date last month: n/a Forecast spend: £225,400

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Clean Sweep on Estates was successfully delivered between 23 — 28 April, with 11 estates receiving
additional clear up activities. Highlights included community clear ups, an extensive door knocking and
feedback exercise to encourage civic pride on estates, outdoor repairs, litter picking, deep cleans, and
grounds maintenance. The next Clean Sweep will be in Haringey and St.Ann’s in July.

Planning for the first ever Better Haringey Green Fair continues with a number of key activities,
entertainment and stall holders confirmed. A detailed updated report was submitted to the Stream Board in
April and to Members in early May. Concerns regarding the cost of providing the infrastructure have been
resolved with the addition of project support from Neighbourhood Management. Key activities over the next
period include, finalising the content of the fair, continuing to promote the Better Haringey Awards and the
sign off of the artwork for the publicity due to commence in June.

The current outdoor campaign ‘Fly-posting comes and goes — The £75 Fine Sticks’ will be displayed on bus
stops across the borough until the end of April to raise awareness of the risk of prosecution for would be fly-
posters. Radio advertising on London Greek Radio & London Turkish Radio also continues until the end of
June covering recycling, littering and fly-posting.

Issues

The number of nominations received for the Better Haringey Awards is currently low. There will be a strong
emphasis over the next period to target key groups to encourage nominations.

Page 38

86 abed



(4)

ENVIRONMENTAL
CLEANLINESS &
ENFORCEMENT

Project Sponsor:
Joanna David

Project Managers:

Rob Curtis

Zoe Robertson
Emma Smyth

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Better Haringey Stream Board
PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

e To undertake a frequent and high profile programme of clean up activities targeting borough ‘grot spots’;
e Encourage resident involvement in community clear up and improvement activities;

¢ Identify all major ‘eyesores’ that have a negative impact on the local amenity and the environment

e Provide at least one free collection of bulky waste per year to all eligible households; and

e Move from unsatisfactory standards to satisfactory standards for the performance indicator for litter and
detritus (BVPI199a).

Eyesores: 31 March 07
Community Clear Ups: 31 March 08
Mobile Clean Team: 31 March 07

Eyesores: 30 Sept 08
Community Clear Ups: 31 March 08
Mobile Clean Team: 31 Mar 08

Theme Budget: £280k

Eyesores: 2007/8 tbc

Community Clear Ups: £80k [£40K
NRF, £40K SSCF]

Theme actual spend: £0
Eyesores: n/a
Community Clear Ups £0
Mobile Clean Team £0
End date last month: 30 Sept 08
Eyesores: 30 Sept 08

Community Clear Ups: n/a

Mobile Clean Team: n/a

Mobile Clean Team £200,000 [£75k
NRF, £125k SSCF] Theme forecast spend: £280k
Eyesores: n/a

Community Clear Ups £80k

Mobile Clean Team £200,000k

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Eyesores Programme

White Hart Lane Station - Network Rail have obtained estimates to erect a single gate and 2.4m high
palisade fencing on western side in order to restrict access to area and the arches beneath the station.

Church Road Bridge - The sensitive graffiti [tributes to a deceased youth] has now been removed by
Network Rail and an officer is monitoring any possible repercussions on a weekly basis. A press release is
being drafted.

Nuisance from Pigeons at Bruce Grove Bridge - Contractor has still not been able to complete pigeon
proofing on the southern side due to a rusted guttering system that birds can edge through. Network Rail will
now review drainage arrangements before the matter can progress.

Nuisance from Pigeons at St. Ann’s/ Seven Sisters - Work to replace unsatisfactory netting with bespoke
materials has been halted. Because there are two pedestrian crossings beneath the bridge that need re-

proofing, road closure orders are required and have been delayed due to other traffic diversions in the area.
Also, Network Rail is considering incorporating the scheduled repainting of the fascias of the iron structures.

River Lea - Work has continued on the western lock at Tottenham Hale. Rubbish, debris and slime have
been removed

bbb olEd

Page 39



BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Better Haringey Stream Board

(4) ENVIRONMENTAL
CLEANLINESS &
ENFORCEMENT CONT

Rangemoor Industrial Estate - Improvements achieved since new estate manager appointed. Monthly
meetings arranged with manager. Fly-tipping being closely monitored and two officers engaged in routine
litter picking.

Myddleton Road Wood Green - A good response has been received from the owners of ‘Eyesore Shops’
[derelict and unkempt]. The general opinion is that there is insufficient patronage to revitalise the retail trade.
Some say applications to convert retail units to dwelling accommodation or office use have failed to gain
planning approval.

Community Clear Ups

e Project due to start in May 2007.

e The Community Clear Ups schedule is currently being planned for 2007/8 to provide maximum value for
money and efficiency in how the service is provided.

e Budget in 2007/8 - £40K NRF/£40K SSCF
e Spend at end of Period 1 — £nil — project to commence in May.
Mobile Clean Up Teams & Street Cleaning

e Funding has been secured for 2007-08

e The function of the Mobile Clean Team has been reviewed and it is proposed to retain 1 Mobile Clean
Team (2 teams were in operation last year). We propose to use the remaining funding to introduce a new
litter picking service in 10 wards this year. This litter picking service will be a service in addition to existing
street sweeping arrangements. The 3 SSCF wards are amongst the 10 wards chosen to receive the
additional service.

e Budget in 2007/08: £75,000 NRF / £125,000 SSCF
Spend to date £0. Payment is one month in arrears, therefore spend will show next period.

00T 9bed

Page 40



(5) IMPROVING GREEN &
OPEN SPACES

> > — oy} By) o
>_|Z>,—£(m§ c o® a
3§8§m9—m Q | @ c
—'-(nC—o-.(ﬁ-CcDm Q » O [0}
P P v 9] o S *

Project Sponsor:
John Morris

Project Managers:
Don Lawson, Andy Briggs
Paul Ely

sysiy

0]

Better Haringey Stream Board
PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

e To raise the standard and profile of parks and open spaces in line with the 8 green flag objectives;
e improve quality, safety and general environment of Haringey’s opens spaces and allotments;

e deliver programme of tree planting, Haringey in Bloom and small grant funding;

¢ install a new playground in Chestnuts Park;
e meet cleanliness index targets and low ENCAMs scores,

e deliver a series of site specific improvement works with ‘Groundwork’;
e complete a review of resources and functions associated with Haringey’s Park Management; and
e address condition surveys of sports and leisure facilities.

Original End Date:

Open Spaces Imp Prog: Feb 07
Sport & Leisure: Mar 07
Chestnuts Park: Oct 07

Pks & Open Spaces Hyg: Ongoing
Groundwork: Jun 07

Parkforce: Aug 07

End date last month

Open Spaces Imp Prog: Apr 07

Sport & Leisure: Mar 07

Chestnuts Park: Apr 08

Parks & Open Spaces Hygiene: ongoing.
Groundwork: Jun 07

Parkforce: Jul 07

Current End Date:

Open Spaces Imp Prog: Apr 07
Sport & Leisure: May 07
Chestnuts Park: Apr 08

Pks & Open Spaces Hyg:
ongoing

Groundwork: Jun 07

Parkforce: Jul 07

Theme Budget: £2802k [subject to
confirmation of 07/8 budget & carry
fwd from 06/7]

Open Spaces Imp Prog: £1253k
[06/7]

Sport & Leisure: £594k

Chestnuts Park: £560,000 [subject
to approval]

Pks & Open Spaces Hyg': £323k
[06/7]

Groundwork: £130k, revised to £72k
Parkforce: within existing
mainstream budgets.

Spend to date: £1906k

Open Spaces Imp Prog: £1236k
Sport & Leisure: £277k [06/07]
Chestnuts Park: £0

Pks & Open Spaces Hyg: £323
Groundwork: £70k [end March]
Parkforce: n/a

Forecast spend: £2802

Open Spaces Imp Prog: £1253k

Sport & Leisure: £594k

Chestnuts Pk: £560,000 [awaiting approval]
Pks & Open Spaces Hyg: £323k [tbc]
Groundwork: £70k

Parkforce: n/a

FOT 9oed

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Open Spaces Improvement Programme Status this month: A

e The amber status largely reflects outstanding agreement on the Sports and Leisure Phase 1 final account,
and the potential knock-on effect to the remaining renewals programme.

e Downhills Pavilion Demolition now complete and additional works being carried in preparation for Green

Flag.

e Resurfacing programme in final stages, work expected to be complete by week ending.

e Allotment programme near completion — awaiting transfer of Portakabin to Albert Rd Rec (pending

alternative crane).

Page 41



HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Better Haringey Stream Board

(5) IMPROVING GREEN | « Wood Green Landscape is now nearing completion following delay by waterworks. Expected timescale for
& OPEN SPACES completion approximately 2 weeks.
e Archway Road is being tendered for works with project start expected end of May 07 (minus planting
programme).
¢ Closing all projects down and programming new capital works for the 07-08 financial year.

Sport & Leisure Services — Strategic Renewals Status this month: A

e Settlement of year 1 final account works continues to pose a risk to the year two projects, £3,137k minus
retentions of £47k has been paid to date. AYH Consultancy has advised they are now in the final stages of
settlement. Should this not be resolved corporate procurement have advised of options linked to dispute
resolution and audit.

e The Member approved limit stands at £3.462 Inc fees. AYH understands any overrun on the approved £3.2 §
for works posses a risk to year 2/3 works. Corporate Procurement has been involved in this process since
June 2006 liaising with AYH on the final account. Corporate Procurement has met with AYH and C&B on
28™ March to seek resolution of the final account. Procurement has requested final figures following
cancelled meeting on 27™ April. In case of cost exceeding approved limit, process is being confirmed for
“possible” approval of additional funds.

¢ Commencement of works at Park Road Leisure Centre changing rooms will be subject to final account of
year 1 being settled in the region of the agreed limit and if approved will start on site in late Feb 2007.

e Specifications have been worked up for the replacement of the filtration systems at both TGLC & PRLC.
Currently on hold subject to settlement of the Year 1 account.

e All projects may experience slight slippage due to confirmation of final account works now planned for Apr
2007.

Chestnuts Park Play Improvement Project Status this month: A

The spending profile for the project is -

NDC £300,000 — secured, Recreation Services £120,000 — secured, Big Lottery Fund £120,000 — application
submitted, London Marathon Trust £20,000 — secured.

Page 42

corobed



HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Better Haringey Stream Board

)

IMPROVING GREEN
& OPEN SPACES

The Chestnuts playground project has been included with Haringey’s portfolio of projects that was
submitted to the Big Lottery Fund in March. A decision is expected in June 2007. If the decision is
delayed, this will have delivery implications as we are planning to start work on the new playground this
winter. As assessment visit has been made by the Big Lottery Fund, which went very well.

Tenders for the project have been returned and are on budget.

A report will go to the Procurement Committee in June to appoint a contractor to carry out the work. All the
funding needs to be in place before any contract is to be issued to the contractor.

Parks & Open Spaces Hygiene Status this month: [€]

A higher than normal level of litter both in bins and dropped has been recorded. Therefore staffing levels
will be enhanced by recruiting 3 additional agency staff to maintain cleanliness standards. This is contained
within existing resources.

Cleanliness Index monitoring and Encamps monitoring with Waste Management (litter, graffiti, detritus) will
continue until April 07.

End of year under spend of £12k reported for 2006/7.

Groundwork Stage 2 Pilot Programme  Status this month: [€]

Consultations on all 3 sites either completed or significantly advanced.

Contractor began work on site at Paignton on 16™ March and all construction works completed by 29™
March. Delay installing park furniture due to delay in supply from manufacturer (estimated mid April).

Targeted youth consultation requested for Paignton masterplan consultation, therefore timescale revised.
Now due for completion end of April.

Delay in completing path at Belmont due to waterlogging, works now timetable for May.
Paignton quick win park furniture will not be delivered from manufacturer until mid-April.
Delay in completing path at Belmont due to waterlogging, works now timetable for May.

«

corobed

Page 43



HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Better Haringey Stream Board

‘Park force’ Resource Review Status this month: A

(5)

IMPROVING GREEN
& OPEN SPACES

Survey closed, collation completed, detail being fed into report.
Production and review of Executive Report ‘skeleton’ completed.
Benchmarking exercise to be completed.

Review of data received from questionnaires underway.

Page 44

v0| abed



BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Better Haringey Stream Board

(6) SUSTAINABILITY PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

e To meet targets for recycling rates, waste collection per head, households served by kerbside collection
of two recyclables, kerbside recycling participation, schools recycling, re-use and recycling centres
diverting 50% of waste from landfill, improved Council office recycling infrastructure;

e to inform residents about waste minimisation and recycling schemes available, in order to increase take-
up of services; and

e to expand the recycling service to residents on housing estates as a pilot project for, pending further roll

out.
Original End Date: Current End Date: Theme Budget: £215k Spend to date: £0
New Recycling projects: Mar 08 New Recycling projects: 31 March 08 | New Recycling projects: £100K [NRF] | New Recycling projects: £0
Comms, Parti’ & Engagement: Mar 08 | Comms, Parti’ & Engagement: 31 Comms, Parti’ & Engagement: £50K Comms, Parti’ & Engagement: £0
Estates Recycling: Mar 08 March 08 [NRF] Estates Recycling: £0

Estates Recycling: 31 March 08 Estates Recycling: £65K [SSCF]

End date last month: Forecast spend: £215k
New Recycling projects: n/a New Recycling projects: £100k
Comms, Parti’ & Engagement: n/a Comms, Parti’ & Engagement: £50k
Estates Recycling: n/a Estates Recycling: £65k
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

New Recycling Projects
. 3 PO1 Recycling Officers in full time employment supporting all activities within the Recycling Team.
. Budget in 2007/8 - £100K and spend at end of Period 1 - £nil (spend will show in the next period).

Communication, Participation & Engagement (Recycling)

. A variety of promotional materials and new service leaflets are planned for the coming year including
contamination cards to improve the quality of materials collected on the mixed recycling services.

Project Sponsor: 3 Budget in 2007/8 - £50K and spend at end of Period 1 — nil.

Steve McDonnell

Estates Recycling

Project Manager: J This project serves the Northumberland Park and Seven Sisters areas with an estates recycling

Zoe Robertson service covering approx. 4,000 households with a doorstep commingled service, and a further 1,500
households with near-entry recycling bring banks.

. There is a risk that the doorstep service may have to be modified due to concerns identified by London
Fire Brigade (LFB) inspectors regarding the storage of combustible materials in corridors. Meetings are
being held with Homes for Haringey and LFB to mitigate and manage any risks.

GO 8bed

Page 45



BHARINGEY COUNCILE

SECTION 5 — PEOPLE STREAM BOARD

People Stream Board
(1) EQUAL PAY Project Description/Objectives

REVIEW To implement a new pay and conditions package that takes account of equal value considerations
and meets the 2004 National Local Government Services pay deal for single status harmonisation of
manual and officer conditions. To this end the pay and conditions package will deliver the following:
e A new pay and grading structure with simplified grades and progression criteria
¢ One job evaluation scheme to be used for all staff within a specified pay range
e Pay protection arrangements
o A set of premium rates to be applied to employees required to work non-standard hours

Original End Date: 31-03-07 Current End Date: Jan 2009 Project Budget: £105,000 Spend to date: £21,549
End date last month: 31-05-08 2007/08 Budget: £90,000 Forecast Spend: £90,000
(awaiting confirmation of
carry-over)

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

e The national pay agreement 2004 for Local Government Service workers ensures that Local
Pay Reviews must be completed and implemented by 31 March 2007. The national agreement
also specifies that management and trade unions should enter into negotiations, with a view to
reaching an agreement on new local pay structures and systems.

e A Pay and Conditions Proposal has been drafted to address the above. This outlines proposed
changes to the pay structure, the job evaluation process, allowance proposals and suggested
changes to other employee benefits.

Project Sponsor: e The above proposal has been shared with the Project Board and Trade Union Representatives.
Tim Dauncey e Following the initial meeting to discuss the proposal with Trade Union Representatives

negotiations are required to be extended beyond the original target date. This is due to the
Project Manager: contentious nature of some of the issues in the proposal and the increased length of time
Steve Davies needed for negotiations required to reach agreement on these issues.

e As the negotiations may take longer than anticipated there may be an impact on the
subsequent timescales but at this stage there is no anticipated affect on the project budget.
They will be monitored and possibly reviewed at a later date..

90| ebed

Page 46



(2) INVESTORSIN
PEOPLE

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

People Stream Board
Project Description/Objectives

. This project covers the activities to achieve success in the post recognition review for Investors in
People Standard by November 2007 and retain liP status.

Project Sponsor:
Philippa Morris

Project Manager:
Karen Rowing

Original End Date: Apr-07 Current End Date: Jan 08 Project Budget: £11,000 Spend to date: £1500
End date last month: Jan-08 2007/08 Budget: £9,500 Forecast Spend: £11,000
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

Progress

A report on the re-recognition process and activities involved has been written and will be discussed at
the May 07 People Stream Board. The report and activity plan will be used to prepare the organisation for
a re-recognition assessment, a tentative date of 22 Oct —2 Nov 07 has been discussed with the
assessor. OD&L consultants with Personnel managers continue to work with Business Units on their
People Plans, to make sure they are robust and specifically that adequate resources have been
identified. The Amber risk remains while the reshape rolls out and MIH or equivalent are set up, updates
from the directorates show that this situation is improving.

Page 47

/0 8bed



HHARINGEY COUNCILE

People Stream Board

(3) CORPORATE Project Description/Objectives
SFVRICEET \Z=anAl © 7o reduce work related accidents by 30% by 2010. Interim Targets will seek a reduction of
ACTION PLAN approximately 10% per year. (To be tested by Corporate Audit in 2007-2008)

e« To improve the Council’s Health and Safety Management Systems so that all Directorates integrate
service health safety and welfare issues into Business Planning and Performance Management by
March 2007

e Toincrease knowledge and awareness amongst managers and other staff about their health and safety
roles and responsibilities by March 2007. (To be tested by Corporate Audit in 2007-2008)

o To form an effective partnership with the Health and Safety Executive in demonstrating best practice in
health and safety performance by March 2007.

Original End Date: 31-03-07 Current End Date: 31-07-07 | Project Budget: £18,000 Spend to date: £18,000
End date last month: 31-03-07 Forecast Spend: £18,000
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

e Areport on rolling out:
(i) the new draft stress policy
(ii) A programme of partnerships stress risk assessment exercises for priority services
(iii)  Training workshops for service managers of priority services
will be submitted to CEMB during May. A meeting comprising the project sponsor, corporate health and
safety, Occupational Health and a representative from OD & L, to discuss specific Communication
planning issues will take place on 16" May.

QL abed

Project Sponsor:
Stuart Young e The communications plan agreed in April to address concerns about lack of response to the e-learning
health and safety courses has now been put into operation.

Project Manager:

Dave Cope e Corporate Health and Safety met with Construction Procurement and 3 of the Council’s Approved
Construction Design Consultants on 26" April to discuss next stages to ensure compliance with enhanced
legislation. No further seminars are planned but further discussion will take place with officers with
commissioning responsibilities to evaluate their competency and ensure they are aware of
supportchannels within Construction Procurement, Corporate Health and Safety and Approved external
partners

e A further meeting will take place to evaluate the needs of The Property and Contracts Service within
Children and Young People’s Service in relation to Building Schools for the Future.

Page 48




HHARINGEY COUNCILE

People Stream Board

(4) COMPETENCY Project Description/Objectives
FRAMEWORK The aim of this project is to implement the new competency framework in April 2007 by embedding it into the

IMPLEMENTATION fO”OWing processes: .
. Performance Appraisal
« Core Learning Programme
This includes developing the detailed behaviours that underpin our new framework.
The framework should be suitable for inclusion in recruitment and selection processes.
The delivery of the Core Learning Programme will not be managed within this project, but remains a key
dependency.

Original End Date: 30-04-07 Current End Date: 30-06-07 | Original Budget: £14,870 Spend to date: £18,325
End date last month: 31-05-07 Revised Budget: £24, 075 Forecast Spend: £21,405

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

TIMESCALE
. Rollout of the competency framework via the performance appraisal process is now complete and all
communication activities have taken place, as per the project change plan.
. Performance appraisal briefings & skills master classes have taken place over the last 6 weeks.
. All managers who did not take part in the pilot were required to attend a briefing session or receive
cascade training.
. 78% of managers (as identified by SAP) have taken part in the pilot, received a performance

Project Sponsor: appraisal briefing or had a local briefing by one of our cascade trainers — this has proven an excellent

Philippa Morris opportunity to reinforce the performance appraisal processes with managers across the organisation.
. Work is currently underway to ascertain whether the remaining 22% (101 managers) have received

Project Manager: local training.

Christel Kirk

The target date for completion of performance appraisals is 31/05/07. The project team have decided to
push back the project closure date to allow time to assess the lessons learnt until that date is passed.

601 8bed

Page 49



(3) COMPETENCY
FRAMEWORK

IMPLEMENTATION
(CONT’D)

BUDGET / RESOURCES / RISKS / ISSUES

No concerns to report in regards to budget, resources, risks or issues.

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

People Stream Board

Feedback from those who attended the briefing sessions were very positive, with at least 80%
agreeing or strongly agreeing on the following:
. |l understand the importance of Performance Appraisal to the organisation
« | found the content of today’s briefing useful and informative
. | am confident using the new Performance Appraisal form
. | found the format (length and style) just right

Feedback from those who have done their performance appraisals are similarly positive; comments
received include:

Page 50

0L obed



BHARINGEY COUNCILE

SECTION 6 — VALUE FOR MONEY STREAM BOARD

Value for Money Stream Board

(1) ASSETS STRATEGY PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
To ensure development and implementation of the corporate Asset Management Plan and the effective
provision and utilisation of assets to support the Council’s overall objectives.

Specific project objectives are to:-

e Introduce a single framework for the corporate management of property which will increase
the efficiency and effectiveness of building management.

e Rationalise the accommodation portfolio and provide office space which is suited to modern
ways of working.

¢ Review of Commercial and Community Building portfolios to align them with Council
priorities and value for money objectives

e Development of a property performance framework including performance measures to
support continuing improvement in the management and use of assets and achieving

maximum score for Asset-related items in the Council’s Use of Resources Assessment.

Original End Date: Dec-2008 Current End Date: Dec-2008 Original Budget: £2319k Spend to date: £2059k
End date last month: Dec-2008 Revised Budget: £2199% Forecast spend: £2062k

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT OF PROPERTY

Since go-live the Property Helpdesk has run smoothly and has been dealing with reported faults for an 60
additional buildings. The most recent performance review shows that all performance targets, set out in
the Service Level Agreements, are being exceeded.

[eosawi |

>
>
>

Budgets for repair and maintenance have now been transferred to a central repair and maintenance
budget which is managed by Corporate Property Services. Work continues on establishing a two year
improvement programme addressing backlog maintenance and building compliance issues.

Tim Dauncey Stage 1
Refurbishments

Project Manager:
Dinesh Kotecha Refurbishment of Alexandra House is continuing to timescale. Five floors (2, 3,4, 6 and 7 ) have now
been completed and re-occupied and work is underway on Level 8.

Options for refurbishment of 40 Cumberland Road are being drawn up.

Page 51

L1} obed



Value for Money Stream Board

(1)

ASSETS STRATEGY
CONT.

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Co-location of Homes for Haringey staff with Customer Services

The move of Homes for Haringey staff to North Tottenham Customer Services Centre is subject to
vacation of space in 639 High Road, currently being reviewed. However this will not prevent client
interviews taking place at the CSC in the meantime.

Vacation of the Town Halls and Civic Centre Options continue to be investigated for re-location of staff
and voluntary sector groups to complete the original accommodation plan and enable vacation in
accordance with development timescales.

Stage 2 Accommodation Strategy 2007-12

Work is continuing on developing a longer term strategy and accommodation plan which will look not only
at further rationalisation of the portfolio but also modern workplace needs (e.g. flexible and mobile
working), and the ways in which the Council’s accommodation can best contribute to achieving overall
Community Strategy objectives. A report is scheduled for CEMB in May which will outline planned
rationalisation and seek a steer on adopting the accommodation standards required to further improve
the efficient use of accommodation.

PORTFOLIO REVIEWS

Community Buildings Joint inspections of community buildings are planned over the coming months.
Reports on individual issues will be presented to the designated Member group for community buildings
as they arise.

Commercial A high level review is being undertaken, scheduled for report in July. Background work
continues on checking and inputting data to Manhattan database. A specification for the subsequent
detailed assessment of each property is also being drawn up.

Traffic Light Status
All projects are making progress. The amber status refers to:-

e Delays in vacating the Town Halls and Civic Centre (in relation to the original timetable) largely as
a result of increased demand for accommodation since the strategy was first agreed and the need
to identify alternative accommodation for voluntary sector groups. Options and solutions are
being investigated in conjunction with work on Phase 2 of the Accommodation Strategy.

Page 52

21| ebed



(1)

ASSETS STRATEGY
CONT.

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Value for Money Stream Board

Re-scheduling of refurbishment of 40 Cumberland Road to enable options within the budget
available to be considered.

Timescales are being reviewed and where appropriate will be re-set to better reflect the time since the
projects actually became live.

Page 53

€| | obed



BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Value for Money Stream Board

PROCUREMENT PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
PROGRAMME = To deliver Gershon recommended efficiencies in terms of cashable and non cashable savings.
» To achieve a target of £2m (£3m stretch target) savings over 2005/8.
= To ensure the Council’s Procurement Strategy is updated, published and embedded ensuring quality

of service and Value for Money.

Analysis of annual procurement spend (2004/5) on goods and services has identified key areas for efficiency
review. These are Bought in Legal Services, Temporary Accommodation, Training Consultants, Marketing

and Communications and Transport Services.

Original End Date: Apr-2007 Current End Date: Apr-2009 Project Budget: N/A. Savings target revised to £1.8m for 06/07. £0.8m forecast
End date last month: Apr-2009 to be achieved by end of current year. Approval has been given to re-phase
remaining £1m across 07/08 & 08/09.
A= o 2| o | - MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
coder 2| 2 [a8| 2 | 2
SPeF e g ¢ S| @ | ® |Project Status
The May PPB was presented a PID for the Procurement and Maintenance of Community Equipment. At the
AlalalalalalA moment this is a scoping document which outlines plans for an options appraisal including market testing. An
updated proposal will be bought back to PPB in August 07
The corporate savings accruing from the Hays Temp Resource Centre are on target.
Timescales and Savings
The RAG status of Savings has moved from Green to Amber due to the Transport project being subject to a
] review. This has meant that the award of contracts that should have taken place in April, will now not take
Project Sponsor: place until June 07 with start dates of September 07. This gives a 6 month deficit in savings and an
Gerald Aimeroth additional expense in the extension of the current contracts including an inflationary increase from April 07.
Project Manager: Resources, Issues and Risks
Michael Wood Although projects have been identified there is a lack of skills and resources within Departments to manage
procurement projects, which place a high level of reliance on CPU resources which are already
overstretched on major change programmes.

Page 54

1| ebed




Value for Money Stream Board

(2)

PROCUREMENT
PROGRAMME CONT.

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Transport Services

The Transport services project is being subject to a review. This has meant that the award of contracts that
should have taken place in April, will now not take place until June 07 with start dates of September 07giving
a 4 month (school term) deficit in savings and an additional expense in the extension of the current contracts
including and inflationary increase from April 07.

Benchmarking and review of the in-house service starts in May and a financial analyst is being engaged to
work on base lining the service. This review is due to be completed in July 07.

Learning & Development
Award and non award letters have been sent out. Debriefings have been undertaken and contracts drafted.
All actions are in line with the Milestone project plan.

Print & Design

Spend Analysis is on-going and liaison with B.U’s underway. Early estimations are of a 10-15% efficiency
saving. A meeting took place in March between the Head of Communications and the Chair of the PPB and
a PID will be produced for PPB in July

Energy.
This project will report into PPB 6 monthly to monitor savings. Next report due August 07

Property services.

A meeting took place in April between Property Services and the Director of Finance. Property services will
be submitting a paper on the strategy for property services and the additional benefits that will be generated
within the current budget. This paper will be put on the PPB agenda for July 07.

Category Management

Product Codes have been mapped to market segments and agreed by PPB. A further paper will be
submitted to PPB by the Head of Procurement in June 07 with proposals to be agreed for submission to
CEMB.

Page 55

Gl obed



Value for Money Stream Board

(2)

PROCUREMENT
PROGRAMME CONT

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Temporary Accommodation

A meeting has taken place between the Chair of the PPB and Head of Housing Supply and Temporary
Accommodation. It has been agreed that Temporary accommodation will be a project reporting to PPB. The
project will focus on nightly rented accommodation. A PID will be presented to July PPB Temporary
accommodation is already reporting into the Wellbeing stream board and PPB need to ensure that these
work streams are aligned to ensure maximum benefits from the project.

Security Guarding

The PID for security guarding was agreed by PPB on 13™ April. This is the pilot e-tender for the CMS
system and has a target completion date October 2007. Twenty Five PQQ’s have been recived and are
currently being evaluated. This project is progressing in line with its Key milestones.

Banking
The PID for Banking was agreed by PPB on 13" May 2007. The advert is due to go out in May 07

Process

A programme of work has been drafted with all projects feeding updates to CPU on a monthly basis for
inclusion in this report. This programme was agreed by April PPB. Requests were sent to Adults and
Children’s and Young People’s service in May 07 for representative to become members of the PPB. Angela
Langley has now been identified as the Representative for Adults and lan Bailey / Maria Hajipanayi are the
identified representatives from the Children’s and Young Peoples service from May 07.

Page 56

91| obed



HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Value for Money Stream Board

(3) BENEFITS & LOCAL PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES

TAXATION VFM REVIEW e To identify the reasons for Haringey’s BLT service appearing to be a high cost service in relation to
similar Local Authorities.

e To establish/verify current cost, performance and productivity levels and to make comparison to similar
Local Authorities and the wider market place. Make recommendations for cost reduction, and/or
improved performance/productivity, if applicable.

e To examine the correlation between cost and performance and to establish whether high cost is a factor
in achieving a high performing service.

e To establish current and predicted volumes of work and the optimum resource levels required to handle
them and to review the current staffing structure to reflect the current and predicted future need. (This
will be referenced to the Council’s desired CPA Use of Resources and VFM scores)

e To examine the performance of Customer Services and the CITS provision to the BLT service in terms of
cost and quality. Where appropriate make recommendations to improve the quality of service received.

e To identify other models for service provision (added by VFM stream board)

Original End Date: February 2007 Current End Date: May 2007 Project Budget: N/A — Project being undertaken within existing resources

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
e |t is anticipated that the Project Board will approve a final report at the end of May 2007. The review is on
schedule to meet this date.

e VFM Stream Board will receive a presentation of the key findings of the review at this meeting (17 May
2007)

Project Sponsor: e The key activities undertaken during the period have been to continue the process of revising the draft
Paul Ellicott report and to undertake further information gathering and analysis.

. e The key activities to be undertaken in the next period will be:
Project Manager:

Jaine Le Cornu e Make final analysis of remaining data available and document findings and recommendations.
e Prepare final draft report for presentation to Project Board scheduled for end of May.

L1} 8bed

Page 57



HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Value for Money Stream Board

(4) TRANSACTIONAL PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES
EFFICIENCY. Implement the Contract Management System (CMS)

e To act as a document depository for all contracts over £5K

e To provide a tool to send out tenders and deal with incoming bids, providing an on-line capability for the
evaluation of tenders and effective communication with suppliers and users.

Business Intelligence (Bl)

e To provide management information (MI) on the type, value, term, product category and financial value of
all contracts. To also capture information on health and safety, equalities, BME/SME, risk, performance
and contract monitoring.

SAP Upgrade ERP 2005

e Deliver an as-is upgrade from SAP R3 4.6¢ to My SAP ERP 2005

Transactional Efficiency

. ) o - U
CMS (Phase 1 Technical . ?5;2%2?5 back office processes across the council to increase efficiency and value for money for our %
Implementatlon) Original End Date: Current End Date: June 2007 Project Budget: £500k Spend to date: £6240 .
Forecast spend: £6240 N
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY o0

CMS

Phase 1 of the project is now almost complete. The only outstanding item is the project closure report which should be ready for
months board. CMS Phase 2 is now only reporting to the Stream Board on an exception basis.

Transactional Efficiency
This project has been placed on hold until further notice.

Page 58



Value for Money Stream Board

(4)

TRANSACTIONAL

EFFICIENCY CONT.

Transactional Efficiency

= = — 0 = © Y @ T
cSslohale3]| 5 |88 ¢ | 2
2656 g e ["s| 8 | @

N|N|N|N|N|N|N

BHARINGEY COUNCILE

Strategic Projects

Good progress is being made on the business case; business benefits are being identified to support the
procurement of the enterprise license. We are planning to arrive at a decision on the enterprise license

proposal towards the end of June 07.

The decision on the enterprise license will be based on a sound business case for the Employee Self
Service/Managers Self Service (ESS/MSS), Project Solutions (PS/IM), Asset Management (AM) and
Maintenance and Operations Management (PM). Work on the benefits towards moving customer
relationship management solution from Siebel to SAP is also in progress.

If the business case is viable and the procurement process successful, this will provide a site license to all
SAP applications (excluding Social Care) for 4, 500 PC based employees. If this is not successful;
implementation of SAP solutions will continue in a pay as we need approach. This will be a less cost
effective approach and would immediately eliminate the viability of the business case for solutions, such as

ESS/MSS.

Page 59

61| obed



OTOOTN

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

SECTION 7 — CUSTOMER FOCUS STREAM BOARD

(1)

CUSTOMER
FOCUS PROJECTS

Project Sponsor:
Justin Holliday

Project Manager:
Chris McLean

Customer Focus Stream Board
PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES
To help set and instigate a Customer Focus agenda for Haringey, ensuring that customers are at the heart of
service design and delivery through:

Getting Haringey to be better outward focussed

Enabling bottom-up involvement in developing and actioning change
Getting back to basics and getting them right

Working towards a strategic, coherent and cohesive approach

Current pilot projects are the WOW! Awards, ICS Staff awards Programme and the Customer Focus Network

Original End Date: 31 March 2007 Current End Date: 31 September ‘08 | Project Budget: Not applicable. There is no dedicated capital budget for
End date last month: 31 December ‘07 Customer Focus. All costs for pilot projects are being met from revenue

budgets.
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

WOW! Awards

420 nominations were made during the pilot period, which ended on 30" April 2007. The scheme is being
rolled out corporately from 1% May 2007 and will in future be co-ordinated by the Central Feedback team and
administered locally by complaints teams. Corporate Customer Focus will continue to provide help and
assistance to ensure a smooth transition and will fully handover the scheme by September 2007.

ICS Awards programme
All three nominated Assessors have been trained and work is beginning on scheduling mock and final
assessments.

Customer Focus Network

Preparation of 7™ edition of newsletter in hand.

The review of the Customer Charter is being undertaken by the Network’s first task group. A report on its
proposals will be considered by the Chief executive’s management Board on 8™ May.

Oc T obed

Page 60



Customer Focus Stream Board

(1)

CUSTOMER
FOCUS PROJECTS

HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Amber risks

No change.

e Engaging the organisation in a ‘soft’ corporate project such as this will always be difficult. The active
interest and support of the Customer Focus Stream Board has been sought and there have been
discussions at both CEMB and SMT to help address this.

Change Request

It is proposed to extend the end date of the Customer Focus Network till September 2008 in order to give it a
fair chance of gaining the critical mass needed to establish it on a permanent basis. The Asst Chief
Executive (PPP&C) is in agreement.

The Network has been slow to get off the ground but is now gaining momentum. lts first task group has just
completed the review of the council’s Customer Charter, providing great encouragement for setting up
further task groups to help tackle the customer service improvement agenda. The Network’s newsletter is
very well received (7th edition now in production) and is the main communication medium for spreading the
customer focus message across the council.

Membership of the Network is an amalgam of self-selected customer champions plus all practitioners and
coaches of the ICS qualification awards. As further tranches of qualification awards take place and the
membership increases, the Network and the newsletter will provide an increasingly important means of
sharing good practice.

Page 61

12| obed



HHARINGEY COUNCILE

Customer Focus Stream Board
(2) CUSTOMER PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES

SERVICES . o
IMPROVEMENT To improve Customer Services in the areas of:

e Real-time Management
PLAN e Our Staff, Our Strength
e Sharing Ownership of Problems and Solutions

Original End Date: Jan ‘08 Current End Date: Jan ‘08 Project Budget: Not applicable
End date last month: Jan ‘08

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

OTOOTN

Activity this month has continued to focus on performance in the Call Centre using statistical analysis to
determine resource patterns against demand.

Key performance indicators have now been agreed and the focus for 07/08 will be on calls answered against
calls presented, customer satisfaction levels and call answering within 30 seconds.

22| ebed

The Homes for Haringey dedicated team continues to perform well. Once the bid is awarded in mid-May the
focus of the weekly joint improvement team will shift to looking at steps needing to be taken to prepare for
Project Sponsor: the handover in September / October 07.

Tim Dauncey

Project Manager:
Paul Ellicott

Page 62



Page 123 Agenda Item 8

Agenda ltem

Cabinet On 19 June 2007

Report title: Towards Excellence- The Council’s End of Year Performance —
April 2006 to March 2007

Report of: The Chief Executive

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose

1.1 To review 2006/07 service performance against the Council's basket of key indicators
reported in a balanced scorecard format.

2. Introduction by the Leader of the Council

2006/7 was another year of achievement for Haringey, targets across services were met
with highlights being pupils attaining 5 GCSEs at grades A-C and an increase in waste that
is either composted or recycled. Overall, targets were achieved or close to being achieved
for 74% of indicators and performance has been maintained or improved from the previous
year for 70% of our indicators.

This result demonstrates that the Borough is continuing to move in the right direction.
In the next three years we need to consolidate performance in improving areas as well as
identify areas where we can drive up performance so we can continue to meet the

expectations and needs of residents.

| am confident that continued progress across the services will place us in a good position
to improve our CPA scoring during the course of this administration.

3. Recommendations

3.1 To consider performance information presented in this report.

Report authorised by: Dr. Ilta O Donovan - Chief Executive

1of 18



Page 124

Contact officers:
Margaret Gallagher - Performance Manager
Telephone 020 8489 2553
Eve Pelekanos- Head of Policy and Performance
Telephone 020 8489 2508

Head of Legal Service Comments
There are no legal implications

4.Executive Summary

4.1 This report presents the Council's performance for the period between April ‘06 and
March '07 against the Council's basket of key indicators. It is based on the routine
monthly performance reports received by the Executive throughout the year.

4.2 Performance is reviewed against 171 indicators. These are mainly indicators used by
the Audit Commission in the Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) and
those which reflect the Council’s priorities including some key local measures.

4.3 The 2006/07 outturn figures show that performance has been maintained or improved
from the previous year for 70% of our indicators. For 74% of indicators targets were
achieved or close to being achieved.

4.4 Significant improvements in performance have been achieved in the following areas:

Pupils attaining 5 or more GCSEs at Grades A*-C
Absence in both primary and secondary schools

Looked after children obtaining 1 GCSE at grade A-G
Percentage of waste recycled and composted
Abandoned vehicles removed within 24 hours

Road casualties (trend & 3 year average)

Minor planning applications processed in timescale

Parks cleanliness

Graffiti and fly tipping on relevant land

Waiting times for assessment and packages of care
Adults and Older people receiving statement of needs, reviews and direct payments
Keeping Haringey residents informed

Responding quickly when asked for help

Satisfaction with recycling facilities and civic amenity sites

4.5For the coming year we need to remain focused on:
e reducing absence particularly in primary schools

increasing the number of adoptions

older people helped to live at home

waiting times for assessment

reviews of adults and older people

carers’ services

time spent in bed and breakfast and hostels

20of 18




Page 125

e rent collection and arrears
e council tax collection

4.6 Some of these measures are key threshold measures and are used to judge the
standard of our performance in the CPA. Educational attainment including that of looked
after children remains a key priority for the Council. Many of these areas have been
identified in the Council Plan as areas for focus and we will continue to monitor progress
on these and against the council priorities in 2007/08.

5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

5.1 None

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:
Monthly balanced scorecards and finance and performance reports

Strategic Implications

This report monitors Haringey’s position in relation to a number of indicators that are used
to assess the Council in the Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA).
Performance against a large number of these measures will determine Haringey’s rating in
2007. The report also gives an indication of the level and quality of services delivered on
the ground, performance over time and how Haringey compares with top performing
authorities.

Financial Implications

There are no specific financial implications arising from this report but it is noted that value
for money continues to be a key strand in our monitoring of performance and quality. It has
been recognised that performance monitoring throughout 2006/07 included routine
monitoring of unit costs so that performance and costs reflecting activity could inform our
judgements on whether Haringey is delivering value for money services.

Legal Implications

There are no specific legal implications arising from this report, however the improvement
in the percentage of freedom of information requests responded to within timescale has
been noted along with the fact that the 2006/07 target was exceeded. Performance still
needs to improve further to ensure we meet the statutory time limit and a target of 75% has
been set for 2007/08.

Equalities Implications

Whist equalities is a central thread throughout out the council’s performance, this report
highlights some key equalities indicators, Section 12 comments on both the positive
results around equalities issues but also some areas where performance needs
improvement.

Consultation

The scorecard includes a number of resident and staff perception measures and shows
how well the Council is performing in this area. The results show the level of satisfaction
with the Council currently and should provide a baseline as well as informing action to
improve satisfaction levels.

30of 18




7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.

8.1

Page 126

Background

This report presents the council's performance for the period between April 06
and March '07 against the Council's basket of key indicators. It is based on the
routine monthly scorecard and performance reports received by the Executive
throughout the year.

A separate report has been prepared on the 2006/07 financial outturns that will
also be presented to the Executive on 19 June.

The reporting is in the form of a balanced scorecard which looks at performance
across four dimensions: service excellence, financial health, customer focus and
organisational development. The scorecard consists of corporate and service
performance measures.

For 2006/07 we monitored performance against key Best Value indicators, mainly
those used in the Council’'s Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA).
Indicators reflecting Haringey’s priorities including key local measures have also
been monitored throughout the year.

Performance data is shown in full in Appendix 1. Progress has been tracked on a
monthly and year to date position against the target throughout the year using a
traffic light annotation where:

green = target achieved / performance better than planned
amber = just below target
red = target not achieved / below expectation

In addition, trend arrows depict progress since the last financial year, so whilst an
indicator may receive a red traffic light for not achieving target, it would show an
upward trend arrow if performance had improved on the previous year’s outturn.
Between them, the lights and arrows indicate current progress and show the
annual position against the targets set for 2006/07.

Service Positions on Delivering Service Excellence

For the excellent services arm of the scorecard 57% of indicators are shown as
Green, 18% Amber and 25% Red, with 64 out of 88 showing an improvement or
maintained performance compared with 2005/06 outturns.

8.2 Children and Young People

8.2.1 51.7% of pupils attained 5 or more GCSE's at grades A*-C or equivalent in 2006

exceeding the 49% target and just short of the 53% stretch target. This is the
fifth year running where GCSE results have improved with progress in Haringey
since 2001 being twice the national average. The graph below illustrates the
year on year progress achieved.

40f 18



Page 127

65%

60%

55%

50%

45%

40%

35%

BV 38 Five or more GCSEs at grades A*- C London top quartile

(by exam year) 2005/06 (59.9%)

—
7 51.7%
/%.5°/o
43.7%
2004 2005 2006

8.2.2

8.2.3

8.2.4

8.2.5

8.2.6

8.2.7

8.2.8

In April ’06 to March '07 121 statements of special educational need were
issued. Performance on issuing statements of special educational needs is
reported in two 2 parts. On the first part, which measures the authority's
performance excluding exceptions, all statements were issued within the 18
week timescale. On the second part where all cases including those where
exceptions to the rule under the Code of Practice are counted e.g. those
awaiting medical reports, performance declined from 85% in 2005/06 to 80% in
2006/07, short of the 85% target.

14% of looked after children had 3 or more placements in the year (BV49) to
March an increase on the 11% reported in February and on the 2005/06
outturn and 2006/07 target of 13%. Performance is still provisional at this stage
on this CPA key threshold indicator and remains within the top performance
banding according to the Commission for Social Care Inspectorate.

Excellent performance has been sustained on reviews of children on the
register (BV162) with all reviews completed in timescale.

There have been 23 adoptions (6.8% of children looked after) in the year
2006/07 exceeding our target of 22. This represents an improvement on the 21
or 6.4% achieved in 2005/06.

Educational attainment of young people leaving care has increased from the
50% achieving at least 1 GCSE at grades A-G last year to 55% in 2006
achieving our 55% target on this key threshold indicator.

Excellent progress has been made with looked after young people in
employment, education or training (BV161). In 2006/07 68% of care leavers
(aged 16) were engaged in employment, education or training at the age of 19
the same level of achievement as in 2005/06 and just short of the 70% target.
This sustains our position in the top performance banding.

However there remain some areas in need of improvement:

e Although early indications from our absence monitoring in both primary and
secondary schools show a significant improvement in performance, this remains
an area for continued focus in the coming year.

e March 2007 16-18 year olds who were not in Education, Employment or Training
(NEETS) increased to 13.2% from 11.7% last month. This is above the local target

5o0f 18



Page 128

of 12.9%, the actual number of NEETs this month was 539 an increase of 126
over the month. Although there has been improvement in this area, Haringey’s
NEETs are considerably higher than those in comparator boroughs. This is being
addressed through our Local Area Agreement with a stretch target to reduce
NEETs to 10.4% by 2009/10.

e New statutory timescales for Children’s and NHS complaints were introduced from
1% September *06 which reduced the stage 1 timescale to 10 days (previously 14
days) with a possible extension to 20 days. In the period April ‘06 to March 07
63% were responded to in time, slightly below the 2005/06 outturn of 69% and
short of the 80% in 10 days or 90% in 20 days targets.

8.3 Adults Culture and Community Services

8.3.1 The performance appendix reports performance on some key indicators in
Adults, Culture and Community services. This shows that:

e Acceptable waiting time for Care Packages (BV196 key threshold indicator)

This indicator measures the percentage of new older clients for whom the time
from completion of assessment to provision of all services in the care package
is less than or equal to 4 weeks. Our 2006/07 position of 94% exceeds our
87% target and is an improvement on the 80% achieved in 2005/06. There has
been a significant improvement in performance on this indicator in 2006/07 and
consequently this has moved into the top performance banding.

e 136 adults and older people per 100,000 weighted average population receive
direct payments. Increasing the uptake of direct payments remained a social
services priority in 2006/07. Performance on this indicator improved again up
from 122 in 2005/06 to 136 per 100,000 in 2006/07. Performance remains
within the good PAF banding range despite the 2006/07 challenging target of
150 not being met. There are now 189 clients in receipt of a direct payment, 20
more than last year. The graph below shows the improvement in this area.

BV201 Adults receiving direct payments per - - London top
100,000 population q;;gi"s 05/06

160 ~ 13 Topband 05/06
140 - 100 150)

120

100

80 -

s0 - [N @ | 020000 |

40 A

20 A

o -

2004/05 2005/06 2006/07

e In 2006/07 we helped 93 older people per 1,000 populations to live at
home, a reduction on 2005/06 performance of 156 and short of our 2006/07
target of 121. Despite this we remain in the good PAF performance
banding. The number of older people admitted to residential or nursing care

60f 18



Page 129

(PAF C72) increased in 2006/07 and although we did not achieve our
target, performance remains within the top performance banding.

e 88% of equipment was delivered within 7 working days in the year
achieving the 88% target on this key threshold indicator.

BV 56 Equipment delivered in 7 days — London top quartile
2005/06 (91)

100 -
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

(o]

88.0

70

2004/05 2005/06 2006/07

e There were 2,151,311 visits to our libraries in 2006/07. This is the
equivalent of 9.6 visits per head of population compared with 9.85 in
2005/06 and exceeds the 2006/07 target.

e Good performance sustained with a parks cleanliness index of 85.15
against a target of 80 and above the 2005/06 average of 81.

8.3.2 There remain some areas where we need to improve our performance in
Adults Culture and Community services. These are:

e Adults and older clients receiving a review as a percentage of those
receiving a service.

Performance on this indicator increased to 71% in 2006/07 up on the 42%
achieved in 2005/06 against a target of 65%. This performance places us in
the top performance banding although it remains an area for continued focus
and improvement in 2007/08.

e Acceptable waiting time for Assessments (BV195 key threshold indicator)

This indicator is the average of new older clients receiving an assessment
where time from initial contact to first contact with the client is less than or
equal to 48 hours (part a) and the percentage where time from first contact to
completion of assessment is less than or equal to 4 weeks (part b). For 48%
clients, the time from first contact to assessment is less than 48 hours. For 94
% of older clients, the time from first contact to assessment is less than 4
weeks. The average of the two is 71% and just hit the 71% target.
Performance on part a is currently below the CPA threshold of 70% for
2006/07 but overall performance has improved from the 59% achieved in
2005/06.

70f 18



Page 130

e Carers services (Paf C62)

A provisional 9% of carers for adults and older people received a carer's break
or specific carer's service in 2006/07 up from 5% in 2005/06. This performance
places us within the good performance banding.

8.4 Urban Environment

8.4.1

8.4.2

8.4.3

8.4.4

8.4.5

8.4.6

8.4.7

Key performance in Environment is summarised below:

23.3% of household waste was recycled or composted in 2006/07, an
improvement from the 19.23% achieved in 2005/06 and exceeding our 22%
target.

2005/06 (27%)

30% -

25% 23.3%

19.7%
20% -

o,
159% - 14.3%

10% -

5% -

0% - ' ‘
2004/05 2005/06 2006/07

BV 82ai+bi Recycling & Composting Rate — London top quartile

The ENCAMs cleanliness survey provided disappointing results with an
increase to 40% in 2006/07 from 37% in 2005/06 of relevant land and
highways with a significant proportion of litter and detritus. The first phase
result for 2006/07 was poor at 41% and despite the introduction of in house
monitoring with slightly improved results for the second and third phases,
survey results particularly for detritus remained at unacceptably high levels.
The 2006/07 target of 25% was missed by a significant margin and as five of
our land use classes were 30% or above this means that performance will
move to the lower threshold for CPA purposes.

In 2006/07, over 2000 refuse collections were missed per 100,000 household
waste collections, an increase from the 130 in 2005/06. The increase was due
to the strike in August and adverse weather conditions (snow) in February.

535 minor planning applications were processed in 2006/07 with 88%
determined in 8 weeks in the year from April 2006 to March 07. This exceeded
the Government's target (65%) and our local target of 83%.

12 of the 16 (75%) major applications were determined in 13 weeks in
2006/07, well ahead of the Government's 60% and just one application short of
our local target of 82%. Performance remains in the 2005/06 top quartile for All
England.

Performance on planning application appeals that have been allowed against
the authority’s decision to refuse permission has improved in recent months

8 of 18



Page 131

with 51 out of 139 (36.7%) cases allowed. There needed to be 41 to hit the
30% target but although the target was not achieved performance remains
above the lower threshold of 37.5% for CPA.

8.4.8 The repair of streetlights improved and remained below the 3.5 day target for
the whole of 2006/07 with the average number of days taken to repair a
streetlight at 1.88 days. The performance contract which began in April ‘05 has
delivered what we set out to achieve and performance is slightly better than
2005/06 and remains in the top quatrtile.

8.4.9 117 people were killed or seriously injured on the roads in Haringey in 2006,
up from 94 in 2005.

BV 99a People killed or seriously Injured — 2007 CPA targets for
2007 (194/77)

150

130

110 -
94

-10 - 2004 2005 2006

CPA E12 - 3 year average no of people killed or — 2007 CPA
- - = thresholds for
seriously injured 2005-7 (134 /

167.3 96)
138.7

180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
o

2002-4 2003-5 2004-6

8.4.10 The latest survey results on the condition of our principal roads derived from a
SCANNER (Surface Condition Assessment for the National Network of Roads)
survey shows that 21% of our roads may require structural maintenance. This
is an increase in the 15% reported for 2005/06 but the SCANNER results have
been cause for concern over the last few years and there have previously been
revisions to parameters and rules for measuring/reporting results from
SCANNER. A number of local authorities are expressing some scepticism as
to the reliability of these results and consequently comparative data has not
been published. This is also the case for the non-principal classified results
where the percentage requiring structural maintenance increased from 12% to
18% in 2006/07.

Qof 18



Page 132

8.4.11 Performance issues in Housing are as follows:
Homelessness

8.4.121In the year to March '07, our preventative approach to homelessness as
measured by approaches from homeless households to the authority’s housing
advice service showed that for 380 households or 3.6 per 1,000 households,
advice or intervention resolved their situation falling slightly short of our 400
households or 4.3 target. 2.3% of our households have been accepted as
homeless who have previously been accepted as homeless in the last two
years, an increase on the 1.55% in 2005/06.

Length of stay in Bed and Breakfast and Hostel accommodation (key threshold
indicator)

8.4.13 The average length of stay in Bed and Breakfast accommodation, in the year
to March is currently being reported as 7.3 weeks against a target of 1 week.
We have been reporting zero weeks all year and this increase may impact
negatively on the CPA housing block score.

8.4.14 The average length of stay in hostels, in the year to March was 61.8 weeks
against a target of 35 weeks. The count for this indicator measures the entire
history of all stays in hostels where the family has been permanently re-housed
in the period. Work will continue in 2007/08 to look at our options for hostel
usage.

Rent Collection (BV 66a)

8.4.1596.53% of rent due was collected in 2006/07 short of the 97.5% target and a
decline on 2005/06 performance. The definition of the indicator return requires
the inclusion of arrears and the exclusion of water rates from the calculation
but if arrears were excluded 97.8% of rent due was collected.

8.4.16 The percentage of tenants with more than seven weeks rent arrears
decreased slightly to 14.57% in March although still remaining short of our
10% target for 2006/07. These cases will continue to be targeted to ensure
housing benefit take-up is maximised and that all appropriate arrears recovery
actions is being taken. Cases will continue to be closely monitored by
managers with new management information reports developed to help this
process.

Decent Homes (BV184 key threshold indicator) and SAP Rating

8.4.17 42.58% of local authority homes have been classified as non-decent, an
improvement on the 44.7% at this time last year. Assuming we achieve 2 stars
in the ALMO inspection, we stand to receive £231m which will make a
significant impact on our ability to meet the decent home standard.

8.4.18 The council’s energy efficiency has remained at an average 66 SAP rating for
local authority dwellings in 2006/07, short of our target of 69.

100f 18



Page 133

Repairs

8.4.19 The percentage of specified urgent repairs completed in Government time
limits was 97.12% in 2006/07 meeting the 97% target but a slight decline on
the 98% achieved in 2005/06. However the average time taken to complete
non-urgent repairs reduced from 17 days in 2005/06 to 11.8 days, beating our
14 day target for 2006/07.

8.4.20 In 2006/07 for 89.8% of responsive repair jobs, an appointment was made and
kept, falling short of our 99% target.

Voids

8.4.21 The average re-let time of void local authority properties was 36.8 days in
2006/07, missing our local target of 27 days and an increase on the 29 days
reported in 2005/06.

8.5 Corporate Resources

Council Tax and Business Rates

8.5.1 93.79% of council tax was collected in year to March '07 exceeding the target
of 93.75%.

8.5.2 98.5% of business rates due were collected in 2006/07 just short of the 99%
target. NNDR collection remained steady during the first half of the year with a
dip in the collection rate for the last 2 quarters. This performance still places us
amongst the best authorities in London. (BV10)

Benefits

8.5.3 2006/07 showed a slight improvement on the average speed of processing
new claims down to 39 days from 41 days in 2005/06 although the 36 day
target was not achieved. The average speed of processing change of
circumstances reduced from 37 days in 2005/06 to 18 days in 2006/07
exceeding our 20 day target. Performance for both these indicators was poor
at the start of the year but recovered well with the target being exceeded in the
second six months of the year.

2005/06 (30.7)

50
45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10

5

(o]

46.5

2004/05 2005/06 2006/07

BV78a Benefits: speed of processing London top quartile

110f 18



Page 134

8.5.4 The proportion of new benefits claims outstanding over 50 days reduced
throughout the year to 7% exceeding the 10% standard and our target of 12%.
However new claims decided on within 14 days of receipt of information fell
short of the 90% standard and our 91% target at 83% although performance
did improve over the year and March’s performance at 95% exceeded target.

8.5.5 An area for focus in the coming year where our performance did not meet the
standards or our own targets in 2006/07 is the timely submission of appeals to
the Appeals Service (4 weeks and 3 months).

8.6 Chief Executive's
Safer Communities

8.6.1 There were 207 domestic burglaries in March and 2709 in the year April ‘06 to
March 07 just inside our 2,711 target for 06/07. This represents a 5%
reduction with 142 fewer crimes of this type. Detections for this crime have
also increased placing us 6" in the Met for residential burglary sanctioned
detections with 721 in 06/07, 223 more than in 2005/06.

8.6.2 2006/07 was a good year for parenting interventions with 11.3% of all
interventions supported by a parenting intervention up from 8.4% in 2005/06
and exceeding our 10% target. In addition 100% of parents were satisfied with
the intervention again exceeding target.

9. Financial Health

9.1  For 2006/07 we introduced the routine monitoring of unit costs into our
scorecard so that performance and costs reflecting activity enabled us to make
judgements around our delivery of value for money services.

9.2 The financial health of the organisation is dealt with separately in the outturn
report being presented to the Executive also on 19" June. The scorecard does
however include some indicators around the corporate financial health of the
organisation and these show positive progress against targets set for 2006/07.
The scorecard shows that for financial health 26 of the 34 traffic lighted
measures achieved green or amber status, meaning for 76.5% of indicators
performance levels achieved target or were maintained at an acceptable level.
These include overall revenue and capital budget monitoring, projected fund
reserves and treasury management.

9.3 An area for continued focus in the coming year is debt recovery where
although performance improved over 2005/06, the £5.74m target was not
achieved. Although sundry debt reduction was £1.47m short against target, an
overall reduction of £1.6m aged debt (debt over 211 days) was achieved in
2006/07.

9.4 The Council’s 2006 Use of Resources score increased to 3 out of 4 on all five
strands of the assessment including value for money.

9.5 The service unit cost data presents a mixed picture. The data acquired through
our monitoring in 2006/07 will be used to build a historical picture and to set

12 0f 18



Page 135

appropriate targets for 2007/08. We plan to expand our unit cost monitoring
and build our comparative knowledge.

10. Customer Focus

10.1  The end of year balanced scorecard shows 67% of customer focus indicators
on or near target including some key environmental satisfaction measures
initially taken from the Better Haringey Survey but more recently included in the
Council’s Tracker survey. The results also take account of the Local
Government Best Value Performance indicator (BVPI) survey carried out every
3 years including 2006 for which we have comparative data. The scorecard
also incorporates some key findings from our annual resident’s survey on the
image of Haringey Council.

10.2 The annual resident’s survey found that 64% of residents felt we were doing a
good job and 52% said we are better than a year ago, up 8% on last year and
well above the London average. In addition 66% agree that the local council is
making the area a better place to live.

10.3 Some highlights from the survey were:

67% of residents felt informed (up 4% on 2005) and on par with the rest of
London

54% of residents think the council listens to the concerns of residents (up
5% on last year and 2% above London)

46% say the council responds quickly when asked for help (up 5% on last
year)

48% say we involve residents in decision making (up 4%) and now ahead of
London

10.4 Some areas where we need to sustain focus are ensuring residents can get
through to us and improving perception around being efficient and well run.

49% of residents expressed concern that Haringey was difficult to contact by
phone (8% above London).

Although up 4% on 2005 only 48% perceived Haringey as efficient and well
run (10% below London).

10.5 The environmental survey results showed some encouraging news with the
majority of key indicators showing an improving trend. The first wave of the
Tracker survey found that:

70% of residents were satisfied with the refuse collection service.
Perception is marginally better than that reported in the BVPI survey- 64%
satisfied with waste collection (BV90a), a slight improvement on the 2003
results but still in the bottom quartile.

61% of residents were satisfied with street cleaning a significant
improvement on figures reported in the annual resident’s survey and those

13 0f 18



Page 136

reported in 2006 BVPI survey (49% satisfied with cleanliness- BV89).
Although these results show a large improvement in satisfaction over time
(38% satisfied with cleanliness- BV89 in 2003 survey) they remain poor
when compared with those of other authorities and seem more in line with
the cleanliness inspection survey results (Capital Standards) which look at
litter and detritus on relevant land (BV199) the results for which were
referenced earlier in this report.

e 63% of residents expressed satisfaction with re-cycling, again marginally
better than the BVPI result of 57% satisfied with recycling facilities (BV90b)
but a huge increase (+18 percentage points) on the 2003 BVPI result of
39%. The roll out of new, improved and expanded recycling over recent
months has probably contributed to the improved perception in this area
and for CPA purposes this is one of the few satisfaction measures, when
adjusted for deprivation that is above the lower threshold.

o Satisfaction with local tips or Re-use and Re-cycling centres at 57% in the
Better Haringey survey and 67% in the BVPI survey (BV90c) were both
below the 70% target. Although a huge improvement on the 42% achieved
in the 2003 BVPI survey, this remains an area where more work is needed
to promote these centres and raise satisfaction levels.

Public Complaints

10.6 During year to March 77% of complaints at stage 1 (local resolution) were dealt
with within the tighter 10 day timescale (previously 15 days), just short of the
80% target. We received 1,901 complaints during the year of which 1,460 were
dealt with in the reduced timescale of 10 days. Although 2006/07 performance
represents a 3% reduction on 2005/06 performance, this is very good
performance when taking account of the 33% reduction in target timescale
from 15 to 10 days.

Stage 1 complaints on time —— Target 2005/06 (80%)
Threshold changed from 15 to 10 days wef 2006/07
90% - 80%
75% 77%

80%
70% -
60%
50% -
40% -
30%
20%
10%

0%

2004/05 2005/06 2006/07

10.7 For the more complex service investigation stage, 77% of complaints were
resolved within timescale in the year to March falling short of the 80% target
although an improvement on the 74% achieved in 2005/06. The end of year
position relates to 206 out of 269 service investigations carried out within 25
working days.

10.8 At stage 3, independent review, 92% of cases were handled within timescale
exceeding our 90% target. There was also a target timescale reduction for
14 0of 18



10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

11.

Page 137

stage 3 cases from 25 to 20 days and a 53% caseload increase. The 2006/07
performance relates to 48 out of 52 cases received in the year.

The number of complaints including premature cases received by the Local
Government Ombudsman increased to 186 in 2006/07. Our performance in
responding to Local Government Ombudsman enquiries at an average 18.4
days is just outside our 18 day target although the best of any London
Borough. In 2006/07 there were no cases of maladministration reported
against Haringey Council.

On telephone answering our council wide performance is that 77.4% of calls
received in the year were answered within 15 seconds, exceeding the target of
77%.

Call centre telephone answering performance achieved 32% against 70%
target, adversely effect by high call volumes at the beginning of the year, The
later months showed some improvement. 79.5% of calls were answered with
an average queuing time of over 1 and a half minutes.

The target of 70% was not met on personal caller waiting times at the
Customer Service centres with an end of year position of 48.1% seen within 15
minutes, a reduction on the 63% achieved in 2005/06. However there was
some improvement towards the end of the year ands we expect this trend to
continue.

Performance on responding to Freedom of Information requests improved in
the latter part of the year and exceeded our 70% target with 73% within the 20
day timescale for the year.

Organisational Development/ Capacity

The majority of measures in the Organisational Development arm of the
balanced scorecard are staff survey results including a number of Investor in
People indicators. As at the end of March the balanced scorecard shows 78%
of organisational development indicators on or near target.

The staff survey results enable us to periodically assess where we have made
progress and ensure a continued focus on maintaining high standards of
competence so that our staff have the capability and skills to deliver the
business of the council.

The February ’06 staff survey results show that 90% of staff understand
Haringey’s aims and objectives up from 82% in 2005 and 94% understand how
the work they do helps Haringey achieve these. These are real strengths and
the result of much effort to ensure that the Council’s vision and priorities were
communicated and formed a strong discussion thread between the business
plans, individual appraisals and workplans.

The percentage of permanent staff that have a written work plan or
performance appraisal that sets out priorities and tasks for the year decreased
slightly to 71% although this compares well against other organisations of a
similar size and complexity. Although our target of 83% was not achieved
overall this area was still considered strength in Haringey. Changes to the

150f 18



12.

12.1

Page 138

Performance Appraisal framework and better use of the manager’s desktop on
SAP have enabled better monitoring and subsequently targeting of areas of
under-performance.

Four new measures were included in the staff survey key to the new Investors
in People (lIP) standard and designed to provide baselines against which the
organisation can measure how well it is living our agreed way of working i.e.
our values. The results show strengths in involving staff in decision making
affecting their work (64%), belief that our staff work with integrity and deliver on
what we promise (59%) and staff being proud of the work they do (73%). An
area identified for development where small improvements were identified as
being needed is the belief that people in different parts of the Council work well
together.

Overall the Investors in People analysis across 10 main indicators and
evidence requirements showed that we achieved green status (a strength) in 8
of the 10 measures and Amber status (room for some improvement) for the
remaining 2. The results of the survey were positive but there remain some
areas where further work is required. The IIP re-recognition process is
scheduled to begin around mid October ‘07 when we will need to demonstrate
our continued good progress in this area.

Sickness

The average number of working days lost to sickness per full time equivalent
employee in 2006/07 reduced to 9.14 days per annum from 10.37 days in
2005/06 although short of our 8.8 day target.

Equalities

The final page of the scorecard details our performance on some key equalities
indicators. Some indicators in relation to our staff profile are also included in
the scorecard. These show some positive progress against target in the
following areas:

e 45% of our staff are from minority ethnic communities exceeding out target
of 39.3%

e 54.2% of the top 5% of earners are women exceeding our 50% target set
for 2006/07

e Employees retiring early or on the grounds of ill health were both well within
target

And some areas where performance did not reach the target:

e 18.2% of earners from ethnic minorities are in the top 5% of earners falling
short of the 26% target set for 2006/07. This represents 35 out of 193 full
time equivalent staff.

e The percentage of top earners that meet the Disability Discrimination Act
disability definition has reduced to 2.18% against a 4.9% target although
small numbers are involved. This represents 4 members of staff short of

16 of 18



12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Page 139

the target as of the 138 full time equivalent staff, 3 declared a disability
under this definition against a target of 7.

The percentage of pupils from black and minority ethnic groups that achieved 5
GCSE'’s at grades A*-C increased to 48% in 2006 from 45% in 2005 moving
closer to the average attainment for all pupils (52%).

Indicators assessing whether the need for social services of people from
minority ethnic groups are as great as that for the general population show no
disparity with older service users receiving an assessment. The same applies
to older service users receiving services following an assessment.

The number of social services clients with physical disabilities in receipt of a
direct payment decreased slightly to 97 per 100,000 population as at March '07
exceeding target. There are only 3 mental health clients per 100,000
population in receipt of a direct payment but despite efforts of the service to
increase this number the target of 4 was not achieved.

80% of our pedestrian crossings have facilities for disabled people down from
the 100% reported in 2005/06. This was the result of an audit of our crossings
we carried out following revised guidance issued stipulating that new and
refurbished crossings need both audible and tactile signals.

The indicator measuring BME applicants on the Housing Register and
comparing this with lets to BME applicants at -3.72% does not show a
statistical variation that would lead us to consider that BME applicants were not
receiving a proportional share of lets. For 2007/08 this indicator has been
expanded to examine individual ethnicities and communities and to look at
possible factors affecting discrepancies such as bed size and area required.
This will enable us to gain a better understanding of housing need.

56% of housing tenants from black and minority ethnic communities (BME)
were satisfied overall with the services provided by their landlord compared
with 63% from non-BME groups. However although more white tenants were
satisfied with their landlord than BME tenants, the difference was not
statistically significant..

56% of BME tenants were satisfied with opportunities for participation in
management and decision making compared with 55% from non-BME groups,
again not a significant difference despite being a decline on the levels achieved
in the previous year.

Further detail from the tenant’s survey on areas of satisfaction and
dissatisfaction by neighbourhood, household type and length of tenure is
available on request.

30% of council buildings open to the public have been assessed as having all

public areas accessible to disable people exceeding our 28% target for
2006/07.

17 of 18



13.

13.1

14.

14.1

15.

Page 140

Performance Summary

In summary the balanced scorecard shows that for service delivery 75% of
indicators are on target or close to the end of year target as at the end of
March ‘07. For 24 of the 36 (67%) customer focus measures, performance
targets were met or close to being met. For financial health 26 of the 34 traffic
lighted measures achieved green or amber status, meaning for 76.5% of
indicators performance levels achieved target or were maintained at an
acceptable level. Our organisational development /capacity indicators including
the staff survey results show that for 14 of the 18 (78%) measures,
performance was met or was very close to expectation. Overall for 74% of
indicators targets were achieved or were close to achieving target. In addition
70% of indicators have maintained or improved performance since the end of
last year.

Recommendations
To consider and note performance information in this report
Use of Appendices

Appendix i. Balanced Scorecard/ End of year traffic light performance
summary

18 of 18



March 2007

Page 141

Appendix 1

Haringey
Corporate Scorecard

Red
8

Amber 15

Customer Focus

Green 9

Financial Health

Excellent Services

Amber Gr;en Green Ambéer Red
6 0 47 15 21

Green 12

Organisational
Development

Amber 2

Red 4




1002/90/80 gz 10 z abed /0 Jew / ¢A pledaloos ajelodio)
%01 _ %€8 %08 %€E %08 %VS %S. %0°GL | %SC9 | %9€C9 | %EE | %G9 _ %0°'GC _ %89
%89 g%
uonepljeA 0} 108lgns abueyd Aew - jeuoisirold ale sainbiy Jeak Jo pus pue yolep 23
yorad Ul 6 pauUIN] OYM Si8ABa| 8180 9SOy} 0] AJUO S8jejal YoIym 10)ealpul sAleINwNg e Si Siy| "Sjuslid 0/-09 Uo paseq %G9 jebie 1ojeaipul vSd1 v ST
+9%09 61 Jo abe ay} je JusawAojdws 1o Buiuiesy ‘uoneonpa ui pabebua asom oym ‘(9] pabe) 2
pueg do| Jeal yjz| 219y} ul judy | uo 1ayje payoo| asam oym ajdoad BunoA asoyy jo 9, ay] :Si19Aed| aied 1o} Buluies) pue uopeosnpa ‘yJuswhojdwg 191 Nd
%6'CL | %zel | %L1 | %woel | %2zl | weel | %6€l | %6SL | %291 | %LGL | %691 | %901 | %eoL | %8l w m
%L 6EG SI Yluow SIy} S}98N JO Jaguinu [enjoe ay | m w
10612 ( Wy -pH/1euoneusssaiboldpin rob-jusuwidojorsp-a|qeuleiSns Mmmy/:dpy - p Jo0jeaipu jeuoneN juswdojaasg ajqeurejsns) w =
JeuonenN (% s133N paisnipy) Buiuiesy 1o JuswAojdwa ‘uoieanpa ui Jou spjo Jeak gL-9} jo uoiuodoid vvas 2
%EL | %vl | %Ll [ %0001 | %05 1L | %05 LL | %02 1L | %801 | %Lzl | %9LL | %9l | %LbL [ %S0l | %el
%01 uonepijeA JeaA jo pus 0} 108lgns abueyd Aew - jeuoisinoid aie sainbiy Jeak Jo pus yoiep ¢ M
90/6002 Ploysaiy ] A8y ¥dO A m W
%9.>0 1eak ay} Burinp sjusawase|d aiow 10 334y} Y}m o2
pueg doj ieaA Aue ul youep }S|LE UO Ja)je payoo] uaipjiys Jo 9, ay} o} adsuaiajal Aq Ajioyine ayy Aq Jaye payoo| uaipjiys jo sjuawaoeld jo Ajjigels 6v A8 -
| %08 | %S. | %0062 | %9 | %08 | %88 | %269 | %SGL8 | %000l | %626 | %8LL | %L¥6 | %S8
1eak ayy o m
Ul LZ| JO 1IN0 /@ pUB YoJel\ Ul 8WI} UO S8SBO G| JO 1IN0 Z| PAAj0Sal usaag mou aAey yoiym sabepoys Jels Ag pajosye aouewlopad Jeak Jo pug m w
S @
‘391)oe.1d JO 9p0H NIS 9y} Japun . 3|n1 3y} o) suoydasxa,, Aq pajoaye 3 =
90/5002 asoy} Buipnjoul syaam g uiyym pasedaud pue ueak |eioueuly e ui Ajioyine ayj Aq panssi pasu |euoleonpa |eioads Jo sjuswaje)s Jo %, v Ad
%66 | %001 | %00L | %0000t | %00L | %00L | %00L | %0°00L | %0°00L | %0°00L | %0°00L [ %0°00L | %00L | %00l
%001 %0001 Jeak ay) ul /6 ‘YdJe|\ ul saseo z| 3 m._
8/leno m L
doj ‘391)oe.1d JO 9p0H NIS 9y} Japun ,3|n1 3y} o) suoydasxa,, Aq pajoaye ech Ag o m
90/5002 asoy} Buipnjoxa syaam g| uiyym paiedaid pue seak jeioueuly e ul Ajuoyine ayj Aq panssi pasau [euoijeanpa |e1oads Jo sjuawalels Jo 9,
S10}e21pul A|YIUO\ 99IAIaS S,9]doad BUNOA % Uaipliyd
uwm\hw.w_. mmM_.wM._m ww_w_“mm_”_ 1eN 94 uer 2@ AON 10 dog Bny Inp unp ey ady 90/50 1oy MW_WM
1o64e} uo souUBWIONDd 1061e} 0} 8S0J0 9oUBWIONAH 106.e) Buissiw wocmctotm&E
JeaA 1se| uey) asSIoOp) 9 1eah ise| uey) Jeyeg JeaAh 1se| se aweg Aoy

L00C Yya1eN

£0/900Z - M31A9Y 99uewIopad AJypuol




£00¢2/90/80

gz Jo ¢ abed /0 Jew /€A pJeoaloos ajelodio)

€92'C vyg'e | zose | 1e9'e | zes'’e | vos'e | esv'e | €ov'e | zi0's | 6L’y | 908'c | Lve'e | 3 T
Z3
100 |=3
= Q
(Ae|d) pityo Jad @21A48s Jo 309 wn 2
é [ euoN QUON SUON SUON SUON QUON SUON %0 %0 | OUON | euoN | suoN | %8
10} %06 o
w>mvomm %0 "Jaquialdeg alojaq yjog ‘|ejo) Ul ‘sased g AJuo alom alay | M m,
C
104 %0v sAep gz Ul %0 sem 90 Jaquisidas o} dn jobie | @ w
ajeasawi} Aep gz ul 0} papuodsai g abelg - sjuiejdwod joe s,ualpjiyo [e007] -
shep 0z pay %05 | %29 | %0z | %08 | %0 | %€8 | %SL | %98« | %0« | %9 | %29« | %L9x | %69
10} %06 "g|eosaWi} Aep O papusIxa 8yl Japun YlIM }|eap 1M SOSeO ON -n m
skep 01 "BWI} UO 81dM (%L9) 0 ‘SojoeSall] Mau 8y} Japun [je) Yoiym Jo JSow m o
o 10 %08 ‘Joquia}das JS| 8ouls jJuss salidal £ ay} JO “dWi) Uo Juas sasuodsad (%/9) 81 N0 ZL Yium ‘sAep L Ul %08 sem 90 Joquisydas o} dn jobie], Z w
AN ajeasawi Aep g} ul 0} papuodsai | abelg - sjuiejdwod joe s,ualpjiyo [e007] -
1 %96 | %6 | %96 | %€6 | %8 |%0v88| %E€66 | %0¥6 | %r68 | %S6 | %026 | %068 | %0/8 | %6
> %56 8 X
[4)] SyjuoWw ¢ 1se| I8N0 paulelsns aouewlopad Jus|j9ox3 m o}
all yjuow Jepuajed ayj o3
UIY}IM PaJISIA 3JoM oym (Yjuow ayj} Jo yoam Jse| ay} ul pasajsibal pue Buissiw asoy} Buipnjoxa) Jaysibal ayj uo uaipjiya |je o % :0S ISS 091 -
%8’ %€°0 %<0 %S’ %C’L %€°0 %90 %60
%/ suondope | uondope | uondope |suondope| suondope %0 uondope [ 9,00 |suondope [ 9,00 | suondope | 9,00 %9 o
9 3 I S 14 3 4 € 8
%1 )
€z panalyoe siaplo diyspienb [eioads/suondope gz jo 10bie] 2
[2}
(0]
pjoysaiy | Ae) vdD €20 2
%EZ>8 "ajep Jey} je 210w J0 Syjuow g 0} Ja)je POY0Oo| Uaaq pey oym Yyaiep LE Je Jajje payoo| col AG m
pueg doj uaJp[Iyo Jo Jaquinu 3y} Jo 9%, e se Jeak ay} Burinp pajdope uaip|iys Jaje Payoo| Jo Jaquinu ay] :Ja)je payoo| ualpjiyd jo suondopy
%00} | %001 | %00L [ %00L | %00L | %00L | %00L | %0°00L |%000L | %00 | %0°00L | %0°00L [ %0001 | %66
%001 JeaA ayj 1noybnouy} paje|dwod mainal uoljoalod plIyd JO %00 YIM paAalyoe aouewlouad Jus||eox] 3 w_._A._
2o
ploysaiyL Aoy ¥do| 02O 3@
7004 pamainal © 2
pueg doj a1am Jey} Jeak ayj BuLInp pamalaal usaq aABY PINOYS YoIYym sased uoijoajoid pjiyo Jo 9 ayl :Sased uoijoajoid pjiyo Jo SMIIADY ¢9lL Nd
10/90 ssalboid | ssaiboig . 9AI1}00
JoBue) QLA Alpuow Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




1002/90/80 8z 10 1 abed /0 Jew J¢A piedaloos ajelodio)
%0€ | %ET %0'. %S0 | %S
%Gz %G €€ anoge 99s - Jou sem uonedianied 1o) 1abie) ay) ‘panaiyoe sem 1abiey siyy ybnoyyy 3 m_
a[ienp m @
doj 353 83
90/5002 “}aom yinoA ui pajedioiped oym spjo Jeak gL-C| ||e 4O % Se awoaino pajipalidoe ue Buiuieb gL-g| pabe ajdoad Bunox qicc g
%09 [ _ [ %1, | [ [ %961 ] [ [ %96 | [ [ %51
%2Z'Sh oLl @ m
%8G $,90/G00¢ UO yuswanoidwi Ue Ing ‘%G| 10 G98Z 40 19b.e) 8y} o %9/ - pajediansed sbuel obe 1ebiey sy ul sidoad 0L ‘6L 40 (G812) %t LL AlUO g a
ajienod S
dog js3 @2
. eLzz A9
90/5002 ¥4om yjnoA uj pajedionied oym spjo Jeak gL-g|L JO 9% Se awoajno papdosal e Buiuieb gL-g| pabe ajdoad Buno)
%S | | %0€es _ _ _ _ _ | %€£99 m
3
< 129 =
< 905002 uwinjo9 98 Ul umoys (pajepiieaun) (900z 990 — 1daS) wua | uwniny Joj Elep |euoISIACId =
YT Jeof oe o
@ ojienb "/0/90 Jea/ jooyas Joj aie umoys sjabie) sy “UWNjod 90/S0O dY] Ul UMOYS ale 90/G00Z JedA jooyos 1oj sainbiy jeul m
P dog fuoyine uoieonpa |esoj ayj Aq paurejuiew sjooyss Aiewnid ul @ouasqe o) anp passiw sAep ey jo %| 9y Ag o
%28 | | %oz2 _ _ _ _ _ | %ves
167/ o m
90/5002 uwinjo9 98 Ul umoys (palepiieaun) (900z 990 — 1daS) wua | uwniny Joj Ejep |eUOISIACId m m
Jeaf oe 33
ajienb "J0/90 Jea/ Jooyas Joj aie umoys sjabie) sy “UuWNjod 90/S0O dY] Ul UMOYS ale 90/G00Z Jeah jooyos 1oj sainbiy jeul ® 3
doj Ayioyine uoneonpa [eoo] ay} Aq paulejulew sjooydss A1epuodas ul aduasqe 0} anp passiw sAep jjey Jo %| oy Ag
S10}B2Ipul 1oy} 99IAIaS S,9]doag BUNOA g UaJp|Iyd
8063 | 9/83 1883 1883 | 2883 | .83 €83 | v683 | 0263 | S063 | 6683 | €883 | 1€63 T
Z3
100 |33
PIIYD Jaye pa)ooj Jad a9IAIas JO }S0) nn L
9097} v0/'GL | gez'sl | 962’ | 96z'SL | #9L'GL | 09v'9lL | 829'9L | L1S'9L | 829'9L | 1899l | 2899l | 3 T
Z3
100 |33
(saeak Aj1ea) pjiys 1ad 991A13S JO 3S0) nun L
20/90 ssaibold | ssaiboig . aA1}09
10618 alA Alyauow il qed uer 2ag AON 10 deg Bny Inp unr Kew 1dy 90/S0 I Py




1002/90/80 gz Jo G abey /0 Jew /€A pJeoaloos ajelodio)
%¢8 §8seO OU [ %001 %001 %001 %SG/, | S8Sed Ou |s8sedou| %000 | %00l %0G |s8seoou| 9%0S | %S0°98
o m
m\wwme %G/ 1ob.1e) AabueH jo poys uoneoidde suo pue jabie) Juswulanob Buieaq ‘Jeak ul swiy Uo Buop 9| JO INO Z| "YdJe\ Ul SBSED ON m w
. O —
doj jobue) oy} ssiw Aue uasym sbueyo abejusaiad ybiy e suesw sased Jolew Jo Joquinu Moj 8y "pjoysail] Aey vVdD 8 m
90/500¢ 9 (%09 38618 3,A00) S}B8M € UIYlIM paulw.d}ep suopedljdde Bujuueld Jofew jo %| e60L Ad
sio03esipul A|YJuo\ JuswuodiAug
()
vl (%12) L1 L
- T4 90-£00¢ pouad ul uaip|iyd Gz 3 m._
m%ommmm 90, Jewiwuns Aq uaipjiyn | :10biej vSdi m o]
R Z00 83
9 0} .,V apeub je 3899 G }sed| je paulejqo oym SYuow +g| 10} Jo)e payoo| ualpjiyd jo Jaquinu ayj| 9 uoiossg
%SS | %ss | _ _ | %0S
ub %y %GS 8 X
< 90/50 vdo vsdll v |2 ¢
"1 b 'DAND Jo ‘D -,y sepeibie3soe| . o |8 3
mv | }SE3| Je Y}M JaA0 10 9| pabe aied Buiaes| ajdoad BunoA jo 9, ayj 0} aouaiajal Aq Ja)ye payoo| uaip|iyd jo suoiesiyijenb jeuoneosnpy
%6V | _ _ | %218 | | %58y
Al o%or @ m
(@]
90/50 uwiNjod aunp ayj Ui UMoys s}nsal 900z |euld m W
5 Jusjeainba o 3
JoRiEL 10 9 -,y sapelib je sgg9o aiow 1o aAl Buiaaiyoe Ajuoyine uoljeonpa jeaoj ayj Aq paulejuiew sjooyss uj sjidnd pjo Jeak G| jo ¢, 8e Nd
| | %y
0 (7] v_.M_
m\mkomﬂmu % e BZZZ 10} JUBWIWOD 983 m 3
. O =
doj 1s3 83
90/5002 indui ajenpeib)sod - diysiapea] aieop|iy9 @ sieak Ajjes yo Ajend| qzzz Ag
%08 | _ _ _ _ _ _ | %Sy
%pe ‘umop Buisojo sbumes awos pue sbumas (o918 sdnoibAed o m
9%0p 0T ° ‘salasinu paumo Ajojennd ai - yuspuadapul pue Atejunjon ‘aieaud) |Ad Ul siebeuew jo sabueyd 0} Buimo (/900 Ul doip e sem a1ay ] m m
(o] =
ajiuend Jeaf e sewiy £ papodal 90/S00Z Wolj MaN S5
: 3
doj 13 9 9AO(Qe 10 { |[9A3] JO uonealyijenb e Yy3m vy ay3 ezzZ Ad * =
90/5002 Aq (papuny Jed 10) papuny sbuilas uoijeanpa Ajuea pajipaldde Jo siaped| Jo Y, siaped| - diysiapea] aieopjiyo @ sieak Alues jo Ajjenp
20/90 ssaiboid | ssaiboig . aA1}09
JoBue) QLA Auuon Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




ana 14646

)

1002/90/80 8z Jo 9 abed /0 Jew /€A pJeoaloos ajelodio)
%006 | %0001 | %E¥6 | %v'26 | %¥'66 |%000L | %E66 | %966 |%000L| %966 | %626 | %000l [ %Zv6 | %096
. n M
mw%mww %SG"86 ‘uibiew poob e Aq jow sem jabie} |enuue ay) pue poob Ajjeuondaoxa sem yuow yoes asuewlopad ay | m w
doj egiz |83
90/5002 uo13EOYIIOU JO SIY HZ UIYIIM pajeblysanul S8|o1yaA pauopueqe jo spodal Jo 9, X!
002 | ecvr | 216L | 098 | oy | osseL | s68L | vSGL | o0y | 128y | €r€ | €e | S.6 | 9612
n M
vi o 28l 1964e) uo Buleq os|e syuow Z| 8y} JO || Yim ‘1aw sem }abiey seak ||ny oyl m w
ajipen 3 =
doy @3 s! (1eyddns AyoLzosys) JojesadQ yiomjaN JoLSId iNQO 3 m
90/5002 (ONGQ) 103e13dQ M10M}ON }o1ISIQ 4NO Y}m ase Aay) asuo ‘s)inej pajejas Alddns samod Bunybi| y9a.)s atedas o) sAep abeisaay| qgLz Ag
05°€ 60z | sez | e6eL | zez | est | est | 68 | ovr | 962 | 6L | 8oL | soz | 261
e eg'L "90/S00Z Ul UBY} }Nsal [eul Ja)jaq Yum paysiuy pue yuow yoes jabie) paiinbal 3 m_
w ajuend 3] PaABIYOE SABY OM - Jjuow Yoea Ul JUd||9oxa sem /0-900¢ J0) aouewlopad ay] ‘pajoadxa se jow sem jabie) pus Jeah ay| m ol
- doy esiz |83
D 90/5002 (mojaq a9s - A|ddns samod 03 Bunjejaa synej 3dasxa) syney Buiybi| j3oaa3s Jiedal o) sAep abelany Ng
%0€ pay I %001 | %0v | wese | %0e | %el | %Ly | %00€ | %299 | %95 | %68 | %riv | w8er | %ee
0 %798 "9seO yoes u| pappe |eadde pasnjas auo - Jodad ydle|y Joj pasinal 3 m._
QNMMO ° sainbly Jaquiada pue JaquianopN ‘Ainr -1ebiey syl 11y 01 (£° L) L @9 0} papaap “Jeak ayj ul pamojje sjeadde g€ 1O N0 |G "YoIB\ Ul 8SED duQ m Q
! ® ®
doj o 2
90/5002 9 ‘asnjal 0} uois|o9p s,Ajuoyine ay) ysuiebe pamojje sjeadde uonesijdde Buiuueld ¢, 0z A9
%26 %6 | %s8 | %rvi6 | %86 | %6 | %88 | %sve | %96L | %98 | %rze | %906 | %se | %9i6 N
) 2}
m\mmmo %16 Joble} 8y} Jo Joys | - Jeak Ul /7| JO INO G| pue ydlep Ul LE| JO JNO S} UO S8SeD 17| m w
doj pioyseuy L A8y ¥dO 3
90/5002 (%08 3061} 3,A09) s)d2am g ul paulwia)ap suonesljdde 1ayjo Jo %| 2601 AL
%ES %.8 %68 | %0528 | %€6 %EB %¥8 | %628 | %008 | %8 | %L€6 | %8€6 | %568 | %S L8
m
oEND % 88 JeaA ul GEG JO 1IN0 Z/ pue Yole Ul /{ JO INO Wi} UO S8sed | m W
doy pioysaiyl Aoy vdo| asoL |3 S
90/5002 (%S9 1964e)} 3,A09) S)}9aM g ul paulwiajap suoljesijdde Jouiw jo 9% Nd
20/90 ssaibold | ssaiboig . aA1}09
JoBue) QLA Alpuow Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




1002/90/80 gz 10  abed /0 Jew J¢A piedaloos ajelodio)
.wwww (c9) 658 [(12) 518 | (G2) 888 | (69) L06 [(€5) 029 | (92) 992 | (12) 9v8 |(v2) 6€8 [ (£9) 6¥8 | (S¥) L.2G | (0S) 8¥9 | (¥S) L29| 2iL X
89/ Jequeoaq | JequenoN | Jeqopo | sequeides | 3snBny Ainp aunp Aepy Jdy Je|N ga4 uepr G002 %
"JUSWIBABIYOE JUB||90Xa Ue sI siy] "ulebe 1o6.ie) Alleak Jno 1ow am ‘sjulelisuod }abpnq pue W
106.e) Buibuajieyo Aien e aydsa(q "pasijeul) ale sainbiy ay| i1 AQ pajeis-al usaq aAey JoquBAON 0} Alenuer woly sainbiy ayl (0L0L) ebelene 266 m
9-¥66L Wolj SI molie pual] ‘Abojes)S s,uopuo jo oAeyy wouy s jebie] 4l Wolj 8jqejieAe jsajel ay} ale (Sjexoe.q ul sjenjoe) aioay sainbi4 =3
(renjoe) juajeainba jenuue pajsnipe Ajjeuoseag "painful Ajpybis ajdoad - saijjenses jo JaquinN Ng &
wwwmr (2)g6 | (925 [(h)oer | (@e6s | (2)68 |(91) 1oL [(€1)sSh |(wL)6SL| (B) ¥iL [(ZL)eel (L) evl | (9oL | v6 X
/Ll Jequeosq | JequenoN | JoqopQ | sequeides | 3snbBny Ainp unp Aepy Jdy Je|N ga4 uepr G002 W
‘uieBe 1061e) W
Aieak 1no Jaw )\ "JUSWSASIYDE JUS[|99X3 S| SIY} ‘Sjulesisuod 1abpnq pue jabiey Buibus|ieys A1aa ayy usalD pLL = (213 VdD) abeissre 9002 e66 m
-00Z "pasieul) aie sainbiy oy "(L9}) abeisne g-y66 L WOIY SI MOoLIR pusl] “Ti| WOIl 8|qejleAe JSeje| ay) aJe (Sjexyoelq ui sjenjoe) alsy sainbiH >
‘judjeAinba jenuue pajsnipe Ajjeuoseag (]sSY) painful Ajsnouas 1o paj|y ajdoad - saijjensed jo JaquinN NG &
< (62 (92 (Le (9z (Le (Le (0¢ :[e (Le (Le (ve (ge (82
T gG¢ [enjoe) [enjoe) |enjoe) jenjoe) | jenyoe) | |enjoe) Eomvm@m :lenjoe) | :jenjoe) | :jenjoe) | :jenjoe) | :jenjoe) | 91°6G< m
(<)) LYE 145 19¢ S0¢€ LLE 19¢€ €9¢ 09¢ Ly 907 e 2
& y "210)s9Y Y)IM uoeioosse o
al 8.¢€ AJto 09¢ ul ylog ‘swia)l pjoyasnoy Aying pue sabplly Joj sewayos asn-al pue saiddeu |eal ‘suiq }sodwod pasipisgns papnjoul /0/900g Ul paonpoJjul e
BM\U\MQ asoy| :aouewlopad siyy anosduw diay |im SaABIIUL UORBSIWIUIL S)SBAA "PassIW Aimodleu sem jabliel /0/900Z @Y} Ing ‘@ouewlopad ajienb doj m
s
a|up doy GGE SI pjoysaiyy saddn v49 “(‘1S8 90/500Z uopuo) ajipenb doj si eouewlioLad i papieme si joquiy o
90/5002 (s19)2e1q Ul [EN)OE - JUdjRAINbA [BNUUE pa)snipe Ajjeuoseas) peay Jad pajoa)|0d ajsem pjoyasnoy jo BY| epg Ag
%22 | %02vC | %0992 | %092 | %22Z | %0v2 | %€€Z | %l'€2 | %G2C | %T LT | %622 | %82C | %¥'iZ | %ET 6L m
5
%12 Ao | opez ‘a)sem |enpisal ybiy ayy Aq pajoaye Ajgsianpe uaaq sey ajel Buinsodwoo pue BuljpoAoal ayy nq ‘|eaidA) paulewsal yolep =
199//09 ° Pa109]|02 Ss|eliajew Jo Jyblam ay| ‘papaadxa sem 9%,zz 10 196.e} //900z 2yl pue Buouis sulewsal pajod||0d abeuuoy Bunsodwod pue BulpAosy =
uo7 9O m
doj )s3 "awl] Buipiodal je ejep-oj-dn Ajjny jJou Usyo SI UOKBLULIOUI SB MO| 8q 0} pus) sainbiy jsajeT ‘pjoysaiy] Aey vdo| 'a+Eecs o
90/5002 pajsodwod 10 pajokoas uaaq sey Yyaiym ajsem pjoyasnoy jo 9, Ad &
%06 | %001 | %286 | %0000} | %00L | %00L | %86 | %0°00L | %000L | %86 | %000l | %896 | %926 | %E6
n M
m\meO %886 "SUJUOW 3AJ9M] JO 1IN0 UBASS UI 9% 00| PaAalydoe ap) “20-900Z Jeah ay) 1o} pue yluow yoes aosuewlopad jJus||@oxg m m
: o =
doy gz |83
90/5002 (way} anowal 0} pajpua Ajjebal si y1 ay} Uaym wouy) siy g Uly}im pasowal Sa|d1YaA pauopueqe jo 9, NG
ssalibo. OA1}09
uwm\hwn.._. n_h._.>i MHHH_ e 94 uer 2@ AON 10 dog Bny Inp unp e ady 90/50 1oy nwwuwm




1002/90/80 gz 10 g abed /0 Jew J¢A piedaloos ajelodio)
or'eLs _ 06°'€lL3 | 0CCL3 | 0EVL3 | OOPL3- |[06°ELI-| 06'CL3 | 06'0L3- |0S VL3 | 00VL3- | 08°6L3 _ 0S°LL3F _ 0L'€L3 _ 3
Ll
8E VL3 '8€'¥ 13- 1B sulewal NOd JO 1s00 Jau QLA W 2
0 S
(-) snuiw se umoys snjdins 150D 5 mlu.
9jo9loid nun
2.3 | 893 893 893 893 0.3 0.3 0.3 | 23 | 2.3 | €3 | €3 | z3 | 3
Ll
113 "196.e) uo soueWIOUSd W 3
]
=0
150D )
auuo} Jad s}s09 U0I}09]|00 3)sem pajoaloid nn
%19 | %v9 %29 %29 %29 %19 %19 %9 | %9 | %9 %19 %19 %19 | N
%S.L'C9 "1ob1e) anoqe sulewsa. ajel A1onoday W m.
=3
(e )] (%) 1964e) A1anoda4 awodul Buted — Ailanodal 3qaq 207 -
1 %66 | %00L | %00, [%0000L| %00L | %00L [ %00L | %000l |%000L | %00L | %00L | %00L | %00L | %00l
@ . Y
(e ) %001 28
W 00} ST
Al sjup doy ‘JN0 paLLIEI Jou 8np 8Soy} JO %, SNUIW %00} Se pdje/naen o 2
90/500¢ anp asoy} Jo }no paLiied syuswanoidul Jo 9, - josjuo uonnjjod| /LZAg
anp (€
%S. %001 %0S | %00°00L | %00l %001 %L %0°00} |40 8U0p |JoAO |]) (¢} soro | (Susin (sistn %001 Y
(o] 0 0 0 (o] 0 (o] (o] (o]
ouou | 9%,9¢ 8) %.9 |S) %00l | Z) %00L 8
(0]
%001 %001 Jeal |eoueuly ayy Buunp sasiwaud ysiy YbiH G/ |le pajoadsul aaey Spn W
proysauy | m
Jaddn Z2€3 s
[0]
vdO anp ou / auop oN "sasiwalid ysu ybiy o3} s}ISIA spaepuels Buipea ] VYdO @
0€l pay B o611 | se05 | o8l | over | oszL | ovzr | ozl |oessiz] 892k | over | tier | vell | ivezt
‘ o m
8¢ see ¢ "1964e) UIyIM 219M Syjuow Jaylo |y "Aleniga4 ul mous pue }snBny ul uonoe ayL}s 0} Buimo passiw sem jabie} /0-900Z SUL m w
8/ienp o =
doj gg Ad |83
L0/ 0002 9 (p1022y W0J)) SUOIJD3]|0D 3)sem pjoyasnoy 000‘00L 42d passiw SUOI}93||0D d)SeM JaqUINN sep
20/90 ssaibold | ssaiboig . aA1}09
JoBue) QLA Alpuow Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




1002/90/80 8z Jo g abed /0 Jew J~ ¢A pJedaloos ajesodio)
%Zh | %852y | %evy | %ty | %bv | | %0ty | %Svy | %Svy | %Sty | %vvy | %Sy | %Ll vy
%91 %8S ¢V HIH 3 m_.m_
ajpend ‘(%8G ) uinyno 8o//0 404 a.e seinby Ajypuow pue jebiej %zt “ypuow 80/002 m o
doy Yyoes uolonpal %Gzz 0 Uo paseq jobie) AIYIUON "% L ¥y UINKNO 20/90 %0SG UINWNO 90/G0 e/ oy jo Buluuibaq ayj je painsesw s 1d siy | 83
90/5002 Juao9p, uou asam yasiym sawoy Ajaoyine [eoso| jo uoiodoid ayy| eygl Ag
%16 IR %88 | %SEv6 | %06°€6 | %ES'S6 | %kl L8 | %zl 06 | %0'S6 | %916 | %926 | %CS6 | %re€6 | %656 | %86
%CL 16 " @ m
ypuow jsej oy} jnq jje Joj spiodau aje| sepnjoul 8jep o} Jeah ayj jnq buipioda. ajel epnjoxse sainbiy Ajlyjuopw| G OH1 m o
@ @
w 3
9 *SHWI| dwl} JUBWIUIBA0L) Uulypm pajajdwod saredau Juabin jo 9, ay (€L na) -
vl IR ccsh | SZVL | esll | 6.0L | esel | esch | 80vh | evel | €92k | 8kl | 989L | VAL | 86°€L " m
6Ll HiH m W
ypuow jsej ayj jnq jje Joj spiodau aje| sepnjoul 8ep o} Jeah ayj jnq buipodau ajel epnjoxse sainbiy Ajlyiuopy| 9 OH1 w >
(sAep uepuajes) siiedas anisuodsal Juabin-uou a)ajdwos 0} uaye) awi) abesane ayl| (gsAgQ) =1
%00} %Sl | %2G°GL | %¥L 9L | %6SGL | %9Y'SL | %GEGL [ %LGSL | %L'SL | %LG VL [ %6V YL | %2¥L | %IEL | WLEL -
op - HiH 2
et o %L ¥) 3
T % o
@ @mend T
P doy 9 ‘U0 ajep 0} Jea o
DQ._W 90/G00¢ sJedalle jJudl S)}99M UIAIS uey) aiow Yyiim sjueudl jJo wmmu:wo._wn_ q99 NG =
%S'L6 | %26 | %€£996 | %21'96 | %€S'96 | %296 | %0656 | %tv'S6 | %9'G6 | %G1'G6 | %8S6 | %096 | %S€6 | %LEL6
-
%9°86 % €G°96 H3H W w.
ajiend 2 3
doy ‘1Se20.0J B 9le HjH Aq papiroid sainbi oy %L 96 (‘1S8) uopuo] 90/G0 ajiienb wopog ‘Ajuo ajep o) JesA 7o
90/5002 pa323]]09 jual jo uoipodoud :siealse pue U0I}I3]|09 Jual AJioyine |ed20]| B9g9 Ag
gg'le | ZLee | ezee gzee | eesz | 660 | oz8y | LG0L | LL06 | 859y | ¥0'8€ | €9°€€ | 00°6C
. n M
62 9.9¢ HiH e 3
ajiend S0
dot 9 g9 g xg orequs| TOMT 18
90/5002 (sAep sepusjed) seak jeroueuly ay} ul 39| sbuiljjomp Ajioyine [eo0o| 104 sdwiy }9jau abelaay| zLz A9
%66 [ [ %26 | %566 | %686 | %S€6 | %r8 | %Ec6 | %LL6 | %96 | %8656 | %V 16 | %lS¥6 | %616 | %6
%8/ 68 ® m
%06 |— HIH 1o %
afiuend g8l Ad =2
@ @
90/5002 Juawijuiodde ue jday pue apew yjoq Ajoyine ayj ysiym Joy ‘aeak ayj burinp siaiedas (Aouabiawa jou jnq) aaisuodsal jo 9, ayl
10/90 ssalboid | ssaiboig . 9AI1}00
10618 QLA Alyauow il ae4 uer 23Q AON 10 deg Bny Inp unr Kew 1dy 90/S0 T I Mg




1002/90/80 gz 10 0| obed /0 Jew J¢A piedaloos ajelodio)
%S¢ pay pay %8¢ | | %ey | _ _ | %6e | | %.¢
%0 ‘Bunsod-A|4 pue el Buipnjoul seale ¢ a8y} JOAOD pue aosuewlopad @ m
%88 ° 10 MaIA papunol aiow e apinold Aay) Jeah siy) 1o} 61 Ag 10} s)nsal Aaains (SINWYONT) splepuels jeyde) ayy asn 0} paplosp usaq sey m 3
ajiend ® o
doj 9 8J0W 10 %0 8100S pPaAarins S8SSe[d asn pue| 8y} jley uey) aJow aiaym si (snjjep pue Jsll) +3 Ydo 40} eauewiolad pjoysaiy) Jomo7 €661 ¢ =
90/5002 (49331]) sSSauljued|D JUBWIUOIIAUD pUE }93J}S |B20T] Ag
S10}edlIpul J9Y}0 JUsWUOIIAUT
00¥ | (25) v89 [ (21) ¥vL | (6€) 89y | (2v) v0S |(v2) 882 | (L2) vee | (9) 2L |(1€) vvv|(69) 828 (€L) 9S1 [(22) vee [(22) oz | €8¢
[*1*} 4 o m
o] b3 08¢ OSH g3
ajiuend (sjexorIq Ul Sjenjoe) jusjeainba jenuuy 3 W
doj 1s3 9 ‘uoljen}is 119y} paA|oSal UolJUBAIBIUIBIIAPR| €17 AD o 2
90/5002 a1aym a21AI3s 3dIApe Buisnoy s,Ajioyine Buisnoy |e20| 3y} 0} SS9|aWoY Se SIA|9SWAY} Palapisuod oym spjoyasnoy wouy sayoseoiddy| uo paseq
s pay pay e | IN | N | N | ey L1 eeor | 819 | IN [ Z980L [ IN | L9
€8°19 @ m_
0 ajiend poiiad ayj ul sjapsoy Y| spjoyasnoy a/qibije ou = [IN "Wajqoid SSeusssjawoy Jo S|8jsoy 9SH m W
doj ou yum sy sepnjoul souewiouiad ajiienb doj jeuonepn periodad Ajsnoinaid se sesed 0oz 8.d sapnjoxse jou saop .1ojedipul Siy | 3 =1
D 90/5002 jueubaud e 1o uaipjiys jusapuadap apnjoul Yaiym spjoyasnoy jo uoljjepowiwiodde |93soy ui (syaam) Aejs jo yjbuaj abesane ayyl| qggl Ag
m. ! pay pay €L 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o | o | o [ o | o w m
@ emveno| €L aQH S w
o dos w =
W 90/5002 9 e 10 ualp|iyd Juapuadap apn|doul Ya1ym spjoyasnoy o uojjepowiiodde jsepjealq pue paq ui Aeys jo yjbua| aberane ayy| ecgL Ag |© =
001 [ vyl | (92 | (896 | (8)96 [(B)soL | (LzL | (B)8oL [(£1)voz| (€)9e [(eL)9sL [(L)zeL | (ey | viv
7/ Lol osH |8 &
ajpend 9 s
dojy 9 *(s39y2eIq Ul S|enjoe - JuajeAlnba jenuuy) "Ajuoyjne Ag & m
90/5002 |e20] ayj Aq uonjoe jo }nsaa Joallp e se ueak ayj Bunp paysijowap 1o uoiyedndso 0} pauinjal ale Jey} sbulj|amp 10)09s djeAlld
0203 | ez1v3 [ 82uv3 | 2213 | 1e1v3 | Selv3 | 621¥3 | €24¥3 | OL'LYy3 | €6°0v3 | L6'0V3 | LLOVE | 22°0¥3 | 9GSH T
” T 5
€Cly 3 9SH o M
180D = Q
uonepowwod2y pajey ApybiN 19d 3son nun 2
vZ'Z¥83 €5°/883 [ 20'9883 | /¥'€883 [26'0883 | £€9'2/83 | 10°€/83 [ 169983 | 169983 | /62983 | £¥'2583 | 59'2/83 | BGSH
T
9SH W m
00 |5 §
9 9seoT 10}03S djeAlld Jad 3so0) nn -
10/90 ssalboid | ssaiboig . 9AI1}00
10618 QLA Alyauow il ae4 uer 23Q AON 10 deg Bny Inp unr Kew 1dy 90/S0 T I Mg




2002/90/80 8Ci0 || wmwmn_ /0 Jew Nlm”> piedaloos wﬁm.hOn_.hOO

%08 | %2 | | %68 | | %8L | | %02 | _ | %62
%G/ %ll "9AOQE BIB BM UDIUM %G/ Sl ploysalyy|  Z€3 n m
pjoysa.y | ° Jaddn ydD 8yl -pejoadxs am se ybiy se usaq Jou sey uoljoejsiies ssauisng Joj Jayuenb jse| sy ul ajel uinjal pajoadxas uey) Jamo| 8yl m o
Jaddn vdo » M
YdO spJepuels Buipeu) yjim uoljoeysiyes ssauisng| Asaing
%LE | %se | %ve w m
%GE 3 W
90/50 /181 S @
19bie ] Jiedau jo paau ul abejuasiad - sAemjoo4 jo uonipuod Ag ® 3
%6 | %8l | | %zl —
%1z 3 W
90/50 eyce 8 @
Jobue] Jiedas jo paau ul abejuasiad -speou paiisse|d jediourid-uou jo uonipuo) Ag o 3
%L | %l | %s1 w m
%05 3 W
T 90/G0 €cc S @
P jobie; 9 Jiedau jo paau ul abejuaaiad -speod jedidund jo uolpuon Ag 2=
EEE {is 3fs 3l 3|Ls 3fs 3fs 3|s 3fs 3]s 3]s 3fis 3]s 3Jos 3 3 T
d 1S 3 ‘Alloyiny 8)sep) uopuo YUoN wody AAs] 8y} uo paseq JeaAk ay} Joj 100 paxiy e Si SIy | W 3
(6)] o 3
(4)] 1s0Q Z o
al 9 auuo} Jad s)so9 |esodsip ajsep nn L
z | z | ¢
2 7
Z ‘Hog1 pue vy 43Q Aq panowal usaq sey indul ejep jo Bopoeq Jaye /0 AN 8L 8/M 8|ge[ieAB 8q p|NOYs 8109S |euld ‘8100S WUl 8y} SI Z m a
5 =
P66l |3 S
(Buiddi-A}3) ssauljuea|d JUSWUOIIAUD PUB }33l4}S |[E20T Ng
B pou | [ %z %6 | | [ %07 ] [ %
n M
%wmﬂo %S ‘os|e 66| 89S "% S! (0661 Ag 0} [EOBUSPI) /¥ VdD 4104 douewIopad ploysaiy} JomoT] g w
do o66L |3 3
90/5002 (Bunsod - Aj4) ssauljuea|d JUBWUOIIAUD PUE }831)S |20 Ag
%9 | %v | | %9 | _ _ | %0¢ | | %
m
%l %S ‘os|e 6L 89S %9 S! (4661 Ag O} [221USPI) 9pT YD 404 douewIOopad PlOYSaiy} JOMOT] m S
olipend e
do a6l |g o
90/5002 (314eID) SSAUIUBS|I JUSWUOIIAUD PUR }931}S |[E20T Ag -
20/90 ssaiboid | ssaiboig . aA1}09
JoBue) QLA Auuon Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




1002/90/80 gz Jo | abed /0 Jew /€A pJeoaloos ajelodio)
%09 | | %€9 | | %29 | _ _ | %Ss
%.G Aomnins O |AAG | Aemng | o
"Sjnsaud ayj joaye [im Abojopoyjow buidwes ‘suonsenb 8oej 0} 8oe) oy} suonsanb Jejiwis Syse Ji fobuuen 8 mT
ISiym se Aenins Loy |dAG 8y} 0} pasedwod Ajjoalip 8q jou pjnoys Aayj ‘sSAenns Jaxoel] pue AebuLieH Je3eg ayj wo.j aje sjinsal Aeains asay | : & w
saniioey Buijohoal ypum uonoeysiyeg| 19Ned B
%0. | | %99 | _ _ | %29
%2/ konns Lo IdAG | Aemng | 4 m
"S}Insoa. ay] Jooye yoes [lim 8zis sjduies Jajjews pue Abojopoyjaw buijdwes ‘'suojsenb adej 0] 89e) foBuLE S &
ayj suolsanb Jejiis syse I JS|Iym se Aoins LIOY |dASG 8y} 0} paiedwod Aj3oa.ip oq jou pjnoys s}nsal AoAINS sl | "%GF [eAIdjul 82USPIUIOD HeH 1 & w
saoeds uado pue spunoibAeld ‘syied ypum uonoeysiyeg| 19N3d -
%GS | | %l9 | | %29 | _ _ | %ty
%6 Aonins Lo |dAg | Aemns - o
(2]
's)nsa. ayj joaye [iim Abojopoyjew bujjdwes ‘suolsenb aoey 0} 898 8y} suoysanb Jejiwis sYSe Ji|  fseu ey m m
ISiym se Aenins LIOY |dAS 8y} 0} patedwod Ajpoauip aq jou pjnoys Aayj ‘sAenins iaxoe.l pue Asbuler Jspag a8y} woiy aie s)nsal fAeains assy | ' @ )
Buiuea|) j994)S ypum uonoejsipeg| J19Ned
%69 | %0/ %0, | %v9
%19 Aonns Lo |[AAG | Aeaing - o
(2]
'sjnsa. ayj joaye [im Abojopoyjew bujjdwes ‘suoyisanb 9oy o} 8ogy 8y suolsenb Jejiwis sySe i fapu 1eH m 5]
ISHym se Aanins LIOY |dAS 8y} 0} patedwod Ajpoauip aq jou pjnoys Aayj ‘sAenins iaxoe.l ] pue Asbuler Jspag ay) woiy aie s)nsal Aeains assay | ' @ w
uoI1399]]09 9snyay Yypm uonjoeysipeg| 19189
%L | | %S
%L 8
Allenuue papodal aq ||Im Joyedlpul SIy} 1oy eyeq m Q
® @
o 2
ula2uo9 |enuajod Jo S9)IS JO 9, SE d|(e|IeAR UOIJeWIOUl P3]Ie}ap Y}M 3}IS JO "OU - pue| pajeulweiuod) adlend
891 | _ _ | 89l o m
gec 28
egl¢ S @
9 u122u09d |eljualod JO SIS JO "OU - pue| pajeulweIuo) Ag =1
%.8 | %8 | _ | %8 | | %068 | _ | %098 | | %8 o
%G/ o "9A0QR [[9M 8l aM UDIUM %G/ SI pjoysalyy Jaddn ydo ayl 19b.ey |eao] Jno zZe3 i
ploysaiy | %78 1Y Jou aAey am ybnoyl|y %t s! ainbiy aAne|nwng 8y} pue siy} Joj uosead JenaiJed ou si 818y} Ing ‘Bunel uonoesies ay) Ul UojeleA e s| alay| m o
Jaddn vdD Z w
vdo spJepue}s Buipeu) yjm uoijoeysijes Jawoisny|  Asaing -
20/90 ssaiboid | ssaiboig . aA1}09
Jobiae | dLA Aluauon Iey qa4 uer 29Qq AON 120 dag Bny Inp unp Kepy idy 90/50 19y dsiog




1002/90/80 gz o ¢| abey /0 Jew / ¢A pledaloos ajelodio)
%8 | % | | %c | | %L | | %iLC | | %551 m
(@]
%S0°C OSH 3
2
[72)
(0]
() s
(@]
sieak om] }se| UIypm ssajawoy se pajdasoe A|snoinaid uaaq aney oym ssajaowoy se paydasoe spjoyasnoy jo uoiiodoid vicNd o
_ [ %081
Y
OSH 28
82
(2}
syjuow 9 UEY} 210W 10} JUBJBA SBWOY 10}29s djeAld jo abejuasiad| gLH VdD -
| | %ss | | %69
@)
HiH n ¢
o @«
o %19 90/50 1obie] i)
L piojpue] 13y} Aq papiroid saoiales Buisnoy ec) Ag @ w
+ 0} uojejal uj Bupjew uoisidoap pue jusawabeuew ul uonedionted 10 saiunjioddo yjim Buisnoy [I9UNOD JO sjUBUS)} JO UOljoejSljes
q | %65 | %v. o
g Tnc
Q HiH 8 m,
al %89 90/50 }obie] ZIHVdO |5 3
piojpue] 118y} Aq papirouad a2IAI9S [[BIBAO 3Y) Y}Im Buisnoy [1ounod Jo sjueud)l Jo uonoejsies| ey Ag e
%ZC | | %9 | | %211
n M
HiH m 3
%81 90/50 19611 se
(O 3
judy 3S| Je ,jJuadap, Jou asam Yyosiym sawoy Ajioyine [eo0] ,Juddap, uou jo uoiodoud ul abueyds ayy av8l Ad -
00'69 | | %299 I
o X
99 H}H 28
%9 90/50 1obie] 23
‘sBuijjomp paumo Ajioyine |e20] jo Bunes 4y abesaae ayj - Aouaioyg ABiaug| ¢9 Ag ® 3
% /9 Aanins IO\ |AAG Aaning T mu
‘S}InsaJ 8y Jovye yoeas [im azis sjdwes usjjews pue Abojopoyisw buidwes ‘suolisanb aoej 0} 89e) fobunen 8 mT
ayj suolsanb JejiLis S)Se I JS|IYM se Aonins LIOY |dASG 8y} 0} paleduw oo Ajpoalip oq jou pjnoys sjinsa.i AoAInNs 8sol| "%/ F |eAldjUl 8oUBPILUOD ’ @ w
saljua) Bulohaay pue asn-ay 1o sdi} [e20] y3im uonoeysijeg| 19Neg -
20/90 ssaiboid | ssaiboig . aA1}09
10618 alA Alyauow il qed uer 2ag AON 10 deg Bny Inp unr Kew 1dy 90/S0 I Py




100¢2/90/80 8z Jo 1| abed /0 Jew /€A pJeoaloos ajelodio)
%8 %68 %58 | %lEV8 | %E€8 | %E6L | %08 | %008 | %09L | %6L | %0¥9 | %0¥9 | %0¥9 | %0L
n m
20g @ X
28
O =
00} 90/50 woly |dAg se pajsjeq - 8jdoad 18pjQ 9 SHNPY 404 Jojedipu] juior 6ed ] m
pueg doj J9wW aq ||1m A3y} moy pue spaau J1ay} Jo Juawajels e Buialedal ajdoad Jo 9%,| gs Ag
%88 _ %.6 %.8 %09°L8 %€6 %9°L6 %88 %9V, %.8 %68 %Z'96 | %L'16 | %0°S8 _ %98 w m
D X
20g 28
cg pioysaiyL Aoy ¥d4o|  ¥sa |8 &
pueg doj sAep Bupjiom 2 uiyum paiaaijep suonejdepe g Juswdinba jo sway jJo sway Jo 9%| 95 Ag -
%G9 | %L %G | %9v'6S | %65 %8S %¥S | v S | v LS | %9y | %00r | %02y | %0y | %ev
n M
20 @ X
R S
O =
Mw 06>09 Jojealpuy (syinpe pue sjdoad Jepjo) juiof e si siy | ora 83
a ueg doj 991A19s e BUiAl9oal 9soy) Jo abejuaoiad e se malaal e Bulalaoal sjudljd Jap|o pue }npy| SS Ad
P el €6 1628 | 1526 86 9.6 | 16 9866 | €Ll ecl | g5k | 9L | 951 | o9sL ® m
Dnr 20g m w
+00} [A%0) S
pueg doj 9 19A0 10 69 pabe uoneindod ggolL 12d awoy je aal| 0} padjay ajdoad 18p|0| S Ad 2
s10jeaipul AJYjuo\ S99IAISS AjJlunwiwio) pue ainyng ‘npy
%.6 | | %86 | | %596 | _ | %596 | _ | %66
OSH @ m
‘'sdno.b jusija jo abelony L |dXM 8jdosd buioddns m 3
o =
@ @
‘poiad sy} ul S19SN 99IAISS JO Jaquinu [e}o} ayj jo abejuadiad e se (peyedap| | |ddds | ¢ 2
9ABY OUYM 3SOY) pue sIasn 921A13s Bunsixa) Buiall Juapuadapul Bujurejuiew aie 1o paysijge}sa 9ABY OYM SI1aSh 3IIAISS JO Jaquinu ay |
%9% | | %¥8 | %€ 9 %€ 9 | %l
osH |8 %
Z Id 8jdoay buroddns 2o
53
S —
"90IAI9S 9Y} }3] 9ABY OUYM SJash 3DIAI9S Jo abejuaoiad e se Aem pauue|d e Ul UO paAOW dABY OYM SI3SN 9IIAIS JO Jaquinu ay | ¢ 1dXdS
20/90 ssaibold | ssaiboig . aA1}09
10618 alA Alyauow il qed uer 2ag AON 10 deg Bny Inp unr Kew 1dy 90/S0 I Py




£,002/90/80 8¢ J0 G| ebed /0 Jew /€A pJedaalods ajesodio)

shep 0z | pay %EE %S¢ %S. %L9 %L9 %S. | %06s | %EEE | %08« | %299+ | %08x | %00L. | «%LL o
10} %06 %P9 "awl} uo paje|dwoo ‘ejeasawl} Aep OZ pepuUslXe Jopun pajpuey SEm 8SED aUO UOIIPPE U] "awWl} uo pa}s|dwod alem Sased 9/ JO 1 [e10) U] 20g M m
shep 0L oW} UO JUSS (%G/) 0Z JO GL Ym ‘SAEp tL Ul %08 Sem 90 Jequiejdes o} dn jebiel, ¢ 3
10} %08 sAep Q| ulyym o} papuodsal | abe}g - sjuiejdwo oy alen AHunwwod R SHN [e001] 2
B 2 R gel z€l izl | 9eb €2l | veb | Z4L [ sl izt | veb | eeb | 68 m
o0g ®
5}
=
Syl yobBae] yosep pjoysaiyy A8y ¥4 LGO ®
ls 10Z A9 5
pueg do| (posipiepue)s abe) 1an0 10 g| pabe uoneindod 000‘00} 42d yosep L e sjuswAed jo0a.1p Buialasal ajdoad Japjo pue s}npy o
BEET ey | _ [ WIN_ | %S [ %09% | %S | %0% | %9€ | %9C | %SZ | %0€ | %0S | %S
s g @
23
Lp ¢99 o=
(0]
erV + %zl 991A13S paseq Ajlunwiwod e Buialadau e o 2
| pueg doj SJUaI|2 }NpPY ||k jo uoipodoid e se 391AIS S, Jaled J§199ds 0 yealq s, a1ed e Bulaladal ajdoad 13p|O B S}NPY 410} SIa4ed Jo Jaquinu ay | Jed
P oL | ogs 008 | 628 | o€8 €8 08, | 04 | vs. | 0€9 osy | 0.6 | €ve | 69
af i
23
‘06> SI Buipueq doj ‘moy s1 eauewiopad poos) (000°LZ 40 uoieindod ajewse deah piw 00z buisn) pjoysaiy ] A8y vdo [20) 8 W
06> 9 uonejndod o ¢ =
pueg doj a|doad Japjo 000‘0l J9d aied Buisinu Jo |elyuapisal 0} Jeak ayj ul siseq Juauewlad e uo pajiwpe 1aA0 1o gg pabe ajdoad 1ap|0 J&d
%.8 | %¥6 | %S¥6 | VWIN | %9/8 | %v06 | %98 | %9¥8 | %608 | %928 | %¥8L | %l L. | %68L | %08
208 ® w_._A._
"(+G9) sjusijo Jopjo mau o) sebexoed aieo ioj sawly buniem ajqeidesde Uo paseq Si |4 SiY) ‘ploysaly] Aa) vdo 9sd m o]
00L>06 s)}aam 0} |enba 10 ueyj ss9| si abeyoed 96L Ag o m
pueg do| aJed e ul S3JIAISS ||k JO uoisinoid 0} Jusawssasse Jo uola|dwod wouy awiy 3y} alaym 9, - sabeyoed aieo 1o} awny Bunyiem sjqeydasoy
%L | %2 | WN | VN | %925 | %¥'1S | %525 | %88y | %86y | %8Ly | %9y | %€S | %8S | %6S m
20g W
2
‘(+G9) Sjusijo 1opJ0 MBU o) JusLUSSasSe Jo) sawl) buniem ajqeidesde uo paseq si |d SiYl ‘ploysaiyl Aa) V4D Gsd @
001L>06 9 s)oaMm § 0} Jenba 1o uey} SS9 SI JUsWISSISSE JO UOI3|dWOD 0} JORIUOD JSII} WO DWI) dIDYM 561 NG m
pueg doj % (11) '8 sunoy gy ueyj ssa| SI }9LJUOI }SJl} O} }OBJUOI [BIJIUl WO dWI} dIdYM 9%, () Jo abeIaAe - Juswissasse 10 awi} Buyiem ajqeydasoy o
10/90 ssalboid | ssaiboig . 9AI1}00
Jobiae | dLA Alpuow Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




1002/90/80 gz 10 9| abed /0 Jew /€A pJedaalods ajesodio)
vC | ‘oz €C | ¢z 2 m
208 28
+9/ 820 dvd @
pueg doj "J9A0 10 G9 pabe uonendod 000} 49d a1ed swoy dAISUSU|| oG Ag o 2
s10)e2Ipu| J19Y}o S3JIAIDS AJunwiwo) pue ainyng npy
000'6 | sce'or | zvi'e | zee'6 | owi's | ziooL | cezoL | ss0'0L | L8L'6 | 28€'6 | Ove'6 | 9Lz'oL [ 8006 | 058'6 Wil | m
2856 20/900¢ Ul SUSIALLE LGLC m w
JusjeAinbe jenuue ue se umoys| LLLAG |8 T
9 saueuql| o1gnd o3 uoneindod goo‘} 49d sHsIA eaisAyd jo Jaquinu ay| sem o =
08 _ €5'98 v.'.8 96°G8 18°€8 81'¥8 68°G8 0098 €098 Sv'eg 0.°¢8 1898 0L'v8 _ 26'08 29y I
5168 33
b Appuanbauy aiow sjqejieae sawoosq 6649 Se jno peseyd 8q 0} w. W
Y, Xapuj ssauljuea|d syled [e001] ¢ =
1%3_83 E 69€'€L6 |6€5'8GL'L |LL6°C0E")L [268°C90°) [268°8EL L |0CY 6SL L [L18 VTl L [680°G90°L |SE€9'0L2'L |6VE 091 L |29G 81 L L |SLL'0L0'L| 67016 29y w M
o X
L10°CrLL 28
O =
‘uoneatosy Aq pajsnipe Ajjeuosess sainbiH o2
(yuajeainba jenuue pajsnlpe Ajjeuoseas) abesn ainsia] @ spodg 207 -
0653 99/3 G8.3 VIN 86,3 | 2.3 | o0e/3 | z123 | veu3 | 623 | ziz3 | 1993 | ze93 | 9193 208 T
£ zlg jed m m
GGI>GLv3 1s00 = Q.
pueg do| jual|d 1ad aied |eI20S dAISUd}UI JO }SOD nn L
0G°SL3 €6'8l3 | €6'8L3 | €6'8L3 | €6'8LF [ €6'8L3 | 09°0¢3 | 09°0C3 | 09023 | 09°0¢3 | 09°'0¢3 | 09°0¢3 | 09023 _ 0903 20g
-
/149 ed =
S 3
SLF>LLF 180D =5 mu
pueg doj jual|d 1ad ates sawoy Jo 3s0)H nn
sfepso [ [ suoN T %0 suoN [ %0 [ euoN [ %0 [ euoN [ %0 | %0 [ euwoN [ %0 [ auoN [ %0 o
10} %06 %0 "9]e0saWI} 8} POPUSIXS Jopun SUOU ‘SWi} UO SUOU ‘[B10} Ul S8sed pala|dwod g aiem alay | 20g w_._ M
skep Gz sAep gz Ul %05 Sem 9 Joquisjdas o dn jabie] e 3
10} %0 sAep Gz uiyum o} papuodsal g abejg - sjuiejdwod) Joy ale) Ajunwwod) ® SHN 207 e
20/90 ssaibold | ssaiboig . aA1}09
JoBue) QLA Alpuow Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




£,002/90/80 8¢ 10 /| ebed /0 Jew /€A pJedaalods ajesodio)
%< _ V/N V/N V/IN %S9t | %vCE %¥L'C V/N V/IN %¥10 %€0 %0 %6'C _ %01
%00’V ‘sJaljddns 1no wouy sebueyo aiemyos 0} anp Spiemuo Uer wody ajgejieAe sainby LA AlUQ "paraiyoe usaq sey jable} siyl T .w_._
S 3
=0
‘pouad ay3 Burinp payniuapi sjuswAediano gH jo Junowe snid pouad ayj} jo jiels ayj je Buipuelsino jgap juswAediano )
gH JO sjunouwe |e}0} jo abejuaaiad e se pouad ayj Burinp jjo-uapim sjusawAedisano gH 4O Junowe ayj} 10} 10jedipu] 3dUBWLIOLD] 6iINd
%09 I %sc | %ee VN %99 | %eV | %8S VIN | VIN | %6V | %8S | %L | %99 | %VS -
%09 '800¢/.00¢ Ul paAslyde aq ||Im m
° juswaoldwi Jayuny jeyy padoy si ) pue aoe(d ul ind usaqg sey ue|d Juswaroidwi A1oA02al JuswAedIano [N} ¥ "PaAaIyoe Sem 9,09 Jo 1able) ay | m.
T
‘pouad ayj} Burnp payljuspi syuswAhediano o
dH Jo jJunowe |ejo} jo abejuasiad e se pouad ay) Bunp paiarosal syuswAediano gH JO Junowe ayj} 104 10}edIpu] 3OUBWLIOLIDd Lhd 5
B ey [ 62 8¢ | <& | o ve | vE ey cr | ey | 6¥ 95 s |
N "abeJiaAe uopuo ay} uey @ M
1()) 6¢ Ja)aq Jey s sAep gz ‘panaiyoe usaq aney pinom jabiey siy; ‘(adiy Jodap |10 playedung ay} 0} anp) Jeak ayy jo Buiuibaqg ayj 1e uels Jood e o) Ing m 8
T "|Inyssa00ns usaq aAey aoe|d ul ind sue|d Juswanoidwi ayj 1ey) paroid sey yoiym youepy Joj Jus|j@oxa uiebe aduo sem |d SIy} Joj aouewIopad ST
@ sAep ur painsesyy LN o 2
(@) (sAep 9¢ piepuels) swie|d mau Buissaosoud jo paads abesaay| eg; Ag
%66 | %1206 | %€L'96 | %1826 | %56'96 | %9286 | %0E66 | %06'66 | %0266 | %EV'66 | %0766 | %6266 | %8686
%E°66 %05'96 S|IoUNOY UOpPUOT J8Y10 Ylm uosiiedwod ul AjgeinoAe) saledwod 9,G Q6 JO JuswaAsliyoe ay] "yjuow usAlb T .w_._
ajiend ° Aue ul paj|iq 198p JO |9A8] BY) 0] BNpP S8)}en}an|} d)el UOID8||00 8y} JaAaMoH "passiw Apybiis sem Jeak ay} 1o} %66 10 196.1e) uonoa||09 YANN UL m 2
doy 52
90/5002 ‘Ajoyine ayj Aq Jeak ul paniasal a1am yaiym Jeak |ejoueuly ayj o} anp sajed o1jsawiop-uou jo abejuassad ayl| o) Ag -
%S.'€6 | %226 | %2676 | %Sre6 | %v9v6 | %06 | %v0v6 | %02°€6 | %0826 | %v6'€6 | %8626 | %.9°€6 | %SE €6
-
%r'86 | 6. T B
m\.M:m:O #6.°€6 ‘panalyoe sem 1ab.ie) uoi}os||00 Xe] [1I9uUno) @ g
doy &) mlu.
90/5002 ‘fjuoyine ayj Aq 1eak uj paAladal alam YoIym Jeak jejoueulj ayj 1oj anp saxe} |1Iounod jo abejuaaiad ay| 6 A9
%0°Z6 | %506 | %068 | %948 | %206 | %506 | %288 | %5228 |%80€8 | %188 | %L€8 | %c€e8 [ %c88 | %68
70Z J0 %0'/8 -
apend 0 ? 5
doj L3
puejbug 9 fuuoyine ayy Aq paniesal o Ag 5
90/5002 Bulaq sasloaul yans jo sAep g¢ uiyum Ajuoyine ayj Aq pired aiam jeyj s92IAI9S pue spoob [e1o1awwo 10j S3210AUl jJo abejuaasad ay
siojeaipul A|YJuol\ S82.1n0say ajel1odion
ssalibo. OA1}09
uwm\hw.w_. n_h._.>i MHHH_ e 94 uer 2@ AON 10 dog Bny Inp unp e ady 90/50 1oy nwwuwm




2002/90/80 82 10 gl mmmn_ /0 Jew Nlm> piedaloos mﬁm._oa._oo

%166 | %166 | %166 | %166 | %166 [ %.66 | %L66 [%8L0L| %EV6 | %EV6 | %EV6 | %EV6 | T

s

O @

pat = 9%00L 4910 YBquie = %00 L O} %G6 ‘Udaib = 9%Ge UIyIm urewsal - W m

"Jgop |eulaxa 10y Aiepunoq |euonjesado s,|1ouno9) ay] - Juswabeuew Ainseai]| o ul4 L

%586 | %586 | %586 | %586 | %586 [ %586 | %586 | %586 | %16 | %6 | %16 | %16 | -

5

D o

pai = %00} 19A0 Udquie = %00L 0} %G6 ‘Udaib = 9% G6 UIYIm urewsal - W m

9P |eula)xa 10} Jiwi paslioylny - Juswabeuew Aunseaul| qp ui4 L

%00 | %00 %0°0 %00 | %00 | %00 | %00 | %00 | %00 | %00 | %00 | %00 | T

s

O @

_.an a1 %08 18A0 U8quie %0G pue %0 usamiaq ‘usaib = 90¢ Jo pwi saddn uiypm ureway - W m
1w sojel }saJajul d|qeliep o) ainsodxy -juswabeuew Aunseal]| ey ul4 L
%0CL | %0ZL | %02 | %02ZL | %02 [ %0ZL | %02l | %02l | %0CL | %0z | %02 | %0zl | -

P 33
ng pai %0 4970 Uaquie %04 0} %02 ‘Uealb %0Z 49pun =31
s9ouejeq Jo asnh pauuejdun pajosfoid — saalasal puny [eiauab pajoaloid € ulg L

%00 | %00 %0°0 %00 | %00 | %00 | %00 | %00 | %00 | %00 | %00 | %00 | -

s

O @

Pal %0 L J8A0 Uaquie %0l O] %G 0 ‘Udsaib %G 0 Jopun souelieA puadsiano JoN W m

Buriojyluow 396pnq [eydes jjesdanQ Z ui4 L

%000 | %000 | %000 | %000 | %000 | %000 | %000 | %€z} | %921 | %01 | %60 | %v0 | T

s

O @

pal %0 L JoA0 Uaquie %0’ L O} %G 0 ‘Udaib 944G Jopun aoueLeA pusdsiano joN W 3

Buriojiuow 326pnq anuaal [|_IBAQ L ui4 L

%16 %00L | %00L | %00L | %00L | %001 | %00L | %00L | %00L | %00L | %00L [ %00L | %00L | %00l

%001 Jeah siy) yiuow Alans panlayoe sem jabie) SiYy} pue Syjuow g UIYlIMm paAjosal 8g 0} Saydlew elep ||e O %001 3 m._

° sl job.Je) yojew ejep ay] ‘pnelj pue saipuedalosip Joj 400| 0} -d\d ‘SpJ0dal M pPue elep siijeuag AsbulieH Jo Buiyojew ay) aie saydjew ejeq m o]

@ @

o 2

SYyjuow g uiyjim panjosal sayodjew-ejep jo abejuassad ayj si Jeym 1L

20/90 ssaibold | ssaiboig . aA1}09
JoBue) QLA Auuon Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




1002/90/80 8z Jo 6| abed /0 Jew J~ ¢A pJedaloos ajesodio)
%16 | %6 | _ _ _ _ | %06 | %S8
%26 m X
PNd |5 =
g3
(%06 plepuels) apew Hulaqg uoisidoap jo sAep /2 uiyim 1o awil uo pied swied (Yy) 9ouemo|y Judy jo abejuasiad -
e ST T [ T T ] [T Twoe] % -
%<8 ® X
23
53
(7]
(%06 pJiepue}s) uonewojul [je BuiAlddal Jo sAep | UIYHM papIoap swie|d mau jo abejuasiad €Nd -
%Z) | %/ | %S | _ %t %tl | %1
"pauonoeun Aely w m
%/ SJ801)JO Ue Ul ulewal swied ou pue Apoinb passaosold ale swie[o gH |e 1ey} ainsus 0} paiojiuow Aj9sojo ale sAeli-ul, Juswabeuely Juswnooq m b
189/ ay} Jnoybnouy} panoidwi os|e sey |d SIy} ‘Juswabeuew moppiom pasueyua ybnoay) swied gH Aed o} uaxe) sAep ay} anoldwi am sy 3 W
(0]
o 2
ob (%01 piepuels) sAep oG 19A0 Buipuelsino swie|d mau jo abejuasiad ¢Nd
! T | %se %0€ | %z | _ %L | %2
m
® %S/ m x
muum\.ﬁmse ‘Aliopenb uo papiodal aq [jim JojeaIpUI Sy} J0) BjEeq s %
al dors3 63
90/5002 a|doad pajqesip 0} 9|qisSadoe pue 10} d|ge}ns aie seade o1gnd jje yaiym ui oijgnd ayj o} uado sbuipjing Ajuoyjne jo abejuasiad ayj 951 Nd
S10}edIpul J9Yyjo S32.1N0SaYy djelodio)
L6'VLC3 _ L6'VLCI | L6'VLCE | L6'VLCE [L6'VLCE| L6'VLCE | L6 VLCI | L6 VLCI | L6 PLC | L6'VLE3 | L6'VLC3 | L6'VLE3 _ €1°'0ec3
7
S 3
00 |58
(Ay1adoud ajeiodio9) asow bs sad uonepowiwiosde 3o Jo 3s0D nn
WNv.L'G3 Wiz /3 | wgGe3d | wye3d |wzl'0L3 [IN9Y'0L3| INSE0L3 |INL6L 8T [INS6.L L3 |INBLL 83| NOZE8F [INC09'83| VW/N |weo8'83 [enjoy
W¥.'G3 |IN866°S3 | INESZ'93 | INB0S 93 |INE9L 93| NBLO'L3 |INELC L3 [IN8CS L3 |INEBL L3 |INBEO'8F [INE6Z'83 | VW/IN JWED8'83 | 106ie] -
I
"UOI}08]|02 10} SI0YIDI|0S [euIS)Xd 0} pallayal Bulaq sjunoooe 0} anp Ajuiew ‘Y0GzZ3F 01 Y9853 WOl Y9EEF JO uoionpal Joble) e uo Joys 3193 g
JUBWUOIIAUT 18P | HIN/LDd/[BIoJawwo) JO SUOIJO9|[00 UO |[BjloYS %5623 AJ 19SH0 INg a1e) Alunwwo) uo 1abie) parsiyoe - Jabie) jsuiebe W
UMOPp %6023 SHNPY ‘uononpal jobie} weg L3 e jsulebe Joys g6 /.3 SIOP|OYSSEDT ‘S|00YOs SBM Y03 UDIUM JO LOYS %8EH3F sualp|iyD ‘1obie) T
J/A POPOOXS YSN ® 9oURUIH ‘09X JOIYD "PaAaIyoe Sem //900Z Ul 1ge paby w9’ L3 Jo uononpal e ||eJano Ing ‘1obie) jsuiebe poys w ' L3 %
/9002 40 pus Aq wip/ G3 0] pud Jeak 9/500Z ® W08'83F Wou 1q8p AP L LZ 48A0 JO UOHONPOY | ey 7
199p Aipung |jeJaAQ - Alanodal jgaq ’
20/90 ssaiboid | ssaiboig . aA1}09
JoBue) QLA Auuon Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




100¢2/90/80 8z Jo 0z abed /0 Jew /€A pJeoaloos ajelodio)

Gl | 1z Sl zEl | 21
8Z'Sl pansiyoe Jobie |
Z1 lenjoy -3961e1 ON - 90 / G002

S80INIBS
JU8||90X3

£ POAI9D3I S[e4Iajal pnedy jo Jaquinu ayy st jeyp|  €HAM

%00} | %zzl %G6 %8Y %02 | %sL1
(44N 1suiebe aoe|d %00} S)ISIA 8699 ‘Aem Jayjo Aue ul | g sS829e 0] 9|geun asoy} djay 0} JO ,SUOUBAISIUI PaSE] YSI, Wwiopad 0} usyeuspun aJje S)ISIA

S80INIBS
UE[ERNeE

¢lobue) jenuue ayj ysuiebe jno paLLed s)sIA Jo abejuaosad ayj si jeyp ¢Nd

%00} | %66 | %¥Ss | _ %9€ %6 _ | %S0l

‘09191 Jo 106.e) e jsuiebe pajo|dwod aiam SUOIUSAIBUI PROJBSED /1Z9l JO B0} Y 1eb.e) |eulblio ey} 0} 800
%2586 | Aian eouewlopad Jeah Jo pus ay) Bulqg o) aoe(d 400} Jajenb }se| 8y} Ul LIOYS SAISSBW Y "}0aYd [e}sod e 0 JISIA SWoy B JO WJo) 8y} Ul usyeuapun
(g UBD SM3IAB] 9S8 "S9oURISWINDIID Sjuewie[ ul sebueyo Jo ,pooyA|ayI| 3Su, B 9ABY YdIym swiejd g1 D/gH JO SMaIASJ 1. SUOIUSAIdIU|

S80IAISS JU||90XT

o 9 ¢1obue} jenuue ayj ysuleBe Japienb jse| ayj ul pasuUsWIWIOD UOIIOR MBIAB UBYM SUOIJUdAIR}UI Jo abejuaalad ayj st jeyn| OLNd

m_w %S _ [ [ ez

sJaliddns uno Ag sebueyo a1emyos 0} anp s|ge|ieAe S uolewIoMUl 1A AlUO '800Z/.00Z Ul pesijeal aq ||im Juswarcidwi| 196/ A9

[) [¢) m
%02 %9¢ Jayuny 1eyy padoy si 3 pue aoe(d ul ind usaq sey swwelboud Juswanoidwi A1onodal JuswAedisno [Ny Jeak ay) Joj parsiyoe 1ebie| m 3
S 0
90/50 8 W
10618 ‘pouiad ay) Buunp payiyuapi sjusawAhediaro gH jo Junowe snid pouad ayj jo uejs ayj e Buipuelsino jqap JuswAediaro SN * =
dH Jo jJunowe |ejo} jo abejuasiad e se pouad ay) Bunp paiarodsal syjuswAediano gH JO Junowe ay} 104 10}edIpu] 3OUBWLIOLDd
%66 | %001 | | %96 | _ | %966 | | %896 | _ | %96

%16 '8002/200¢ U1 Juswanoidwi Joy eale Ayioud e si Buosyd Ajjenb pasueyus ybnouy) syuswssasse Ajjenp Japenb » m
° 1se| ay) ul Juswanoldwi Biq e 1ng ‘pansiyoe jou sem Jeak ayj Joj 1abie) ayj jey) Jueaw Aoeinooe o) 9ouewlopad sisuenb aauy) isdiy Bunuiodessig m w
33

(]
(%86 9N =~

pJepue)g) 1991109 SI 9np }1JauUaq JO Junowe 3y} JO uolle|nd|es ay} Ysiym 10} sased Jo abejuaaiad — Aoeinooe 1oy 10)ed1pu] 9ouUeWIOoMdd
02 | 1 ] 9l 1z 6l | ¢
aL "abelane uopuo 8y} anoge ||om sem Jauenb ise) T .w_._
By} Ul 8dUBWOMAd "pPanalyoe sem Jeah ay) Joj }ablie) ay) Jey) painsus sadueswnolid ul sabueyd uoljoe 0} souewlopad Japenb [eul) Jus||@oxa uy m g
= O
sAep ul painsesyy 7o
(ma1na1 03 Jo0lgns — sAep g Jo piepuelg) sadueiswnalld jJo abueys Buissasoud jo paads abeiany SNd

ssaibou OAI}09
uwm\hwﬁ.._. aiA y oo | e e uer 2aQ AON 120 dag Bny Inp unp few dy | 90/50 3°d %.Luwn_




£00¢2/90/80

8¢ 10 | g ebed

/0 Jew /€A pJedaalods ajesodio)

BT pou [useion M (o] 7o
%Ly "1081100 U8aQ SABY SUOISIOaP JNo Jey) uarosd sey yaiym ‘anoaey s,AabuieH ul pjaydn usaq aney sjeaddy JO %06 JOASMOH o m
° ‘sBbuueay jeunquy Bunsanbaui pue suoisioap Jno yum Buieaibe jou sjuewied gH jo junowe ybiy Ajpasioadxaun ue 0} anp paAsiyoe jou jabie| m w
o =
0€ [enoY - 9 19b1e] - 90 / G002 ] m
(%G9 piepue)s) s)yaam § ul 991A19g sjeaddy ayj o} papiwgns sjeadde jo abejuasiad 8LINd
%99 | %8 | _ _ _ _ _ | %022 | %Ly
%L "PasIASl JusWa|IUS JIIBuUa(q JIBY) 8ABY 0} sjuewie|d wol s}sanbal jo Junowe ybiy Ajpayoadxaun ue sydsap parsiyoe jobie] w m
D X
23
Ly [enpy - g9 18bie] - 90 / G002 8 o
S ~—
(%S9 piepuelg) s}aom { UIYHM PaIHIOU pue pauoljoe uoisiAal/uoijelapisuodal 1oj suolesijdde jo abejuaaiad ZINd
T | v0'153 | _ | 1rve3 | €L V€3 VS vES 1113 T
1w ¥0°LS3 "Pa)081I100 USdQ MOU SBY UDIYM JUNOD PeOo[aSED 8y} Ul Paljjuapl J011d ue 0} anp pasealou sey ainbiy Jepenb ise| ay z 3
]
180D =a
@ uonesijdde jiyouaq Buisnoy sad 3son nun i
€ | €19 ST'T 6C 60°L | vz o
1€ "Ja)enb |eul |njssa00ns e 0} anp paAaiyoe 1oble| m X
¥'Z lenmoy - G'Z jobie] - 90 / G002 3 W
3
¢suoljoues [njssaoons jo Jaquinu ayjy st yeyp| 9L =
8 | 1.8 Sy zG 8T | s
6¢'8 paaaiyoe 1obie]  m
D X
23
8 lenpy - 9 3eble] - 90 / G002 8 o
S ~—
; Sl INd
¢, paso|d suolehiysaul pnedj Jo Jaquinu 3y} si Jeypn
610 | | 2o
6L°0 panaiyoe jabie | o m
o X
28
0Z'0 [enidY - 0Z°0 ¥ebJe] - 90 / G002 3 W
S —
; YLINd
épakojdwa siojebiysaaul pneuy Jo 1dquinu ayj si Jeypn
20/90 ssaiboid | ssaiboig . aA1}09
JoBue) QLA Auuon Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




1002/90/80 8z 10 gz obed /0 Jew J¢A piedaloos ajelodio)
%06 [ [ %88 | %98 | %08 | %¥8 | %/8 | %98 | %8 | %9 | %08 | %8L | %.. | %8 | %G8 o
C
%8 Ja
g 3
sAep Bupjiom g ulypum o} papuodsal 9, :salinbug ,s1aquiay 207 e
08'8 pay pay 18'6 29, 7’8 102 Zr'e 656 60'8 €9L | 698 o8 | zz8 | ess | leol
peg 16
ajuend saunbyy Ajypuopy m
do ./ wouy Buissiw Ajqeynrsul sseuxois papodal 8je| awos sapnjoul ainbly ajep o} Jeak ay | ‘jusjeainbe jenuue se umoys -jusieainbe awiy (N = 31
90/5002 99fojdwa 3] 4 1ad ssauyois 0} anp 3so| sAep Bupjiopp| <L A4
siojeaipul AJYJUO\ S,9AIIN23XT JaIYD
| € _ | < o
9|qe|lEAB MOU 4D Ul pasn 8q 0} S8109s 900Z| 81093 T 3
poy = | JOQUIY =Z US3ID = kIO £:8100S YON Vdo|  VdD W 3
Kauopy 103 anjep|  yon 2
| € | < Y
9|qe|leAB MOU 4D Ul pasn 8q 0} S8109s 900Z| 8109 z 2
poy = | JOQUIY =Z US3ID = k1O £:8109S YON Vdo|  VdD W 3
q] josuoo jeusdiul| yon 2
(¢
h | € [ ¢ o
@ 9|qe|lEAB MOU 4D Ul pasn 8q 0} S8109s 900Z| 81093 W 2
(@) poy =L Jequy =g Uddl9 = .10 £:8100S HON VdO vdO = 3.
¥ Bulpuejs |eloueuld|  ¥ON 2
0or € €
_ _ n
9|qe|leAB MOU 4D Ul pasn 8q 0} S8109s 900Z| 8109 z 2
poy = | JOQUIY =Z US3ID = k10 £:8409S YON Vdo|  VdD W 3
juswabeuepy |eloueuly yon 2
| € [ ¢ iy
‘a|qe|ieAe uaym Ajjlenuue uo papodal aq ||Im Jojedlpul siy} Joy eyjed| 81099 z 2
poy = | JOQUIY =Z US3ID = f 10 £:8109S YON Vdo|  vdD W 3
Buiodaa je1doueuld|  HoN L
%06 pay pay %S9 | | %085 | %0.
%99 "]081100 U98Q 9ABY SUOISIOap JNo Jey) uarosd sey yoiym ‘anoaey s,AebulieH ul pjaydn usaq aney sjeaddy JO %06 JOASMOH » m
° ‘sBunieay jeunquy Bunsanbal pue suoisioap Ino yum Buisalbe jou sjuewie|d gH jo Junowe ybiy Ajpajoadxaun ue 0} anp paaaiyoe jou 1obie| m m
0/ lenjoy - Zg 1ebJe] - 90 / G002 3 W
S —
9 (%S6 plepuels) syjuow ¢ uil (gLINd ul @soyj Buipnjoul) as1a19g sjeaddy ay) o) papiwgns sjeadde jo abejuasiad 6LAd
ssalbo OAI}09
uwm\hwcp nn L >E MHH_H_ ey 94 uep 2aq AON 120 deg Bny Inp unp e iy | 90/50 oY o_w_wm |




2002/90/80 g8c o ¢e mmmn_ /0 Jew Nlm> piedaloos Qm._oa._oo

%06 [N [ %568 | %818 | %928 | %L ¥8 | %C08 | %V 0L | %C9L | %E98 | %E L6 | %0E€8 | %8+ | %v99 | %e 98 o
%G'6. Juswanosdwi panuiuod 1oy aoe|d ul SWa)sAs ¢ JeaA ay) Jo pus ay} pJemo} paroidu) w_._ M
o

C
3
pajuasaud sjjeo |je jo abejuaoiad se palomsue S| :21ud) ||e) |eo0] ? o
%0. pay NI %195 | %9ve | %08 | %ver | wvve | %8LL | %2TZ | %06E | %E6Y | %GEE | %Lzl | W¥LL | %SS o
%€E€'CE juswaAoidwi panujuod o) adeld ul swalsAs ‘ Jeak ayj Jo pus ay} pJemo} paroiduw| M m
o

C
3

(/2]
9 pajuasaud sjjed Jo 9, Se $29S G| Ul paJamsue s|jed :aJjudd |jed |[e207] g
%LL | %220 | %6'SL | %9vL | %Ll | %692 | %29l | %2SL | %Gl | %6l | %v6L | %l6L | %l18L | %E6L o
% L) 1961 8A0qY ga
‘ouewIouad auoydafs] HiH Sepnjoxa Siy} ‘eunp woi- (S|jed paismsueun pue jeubis Asnq ayj payoeal jey} asoy} sepnjoul [ejo}) S m
S||e9 |B)O} JO 9%, B SB SPU023S G| UIY}Im palamsue sjje) auoyda|a] - uoijisod apipA [1I9uno) [e207] e
%06 | %9 | %96 | %S6 %56 | %S6 | %8¥6 | %S€6 | %EV6 | %S6 | %v'S6 | %E96 | %616 | %86 o
%€ S6 1061E1] BA0QY 3G
£ 3
o Spuo029s G| ul Buamsue auoyda|a] - pieoqyoimg |eo0] e
m %26y | %8y | %l6y | %625 | %085 | %8y | %LSE | %eBY | %v6y | %Ly | %L ¥S [ %Ly | %€9 o
%) 8 3G
P 23

(/2]
(4)] 9 sajnuIW G| Ul Uaas (HSI) saljua) adIAI9g JIBW0}SN) 0} sJ3||ed jeuosiad ¢, - sawiy Buiiepy [e007] e
%0. | %8. | %98 [ %¥. %EL | %69 | %L9 | %8EL | %OLL | %99 | %¥S | %6S | %99 | %S9 o
%EL 3G
sjsenba. |O4 HiH Sepnjoxa |4 Siy) ‘eunp wo.i- m m
ajeoas awiy Aep gz ulym saijdal Joe uoljewojul Jo wopaali |e20] e
%06 | %00, | %08 | %00L | %00L | %.9 | ®UON [ %00L | %00L | %00, | %€€8 | %00L [ %00L | «%¥6 o
%6 "yole ul 2 Jeak sy ur swiy Uo ZG O IO gy m g
sAep Gz sem pjoysaiy] 90/50« e 3
sAep Bupjiom gz uiypm o} papuodsau sjurejdwod aiqnd (g abels) mainaa Juapuadapui =lo}| e
%08 | %S8 %06 %9 %28 %LL | %6 | %0¥8 | %19 | %¥8 | %8LL | %672 | %299 | %vL o
%Ll aWI) Uo B9 4O 1IN0 90Z g 2

[
3
sAep Bunjiom gz ulypm o} papuodsal (z abeys) sjuiejdwod uoyebiysanul adIAIRS [e007] ? e
%08 | %18 | %es | %€l %08 | %S8 | %iL | %v69 | %8LL | %¥2L | w6VL | %8LL | %09L | %08 o
YoLL yoley ul L/} o Lg| ‘Jeak ayy ul LGl SWIl} Uo 4O N0 9% m m,
sAep G| sem pjoysaiy] 90/G0« S 3
sAep Bupjiom g ulyum o} papuodsal (| abejs) sjuiejdwod uonjosay |eoo] 207 e
20/90 ssaibold | ssaiboig . aA1}09
JoBue) QLA Alpuow Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




1002/90/80 8z 10 yZ abed /0 Jew / ¢A pledaloos ajelodio)
%02 0 | %ce0 %900 %ELO | %800 | _ | %600
%<C0 %¥1 0
ajiuend umoys sjusjeainba jenuuy m
doj js3 9
90/5002 9910} }IOM |B}O} 3y} JO 9%, B Sk (Ssjuawadijal yjjeay-jj1 buipnjoxa) Ajaea Huliyas seakojdwg vl Ng
%S/ | %001 %00} | %001 | %001 | _ | %6
o m
D X
28
O —
§ 2
UOIJUBAIBJUI YUM paljsijes sjualed jo 9,
%01 | %Ll %801 %8 %G'9L | %8
g
23
e
uonuaaiajul bunuaised e Aq pajioddns suorjuaaiajul || Jo 9, -
si0}edipul JaY30 S,9A13N23X3 JaIyo
L Lz (zoz) | (861) | (682) | (eie) | (29z) | (wv2) | (881) | (2z1) | (921) [ (z8L) | (8€z) | (ov2) | | o, m
M, 6.2°C ¥0€°C 9eG'e G/0'v G68°C 969°C 90 1G8°L 9ev'C Liv'T G26°'C 8¢ce’e w
T . : : o
60.°2 podau youepy 4oj aiay pasinaJ Ajpybis seunbly Ajyjuow jsopy “(seue|bing $1,92) uononpal %G ¢ e sl 80/.00Z 10} =]
mvu 1061e) 8] "1964e) BY) Buljlenbs uononpal %G e - 90/S00Z O} patedwod /0/900Z Ul SaLe|bing J13sawop JO Jaquinu 8y Ul Zi7] JO ||e) B Sem alay ] @
ng (ved) m
sjayoeIq Ul s|en)oy "sainbly 90/500Z 03 pajsnipe Ajjeuoseas juajeainba jenuue ‘saue|bing ansawod| 9z Ag o
0r'Z3 | Gez3 | eee3 | oee3 | zee3 | vez3s | Lee3 | zee3 | 1ee3 | vye3 | zoed | 1ez3 | vezs -
Is
D
‘lenjoe LA 8y} jou buuojiuopy 3bpng ui papnjoul se }sod pajosfoid iesh |inj ay; si aiay buipodas aie em ainbiy Ajyjuow ay | 150D W 3
(saueaqi]) uonoeiajulsia dad 3s0) nn =
L' v3 E 8G' V3 FASK LSV3 06°S3 Sv'v3 9ev3 LEV3 eV v3 _ v v3 _ 80'¥3 _ €ev3 _ 08'¥3 L3 .|_._
Y913 80//0 10} papulal J 8q ||IMO}eDIpU| ‘JedA SIUy} palinoul 1S0 1o auo Ag pajoay] z 3
Ly v F 4O UIn}-Ino 90/G0 S! yiewyousq sy | 1s0D W 3.
(s@91A19s J9W0)Snd) uonoesuely Jad 3s09 nun L
0%7:00 | ov:00 | 1zibo [ €ito | soio | Leilo | 9zizo | 9sit0 | #0110 | evi00 | 21:10 | 9520 [ wii€0 | 6%:00 -
210 swaoidwi panuiuod 4o} adeld ul swalsAs ‘ Jeah ay) Jo pus ay} psemo} paroiduw| w_._ M
o
20S:UIN Z w
9 aw} Buinanb abeiaay :as3ua) ||e) 207 -
20/90 ssaiboid | ssaiboig . aA1}09
10618 alA Alyauow il qed uer 2ag AON 10 deg Bny Inp unr Kew 1dy 90/S0 I Py




1002/90/80 8¢Z Jo Gz abed /0 Jew J~¢A pleodaloos ajelodion
| %99 | [ %9
9]
%.9 G
5 QME\:\ Joquiy - ebueyd Juealiubis oN ‘pay S8109s osiom ApuediiublS ‘Usels) S8i00s Juswarosdwl juedyubis| Aeaing e 3
3
(7]
(¢}
uopuoy oAl| 0} 93814 JeRed sjuapisay x
| %69 | %9
o 2
m&w@ Joquiy - abueyo Jueoiubls O ‘pPay S$8J00S 8sIoM AjueoliubIS ‘Usals) S8loos Juswanoidwi jueoyiubis| Aening 8 m
abeiany & 3
uopuo sjuspisey g
Kpuauy yejs
€ _ _ € » G
[ ‘Alenuue papodal aq ||im Jojedipul Siy} Joj ejeq m 3
10buE | 0cc ST
S0/v0 spJepuejls a21A19s Aieaq) a1jqnd ayj jsuiebe asuejdwon NG o 2
%06'¥ POy %81°C %G’ %S¢ %S¢ _ %90y
o
w]
uonuyap Ajjigesip oy uonieuiwLasig Axjiqesiq ayj }9aw Aay) Buliejoap siaulea jo v,G doy jo abejuasisad ayl| oL Ag
%918l %E 8L %981 %28l | _ | %l'le
(@)
o
saljiunwiwod AjIoulw d1uy)d Wouy siaulea Jo %G do} jo abejuassad ayl| qi| Ag
%0S | %02 %S %L 95 %€ LS %8S | _ | %6'as
o
@]
uswIoM ale jey) siauiea jo 9,6 doj jo abejuaaiad ayl| el Ag
%€ 6E | %61y | | %Sy | | %61y | | %8ty | _ | %9vv
(@)
o
saljlunwwod a1uy3d Ayiouiw wouly yeys jo abejusosad ayl| ey Ag
%0€°0 | %0z0 %900 %610 %020 | %€L0
%S1L°0 %910
ajiuend umoys sjusjeainboe jenuuy m
dol 43 9 GLAg
90/5002 92.0J)40M [B}0} 9Y} JO % B Sk yjeay || 40 spunoib uo Buiijas saakojdwg
20/90 ssaiboid | ssaiboig . aA1}09
JoBue) QLA Auuon Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




1002/90/80 8z 10 9z obed /0 Jew J¢A piedaloos ajelodio)
%8y | | %y
. "a|ge|ieAe uaym Ajjenuue uo papodal aq [|Im S} Nsal 8y “ABAINS SJUSPISaI [ENUUER INO WOJ) USYE) S| 8INSeaw Uoljoe;sies siy} 1o} eleq T m
° m@w@w v Joquuy - ebueyo JueolIubIS ON ‘PayY S8.100S 8SIo0M AjuediiublS ‘Usalc) S8lo09ds Juswaroidwi ueoliubis| Asang m S
3
(7]
[¢]
uopuoy unJ [jom | Jueiows sjuapisay 2
%8Y | %97
. ‘a|ge|ieAe uaym Ajjenuue uo papodal aq [|im s} nsal 8y ‘ASAINS SJUBPISAI [ENUUER JNO WOJL USYE) SI 8Inseaw uonioe;sies siy} Jo} eleq T m
R m\mwmﬂ«\ Jaquiy - abueyd Jueaijiubis opN ‘pay $8109S asiom AjuedyiublS ‘Ussels) Seloas Juawanosdwi juesyubis| Aeaing m 5}
3
(72}
[¢]
uopuoti 9 aw Joy ybnoua joN SiuepISey -
%6y | | %9
O
%Lt 3G
abesony Joquiy - ebueyd Jueaijiubis oN ‘pay S8109s osiom ApuediublS ‘Usels) S8i00s Juswarosdwi juesyubis| Aeaing S g
3
(7]
[¢]
uopuoy 9 ouoyd 03 JynoIg sjuapisay 2
¢ %¥S | %67 o
o c =
T R mmw®>< Joquiy - abueyd Jueaijiubis opN ‘pay $8109s asiom AjuedyiublS ‘Ussels) seloas Juswanoidwi juesyubis| Aeaing m o)
@ @ 3
nW:on:oq sue}sI sjuapisay 2
al %25 | | %S
O
%t 3G
obeony Joquiy - ebueyd Juealiubis oN ‘pay S8109s 8siom ApuediiublS ‘Usels) S8i00s Juswarosdwi juesyubis| Aeaing e g
3
(7]
[¢]
uopuoti obe Jeal e ueyj Japeg Sjuspised -
%L9 | %€9
(@]
%89 3 @
obelony Jaquiy - abueyd Jueaiiubis opN ‘pay S$8109s asiom Ajuedyiubls ‘Ussels) seloas Juswanoidwi juesyubis| Aeaing e 3
3
72}
[¢]
uopuo] SO sjuapisay 3
%¥9 | | %¥9
2
%.9 3G
abesany Joquuy - ebueyo JueolIubIS ON ‘Pay S8.100S 8SIo0M AjuediiublS ‘Usalc) S8lo09ds JuswaAoidwi ueoliubis| Asang e 3
3
(7]
[¢]
uopuoy qor poob e Buiog sjuapisay 2
20/90 ssaiboid | ssaiboig . aA1}09
JoBue) QLA Auuon Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




1002/90/80 8z 10 Z obed /0 Jew J¢A piedaloos ajelodio)
| | | | | | %079 | | | | | | wN
S
ul Jno paliied AaAins Jejs ay) Wwouj ale aioy papodal S)Nsay ‘syjuow gL Aions Jno paiiied Aoains Jejs ay) Wody usyej si ojedlpul siy} Joj ejeg| Aeang
aoueuwopad 113y} uo yoeqpaay Ajawiy Yyjim way} sapiroid Jabeuew 119y} Jey) |99} oym Hels jo abejuasiad yers
%LL | %0°G. | %L
%S . o)
ul Jno paliied AaAins Jejs ay) WoJj ale aioy papiodal S)Nsay ‘syjuow gL Aions Jno paiiied Aaains Jejs ay) Wodj usyej si ojedipul siy} Joj ejeq| Aemng o
9 Jeak ay) 1oy} syse) pue sanuoud Jno s)as jey) jesiesdde asuewlojiad 1o uejd yJom udjLIm B 9ARY Jey) Je)s jo abejuasiad yers
%06 | %0 %9 | wN
(@)
ul Jno paliied AaAins Jejs ay) WoJj ale aioy papiodal S)nsay ‘syjuow gL Aions Jno paiiied AoAins Jejs ay) Wody usyej si ojedlpul siy} Joj ejeq| Aemng o
N }JoM 113y} J934je Jey} suoisioap uo ybnos si uoiuido 113y} Jey) |99} oym yejs jo abejuasiad yers
= AT _ %006 [ %z
@
nuu ‘papiodau Aamng m
Dg_. pue psesAjeue aq uoos [im ABAINS JUSIBJ BY) JO) S)NSBY "SyUOW g | A19A8 Jno paLLIed AeAIns Jejs ay) Wo.j usye) Si 10jedipul Siyj Joj ejed
SsaAoalgo pue swie s,|19uno) AsbulieH puejlsiapun oym jjels jo abejuasiad ueis
| %ve | [ %le
. "a|ge|ieAe uaym Ajlenuue uo papodal aq [|Im S} Nsal 8y “ABAINS SJUSPISal [ENUUER INO WOJ) USYE) S| 8INSeaw Uoljoe;sies siy} 1o} eleq T m
R m@w@m:\ Joquiy - ebueyd Juealiubis oN ‘pay S8109s 8siom ApuediiublS ‘Usels) S8i00s Juswarosdwi juesyubis| Aeaing m o
3
(7]
[¢]
topo Aauouw 10} anjep SiuapIsey -
| %91 | %y
046 "a|ge|ieAe uaym Ajjenuue uo papodal aq [|Im s} nsal 8y ‘ASAINS SJUBPISAI [ENUUER JNO WOJL USYE) SI 8Inseaw uoljoe;sies siy} Joy eleq T m
R mm%w;\ Jaquiy - abueyd Jueaiiubis opN ‘pay S$8109s asiom Ajuedyiubls ‘Ussels) seloas Juswanoidwi juesyubis| Aeaing m 5}
3
72}
[¢]
uopuo eAsuodsey sjuapisay 3
| %8y | [ %y
. "a|ge|ieAe uaym Ajlenuue uo papodal aq [|Im S} Nsal 8y “ABAINS SJUSPISal [ENUUER JNO WOJ) USYE) S| 8INSeaw Uoljoe;sies siy} 1o} eleq T m
5 m@ﬁﬂ.\ Joquuy - ebueyo JueolIubIS ON ‘Pay S8.100S 8SIo0M AjuediiublS ‘Usalc) S8lo09ds JuswaAoidwi ueoliubis| Asang m 51
3
(7]
[¢]
topuoi SJUSPISAI SOA|OAU| SiuapIsey -
ssaibou OAI}09
“wm\hwcp Qi d w_”“mm“,_n_ ey 94 uep 2aq AON 120 deg Bny Inp unp e iy | 90/50 oY %.wm |




2002/90/80 8¢ 10 g¢ wmwmn_ /0 Jew Nlm”> piedaloos wﬂm.hOn_.hOO

T | [wer ] [ ]
(@)
Jea A bBuljjoy 4o} s 8jel Jjeaouin | o
9 juswiuiodde jo seak e uiyum Ajuejunjoa Buiaes] jjels Jo abejuasiad
| | %089 | | WwN
“*puoheq pue g//00z 10} duljaseq ay} apiroid [|im Aaains 900Z BU} 19002 Joj 1abie]
9002 Aues| AINS S
ul Jno paLed AoAins Je)s ay] Wody ae aisy papodal S}nsay] "Syjuow gL Aisas jno paLued AeAins ejs ayj wouj usye] si iojedipul siyj Joj ejeq
Buinoisdwi uo sdaay sbuiyj op am Aem ayj Jey} analaq oym jels jo abejuasiad HEIS
| %089 | %9s
‘Id Mau e sl syl
9002 ALBd|  f5ping o
ul no pallied AeAins Jejs ay) Wwo.j aJe aay papodal S)Nsay ‘syjuow gL AiaAs Jno pslued Aeains Jejs sy} wo.j usyel Si 10jedipul iy} Joj ejed o
Hels
dojanap pue uied| 0} Ayunuoddo jenba e sey auoAiaas jey) Burnsua o} pajiwwod si AabBulieH jey) ansijagq oym jjels jo abejuasiad
op .
_ _ _ _ _ _ | %0es | _ _ _ _ | N
T ‘Id Mau e sI syl O
@ “*puofaq pue 8//00z 104 auljeseq ayj apiroid [jim Aarins 900z 8y} 1900z 404 }obiey| Asning o
()] op am jeym jo pnouid aq ued am uoljesiuebio ue se jey) aAaljaq oym jjels jo abejuasiad ueis
_ _ _ _ _ _ | %02y | _ _ _ _ [ VN
(sanjea) Bupiom
10 Aem paaibe 1no Buial] aie am |[om moy ainseaw ued uonesiueblio ay) yoiym jsuiebe auljaseq e apiaoid o) paubisap si}| '|d Mau e si SIyl nGu
“*puofaq pue 8//00z 104 auljeseq ayj apiroid [jim Aarins 900z 8y} 1900z 404 1obiey| Aening
19430603} [|om Qiom [19uno) AabulieH jo sued jualtapip ul 9jdoad jey) ansijaq jey) yels Jo abejuasiad ueis
| %065 | _ _ | wN
(senjeA) Bunjiom
10 Aem paaibe uno Buiall aie am |[am moy ainseaw ued uonesiuebio ay) yoiym jsuiebe auljaseq e apinoid 0} paubisap sl )| '|d Mau e Si siy| m
“*puofaq pue 8//00Z 104 auljeseq ayj apinoid [jim Aerins 900Z 8y} :900Z 404 }ebiey| Aenng
asiwoud am Jeym uo JaAldp pue Ajubajul yum yiom yeys AabBulieH jeyl aAaljaq jey) jels jo abejuaoiad ueis
| | %019 | _ | %6S
“*puofaq pue 8//00z 104 auljeseq ayj apinoid [jim Aarins 900z 8y} 1900z 404 1obiey| Aeming nGu
uayeuapun o
aney Aay) sanianoe Juswdojanap pue Bujuies] ayj jo }nsal e se paroisdwi sey aosuewopad 119y} aAaljag oym yejs jo abejuasiad HeIS
20/90 ssaiboid | ssaiboig . aA1}09
JoBue) QLA Auuon Jep ga4 uep 29( AON 10 dag Bny Ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 39y dsiog




Page 169

£00¢/90/80

¥ Jo | abed

Jeah Jo pua ~saljenby

%09 pay GRS %/S | _ | %6e
%.S Alles A pauodey g m
28
0 —]
9 a6 |2 S
Angesip pue 1apuab ‘Ayo1uyje Aq pasoyuow sanijioes buijaohosas yyum uonoejsies buissaidxa ajdoad jo 9,| |dAG
%69 |G NN 000 | _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ [ %e9
%19 Alleo A pejodey m n_.x“._
B06 |o =
Ayjqesip pue iapuab ‘Ajoiuyia Aq paiojluow uoI}I9]|0d d)sem YHm uonoejsies buissaidxa ajdoad jo 9,| |dAG
sJojedipul sapijenb3 juawuoliAug ueqin
[ 20 | _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ [ 2o
L0°L @
Alea A papoday m 3
sdnoub o1uyja Ayaouiw wouy ai1am jey) uonejndod [eoo) ] m
ay} ul uaip|iya jo uonuodoid ay} 03 sdnoub o1uyla Ajiouiw wouy diam jeyl ¥d9 9y} uo uaip|iys jo uonodoid ayj jo ones ayy
| %29 | _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ [ %e9 o m
AlES A payuodey m w
am S
:Apo1uyda Ag O-,V +5 I8 % ISIO Je JuUdsWaAdIYdY| jeooq |© =
| %sv | _ _ _ _ | %Sy
o m
® X
Ales A pauodey 28
0 —
awsg 83
:Ao1uyy3 Ag 9-,V +6 18 % SO Je JUBWBABIYJY| 2007
slojeaipul sapijenby s,ajdoad BunoA R uaipjiyo
)
10/90 ssaiboid | ssesboiqg ]
Jobue] aLA fpuoyy | BN ged uep 29Q AON 10 dag Bny ine unp Kepy idy 90/S0 19y M_,m_”w“
10618} UO BOUBWIOUS 1o6.e) 0} 8S0|0 BoUBWIONSd 1o6.e) Buissiw mocmE._otmn_E
Jeak 1se| uey) 8SIOAA B Jeak ise| uey} Jayeg JeaA ise| se sawes Ao

10/900¢2 - M3IADY 9duew.ioliad wm_u__NSUN JedA JO pu3j




Page 170

£00¢/90/80

¥ 40  obed 1eak Jo pus “sanienbg

%9, pay BRI %79 | _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ | %Ly w m
%0 %9 -Jueoyiubis AJ|EOIISIIE]S JOU S| 80UBIBYIP BY} ‘SjUBUS} JNG UBY} PJOT PUE| JIBY} YIM PBNJSHES 819M Sjueus} siym aiow ybnoyyy m 3
%8 v F 92UBPHUOI [BeJljShElS 3 W
9 pJojpuej J1ay} Aq papinoid 39IAISS [[RISAC 3Yj YIM SJUBUS) [I2UN0D JNg-uou jo uonaeysneg| ov. | © 2
SN %95 | _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ [ %bhe o m
® X
28
%C'G F 90UBPHUOI [edliShielS S
9 paojpue| J1ayy Aq papinoid 991AI9S [|BISA0 BU} YIM SJUBUS) [IDUNOD NG Jo uondeyspyes| A |¢ =
SN %65 | _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ [ %29°€L o m
sybnoiog uopuo Joj abeisAe 9,G° /9 ay) uey) Jomo| Ajuesyiubis m m
%G '€ F 90UBPHUOI [edljShelS 2o
pJojpue| 419y} Aq papinoid 991AISS [[BISAO S} YJIM SJUBUS) [I9UNOD Jo uonoeysnesg| ey, |© =
5 I %6789 | _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ [ meu

" m

%S¥'89 S}9] 108JIp JO 8SN 8y} UO d|ge|ieAk 8] ||Im SisAjeue pue ad10yo ybnouy) buiob ase seipadoid 3

aJow 80//00Z U] "dn }8s sem 82IAI8S Y} Se AIBSSS08U 9J9M S)9] J08JIP BWOS SE dAl| Juam gD uaym pajoadxa sem siy} ‘JonamoH -1abiey W

uey)} SSa| SBM 82IAISS BU} JO YOUNE| 8y} Je ejep ,syjuow aaiy) jo ajdwes siy} uiyym ad10yd ybnolyy 39| abejuaolad sy "uonepowwodoe =}

pala}jays 0} s}8] Se yons ‘Ajoalip 19| Ajjeonewoine aie ydiym s}a| apnjoul Jou saop ejep ayl "/00g YoJe o} Azenuer pouad ayj ul pajnsal 4

919M Jey) S19] 1B 00| A|Uo BIEP Sy} 910J8I8Y] "SUOIOBUUOD SWOH Japun ;00 Arenuer ul Bunesado uebaq sbuia paseg ad10yd m

(0]

(2]

sBuipa] paseg asioy) ybnouy) apew s)9| jo abejuasiad ay
[ %eLe- | _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ [ mou

WTlE" ‘paau Buisnoy jo ainjoid ajeinooe aiow e sn saAlb siy) pue pajs|dwod m

u9ag MOU Sey as10Jaxa uonelsibal-al sy} se ‘Jeal siyy judy Je se uaye} sem |d Sy} 10} ejep uolesidde ay) jey} pajou aq pjnoys W

}| “paau Buisnoy jo Buipueisiepun Japaq e uieb o0} JapJo ul ‘palinbai eale pue 8zis paq se yons ‘sajouedalosip Bunosye siojoey s|qissod o

1E S)00] pue SalIUNWWOD PUE SBI}IdIUYId [BNPIAIPUI SBUILUEXS MOU 821AI8S BuisnoH 8y} pue ‘gp//00¢g 404 pepuedxs usaq sey |d SIUL "%S @

-/+ ‘sainbl} oM} 8y} USBBM}BQ UOIJBLIBA OU 8] pP|NOYS 818y} ‘s}a) Jo aieys |euoipodoud e Buinieoal aie syueoldde JAg 4 “sjueoidde 3\ g 0} m

uanib sjo] Jo abejuaoiad ay) yum ainby ay) sasedwod pue ‘ig)sibay BuisnoH ayy uo syuedldde g Jo abejuadiad ay) saulwexa |d SIYL w.

(2]

sjuesiidde g g 4103 sbuya] pue suoesiddy BuisnoH usamiaq asualapip abejuaaiad ay |
slojesipu] saijijenby buisnoy

%08 [ [T T T T o . T
Alies A paploday 3 m
9 |8 @
9 sjdoad pajqesip 10} saniIoe} ypm sbuissotd ueysapad Jo 94| 1dag | @ =

)

10/90 ssaiboud | ssaiboig .

1oBie) QLA Aoy | BN ga4 uer 298q AON 10 dag Bny Inp unp Kepy idy 90/50 19y %m_”H_




Page 171

£00¢/90/80

¥ 4o ¢ obed 1eak Jo pus “sanienbg

v | ¢ [ ¢ | ¢ | ¢ | ¢ | ¢ | ¢ | ¢ | ¢ | ¢ | ¢ [ ¢ | ¢
B g
28
0 —
150 |8 3
uone|ndod 000‘001 12d yjjeay jeyusaw Aq sjuawAed 30a11p BulAledal sjualjod Jo Jaquinu 3yl | Jed
Z8 | 26 [ oo, | e6 | 26 | o6 | 88 | e | g8 | 98 | 8 | oL [ 01 | o4
16 g X
=8
150 |8 S
uonjeindod 000‘001 12d samjiqesip [eaisAyd Aq sjuawAed 1oa41p BulAladal sjualod Jo Jdquinu dayl| Jed
! | coL | voL | sov | 6oL | 60L | sor | 9oL | zob | zob | eor | rob | €0 | 2oL m
€01 3
" poob, se L°| 0] 6°0 pue ,8/qejdedde, se pap.iebal SI £°L 0} / 0 "uoljeindod jejsusb 8y} W
pue sauNWWOo d1uy}e AJIouw o S8dIAIBS 8iinbaJ Jey) passasse asoy) josuoipiodoid ay) usamjaq aoualaylp ou buiunsse =1
L1>6" ‘L punoJe s eaueuliosd poos) “dnoub ojuyps Ajioulw e woly Jou aJe jey) pasSaSSe SIasn 89IAII8S 18p|o jo abejusaiad ay) Aq 8vd 4
oBuipueg papinip ‘dnoub oluyze Ajiouiw e wouy a.e jey) Juswissasseue Buimojjo) seoinies Buinieda. siesn a2iAI8s 1apjo jo ebejusaiad ay | m
on Jed juawssasse ue Buimojjo} sao1Alas yum ajdoad uapjo jo Ajoiuyyg| Hed &
! | ezL [ sz [ 6L | zzy [ e | ot | ootk st | owr | osiL | oek [ oert | v m
€Tl 3
D
uonendod jessusb o
8y} 4oJ se jeaub se jses| je Si )i j1 88s 0} sdnoub ojuyye Ajuouiw wous ajdosad JO S8INIBS [BI20S J0) POBU BY] SBUILLLIBISP J0JedIpul Jv3 @
2>l siyy -Jejealb 1o auo Ajjeseusb s| eouewouad poos ~sdnoib ojuyje Ajuouiw wouy ae jey) uoneindod jeaof ayj ul sjdoad Japjo m
buipueg Jo abejusaiad ayj yum sdnoub ojuyia Ajuouiw wody aie jey) Juswssasse ue Buinieasal S1esn 89IAI8S 18p|o Jo abejusaiad ay) w.
doj Jjed juswssasse ue Buialaoaa ajdoad iapjo jo APduyyg| jed @
siojesipul sapijenb3 sadiAI8g AJlunwwo) pue ainyng }npy
%EL pay CERIN %S5 | _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ | %9202 w m
%0'SS 38
%G'G F 90USPHUOI [BJljShielS 2o
Burjew uoisiosp @ juswabeuew ur uoedioned Joy seiunuoddo yum sjueus) [1I9UNOD JNg-uou jo uondeysipeg| oG, ¢ 2
%89 pay GRS %95 | _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ | %€2'¥9 w m
%0'9G o X
%/°G F 9OUSPYUOD [BOSIEIS 5=
9 Bupjew uoisioap B Juswabeuew uj uonyedioited 1oy saiunioddo ypm sjueus) [1Iounod JNg jo uonoeysieg| ds. ® 2
%l . pay CERIN %S5 | _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ | %.€'69 w M
%0°GS sybnolog uopuo- 1o} abeiane 9, /G ay) mojaq isnl Ajuo Inqg }nsal AoAIns snoinaid ay) woly e} m 5
%6°€ F 9OUSPYUOD [BOSIEIS 5=
83
9 Bunjew uoisiosp g Juswabeuew ul uonedionied Joy seiiuniioddo yym sjueus) [1I9unod jo uoijoeyspesg| es. | ¢ =
- E)
10/90 ssaiboud | ssaiboig .
1oBie) QLA Aoy | BN ga4 uer 298q AON 10 dag Bny Inp unp Kepy idy 90/50 19y %m_”H_




Page 172

£00¢/90/80

¥ 40 ¢ obed 1eak Jo pus “sanienbg

B/u | _ _ | s9+9 o
J 74
|1BBA poLioday o o
prp | 3
uoneindod go‘00} 12d Ajuoyine |eaoj ayj Aq pap.iodaa sjuapioul [eroes Jo 'oN| |dAg -
%S pay CEF I 9%95°€ | | %051 | _ | %Sz | _ | %S | _ | %v R
%9G'E "OU 10 S9A pasamsue oym G| /‘{ JO N0 Jeis g9 i
o 3
[
AN voL |@ 3
uopiuyap Ajjiqesip Joy uoneujwiiosig Ayjigesiq ay} 3eaw Aay) Buliedap yejs jo abejusatad ayl| |Ag B
%0€ 6€ | %Sy | | %Sy | _ | %067 | _ | %Sy | _ | %Sy o
%S 3G
o 3
[
es1 |23
Saljllouiw JluYy3a woJlj ale jey) yels Jo % dyl| |dAd B
%06’ pay %812 | _ | %51 | _ | %5z | _ | %Sz | _ | %90¥
%gL'Z ‘uoniuyap sIy} Japun Ajijigesip e palejosp aAey ¢ ‘siauled
° 10 9,G do) 8y} Ul aJe pue mouy am snjels AjjiIgesip asoym yjog s314 6°/EL 9U3 4O 1ebJe) Jo Loys Jels Jo siaquiswl  sjuasaldal siyl m
uoniuyap Ayjiqesip oy uoneuiwnasiqg Ajigesiq ayj 39aw Aayj Bulie|dsap siaulea Jo %G doj jo abejuaosad ayjl (o} | Ag
%92 pay L2 I %9181 | _ | %0€'8} | _ | %0981 | _ | %0z'8l | _ | %0112
%91°8L *AjlIoulw dJUYle UB WO} dIB GE ‘Slaules Jo %G do) ay} ul ale Oym pue mouy am Aldiuyle asoym yioq s314 g6l aul 4O T m
o o
AN a |% 3
SaIjlunwwod AjIouiw d1Uy}d Wodj die oym siadutea jo %G do} ayj jo abejuasisad ayl| |dAg -
%00°0S {9602 ¥S | | %2296 | _ | %0€25 | _ | %0186 | _ | %0655 R
%0¢C ¥S "alews} ale | | ‘sisuied Jo %G do} sy} ul s3] 4 Z0Z dUY} JO JG
& 3
C
9 el |°3
uawom aie oym yejs Ajioyine |e20] Jo %G pied doj ayj jo abejusatad ayl| |4ag -
siojesipul sapijenb3 s,aA1N29x3 Ja1yd
%082 | %0ve | _ | %00¢ | _ | %0022 | _ | %0.2 | _ | %st22 T
. Q
%G/ 7%0°0€ sBuip|ing asay} Jo sasodind jipne 1o} ‘shkaains uspuadapu| ‘(soueldwod |\ Juswndod se umouy) 95 Ag 01 aouewsopuad 3.
8/lenp ano aaoldwil im yiom uoljeydepe ay) Jo swog "pals|dwod sey oy uoieulwdsiq Aljigesiq 8y} 0} uonjejal ul yiom uoneydepe ay) Jo yony pmv
doj js3 961 2
90/5002 a|doad pajqesip 0} 9]qiSSad9k puk 10} d|qe}ns ale seale alqnd e yaiym ui aignd ay} o) uado sbuipjing jo %, | IdALD 5
siojesipul sanijijenbg saounosay ajesodion
)
10/90 ssaiboud | ssaiboig .
1oBie) QLA Aoy | BN ga4 uer 298q AON 10 dag Bny Inp unp Kepy idy 90/50 19y %m_”H_




Page 173 Agenda ltem 9

Agenda ltem

The Cabinet On xx June 2007

Report title: The Draft Council Plan 2007 - 2010

Report of: Tim Dauncey — Interim Director of Corporate Resources
Ward(s) affected: All Report for: For information

1. Purpose

1.1 To present the draft Council Plan for 2007 - 2010

2. Introduction by Councillor George Meehan Leader of the Council

2.1 The Council Plan sets out what actions the council will take to achieve its priorities and
sets out the authority’s goal to achieve excellent services for our residents.

2.2 The Council has worked hard over the past years to gain and retain three star status.
The enclosed Plan represents this Administration’s political priorities and establishes
the agenda for the Council which will guide us towards achieving excellent services.

2.3 This plan sets out how we will further improve our services to meet the needs
of Haringey’s residents. It also outlines how the council will contribute to
Haringey’s Sustainable Community Strategy.

2.4 This Council plan highlights what needs to be achieved in the next three years.
The plan has been developed within the framework of the Community Strategy
and all the priorities address what residents have told us is important to them

3. Recommendations

3.1 That Cabinet Members consider the draft Council Plan.

Report authorised by: Dr Ilta O'Donovan — Chief Executive

Contact officers: Eve Pelekanos Head of Policy and Performance
Telephone 020 8489 2508
Margaret Gallagher — Performance Manager
Tel: 020 8489 2553

10of3



Page 174

Head of Legal Services Comments

The legal implications are stated in the main report.

4. Executive Summary

4.1 The draft Council Plan sets out the priorities for the Council and how these will be
achieved. The content has been cross-referenced with the Manifesto, Community
Strategy and the Local Area Agreement.

4.21t is a statutory requirement for Local Authorities to publish performance and 3 year
targets against the Government’s Best Value indicators, these form the Appendix to the
Council Plan. The targets were considered by the Executive on 24 April.

4.3The Council Plan is to be published by the end of April 2007.

5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

5.1 None

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:
ODPM Circular 05/2006- Guidance on Best Value Performance Plans
Service Business Plans including provisional outturn information for Best Value
Performance Indicators and 3 year targets.

Strategic Implications
The Council Plan sets out the Council’s priorities and what action will be taken to
achieve them. The Council Plan will be instrumental in focusing on the necessary
actions to drive improvement in line with the council’s vision and priority of providing
excellent services.

Financial Implications
The 3 year targets have been considered as deliverable within the Council’s Financial
Strategy.

Legal Implications
None

Equalities Implications
Equalities is a central thread throughout out the business of the Council and is reflected
in the achievements and future actions for all the Council’s priorities. The performance
indicators which accompany the plan include equalities indicators and targets for these
measures ensure that there are no adverse implications for service users or our staff.

Consultation
The measures included in the Council Plan are linked to the delivery of the five council
priorities. A number of the measures also relate to aspirations as set out in our
Sustainable Community Strategy which was widely consulted on across a range of
stakeholders. The Council Plan includes a number of resident and staff satisfaction
measures to take account of how these stakeholders feel about the services the council
delivers and how staff contribute to their delivery.

20of 3




Page 175

7 Background

7.1 Each year the Council publishes a corporate plan that explains what has been
achieved in the previous year and what is planned for the coming three years.
The plan is based on the council’s priorities and explains how these will be
achieved.

7.2Councils that have been rated as ‘good’ or ‘excellent’ by the Audit Commission in
the Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) are not required to produce
a Best Value Performance Plan, but they are still required to publish the results of
the best value performance indicators (BVPI) and to set targets for the coming
three years.

7.3Last year the Council published a Corporate Plan which included the three year
BVPIs and targets. This year a Council Plan has been developed for 2007 —
2010. It is based on the Council priorities and sets out the key actions and how
these will be achieved.

7.4The key actions in the Council Plan will be part of the mid year pre- business plan
review. In previous years we have also reviewed targets at the end of the
financial year in light of performance outturns and latest comparative data.

8. The Council Plan

8.1The draft Council Plan sets out the Council’s priorities and how these will be
achieved. The key actions are in line with Manifesto commitments, the
Sustainable Community Strategy and the Local Area Agreement.

8.2The Council business plans and performance targets have been aligned with the
council priorities. The business plans provide further detail on how these actions
will be achieved thus completing a ‘Golden Thread’ linking the Community
Strategy, Council Plan, Business Plans and individual performance appraisals.

30of3



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 177

Draft
Council Plan 2007-10

A Council we are all proud of -
Delivering high quality, cost effective services

Version: 30 May 2007



Page 178

Map of Haringey



Page 179

contents

1.

Our commitment
Introduction by the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive

Purpose of this plan

. Context for this plan

3.1 About the place and its people
3.2 Taking the next step to excellence
3.3 Haringey’s strategic context

Our vision, values and priorities
4.1 Vision
4.2 Priorities

. Achieving our priorities

5.1 Making Haringey one of London’s greenest boroughs

5.2 Creating a Better Haringey: cleaner, greener, safer

5.3 Encouraging lifetime well-being, at home, work, play and
learning

5.4 Promoting independent living while supporting adults and
children when needed

5.5 Delivering excellent customer focused, effective services

. Our decision making arrangements

Engaging with our communities and partners
7.1 Haringey’s Strategic Partnership
7.2 The Local Area Agreement

Valuing our staff

Financial management
9.1 The Council’s Financial Strategy
9.2 Summary of financial information
9.3 Statement on contracts

10. Performance management and business planning

10.1 Reviewing this plan

Appendix — Performance indicators



Page 180

Our Commitment

Introduction by the leader and the Chief Executive

Welcome to our Council Plan for 2007-2010. The Leader and Chief Executive of
Haringey Council have a clear goal for the authority to achieve excellence in
service delivery and to create a deeper sense of place. We have a shared
understanding that to achieve this requires political, managerial and community
leadership. Our commitment is that each form of Leadership must be effective in
its own right and complementary to one another. This means that there must be
mutual respect and understanding of the different roles.

With you we want to lead a dynamic, financially sound, public service value driven
organisation that meets the needs of our community. The Council is keen to take
up the mantle of community leadership in a way that community and stakeholders
will value. We would wish to be seen as a trusted partner providing sound use of
resources, a clear sustainability agenda and working towards a quality of life for all
our citizens.

The Council has worked hard over the past years to gain and retain three star
status. The Council Plan represents a new agenda for the Council which will guide
us towards excellence.

To achieve such excellence we need your continued support and commitment, in
return the Council will work to value, develop and nurture staff by creating a safe
and co-operative work environment.



Page 181

2.0 Purpose of this plan

This plan sets out how we will further improve our services to meet the
needs of Haringey’s residents. It outlines how the council will contribute to
Haringey’s Sustainable Community Strategy.

Key achievements for 2006/07 are highlighted as well as what needs to be
achieved in the next three years. Appendix 1 shows the targets we have
set to achieve continuous improvement.

The plan has been developed within the Community Strategy policy
framework and all the priorities address what residents told us is important
to them. The detail of how priorities will be achieved is contained in the 24
service business plans.

The audience for this plan is primarily our staff, managers and members. It
may also be of use to our partners and other stakeholders.

3.0 Context for this plan

3.1 About the place and its people

Haringey is one of London's 32 boroughs. It is in the north of the capital and more
than 11 square miles in area. It has national landmarks like Alexandra Palace and
is the home of Tottenham Hotspur Football Club.

Haringey is a hive of activity with a wide range of events and recreation
opportunities throughout the borough's leisure and sports centres, libraries, parks
and open spaces. The people who live here have come from many different ethnic
backgrounds and brought cultural diversity and vitality to the borough. Haringey
has about 224,500 residents and around half come from minority ethnic
backgrounds. Haringey’s population is the 4™ most ethnically diverse in the
country.

The population is young and growing. Over half is under the age of 35; this is
above both the London and England averages. Between 1991 and 2001 the
population grew by 8% and is projected to grow by a further 23% to reach over
270,000 by 2031.

This growing population presents opportunities, but also challenges. The borough
ranks as one of the most deprived in the country with pockets of extreme
deprivation more evident in the east. Haringey’s increasing house prices may be a
sign of rising prosperity but can also prevent some people from living in a decent
home. Over one in five households are classified as overcrowded and some 5,000
households are officially placed in temporary accommodation, the highest number
of all London boroughs.

Just over 30% of households in Haringey live in social housing. Owner occupation
in Haringey has declined in recent years to 46% of the total housing stock.



Page 182

Worklessness is a particular issue in Haringey as some 50,000 residents of
working-age are recorded as not in work. Although the borough’s employment
rate, at 66.2%, has improved in the past few years, it remains significantly below
the England average of 74.4%. However, a large injection of funding from Europe
and central Government is financing urban regeneration projects, boosting the
local economy and creating local jobs for local people.

Haringey has a growing entrepreneurial culture. Since 1994 the number of VAT
registered enterprises has grown by over 30%, exceeding the 25% growth in
London.

3.2 Taking the next step to excellence

The Council has achieved much during the last few years. In the February
2007 Comprehensive Performance Assessment, we were judged as a
‘Good’ Council and ‘improving well’. The challenge now is to extend
ourselves and build our reputation for excellent services, innovation and
good practice across London and the UK.

In the next three years, 2007/08 to 2009/10, we will develop an integrated
approach to regeneration so that we improve the physical, transport,
housing, environmental, social and economic aspect of Haringey.

We need to redouble our efforts to support all Members in their role as
community leaders, building on the strength of our community engagement
and the successes of our neighbourhood management.

We will address the considerable challenge of making Haringey a more
sustainable borough by reducing our environmental footprint and achieving
a sustainable future.

Crime remains a concern for our residents. We will work with our partners to
reduce crime and the fear of crime whilst strengthening the community
cohesion that already exists in Haringey.

In the last few years, educational attainment has improved above the
national average. We will continue on this improvement journey and build
schools that are fit for the future.

We will strengthen our approach to customer services by placing the
citizen/customer at the centre of what we do, focusing on community facing
services and maximising resources to front line services.

In order to deliver the above challenges and move the Council forward on
its journey to excellence, council services were re-shaped in November

2006. Four new directorates and two Assistant Chief Executive Services
were created to take forward the work of the council; Urban Environment,



Page 183

Children and Young People, Adult, Culture and Community Services, Policy,
Performance, Partnerships and Communications, Corporate Resources, and
People and Organisational Development.

3.3 Haringey’s strategic context

The Council’s objectives are set having regard to the national and local
agendas and overarching policies. These are interpreted locally and
influenced by specific issues within the borough and by residents’ concerns.
The new Haringey Community Strategy, A Sustainable Way Forward 2007-
2016, became effective in April 2007. It articulates how the Council and its
partner agencies will work together to make Haringey a safe, vibrant place
that people are proud of. Our overarching strategies ensure that we are
able to deliver our priorities. The main strategies are listed in Section 5
Achieving our Priorities.

The diagram below shows how our strategic plans are linked:

Council Haringey in Strateglc
. Partner
Partnership

Manifesto . - Community _ 4 Key
Priorities Strategy: 2016 Priorities
4 @ommunity Strategy Delivery Plan\ b
Council Plan ulncluding Local Area Agreementy Strategic partner
2007-10 ’( corporate plan
((((( Strategies ))))}
I Divisional /
Theme board action plans business plans

@usiness plany

eam and
individual

eam and
individual
work plans

work plans

Government

Council policy policy

Partner policy



Page 184

4.0 Our vision, values and priorities

4.1 Vision
Our vision is to be

“A council we are all proud of”

To realise this vision, this plan sets out our strategic priorities and what we
aim to achieve over the next three years. It sets out how we will lead the
borough forward and makes explicit the parts of the Haringey Community
Strategy the Council will deliver.

4.2 Our Priorities
= Making Haringey one of London’s greenest boroughs
= Creating a Better Haringey: cleaner, greener and safer
= Encouraging lifetime well-being at home, work, play and learning

= Promoting independent living while supporting adults and children
when needed.

= Delivering excellent, customer focused, cost effective services



Page 185

5.0 Achieving our Priorities

1. Making Haringey one of London’s greenest boroughs

What does this priority mean?

We want to be exemplary in reducing our environmental footprint and promoting
the necessary activities to achieve sustainability within the borough, enforcing
where necessary.

Link to Community Strategy
This priority links to the Community Strategy priority of ‘An environmentally
sustainable future’.

Key achievements in 2006/07

e In 2006/07 the percentage of domestic waste recycled or composted has
increased to 23%, almost 3 times what it was in 2003/04. Service
improvements such as estates’ recycling and boxes have positively impacted
on this performance.

¢ Waste minimisation continued with a number of successful schemes such as
the home composting campaign - 3000 units sold in 2006 and increases in the
number of people using real nappies in 2006, contributing to our upper quartile
performance among London authorities.

e Doorstep recycling has been extended to 3,700 council homes and recycling
schemes set up in all Haringey primary schools.

e 57% of our residents said they are satisfied with recycling facilities (BV90b) and
67% are satisfied with our civic amenity sites (BV90c) up a sizable 18% and
25% respectively from the last survey in 2003.

e We have improved energy efficiency of local authority owned dwellings with an
improved SAP rating of 66 in 2005/06, exceeding our LPSA stretch target.

e We have recently signed the Nottingham Declaration on Climate Change, thus
making a commitment to actively tackle climate change in the borough.

e We have reviewed our parking permit charges in line with our commitment to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions. New charges are coming into effect from
July 2007

e In April 2007 Haringey was named as the Most Improved Transport borough in
London by the magazine Transport Times. The award resulted from Haringey’s
significant improvements to road safety, its introduction of innovative home




Page 186

zones, its schools travel plans, and the drive to promote cycling and walking in
the borough.

Key actions for the next 3 years

Increase recycling and reduce waste — As set out in our Recycling
Strategy, we will increase recycling and reduce waste further by:

expanding our multi-material collection service to all homes with a green
box

extending estates’ doorstep and near-entry recycling collections to more
households on estates

introducing a trial for food waste collections on estates

introducing a new service to low rise street facing blocks of flats
improving recycling bring sites

increasing the number of schools (including secondary and special
schools) participating in the ‘Schools Recycling Scheme’ to 100%
recycling 31.8% of domestic waste in Haringey by 2010 (Local Area
Agreement target).

Transport - We will continue to address transport issues in the borough by:

delivering sustainable communities through a Local Development
Framework and a Transport Strategy

ensuring that 90% of our schools have travel plans by 2007/08 and
100% by 2010.

Sustainable Haringey — we will introduce initiatives to make Haringey
sustainable including:

using ‘eco’ materials wherever possible during refurbishment works to
buildings

increasing the number of schools participating in the ‘Eco School
Programme’ to 20, in 2007/08

introducing workplace travel plans which will provide staff and visitors with a
package of practical options to encourage sustainable travel to and from work
ensuring, through the UDP, that new developments have sustainable design
and construction, incorporate water conservation and encourage energy
efficiency

reducing energy consumption in council buildings by 3%. We will be reviewing
our energy use over the next 12 months

developing a Sustainable Procurement Strategy and implementation plan
to promote sustainable procurement best practice

increasing our carbon savings in the private domestic sector for vulnerable
households to 376 tonnes by 2010 (Local Area Agreement target)

For details of how we will achieve our priorities, and for the measures and
targets, see Appendix 1of this plan and the individual business plans on
Harinet.

10



Page 187

The key plans and strategies for delivering our priorities:

Plan/Strategy Contact Officer

The Recycling Strategy - sets out how we will
provide a high quality, convenient recycling service
which is easy to use and meets the needs of residents.

Zoe Robertson
Recycling Manager
Urban Environment
020 8489 3265

zoe.robertson@haringey.gov.uk

The Unitary Development Plan - is the Council's
statutory plan for the development and use of land and
buildings in the borough. The plan contains a set of
policies on housing, jobs, leisure, transport, education
and health. The UDP will be replaced by the Local
Development Scheme by 2009.

Shifa Mustafa

Assistant Director Planning and
Environmental Control

Urban Environment

020 8489 5538

shifa.mustafa@haringey.gov.uk

The Local Area Agreement 2007-10 -
Outlines key targets and priorities agreed between the
Council and its partners and Central Government.

Zena Brabazon

Head of Neighbourhood
Management

Policy, Performance,
Partnerships & Communication
020 8489 4544

zena.brabazon@haringey.gov.uk

The Climate Change Action Plan — sets out how
we will tackle climate change in Haringey.

Sule Nisancioglu
Group Manager, Policy &
Support, Urban Environment

020 8489 5562
sule.nisancioglu@haringey.gov

11




Page 188

2. Creating a Better Haringey: cleaner, greener and safer

What does this priority mean?

The Council has an essential role in making Haringey a place where people can
flourish. We play a key part in making Haringey a cleaner and greener borough with
attractive parks and green spaces and a safer place. The Council has considerable,
statutory responsibilities for preventing and reducing crime, the fear of crime, the
harm caused by drugs and alcohol, and anti-social behaviour. Collectively, these
remain top priorities for our residents.

Link to Community Strategy

This priority links to the Community Strategy priorities: ‘People at the heart of change’
and ‘Safer for all'. There is a well-established, multi-agency partnership in Haringey
which delivers this work and performance for 2006/07 was exceptionally good.

Key achievements in 2006/07

e In the 2006 residents’ survey 49% of our residents said they are satisfied
with cleanliness, up 11% since the last survey in 2003 (BV89).

e Seven Haringey parks have won the prestigious Green Flag award for high
standards which is more than any other London borough. 72% of our
residents expressed satisfaction with our parks and open spaces (BV119e)
up 5% since the last survey.

e Road condition and street infrastructure has been improved with a £2 million
maintenance programme for streetlights roads and pavements.

e A £1 million streetlight investment programme was completed in November
2006, installing 750 new streetlights throughout the borough to improve the
night time environment and reduce the fear of crime.

e Safer Neighbourhood police teams are now working with the Council in
every ward.

e We have completed a review of CCTV for community safety purposes and
opened a new joint CCTV control room.

¢ In partnership with Network Rail, we identified and improved over 80
‘eyesore’ sites in the borough as part of an ongoing programme. The sites
include stations, bridges and embankments.

e We issued over 1,000 fixed penalty notices for environmental crimes,
including littering and dumping of rubbish and checked over 400 waste

12




Page 189

carrying vehicles and more than 1,500 waste producing businesses to
ensure waste is being appropriately stored and disposed of.

Streetscene worked with the London Probation Service and Safer
Neighbourhood Teams to arrange for offenders with unpaid community work
orders to clear litter and waste from 25 unregistered and unadopted sites.

In the first 9 months of 2006/07, 187 young people attached to the YOS
completed 320 hours of reparation work in the borough. This included
involvement in Haringey Clean Sweep and in the Northumberland Park,
Broadwater Farm and West Green Road areas. In addition, young people
have been involved in decorating community centres in Woodside,
Northumberland Park and Broadwater Farm.

We established an Anti-Graffiti and Fly posting Partnership with British
Telecommunications and Telewest to remove graffiti and fly posting from
cable boxes and telephone boxes resulting in a commitment by them to
clean their equipment. A further 10 of our worst graffiti hotspots have been
targeted and cleared.

In one operation over £1.5m of counterfeit goods were seized from
organised criminals in the borough.

Key actions for the next 3 years

Improve the natural environment — we will implement our open space
improvement programme by:

having more parks with Green Flags or green pennants. In our Local
Area Agreement we have made a commitment to increase the number
of parks with green flag awards to 12 by 2010.

planting 1000 additional trees by 2010

completing major refurbishments to Markfield, Chestnuts and
Lordship recreation grounds by 2010

continuing to protect Haringey’s open spaces through the Unitary
Development Plan (UDP) and the development of the Local Open Spaces
Standards for 2008

Continue to improve the cleanliness of the borough — we will make
Haringey cleaner by:

improving street cleaning, reducing the percentage of streets with
litter and detritus to 28% in 2007/08 and 24% by 2009/10

targeting dumping hotspots to reduce the amount of dumped rubbish
expanding and improving the Community Volunteer Wardens’ service
reducing the percentage of streets with litter and detritus in super out
put areas to 20% by 2010 (Local Area Agreement target)

Improve road condition, street infrastructure and road safety — we will
make improvements by:

delivering the planned maintenance programme for streetlights, roads
13



Page 190

and pavements

e completing the housing estates project on street lighting

e delivering the Parking Plan, including the installation of additional pay
and display machines

e maximizing 20 mph schemes and Safe Routes to School schemes as
part of the LIP — BSP submission

e 30 fewer people killed or seriously injured by 2010, in line with
achieving our PSA target (a 40% reduction from the 1994-98 average)
and the Mayor of London’s target

Contribute to the reduction of crime and fear of crime in Haringey - in
line with residents’ priorities, by working with the police and other partners
by:

e contributing to the reduction of domestic violence crimes in Haringey
through the extended work of Hearthstone and the new nightline
advice and support service

e reducing offences against children and young people through
targeted work in specific neighbourhoods, acting on police
intelligence

e undertaking a rolling programme of test purchasing of under age
sales to catch traders that sell knives, alcohol, cigarettes, aerosol
paint and solvents to our children

e launching an improved out of hours service that targets nuisance and
criminal behaviour, in particular intervening and stopping noise
nuisance at night

e installing additional CCTV cameras in 2007/08

e carrying out more than 600 joint operations each year with our
enforcement partners including the police to target environmental and
organised crime

e reducing alcohol and drug misuse amongst young people, together
with the effects of parental alcohol and drug misuse on children and
young people

e The Youth Offending Service is working with Tottenham Hotspurs Football
Club to develop new reparation schemes for young offenders.

For details on how we will achieve our priorities, and for measures and

targets see Appendix 1 of this plan and the individual business plans on
Harinet.

The key plans and strategies for delivering our priorities

Plan/Strategy Contact Officer
The Parking Plan - provides a policy Ann Cunningham

14



Page 191

Plan/Strategy Contact Officer

framework for the Council’s parking
management activities. The overall aim of
the plan is to help support a better and
safer environment for the Borough.

Head of Parking Service
Urban Environment
020 8489 1355

E: ann.cunningham@haringey.gov.uk

The LIP — BSP submission

The LIP demonstrates how the Council’s
local transport plans and programmes will
contribute to implementing the key
priorities set by the Mayor of London.

Malcolm Smith
Team Leader Transportation
020 8489 5574

Urban Environment
Malcolm.smith@haringey.gov.uk

The Domestic Violence Strategy
2004-2008 - sets out how issues around
domestic violence will be tackled. Aims
and priorities in this strategy are in line
with the London Domestic Violence
Strategy.

Eve Featherstone

Principal Equalities & Diversity Officer
Policy, Performance, Partnerships &
Communication

020 8489 2583
eve.featherstone@haringey.gov.uk

Protecting Vulnerable Adults from
Abuse 2005

Together with the policy and procedure
sets out a framework for reporting and
addressing abuse of adults.

Olive Komba-Kono

Adult Protection Manager

Adult, Culture and Community Services
020 8489 3191

olive.komba-kono@haringey.gov.uk

The Children and Young People’s
Plan 2006-09 - outlines the strategic
priorities for improving services for
children, young people and their families
and carers in Haringey.

Patricia Walker

Policy and Performance Manager-
Children and Young People’s
Service

020 8489 3850

e: patricia.walker@haringey.gov.uk

Safer Communities Strategy -

sets out how we will tackle criminal and
anti-social behaviour and reduce the harm
caused by drugs and alcohol.

Claire Kowalska

Community Safety Development Co-
ordinator

020 8489 6949

claire.kowalska@haringey.gov.uk

Enforcement Strategy - sets our
priorities and plan for implementing
enforcement for the next 4 years

Robin Payne
Assistant Director for Enforcement

020 8489 5513
robin.payne@haringey.gov.uk

Open Spaces Strategy 2005- provides
a framework for future management for
the development of open spaces in the
borough.

John Morris

Assistant Director Recreation
Services

Adult, Culture and Community Services
020 8489 5602

John.morris@haringey.gov.uk

15




Page 192

3. Encouraging lifetime well-being, at home, work, play and
learning

What does this priority mean?

The Council has an essential role in making Haringey a place where people can
flourish, and where people want to live, work and play. We play a key part in
providing universal services, for example schools, leisure, libraries and housing.

Link to Community Strategy
This priority links to the Community Strategy priorities: ‘Economic vitality and
prosperity shared by all’and ‘Healthier people with a better quality of life’.

Key achievements in 2006/07

e GCSE results improved for the fifth year running, with progress
in Haringey since 2001 being twice the national average - 52% of pupils
achieved 5 or more A*— C grades at GCSEs in 20086.

¢ A new 6th Form Centre has been built and will open in September 2007,
and 120 new primary school places have been provided in the west of the
borough.

e Almost all schools have achieved well against the national targets for the
Extended Schools programme. For 2007, 30% of all schools have
extended opening hours from 8am to 6pm, providing breakfast clubs and
other facilities.

e 936 new homes were provided in the largest affordable housing programme

underway in London.

e The Home Connections scheme is now in place to deliver choice based
lettings.

e Employment opportunities have been offered to more than 500 local people

through the ‘Haringey Guarantee’ scheme, offering work placement and
interviews as well as training.

e There were 1.8 million visits to our libraries in the period April 2006 to
January 2007. Borrowing is up more than any other London borough, and
the ‘Supa-Kiosk’ system enables users to issue and check in books
themselves.

16




Page 193

The new sports, health and fitness facilities at White Hart Lane Community
Sports Centre, Tottenham Green and Park Road leisure centres, attracted
more than a million visits in 2006/07, up 25% on the previous year.

Key actions for the next 3 years

Children and Young People - The Children and Young People’s Plan
2006-2009 sets out the vision for children and young people in Haringey
and how the five outcomes - being healthy, staying safe, enjoying and
achieving, making a positive contribution and achieving economic well-
being will be delivered.

We shall ensure that all children and young people have a bright future, and
enjoy the best life chances by:

developing high quality early childhood provision across the borough,
opening 18 Children’s Centres by April 2008

reducing the percentage of pupils absent (half day absences) from
primary schools to 5.4% and to 7.9% in secondary schools by
2009/10

raising standards in Haringey schools and reaching the national
average for 5 or more A*-C grades at GCSE by 2010

improving provision for 13-19 year olds through the Youth Service
and enabling young people to enjoy wider opportunities through a
broad curriculum and out of school learning

improving the quality and range of play provision, supported by a new
play strategy and bid for the Big Lottery fund

reducing the proportion of 16 to 18 year olds not in education,
employment or training to 10.4% by 2009/10 (Local Area Agreement
target)

continuing to implement the Extended Schools programme with 50%
of all primary and 30% of all secondary schools having extended
hours to provide additional facilities, including more breakfast clubs
refurbishing or rebuilding all our secondary school buildings including
updating ICT facilities through Building Schools for the Future. This
programme will include building a new secondary school and sixth
form centre by 2011

investing in primary schools and expanding those with under capacity
through the primary schools capital programme

increasing the percentage of 19 year olds qualified to Level 2 to
68.5% by 2009/10 (a Local Area Agreement commitment)

increasing the number of schools achieving the National Healthy
Schools status to 67 by 31 December 2009 (a Local Area Agreement
commitment)

Improve Housing by:

17



Page 194

e meeting the Decent Homes Standard. We have set up an ALMO to
achieve this and the Audit Commission will be inspecting Homes for
Haringey in May 2007

e continuing to provide a sustainable, long term rent deposit scheme
through the accredited lettings scheme. The scheme allows eligible,
low income tenants to access good quality private rented
accommodation in Haringey, through the private sector rent deposit
option

e developing a discretionary licensing scheme for Houses in Multiple
Occupation for 2008, that will seek to control managed properties in
the borough and will target rogue landlords and empty properties for
enforcement action

e expanding choice based lettings

Increase opportunities for leisure by:

e increasing the proportion of adults taking part in sport and
recreational activity. In our Local Area Agreement we have made a
commitment to increase the participation rate, as measured by the
national Active People survey to 26.9% by 2009/10

e protecting the future of Alexandra Palace

e developing a greater range of social activities within community
settings

e raising the cultural profile of central Tottenham, using the campus of
the Bernie Grant Centre and Tottenham Town Hall, Tottenham Green
Leisure Centre, Marcus Garvey Library and the College of North East
London. Hornsey Town Hall will become the cultural centre for
Crouch End.

Maintain and extend our library services by:

e achieving a higher profile for cultural services within Haringey Council, by
effectively integrating arts, libraries and learning services under the broad
umbrella of Adult, Culture and Community Services

e enabling libraries to become community hubs; providing safe, accessible
and attractive library buildings for all communities to use, expanding the
range of services offered, developing Libraries Plus Plus Plus, with a variety
of additional facilities

e ensuring that all of our stock is in good condition, well displayed and
appropriate to the needs of the community

o offering users a broad range of modern ICT facilities and digital resources,
to combat the Digital Divide and improve computer literacy within our
communities

e extending library services to people who may not currently use them by
further developing outreach services, for example to community buildings

e taking forward plans to develop major funding bids, including those to
support the development of Bruce Castle Museum and the regeneration of
the Markfield site.

For details on how we will achieve our priorities, and for measures and
targets see Appendix 1of this plan and the individual business plans on

18



Page 195

Harinet.

The key plans and strategies for delivering our priorities

Plan/Strategy Contact Officer

The Children and Young People’s Plan
2006-09 - outlines the strategic priorities for
improving services for children, young people
and their families and carers in Haringey.

Patricia Walker

Policy and Performance Manager-
Children and Young People’s
Service

t: 020 8489 3850

patricia.walker@haringey.gov.uk

The Haringey Housing Strategy 2003-
2008 -

describes the actions we will take across all
tenures to improve housing options and
conditions for local people.

Denise Gandy
Head of Strategy and Performance
Urban Environment

020 8489 4237
denise.gandy@haringey.gov.uk

The Sports and Physical Activity
Strategy —

Sets out our approach to the delivery of sport
and physical activity across the borough,
through which participation levels will be
increased year on year.

Paul Ely

Policy & Development Manager
Recreation Services

Adult, Culture and Community
Services

020 8489 5642
paul.ely@haringey.gov.uk

Haringey’s Well-being Strategic
Framework (forthcoming)

This overarching framework identifies the
strategic priorities for improving well-being in
Haringey is designed to enable people to live
independently for as long as possible in their
own homes through strengthening community
based services.

Helena Pugh

Interim Head of Policy

Adult, Culture and Community
Services

020 8489 2943
helena.pugh@haringey.gov.uk

4. Promoting independent living while supporting adults and

children when needed

19




Page 196

What does this priority mean?

Our interventions will be targeted and well timed, optimising our limited resources
to maximise independence and enable people to play fulfil their potential in society.
Part of this priority includes making Haringey a place with a vibrant local economy.
We will proactively tackle decline and attract growth sectors.

Link to Community Strategy
This priority links to the Community Strategy priority: ‘Healthier people with a better
quality of life’.

Key achievements in 2006/07

Children’s Social Care has been rated 3 out of 4 in the recent Joint Area
Review

GCSE results for ‘looked after’ children improved again, up nine per cent on
2005

The Supporting People Service helped more than a 9,000 vulnerable people
to live independently in their own homes and was rated as a ‘good’ 2 star
service in an independent inspection in October 2006

88% of occupational therapy equipment was issued within seven days

132 adults and older people, per 100,000 population received a direct
payment, up from 89 in 2005/06.

Key actions for the next 3 years

Support vulnerable people to live independently with a better quality of
life by:

ensuring that assessments and reviews are person centred and
shared with service users and carers

reducing waiting times on assessments and care packages
implementing rehabilitative strategies to reduce admissions to
hospital

continuing to deliver the Supporting People programme which
includes £4 million re-commissioning of mental health services
implementing the Day Services Strategy which will support more
people into voluntary work and learning

helping older people to live independently in their own homes
ensuring that vulnerable people have access to a flexible range of
housing and support options

promoting the use of direct payments as widely as possible
furthering access to employment through individualized budgets

20




Page 197

better supporting adults with mental health problems by implementing
the recommendations of the Mental Health inspection

increasing the choice and availability of community meals, including
providing culturally appropriate meals

providing support for unpaid carers, including preparing for when they
are no longer able to care by increasing the number of high quality
carers’ breaks to 13,368 in 2007/08

developing re-ablement services to expand access to homecare for
all residents aged 18+

supporting people in the move from temporary to permanent
accommodation

improving our performance information and, in the first instance,
regaining our 2 star status for adult social services

improving benefit take up rates to eradicate child poverty, through the
implementation of the Income Maximisation Strategy

reducing the average time taken to process new housing benefit and
council tax benefit claims, to 27 days (almost England top quartile
performance) by 2009/10.

Support all children- the Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-09 sets
out how we will protect and improve life chances for vulnerable children.
Key actions include:

increasing the percentage of core assessments completed within
timescales

promoting better life chances for care leavers by increasing the
proportion in education, employment or training to 78% by 2009/10
increasing the number and quality of local placements and improving
adoptions to 9.5% by 2009/10

ensuring that children and young people with disabilities have a
transition plan as they approach school leaving age

introducing the Child Index

developing joint commissioning with the Haringey Teaching Primary
Care Trust.

Prevent Homelessness - building on our existing work, we will focus
activity on:

reducing the use of temporary accommodation in line with the
Government’s 2010 target

maximizing the development of affordable housing through effective
partnership working

implementing the Allocations Policy ensuring equitable housing
allocation

Continue to regenerate the borough and provide prosperity for all by:

continuing the development of Haringey Heartlands, creating 1,200
new jobs and 1,200 new school places
using the strategic location of Tottenham Hale to meet the demand

21



Page 198

for high quality workspace and new homes.

e implementing employment programmes targeted at those in contact
with Haringey Council, young people, incapacity benefit claimants
and workers in low skilled employment

e increasing the number of people from priority neighbourhoods into
sustained work to 120 (Local Area Agreement target)

e creating a further 110 jobs for lone parents and adult carers (Local

Area Agreement target)

e helping 180 residents on incapacity benefit for 6 months or more into

work (Local Area Agreement target)

For details on how we will achieve our priorities, and for measures and
targets see Appendix 1of this plan and the individual business plans on

Harinet.

The ke

Plan/Strategy

The Children and Young People’s Plan
2006-09 - outlines the strategic priorities for
improving services for children, young people
and their families and carers in Haringey.

plans and strategies for delivering our priorities
ontact Officer

Patricia Walker

Policy and Performance Manager-

Children and Young People’s
Service

020 8489 3850
e: patricia.walker@haringey.gov.uk

Haringey’s Well-being Strategic
Framework (forthcoming)

This overarching framework identifies the
strategic priorities for improving well-being in
Haringey is designed to enable people to live
independently for as long as possible in their
own homes through strengthening community
based services.

Helena Pugh

Interim Head of Policy

Adult, Culture and Community
Services

020 8489 2943
E: helena.pugh@haringey.gov.uk

The Supporting People Strategy 2005 -
2010- sets out the aims and objectives of
our Supporting People programme and
this will support independent living

Mathew Pelling

Supporting People Programme
Manager: Adult, Culture and
Community Services

020 8489 3340
E: mathew.pelling@haringey.gov.uk

The Day Services Strategy — aims to
support people with different levels of
needs, from those with complex needs
through to those who are independent
with skills and time to share with others.

Tom Brown

Service Manager Older People,
Adult, Culture and Community
Services

020 8489 5922
E: tom.brown@haringey.gov.uk

The Employment and Skills Strategy — sets
out objectives for all partners and providers in
Haringey to tackle the high rates of economic
inactivity. It provides a framework to build

Martin Tucker

Regeneration Manager (Employment

& Skills)
Urban Environment

22




Page 199

Plan/Strategy
strong links with employers both locally and
across the region.

Contact Officer

020 8489 2689
E: martin.tucker@haringey.gov.uk

Haringey Homelessness Strategy 2003-
2008

Sets out Haringey’s long term strategic
approach to preventing and tackling
homelessness.

Nigel Long
Strategy and Partnerships
Manager, Urban Environment

020 8489
E: nigel.long@haringey.qgov.uk

Sexual Health Strategy - The Strategy and
Action Plan present a framework in which
services can deliver change and improvement
in the sexual well-being of the people living in
Haringey.

Bernard Lanigan

Service Manager Physical
Disabilities & Occupational Therapy
Service: Adult, Culture and
Community Services

020 8489 3771

E: bernard.lanigan@haringey.gov.uk

Haringey Guarantee —

Is the Worklessness Statement, launched
in April 2007 which sets out how partners
and providers will tackle the high rates of
economic inactivity in Haringey.

Martin Tucker

Regeneration Manager (Employment
& Skills)

Urban Environment

020 8489 2689
E: martin.tucker@haringey.gov.uk

Income Maximisation Strategy -

now in development. The strategy will take
forward a number of recommendations to help
improve benefit take-up rates and improve the
provision of advice in the Borough.

Helena Pugh
Interim Head of Policy
Adult, Culture & Community Services

020 8489 2943
helena.pugh@haringey.gov.uk

23




Page 200

5. Delivering excellent, customer focused, cost effective
services

What does this priority mean?

Delivering excellent, customer focused value for money services, is essential both
in itself and to promote trust in the Council and the borough. The engagement of
the community promotes community cohesion and integration.

Link to Community Strategy
This priority links to the Community Strategy priorities: ‘People and customer
focused..

Key achievements in 2006/07

The Council has achieved 3 stars, out of a possible 4, in the recent Audit
Commission assessment, and is judged to be improving well. The Council
also scored 3 out of 4 on all elements of the Use of Resources assessment,
including providing value for money.

Our annual residents’ survey found that 64% of residents felt we were doing
a good job. 66% of residents stated that the local council is making the area
a better place to live and 80% said that the local area is a place where
people from different backgrounds get on well.

Neighbourhood Management officers continued to engage with residents,
acting as brokers and enablers for council services. Area based working
bringing together Housing, Environment and Safer Neighbourhood services,
was piloted in three areas

We carried out successful neighbourhood projects, such as the Youth
Engagement on the Campsbourne Estate.

We worked with our diverse communities, through a range of specific
forums, including a new Haringey Somali Forum has been established, the
first such forum in London.

The ‘Under One Sun’ Community Project in Northumberland Park has been
established, bringing together local women from a wide range of minority
ethnic groups to cook meals and share cultures, creating greater community
cohesion and support.

We have developed the Haringey Compact Working Better Together which
provides a framework agreement for Haringey’s voluntary, community and
public sector organisations to promote positive engagement and good
working relations between and across the sectors.

24




Page 201

We have improved procurement of goods and services, introducing an
innovative contract for the provision of temporary staff for the Council and
reduced the number of invoices received from 48,000 to just 26.

We have introduced electronic payment facilities by which we collected £3
million of income.

Key actions for the next 3 years

Consult and engage with our residents by:

engaging at a local level through neighbourhood management and the Area
Assemblies

improving our customer services performance, ensuring 90% of calls
to our Call Centre presented are answered

co-ordinating consultation across the council and publishing an
accessible calendar of forthcoming consultation both on our website
and in Haringey People.

Improving residents’ perceptions by

promoting the Highways and Street Cleaning Services

replacing the ‘Did you Know’ campaign with a ‘Better Together’ drive
to reinforce partnerships with residents and businesses

increasing the number of pages per issue of Haringey People to
accommodate more ‘Focus On..." issues

developing specific actions to address findings of the Residents and
Tracker Survey

Supporting Councillors by

delivering the 2007/08 Member Learning and Development
Programme and strategy

seeking accreditation through the Member Learning & Development —
London Councils Charter Status for our Member & Development
Programme.

supporting members to effectively carry out their community
leadership role across the organisation.

Maintain community cohesion and celebrate the diversity of the
borough by:

working through Neighbourhood Management to engage with new
communities. Following our successful access to services event for
the Polish community, extending this approach to other communities
promoting community cohesion through Area Assemblies with
initiatives such as ‘meet the neighbours’, now focusing on young
people and older people.

rolling out across the borough the ‘Off the Street, Less Heat’ youth

25



Page 202

project

e continuing our three year programme for the Summer University, a
major partnership project between the Youth Service,
Neighbourhoods, Safer Communities, Recreation and Connexions

e organising a programme of equalities events to commemorate; the
bicentenary of the law to abolish slavery, Holocaust Memorial Day,
lesbian gay bisexual and transgender history month, International
Women’s Day, Peace Week, Black History Month, International Day
of Disabled Persons.

e setting up a Muslim Women’s forum in partnership with a local
mosque, to provide the opportunity for women to participate in a
programme of events, to engage women in civic activities and provide
further opportunities for them to fully participate in society.

Embed the improved arrangements for securing value for money
Council-wide by:
e carrying out efficiency reviews in areas where there are concerns
about cost, performance and residents’ perception
e reducing sickness absence of our staff to 8.8 days per full-time
employee
e implementing a web-based Contract Management System that will
enable e-tendering with suppliers and centralized retention of contract
documentation.

Strengthen our Corporate Programme — Proposals are currently being
considered to revise our Corporate Programme. This revised framework will
be key for achieving excellence in service delivery and improving value for
money. It will be aimed at improving:

e organisational effectiveness - through projects such as external and
internal shared services, which will ensure that Haringey is well
placed to be involved in the national shared services agenda.

e customer focus — through projects such as area based working,
continuing the application of the customer services 80/80 vision and
street presence rationalisation

e people and processes - through projects such as flexible working and
accommodation and transactional process efficiency.

Better Haringey remains a key area in the Programme and will deliver
projects around the natural environment, environmental resource efficiency
and sustainable transportation. The regeneration programme will deliver
major projects such as Haringey Heartlands, Building Schools for the Future
and the Tottenham Hale Urban Centre.

Support and develop our staff and managers by:
26



Page 203

e building leadership and people management capacity by embedding new
leadership and management behaviours; providing employment frameworks
that encourage people and teams to deliver excellent services

e building workforce capacity by attracting, retaining, and developing talent in
the Council

e embedding the revised performance appraisal system and the new
competency framework

e ensuring that there is effective communication and engagement with the
workforce around the Council’s vision and priorities

e retaining our status as an Investors in People organisation in the
2007 reassessment.

Maximize resources, both capital and revenue, available to the council
including cash flow and debt management by:
e increasing the collection rate of council tax to 94.4% by 2009/10, rent
collection to 97.5% by 2007/08 and decreasing the proportion of
tenants with more than seven weeks arrears 10% by 2007/8.

Make best use of our property by:
e implementing the Corporate Asset Strategy
e increasing the percentage of buildings accessible to disabled people
to 50% by 2009/10.

For details on how we will achieve our priorities, and for measures and
targets see Appendix 1of this plan and the individual business plans on
Harinet.

The key plans and strategies for delivering our priorities

Plan/Strategy Contact Officer
Equalities Scheme 2007 -2010 - sets Inno Amadi
out how the Council will work to eliminate Principal Equalities Officer
discrimination and promote equality within Policy, Performance, Partnerships
its duties under all the anti-discrimination and Communication
legislation. 020 8489 2580
inno.amadi@haringey.gov.uk
Member Learning and Development Yuniea Semambo
Strategy and Policy Statement - to Head of Member Services
ensure that members are empowered to | People and Organisational
provide effective and accountable Development
political leadership. 020 8489 2623
Yuniea.semambo@haringey.gov.uk
Customer Charter - Robert Smith
Outlines the behaviour and standards of | Project Officer, Customer
council employees that customers can Services: Corporate
expect in the provision of services. Resources
020 8489 2066

27



Page 204

Robert.smith@haringey.gov.uk
Consultation Strategy - Janette Wallace Gedge
The Strategy applies across the whole Consultation Manager
Council and enables effective, co-ordinated | Policy, Performance, Partnerships
consultation to be undertaken. and Communication

020 8489 2914
Janette.gedge@haringey.gov.uk

Corporate Asset Management Plan Dinesh Kotecha

2006-2011 Head of Property Services
The purpose of this is to ensure that Corporate Resources
property assets support service priorities | 020 8489 2101

and corporate objectives. Dinesh.kotecha@haringey.gov.uk
People Management Strategy — to Philippa Morris

ensure that we achieve success through | Head of Corporate OD

our people. People and Organisational

Development

020 8489 1088
Philippa.morris@haringey.gov.uk

6. Our Decision Making Arrangements

The Council has 57 Councillors, three for each of the 19 wards in the
borough, who are elected for four year terms by voters in their ward.
Councillors set the policies and priorities for the council. They also
represent the residents of their ward.

The Council has a Cabinet that makes the decisions about what the Council
does. The Cabinet is chosen by the majority elected party and ratified at the
annual full Council meeting. The Forward Plan lists all decisions that the
Cabinet and its decision making sub-bodies will be taking. It is published
monthly and covers a four month period.

The Council’s constitution sets out how we operate, how decisions are
made and the procedures we follow to ensure that these are efficient,
transparent and accountable to local people. Some of these processes are
required by law while others have been agreed locally.

In Haringey the scrutiny function is independent of the Cabinet. There is an
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, consisting of seven nominated non-
Cabinet councillors and seven co-optees. Non-Cabinet members must
reflect the political balance of the full Council.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee establishes Task and Finish Scrutiny
28



Page 205

Review Panels to look at specific topics or issues. The Committee
scrutinises performance and budget proposals as well as and contributes to
policy development.

Day to day decisions are taken on behalf of the Cabinet by council officers,
operating within a policy framework and within a budget that is set by the
Council.

7. Engaging with our communities and partners

7.1 Haringey’s Strategic Partnership

The Council holds a unique position in the borough through its democratic
mandate. This allows us to work with our partners in the Haringey Strategic
Partnership (HSP) to deliver seamless services to our residents.

Chaired by the Leader of the council, the HSP is the forum for agreeing the
strategic priorities for the borough and ensuring that all partners deliver our
shared priorities for the benefit of all our residents.

7.2 The new Haringey Community Strategy — A Sustainable Way Forward
2007-2016, became effective in April 2007. It articulates how partner
agencies will work together to make Haringey a safe, vibrant place people
are proud of but also take responsibility for. Elected Members have a
leading role is shaping Haringey the place. The Haringey Community
Strategy (HCS) was developed following extensive consultation - the Have
your say Haringey — Shape the Future campaign.

The Haringey Community Strategy sets out a long term vision for the
borough together with clear outcomes:
“A place for diverse communities that we can all be proud of”
e People at the heart of change
An environmentally sustainable future
Economic vitality and prosperity shared by all
Safer for all
Healthier people with a better quality of life
People and customer focused

7.3 The Local Area Agreement

Alongside the development of the Haringey Community Strategy, we have
developed, with partners, a Local Area Agreement (LAA) which took effect
from April 2007.

The LAA is a three year agreement between Central Government and the
Local Strategic Partnership that sets agreed shared outcomes for the local
area. Achievement of these outcomes will be rewarded by central
government funding.

29



Page 206

Haringey’s LAA has five overarching themes:
Building on success- a targeted approach to areas and communities

The Council is the lead agency for delivering some of the agreed targets
and these are highlighted in this Council Plan. The agreement contains 13

to accelerate progress

Increasing Employment and Creating Prosperity

Positive Choices for Young People (14-24)
Active listening and increasing Community
Improving Health and Well-being

performance targets where the Council has agreed to achieve substantial

improvement by setting stretch targets over and beyond what would normally be

achievable.

Blocks

Lead Partner(s)

Number of schools achieving “healthy school” status

Children and Young
People’s Service
HTPCT

2 % of 19 yr olds with level 2 qualifications Children and Young
People’s Service
Connexions CoNEL
LSC
3 Reduce the proportion of young people aged 16 to 18 | Connexions
not in education, employment or training (NEET)-
4 Reduce Personal Robbery Police
5 Reduce the number of violent crimes across Haringey Council
Haringey’s communities with specific reference to Police
reducing the number of repeat victims of domestic
violence
6 Reduce of litter & detritus in super output areas Urban Environment
Services
7 Increase in the number of green flag award parks and | Adult, Culture and
green space and public satisfaction Community Services
8 Increase recycling participation within super output Urban Environment
areas
9 Smoking cessation: Increase the number of quitters HTPCT
living in N17
10 | Increase the proportion of adults undertaking at least HTPCT/ Adult,
30 minutes of moderate intensity physical activity on 3 | Culture and
or more days per week. Community Services
11 | Improve living conditions for vulnerable people Urban Environment
Adult, Culture and
Community Services
Fire Services
12 | Increase the number of people from the 12 ‘worst Economic
wards’ helped into sustained work. Regeneration

30



Page 207

| Blocks | Lead Partner(s)
13 | Increase the number of people on Incapacity Benefits | Economic
more than 6 months into sustainable employment. Regeneration

8. Valuing our staff

The Council will only ever be as successful as the people who lead it and work for
it. Our leaders need to inspire, manage and develop our people to deliver their
best.

We need to work together for the good of our diverse communities, confident and
building on our achievements, whilst ensuring that basic services are delivered
efficiently, effectively and meet or exceed customer expectations.

The council has long recognised the importance of organisational culture and
people’s behaviour as a major determinant of our ability to meet our aims and
aspirations. In January 2006 the Council agreed the following statements as the
‘Haringey Way of Working’ — our values:

e Sevice - we work for the good of all our diverse communities

¢ Integrity - we keep our promises

e Improvement - we strive for excellence

e Passion - we are passionate about our work and proud of what we do
¢ One Council — we deliver by working together

Our values have shaped the competencies (behaviours) that sit of the heart of our

people and performance management frameworks. They will help to ensure that
our values live at every level and in every corner of the organisation.

31



Page 208

Competency Framework Overview

Self-development
& Learning
Political &
Organisational
Awareness

Innovation &
Finding Solutions

ONE

Networks & GoruNdiL

Partnerships Teamwork

INTEGRITY IMPROVEMENT

Managing Leading
Feople SERVICE PASSION Change

<SRN

We will continue to use People Planning to develop the organisation and build the

confidence, capability and capacity of the Haringey workforce The plans will help

us to ensure that we have:

Our People Plans form a key part of every business unit’s business plan and
identify actions to develop, re-skill, skill-up, recruit, retain and re-task people to

‘The right people with the right skills in the right jobs at the right time, to
deliver highly performing, efficient and effective services to our communities,
without compromising their work-life balance’.

meet the objectives of their Business units. The key People Planning headings for

2007-10 are:

Sustainable Workforce: to ensure sustainability of the workforce through
targeted recruitment and retention programme.
Shared Vision & Values: to ensure that staff know and understand the

common goals, beliefs and purpose of the organisation and of the service.

Skills & Knowledge: to continually develop people's professional and non-
professional skills and knowledge and provide support through periods of

Style of Management: to increase the capacity of managers at all levels to
deliver quality services through use of performance management framework
and tools.

32



Page 209

e Developing the Service: to achieve excellence through job redesign, equality
and diversity in service delivery, and flexible working.

Our achievement of corporate Investors in People status is testimony to the

strength of our organisational and workforce activities.

We will develop and refine our people management strategies to support council
goals and priorities. We will support this with solid human resource matrices and a
clear understanding of benefits, costs and the return we expect from our
investment in people.

9. Financial Management
9.1 The Council’s Financial Strategy

The Council prepares a three-year budget which is updated annually, this

is the Medium Term Financial Strategy. This approach helps us to anticipate
opportunities, commitments and risks identified during business planning as well as
allowing us to move resources to address our priorities. The Medium Term
Financial Strategy is integral to the Council’s business planning process. It
supports the Council Plan so that the Council can be clear about what it aims to
achieve and how it will allocate its financial resources. Bringing together services
and financial planning in this way is crucial for the Council and will help to keep a
focus on priorities in the future.

9.2 Key Principles of the Strategy
The key principles of the strategy are set out below and underpin the financial
planning for the medium term.

Value for money — the Council is committed to providing value for money for all of
its services. An integral part of business plans and a key measure of the success
of a service is whether it can demonstrate that it is delivering value for money
against measures of cost, performance and perception.

Investment in key priorities — through the business planning process resources are
allocated to key Council priorities in order to deliver and maintain sustained
improvements to services. In 2006/07 a number of key investments were made,
totalling £18 million in particular for Better Haringey and the cleaner, greener and
safer improvements. New investments on key priorities of £2 million has also been
agreed.

Efficiency savings — continuous review and improvement of services to achieve
year-on-year efficiency savings so that resources can be directed to front line
priorities. Building on previous savings, we have identified a further £19 million to
be delivered over the next four years as a result of the annual business planning
process and challenge to existing working practices and delivery mechanisms.
External funding and partnerships — maximising external funding and partnership

33



Page 210

working to deliver increased and improved services with the minimum impact on
council tax levels, in particular delivering sustainable regeneration investment to
increase local economic activity.

Council tax levels — increases in council tax will be kept as low as possible, but
sufficient to deliver sustained investment in key services. The increase

in 2007/08 is 3.0% and further 3% increases are assumed in each of the next three
years.

Balances and reserves — a prudent level of balances and reserves will be
maintained in accordance with the Council’s approved reserves policy. The
approach is defined by the Council’s statement of internal control and covers areas
such as risk management strategy, achieving value for money and financial and
performance management. The target level for the general fund general reserve is
£10 million and this is achieved within the existing plans.

Capital — in accordance with the existing allocation policy all resources are
considered corporately, other than those specifically ring-fenced for the education
and housing revenue accounts. Investment opportunities need to demonstrate
clear links and benefits against corporate priorities, meet requirements of asset
management plans and consider any revenue implications, all as part of the
business planning process.

Balance sheet — the achievement of a strong balance sheet including reductions in
debt, sufficient provisions for bad debts, improved cash flow and positive
management of treasury opportunities.

The Council’s financial planning, though currently operating from a position
of strength, faces risks from external factors and policy changes. Some of
these may include:

e maintaining and improving the Council’s rating in the Comprehensive
Performance Assessment, and against the Use of Resources and
Value for Money assessments.

e changes to the local authority grant settlement for 2006/07 resulting
in the ring fenced dedicated schools grant (DSG), an alternative grant
system to replace the formula spending shares by service (FSS),
three year settlements for local authorities linked to government
spending review periods next three year results to be announced in
2007, use of population projections and reduced weighting for
deprivation.

e challenges to the delivery of capital resources for delivering ‘decent
homes’ with a £228 million bid and the Building Schools for the Future
programme of £194 million.

e long term management of the pension fund with results of the next
valuation known in early 2008.

e autumn 2007 government’s response to the Lyons Report, though
capping powers will probably remain.

e homelessness is a key risk with the continued high numbers of clients

34



Page 211

and uncertainty associated with the subsidy regime

e the reduction in the Supporting People allocation of £1.1 million for
2007/08, although planned for will have an impact on the level of
services that can be commissioned

The management of risk is a key part of the Council’s business and budget
planning processes and is fully reflected in service budget plans.

The Council’s financial reserves remain strong, continuing to attract a good score
within the CPA process. This financial strength plays a vital part in enabling the
Council to respond vigorously to the strategic and performance agendas whilst
managing the financial risks inherent in the operation of a large and complex
organisation. The budget management information for 2006/07 indicates no
significant overspending for the year and this is to be welcomed.

Financial plans 2007/08 to 2010/11
The financial plans, budget and council tax level were approved at the Council in
February 2007.

The overall four year position is balanced with assumed council tax increases of
3.0% each year, but with £5 million of savings to be identified from years two and
three. The latter is included in the planned efficiency savings line in the below
table.

9.3 Summary financial information
This information is contained in the following tables.

35



Page 212

General fund budget requirement
Gross budget brought forward

Inflation

Other changes and variations approved

Function changes arising from 2007/08
settlement

Planned efficiency savings *
Planned investments

Passing to schools increase in dedicated
schools grant

Addition to/(planned use of) balances
Gross Council budget requirement
Less dedicated schools grant (specific grant)

Net Council budget requirement
Funding

Council tax (see below)
Government support - formula grant and
NNDR

* planned efficiency savings as % of net
budget requirement

Council tax

Council tax (LBH)
Council tax base (after provision for non-
recovery)

Precept
Rate of council tax increase (Haringey
element)

GLA rate of council tax increase
Combined council tax increase

£ per week increase (Haringey element)
Estimated reserves (at 31 March)
General fund general balance

Housing revenue account general balance
Earmarked reserves (incl. schools, PFl,
insurance)

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
366,511 384,602 397,311 409,500

8,000 8,420 8,840 9,260
8,675 10,767 (5,053) 1,898

106 0 0 0
(7,879) (9,837) (3,847) (2,745)
(3,068) 593 0 40
12,234 6,273 6,524 6,785

23 (3,507) 5,725 (2,645)
384,602 | 397,311 409,500 422,093

(156,829) | (163,102) |  (169,626) |  (176,411)
227,773 | 234,209 239,874 245,682
95,265 98,123 101,066 104,099
132,508 | 136,086 138,808 141,583
227,773 | 234,209 239,874 245,682

3.5% 4.2% 1.6% 1.1%
£ £ £ £
1,127.83 | 1,161.66 1,196.51 1,232.41
84,468 84,468 84,468 84,468
95,265,544 | 98,123,097 | 101,066,807 | 104,099,208
3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
5.3% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
3.5% 3.4% 3.4% 3.4%
£0.63 £0.65 £0.67 £0.69
9,713 6,848 12,573 9,928
3,433 4,527 5,013 5,026
47,242 44,879 43,943 43,007
60,388 56,254 61,529 57,961

36




Page 213

The four year capital programme totals over £500 million of investment and is
summarised in the table below.

Proposed | Indicative Indicative Indicative
Budget Budget Budget Budget
Approved Capital Programme 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Expenditure by Department
Urban Environment 17,037 10,181 9,641 8,844 45,703
Adults, Culture & Community
Services 3,003 1,820 1,470 1,542 7,835
Corporate Resources 5,857 6,170 2,000 1,000 15,027
Children & Young People 52,909 62,260 59,060 31,539 205,768
Sub totals 78,806 80,431 72,171 42,925 274,333
Homes for Haringey 19,278 61,422 77,336 74,828 232,864
Total Expenditure 98,084 141,853 149,507 117,753 507,197
Funded by:
Capital grants from central
government departments 41,090 57,135 49,760 26,539 174,524
Grants and contribution from
private developers & leaseholders 249 0 0 0 249
Grants & contributions from non-
departmental public bodies 0 442 400 0 842
Capital grants from the National
Lottery 290 300 207 0 797
Capital funding from GLA bodies 4,215 6,000 6,000 6,000 22,215
Use of capital receipts 10,216 8,432 5,499 3,981 28,128
Capital expenditure financed from
the HRA 1,054 0 0 0 1,054
Capital expenditure financed by
the Major Repairs Reserve 11,991 12,133 12,366 12,644 49,134
Capital expenditure financed the
general fund revenue account 4,721 2,806 814 822 9,163
Central government borrowing
approvals 23,666 54,605 74,461 67,375 220,107
Other borrowing & credit
arrangements 592 0 0 392 984
Total Capital Financing 98,084 141,853 149,507 117,753 507,197

The above assumes a significant increase in investment in two main service areas:

37




Page 214

e the Building Schools for the Future (BSF) programme under the Children and
Young People Service of approximately £194 million for the provision of a new
Sixth Form Centre, a new secondary school and further investment in our
existing secondary schools. This is made up of £179m of central government
resources, £10 million from the Learning Skills Council contributing towards the
cost of the new Sixth Form Centre form centre and revenue contributions from
the DSG; and,

o the Decent Homes programme under Homes for Haringey for which a bid of
£228m has been made to bring the Council’s stock up to standard by 2010.
This will be financed by supported borrowing. The supported borrowing in
revenue impact terms will be in the housing revenue account. The costs of
borrowing will be met by actual government support and this will be kept under
close review.

The capital investment plans are considered as part of the treasury management
strategy and the following statement shows how the supported borrowing impacts
on the Council’s net debt position over the next four years.

Treasury management summary 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

statement 2007/08 to 2010/11 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Estimated investments as at 1 April 60,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
Estimated debt as at 1 April (640,162) | (635,291) (677,526) | (741,945)
Estimated net debt as at 1 April (580,162) | (605,291) (647,526) | (711,945)
Deduct:

Capital payments - general (78,806) (80,431) (72,171) (42,925)
Capital payments - HRA (19,278) (61,422) (77,336) (74,828)
Add:

Capital receipts 10,216 8,432 5,499 3,981
Capital grants 63,610 78,816 69,547 46,005

Revenue provisions for capital and

credit liabilities 16,137 12,370 10,042 10,020
In-year net debt movement (8,121) (42,235) (64,419) (57,747)
Estimated investments as at 31

March 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
Estimated debt as at 31 March (635,291) | (677,526) (741,945) | (799,692)

Estimated net debt as at 31
March (605,291) (647,526) (711,945) (769,692)

38



This also impacts on the Council’s projected balance sheet position which is set

Page 215

out in the following table. As the Council makes significant capital investment over
this period the additional (supported) borrowing to finance this capital is balanced

by increases in the asset base.

A further issue to note is the assumption that the Council continues to improve the
way that it manages income recovery and consequently this is reflected in further
reductions in our total position on debtors.

Estimated balance sheet 2007/08
to 2010/11

Housing Revenue Account
Land and buildings

Other assets

Fixed and Long Term Assets

Debtors

Investments

Cash and bank

Other current assets and liabilities
Net Current Assets

Long-term borrowing
Provisions

Other long-term liabilities
Long-term Liabilities

Total Assets less Liabilities

General Fund

Housing Revenue Account
Earmarked Reserves
Pension Reserve

Usable capital receipts
Reserves

Other equities

Total Equities

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
1,093,354 | 1,154,776 | 1,232,112 | 1,306,940
367,702 429,962 489,022 520,561
178,172 173,022 167,872 162,722
1,639,228 | 1,757,760 | 1,889,006 | 1,990,223
85,850 79,411 73,455 67,946
60,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
(7,329) (7,329) (7,329) (7,329)
(75,493) (75,493) (75,493) (75,493)
63,028 26,589 20,633 15,124
(640,162) | (635,291) | (677,526) | (741,945)
(8,537) (8,537) (8,537) (8,537)
(481,069) | (535,204) | (581,964) | (605,503)
(1,129,768) | (1,179,032) | (1,268,027) | (1,355,985)
572,488 605,318 641,613 649,363
9,713 6,206 11,931 9,286
3,433 3,433 3,433 3,433
47,242 42,242 37,242 32,242
(331,604) | (331,604) | (331,604) | (331,604)
5,339 5,339 5,339 5,339
(265,877) | (274,384) | (273,659) | (281,304)
838,365 879,702 915,272 930,667
572,488 605,318 641,613 649,363

The following statement is the Council’s budgeted cash flow position for the next

four years. It summarises the estimated inflows and outflows of cash arising from

transactions with third parties in line with the Council’s revenue and capital plans
as well as the projected treasury management position.

39



Page 216

Estimated cash flow statement 2007/08 to
2010/11

Revenue Activities
Payments

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
Other operating costs

Housing Benefit paid out
Subtotal

Precepts paid
Non-domestic rates paid to National Pool
Total payments

Receipts

Rents (after rebates)

Local Tax income

Government support - formula grant and
NNDR

Dedicated schools grant

Other government grants

Fees and charges

Total receipts

Net Cash Inflow from Revenue Activities

Servicing of Finance

Payments - interest paid
Receipts - interest received

Net Cash Outflow from Servicing of
Finance

2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2009/10 | 2010/11

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

295,176 | 295,176 | 295,176 295,176
209,934 | 222,643 | 234,832 247,425
228,578 | 228,578 | 228,578 228,578
733,688 | 746,397 | 758,586 771,179
25,668 | 25668 | 25,668 25,668
49,398 | 49,398 | 49,398 49,398
808,754 | 821,463 | 833,652 846,245
(15,169) | (15,169) | (15,169) (15,169)
(95,265) | (98,123) | (101,066) |  (104,099)
(132,508) | (136,086) | (138,808) |  (141,583)
(156,829) | (163,102) | (169,626) |  (176,411)
(346,484) | (346,484) | (346,484) |  (346,484)
(110,643) | (110,643) | (110,643) |  (110,643)
(856,898) | (869,607) | (881,796) |  (894,389)
(48,144) | (48,144) | (48,144) (48,144)
51,380 | 51,380 | 51,380 51,380
(3,236) | (3,236) | (3,236) (3,236)
48144 | 48144 | 48,144 48,144

40




Page 217

Estimated cash flow statement 2007/08 to

2010/11 2007/08 2008/09 | 2009/10 2010/11
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Capital payments 98,084 141,853 149,507 117,753

Total payments 98,084 141,853 149,507 117,753

Receipts

Sale of fixed assets (10,216) (8,432) (5,499) (3,981)

Capital grants received (63,610) (78,816) | (69,547) (46,005)

Provisions for capital and credit liabilities (16,137) (12,370) | (10,042) (10,020)

Total receipts (89,963) | (99,618) | (85,088) (60,006)

Net Cash Outflow from Capital Activities 8,121 42,235 64,419 57,747

Net Cash Inflow before Financing 8,121 42,235 64,419 57,747

Financing

Receipts

New loans to be raised (8,121) (42,235) | (64,419) (57,747)

Net Cash Outflow from Financing (8,121) (42,235) | (64,419) (57,747)

Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash

Equivalents 0 0 0 0

9.4 Government’s Code of Practice on workforce matters in local
authority service contracts

In letting contracts the Council adheres to the Government’s Code of Practice on
Workforce Matters in local authority service contracts. Our Corporate Procurement
Strategy recognises that the employment practices of our partners are relevant to
the purposes of achieving best value. We seek to ensure, through the
procurement process, that practices are governed by the principles of negotiation
and continuous service improvement by:

e Ensuring that relevant information on bidders’ employment practices is required
in the Invitation to Tender

e Incorporating the contractor’s ability to recruit and retain staff into the quality
assessment criteria

e Meeting the government guidelines in respect of a two tier workforce

¢ Requiring that all potential employers consider applying for Admitted Body
Status to the local government pension scheme

e Requiring that all potential employers consider recognising those trade unions
currently representing staff

e Ensuring that all TUPE regulations are applied.

41



Page 218

10. Performance Management and Business Planning

The Council is organised into 24 business units each of which has a business plan
that sets out how services are delivered and at what cost. The business plans
contain all the measures on which the performance of the business units is judged.

The business plans set out how each business unit contributes to the Council’s
priorities and for the basis of work plans for our staff. People Plans accompany the
business plans. These ensure that each unit has the required skills to deliver the
business.

Progress against the business plans is reviewed mid year through the Pre-
business Plan Review (PBPR) process. The review is reported to Scrutiny and
Executive members and feeds into budget planning, ensuring that resources are
directed to priorities. Business plans are also reviewed at year end. At this stage,
targets are set for three years in line with top quartile performance, where this is
realistic.

We report to the Council’'s Management Board and the Cabinet monthly on
performance against a basket of key indicators. These reports contain headline
resource information arising from budget monitoring as well as key performance
information.

Since April 2006 a balanced scorecard has been used for monitoring performance
corporately. This is based on monitoring around one hundred and fifty indicators in
four dimensions; customer focus, financial health, service excellence and
organisational development.

Monthly and year to date performance are each awarded a traffic light year to show
progress towards the target set for the year. In addition trend arrows show
progress since the last financial year, so that on-going improvement can also be
monitored. The traffic lights and arrows enable the Management Board and
Executive to assess current performance and to track progress throughout the year
against targets.

The diagram below shows our approach to performance management and how all
the component parts fit together.

42



Page 219

[ J { Community Strategy

Council Plan
Financial Strategy
Business Plans
The Programme
LAA

e

.
¥

HSP PMF

Pre Business Plan Reviews
Project Highlight reports
Finance & Performance
Reports (Balanced Scorecard)
Performance appraisals
Annual Residents Survey
Staff Survey

Complaints & Member
Enquires analysis

e

A AN
> EN
, ¥

Service / Efficiency reviews
Business Process Redesign
Project management
Scrutiny Reviews

——

10.1 How we will review this plan

We will use existing mechanisms to monitor the progress of the Council
Plan. It will be reviewed as part of the pre-business planning process at

mid year and at year end as part of the business planning and target setting

process.

Although this is a three year plan it will be updated annually as our priorities

evolve and performance changes.

43



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 221 Agenda ltem 10
INo.]

Report Title: Achieving excellence

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference]

Report of: Chief Executive

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key decision

1. Purpose
This paper is written to achieve several outcomes:

1.1 How the Council will develop a corporate programme to deliver a number of projects
to support the delivery of the Council Plan.

1.2 To propose revised programme management arrangements for our stream boards

1.3 To outline a range of internal and external programmes as a means of achieving
excellence in service delivery.

1.4 To set out a number of recommendations to take the achieving excellence strategy
forward.

2. Introduction by the Leader of the Council

2.1 As Leader of the Council | am determined that this council provides excellent service
for residents.

2.2 | ask members to endorse the report which will enable Haringey to further complete
the goals of achieving excellent service for the Borough.

2.3 Accordingly, Members are asked to agree the recommendations below which will
enable members and others to implement and, more importantly, achieve the
Excellence Strategy.

2.4 Our Goal is to provide Value for Money, efficient services and the structure laid out in
the report will enable members to achieve this.




Page 222

3. Recommendations
3.1 To agree the approach set out in this report: to achieve excellence in service delivery

3.2 That a strategic framework of pretendered suppliers is created to be used on a call off
basis to provide expertise to support project delivery

3.3 That the timescales for the next steps set out in paragraph 14.4. are noted

3.4 That this report is the first of a series of reports to members as business cases are
developed for agreed projects within the programme

Report Authorised by: Chief Executive

Contact Officer: Ita O’'Donovan Chief Executive

4. Director of Finance Comments

4.1 This is a key strategic programme for achieving excellent services and improving
value for money. The Council’s financial plans are underpinned by £19m of identified
savings proposals over the next four years. In addition there is a further target of
£5m where proposals have not yet been identified and this programme will be key to
the delivery of that as well as some of the identified savings. The forward financial
plans are based on a council tax level of 3%. The assumptions of formula grant from
central government, and therefore our financial plans, will need to be revised once the
comprehensive spending review 2007 is published.

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1 There are no specific legal implications at this stage. Any future progress reports will
have to take into account the provisions of the Local Government and Public
Involvement in Health Act as it comes into force.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 [List background documents]
6.2 [Also list reasons for exemption or confidentiality (if applicable)]

7 Strategic Implications

7.1 The Council has continued to make strong progress through the early stages of
the new administration. This is evidenced by the good result in our corporate



7.2

7.3

7.4

Page 223

assessment, continued improvement in measured performance, positive
perception surveys, and our shortlisting for Most Improved Council.

Key to these improvements has been our ability to prioritise and deliver
corporate change programmes resulting in greater focus on meeting the needs
of our customers, together with improved value for money providing the
necessary resources for investment.

The Achieving Excellence programme will bring greater focus to ensuring that
the key community and corporate projects become a licence for change within
the council and the community we serve. It will enable the council to respond to
the challenges the organisation faces in achieving its vision to be ‘A council we
are all proud of’.

Whilst the day to day work of delivering council services on the ground needs to
continue and incrementally improve, the ability of the council to deliver its five
key aspirational priorities set out below requires a significant step change in
how a number of these services should be delivered in the future .

The Council’s Priorities

Making Haringey one of London’s greenest boroughs

Creating a Better Haringey : cleaner , greener and safer

Encouraging lifetime well being at home , work , play and learning

Promoting Independent living while supporting adults and children when needed
Delivering excellent customer focussed cost effective services

It is important that this paper is viewed in the context of the following
conclusions and recommendations.

1) The Corporate Assessment . The Audit Commission report identified that the
Council is performing well , but also identified there was scope to further
improve how the council works with others, the need for overarching strategies
for both regeneration and improving the health of the locality, and to make
better use of the investments in customer services and ICT to date .

2) The Medium-Term Financial Strategy. This report considered by Council at its
meeting on 5™ February 2007 stated that we will be required to make further
savings, specifically reductions in revenue spend of £3m in 2008/9 and £2m in
2009/10.

3) Local Government White Paper. The proposed the Local Government and
Public Involvement Bill will have a substantial impact on the way the council will
operate in the future.

4) The Council Plan. This document sets out how the Council will deliver high
quality value for money services which meet the needs of its residents .



Page 224

5) The Community Strategy. This document sets out how the Council will work in

partnership to improve, extend and sustain the opportunities and quality of life
for those who live, work or come to Haringey.

8 Financial Implications

8.1

8.2

9.1
10
10.1

11

12

12.1

The Council has identified a requirement to achieve savings of £5m to meet the
manifesto commitment of 3% council tax increases.

The Council has the capacity to take forward these revised arrangements. There
will, however, be a need to finance a new role of Programme Director and there
may be some requirement to back-fill for individuals who are seconded to project
delivery roles. There will also be a requirement to fund the cost of using external
partners to help deliver some of the projects. An overall sum of £2m over two
years has been set aside within our financial plans to progress the programme.
Detailed proposals for the financing and managing of the programme will be
produced as the programme and projects are scoped and agreed.

Legal Implications
There are no specific legal implications at this stage.
Equalities Implications

Equalities principles will underpin and drive the corporate change programme.

Consultation

There has been no external consultation on this report at this stage. The
achieving excellence programme will be a key mechanism whereby the Council
will give effect to the priorities, outcomes and benefit realisation identified with
partners within the new Community Strategy.

Principles of collaboration and partnership will particularly underpin the aspects
of the programme concerned with shared services and commissioning strategy.

Background

The strategic rationale for renewed programme management arrangements is
set out in paragraph 7. The Achieving Excellence Programme will set out how
we are to respond to these particular challenges. The programme specific aims
will be to :

- Bring together the challenges into one programme thereby consolidating the
achievement of ‘excellence’ and providing clear leadership on meeting these
challenges

- Strengthen the Programme Management function to deliver a major change
agenda



12.2

13

13.1

13.2

13.3

Page 225

- ldentify and prioritise projects within the overall programme

- Allow us to focus on the priority outcomes by making use of scarce
resources

- Enable us to consistently focus on realising the benefits from each project.

The method to be adopted is explained in section 13 and appendix one outlines
the project mini-briefs. This paper makes it clear that further preparatory work
is needed to take these ideas forward and regular progress reports to members
would an integral part of the process.

Project Methodology

Our drive towards excellence and value for money should underpin all aspects
of the Council’s activities and this needs to be reflected in our business planning
process and ‘business as usual’ across the organisation. There are however a
number of projects which cover all the Council’s activities or which are
sufficiently significant to be included within a corporate programme. An initial
view and brief description of potential projects for a renewed programme for
service excellence is set out in appendix 1. Whilst all projects will seek to
improve cost, performance and perception, the main driver for each project is
set out in the mini-briefs. Please be aware that each of these briefs will be
subject to the methodology outlined in the next paragraph. Whilst each project
must seek to achieve at least one of the themes of value for money, improved
effectiveness or improved customer perception must also contribute to the
delivery of the Community Strategy and the Council priorities set out in the
Council Plan.

The methodology for all projects will be to assess the current scope of the
internal function, for cost, shape, rationale, customer needs, performance and
social benefits. This will establish a baseline to enable comparison against best
practice and improvement to be measured. Proposals for changes and
improvement will be measured against the baseline. An essential component of
all changes will be a strong customer focus in terms of need, choice and quality.
The programme will commence by drawing strongly on internal personnel for
the process examination and evaluation supplemented by expert support from a
partner to help strengthen the programme management function through
improved governance and to develop the framework, to develop project briefs
and business cases. The intention is to develop further the skills and capacity of
our staff by engaging them in scoping and realising the benefits across a range
of projects. External expertise would be expected to transfer their skills to in-
house project teams.

To achieve this, projects need to be set within a programme structure to

provide programme coherence and clarity to stakeholders, and enable effective
programme governance. The following three groupings would be incorporated
into a new programme structure (see table one). These in turn would be
subdivided to make clear which might require external resource and expertise
and those that would be dealt with internally see table two below). External



Page 226

resource requirement to be used where it is believed greater expertise and
knowledge is required to take improvement forward.

Table One: Potential Projects to achieve excellence

Organisational effectiveness

Potential Projects

Primary aim: Excellence in

external shared services

quality of service, procurement and efficiency

[ ] ——
savings
¢ internal shared services —, | efficiency of delivery
e T applications architecture Performance and perception
e knowledge management Performance and perception
e procurement efficiency
e commissioning strategy specification of need, partnership working and
' efficiency
Customer direct
Potential Projects Primary aim: Excellence in
e customer services ———» |performance and perception
e area-based working —— |performance perception and efficiency

street presence rationalisation___,,

Performance, perception and efficiency

delivery of children’s services closer tg
children and families

performance and perception

achieving the benefits of adults, culture
and community services integrattom—>

performance and perception

service value for money reviews

 ———

use of resources

People and process

Potential Projects

Primary aim: Excellence in

o flexible working and use of asset utilisation, productivity and new
accommodation ’ patterns of work

e transaction processing — | efficiency

e productive time and productivity. productivity

Table Two: Resource and Expertise

Internal Capacity

Organisational
Effectiveness

¢ Internal shared services
e Commissioning Strategy
e Knowledge Management

Customer Direct

Service value for money reviews |




Page 227

e Delivery of integrated Children’s Service
closer to children and families

e Adults, Culture and Community Services
Integration

e Area Based Working

e Street presence rationalisation

People and Processes e Productive time and productivity

External Capacity

External Shared Services
IT applications architecture
Procurement

Knowledge Management

Organisational
Effectiveness

Customer Direct Customer Services

People and Processes Flexible working and use of accommodation

Transaction processing

In addition there will also be a requirement for change management and
communication across the programme which will need to be built into the new
Programme Management structure.

13.4 For governance purposes, it is proposed that the current basis of the
programme board approach is retained, with stream boards reporting to CEMB
co-ordinated by a programme management office. It is further proposed that the
current stream boards will be replaced by the three service excellence streams
set out above, but that the existing Better Haringey and regeneration stream
boards are retained (with the addition of BSF, asset management, and capital
programme delivery arrangements to the existing scope of the regeneration
board). The current and proposed revised programme arrangements are set out
in appendix 2.

13.5 Implementation Approach
The programme will be having two phases.

Phase 1

The first phase is almost entirely internally focused with the appointment of a
Programme Director from within the Council and strengthening the Programme
Management Office to drive the different projects through to satisfactory
completion and the delivery of benefits . We will need to acquire some
additional assistance to support programme management from an external
source to enhance internal capacity.

Each project brief will need further development as outlined in the methodology
paragraph 13.2. An internal project team, with external support in an advisory
capacity will develop the briefs and report on results to members through
programme management arrangements which are enhanced and outlined in
Appendix Two.



13.6

13.7

13.8

Page 228

Concurrent with phase 1 and in preparation for phase 2 will be work on
procuring a strategic framework of organisations who can provide expertise to
help us deliver the benefits from the agreed projects y s as partner.

Again, members will be kept informed throughout.

Phase 2
The role of an external partners would be as follows:

provide a challenge to the outcome of the project scopes identifying alternative
options for service delivery i.e. shared service, partnering etc

ensure a challenge for the achievement of cost and time for delivering both
cashable and non cashable benefits to the organisation

give practical commercial advice on different options for moving forward

assist in the development of procurement documentation for alternative service
delivery

work with the council in managing the change agenda by developing internal
capacity

identify and assist in the delivery of significant cash and efficiency savings
assist in the delivery of service efficiencies that will enhance and improve
customer experience/ perception and satisfaction ratings.

A tendering process has commenced to create the Council’s own strategic
framework of external organisations who can provide the type of support
identified above. This framework will be in place by December 2007 allowing
the Council to ‘call off’ from any of the suppliers on the framework for a range of
‘expert’ services. In the period up to December the Council will use the OGCBS
framework agreement to source appropriate support.

The Council’s internal capacity for programme and project delivery has
increased significantly in recent years and this must be exploited for the delivery
of this programme. The improvers scheme, graduate trainee scheme, leadership
programme and aiming high scheme have identified a cadre of potential project
and change managers across the Council. The programme will require a senior
programme director, stream leads and project managers, together with focused
change management and communication support from the respective corporate
teams. It is recommended that the first step in taking things forward would be an
internal recruitment process, offering programme director, stream lead and
project manager opportunities on both a full and part time basis. The intention is
find every opportunity for cross learning between all projects irrespective of
whether internal or external category.

The Council has established a corporate Programme Management Office (PMO)
to co-ordinate programme delivery. There are also PMO functions within IT and
for the BSF programme. As part of the transition to the new arrangements set
out in this report it is recommended that the current PMO function is
strengthened and supported to deliver the maximum benefits and coherence
across the programme.



Page 229

14 Conclusion and next steps

14.1 The revised programme set out in this report will be a key component of the
Council’s response to its strategic agenda.

14.2 Should Members agree this approach, the next steps must build on the
established expertise in the programme office and the body of knowledge across
the council in business process engineering.

14.3 In addition clarity is required between routine delivery of service objectives and
what constitutes projects and programmes. It would be useful to review the
current criteria used to decide on projects and programmes. For example the
programme approach is very relevant to inter service and inter agency working.
The table below sets out a chart for next steps.

14.4 Report back to Members on the outcomes if agreed

Action Timescale

Programme Management support appointed May 2007
Internal recruitment process June 2007
Allocation of programme and project management resources | June 2007
Review of corporate PMO function June 2007
Preparation of detailed project briefs From July 2007
Transition to new arrangements October 2007
Strategic framework for accessing external expertise December 2007

15 Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs

15.1  Appendix 1: project mini briefs
15.2 Appendix 2: programme management arrangements




Page 230

Project mini briefs Appendix 1
Organisational effectiveness

External shared services

External shared services involve separate organisations coming together to procure or
jointly manage the delivery of services.

There are significant potential advantages from external shared services:

e cost savings through economies of scale,

e quality improvements through greater expertise, investment and process
improvement, and

e improved cost-effectiveness in procurement and contract management.

A number of service delivery models are available:

e separate or joint procurement from existing multi-client providers,

e one authority providing services on behalf of a number of organisations, and

e the joint creation of new entities to provide services to a number of
organisations.

There are also a number of collaboration projects associated with shared services,
including the procurement of framework contracts by one organisation which can be
utilised subsequently by other organisations.

The government has created regional Centres of Excellence through which local
authorities seek to jointly progress the shared services agenda. Shared services can,
however, be equally relevant for other public service organisations. The potential for
collaboration could be pan-London, within London sub-regions or within the borough.
Likely service areas to consider are: insurance, agency staff, pensions fund
management and administration, internal audit, benefits and local taxation, accounts
payable and receivable, IT infrastructure and applications, accommodation and FM,
and the customer interface.

The key enabling factor for shared services is the very strong political and managerial
commitment necessary to deal with the practical and risk issues. So far, this agenda
has been slow to gain momentum in London. A notable early success is the London
insurance mutual of which Haringey is a founder member.

The scope of this project is to ensure that Haringey is well placed to be involved in, and
where appropriate lead, shared services initiatives which offer the realistic prospect of
quality, cost and perception improvements.

Primary target: quality of service, improved procurement and cost saving.

10



Page 231

Project mini briefs Appendix 1

Internal shared services

Several years ago, the Council adopted a policy of internal shared services whereby
business support functions were provided corporately on behalf of the whole
organisation, with necessary support staff located within business units and minimal
‘infrastructure’ at directorate level.

Whilst this approach is still visible within the organisation, there have been a number of
pragmatic responses to specific issues which have reduced clarity and consistency and
increased duplication and cost.

The relevant support functions are policy, finance, procurement, performance
management, IT, HR, OD&L, the improvers, accommodation and FM, Member
enquiries and complaints.

The scope of this project is to define the shared services model for each function and
to implement the model in order to improve quality and reduce costs. The project
should work towards a specific target for workforce reduction and cost saving.

Primary target: efficiency of delivery

IT applications architecture

The Council has a robust corporate approach to IT delivery and a recently updated
infrastructure which will support many programme objectives. Whilst this has enabled
some rationalisation of applications there is further scope for this, together with
opportunities for more cost-effective delivery to the changing organisation.

We currently run both SAP and Siebel as core, along with several other key business-
specific applications. Through the coming period we will need to consider a single core
application and explore opportunities for further rationalisation.

The Council does not currently run a single corporate performance management
system, instead collating composite performance reports from a variety of applications.
Consideration will also need to be given to corporate data-warehousing solutions which
will enable more cost-effective internal knowledge management.

It will also be essential to maintain and improve the effectiveness of our IT
infrastructure in enabling other aspects of the customer focus programme. This will
include consideration in particular of web-channel expansion, mobile and flexible
working, IP telephony, and extended-hours support.

Primary target: improved performance and perception.

11



Page 232

Project mini briefs Appendix 1

Knowledge management

A knowledge management project has been commissioned by CEMB. The scope of
the project is to rationalise the processes whereby data is collected and turned into
information which is made available for the management of the organisation. Such
information can be in respect of either the external world or the activities of the
organisation.

The key drivers are to ensure that a consistent knowledge base is made available to
the organisation and to partners within the HSP so that we can have confidence that
we are sharing consistent data bases. This would support cost-effective strategy
development and implementation, thereby improving information quality and removing
duplication of effort.

Primary target: improved performance and perception.
Procurement

Whilst the potential for joint procurement is covered under shared services above,
there remains a significant requirement for Council procurement strategies.

The implementation of improved SAP procurement processes will deliver management
information enabling the more systematic delivery of procurement good practice. This
covers the procurement of goods and services through competition and under
appropriate contract structures. It also enables aggregation of demand across the
Council.

There is also a need to consider arrangements for the procurement of services across
the Council. At present, service procurement expertise is contained within business
units. The current arrangements need to be tested against a more corporate model of
delivery.

Primary target: cost saving.

Commissioning strateqy

The leadership role for the Council implies a move towards service delivery
underpinned by a clear commissioning strategy. This enables a more strategic role for
the Haringey Strategic Partnership and requires the council to systematically consider
all potential forms of service delivery arrangements: in-house, shared, outsourced and
third sector.

For example The voluntary sector can play a key role in service delivery within the
borough as a cost-effective and high quality provider. The current pattern of service
delivery has, however, evolved over time and is not the product of a commissioning
strategy. The community buildings portfolio is linked to current levels of activity and is

12



Page 233

Project mini briefs Appendix 1

poorly maintained and managed. The Council’s financial plans include a saving of £1m
through review and re-commissioning of existing provision.

The scope of the project is to produce and deliver a voluntary sector commissioning
strategy for cost-effective and high quality delivery and to deliver the planned financial
savings as part of a broader requirement for the delivery of a corporate commissioning
strategy.

Primary target: improved specification of need, better partnership working, cost
saving.

Customer direct

Customer services

The Council has an 80/80 vision for customer services and has established a call
centre and four customer service centres. Cost-effective progress towards this vision
depends on a number of elements:

improved engagement and communication with customers,
increased self-service through the web,

increased proportion of ‘right first time’ in back office,
improved management of call volumes,

optimum degree of staff specialism,

addition of further services to customer services approach.

This depends crucially on the degree of customer focus within the relevant services
and the management of the relationship between the front and back office.

The scope of the project is to continue the application of the vision across all
appropriate Council services, delivering higher quality service outcomes and cost
savings.

Primary target: improved performance, perception and cost savings.

Area-based working

The Council has seven neighbourhoods as an infrastructure for local engagement,
each supported by neighbourhood management staff. A key priority is to deliver better
quality local ‘cleaner, greener, safer’ services, both across the Council and with
partners.

13



Page 234

A new approach to area-based working has been piloted in three neighbourhoods. This
involves relevant local service providers (Council, Homes for Haringey, police, other
housing providers) working more closely together to improve the quality of services and
to resolve specific issues of local concern. There is potential for service re-
configuration within the scope of the project. Joint working is co-ordinated and lead by
the neighbourhood manager and a lead senior officer from environmental services, and
managed against local performance indicators.

The scope of the project is to continue implementation across all neighbourhoods and
to develop robust success measures. The primary drivers for the project are to improve
service delivery quality and customer perception.

Primary target: improved performance and perception.

Street presence rationalisation

The Council and partners have an increasing level of ‘street presence’, primarily for
enforcement and reassurance purposes. This includes parking enforcement, wardens,
other enforcement staff, parks constabulary, streetscene monitoring staff, BLT
inspection officers, street cleaners, refuse and recycling collectors, and police safer
neighbourhood teams. Currently these teams are focused on delivering specific service
outcomes with no common agenda.

The scope of this project is to consider whether such a common agenda can be
devised and delivered thereby increasing the overall service value generated by these
teams. Such an agenda might cover fault/incident reporting, generic working across
service areas, and greater visibility and reassurance in respect of the total Council and
partner ‘street effort’. The main drivers for the project are improved service quality, cost
savings (particularly to protect service levels with reducing NRF and other specific
funding), and customer perception.

Primary target: improved performance and perception.

Delivery of integrated children and young people’s services closer to children and
families

Plans are already in place to deliver greater integration of children and young people’s
services across the Council, schools and with partners. There are two key strands:

e support, including targeted resources, to enable universal services to intervene
earlier thereby reducing the need for specialist services

e multi-disciplinary area-based working for targeted services based on three
children’s networks.

The scope of this project is to manage the delivery of this agenda, delivering improved
outcomes for children and cost savings.

Primary target: improved performance and perception.

14



Page 235

Project mini briefs Appendix 1

Achieve the benefits of adults, culture and community services integration

The reshaping of the Council has created a new grouping of services. The scope of this
project is to consider practical arrangements to maximise the customer impact of the
new service grouping and to identify opportunities for improved value for money.

Primary target: improved performance and perception.

Value for money reviews

There is an established programme of service value for money reviews in place,
working to a common format. Areas for review are selected by reference to cost,
performance and perception and action plan progress is followed up.

Primary target: better use of resources.

People and process

Flexible working and accommodation

The Council has agreed a policy which makes some flexible working options available
to business units and staff, but has not determined a desired policy outcome or
approach to implementation.

The business case for flexible working can be summarised as follows:

e the use of existing workstations can be maximised (from the current level of
[60]%), saving money on accommodation and IT,

e the customer focus of services can be improved,

e the productivity of staff can be improved through the use of mobile technology
and home working, and

e recruitment and retention of high quality staff can be improved through the
work/life balance ‘offer’.

The project should work towards specific targets for workstation numbers and
utilisation rates which will enable cost savings.

Completed phases of the accommodation strategy have established four local
customer services centres, with the Wood Green hub accommodating, in due course,
all staff who do not require a more local base. Whilst new and refurbished
accommodation is designed to support more flexible working, this has yet to be
systematically exploited.

Subsequent phases of the accommodation strategy will need to:

15



Page 236

Project mini briefs Appendix 1

e size and deliver future requirements, particularly in respect of the Wood Green
hub, in the light of the corporate approach to flexible working,

o explore opportunities for collaboration with other local organisations on a shared
services basis,

e ensure that the Council’s remaining local asset base (schools, children’s
centres, libraries) is used to promote and enable co-located local facilities where
this is required.

Primary target: adoption of new patterns of work, better asset utilisation, increased
productivity

Transaction processing

SAP is the Council’s core system for transaction processing, covering finance, HR and
procurement. Significant work has already been undertaken to improve our use of SAP
and to realise cashable savings. This has included improvements to the procurement
functionality of the system and an upgrade to the latest version of the software.

There is now an opportunity to consider a more robust approach to the identification of
cashable savings, assisted by the potential introduction by SAP of a whole-site license
rather than the individual user arrangements which have inhibited exploitation to date.

The scope of this project is to:
e continue to develop SAP processes, ie cashless, chequeless, e-enabled,
employee self-service,
o define key transaction processes end-to-end, including links to other systems,
eg social care, housing, parking,
e complete process review of key transactions,
e implement and enforce rationalised processes across Council.
The project should set and work towards workforce reduction and cost-saving targets.

Primary target: cost saving.

Productive time and productivity

There is a direct relationship between the proportion of staff productive time and the
efficiency with which resource inputs are turned into service outputs. Improving staff
productive time will reduce cost as a consequence of less cover being required and/or
will increase service outputs. There should be two main areas of focus:

e the reduction of sickness absence, and

e optimising the balance between ‘front line’ activity and administrative and
support functions.

16



Page 237

Project mini briefs Appendix 1

The project should aim to reduce costs and increase service outputs by reducing
sickness levels. The project should also mediate issues regarding productive time
which arise as a consequence of other strands of this programme.

A wider concept of productivity is also fundamental to value for money across the
Council. The project should also work to identify corporate themes for improved
productivity and ensure that ‘business as usual’ processes address such themes.

Primary target: increase in productive time.

17



Page 238

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 239

— pue

1 Aunqeuiersng

— sejels3

juswiaolojug

ssauljues|)

saoedg
uadQ g usaig

[ SerelsT |
BuisnoH uo
sjuswanosdw|

Eluswuolinug

suaAg
9 SWwo)

Juswanolduw|

febuneH Japag

pleog weansg

KabBuueH 1ap39g

Jononpay 20y
Aeljodwa |

Jonejuswa|dw|
— Abajens aled
fAunwwo)

alen-3

pleog weaisg
Buteg |1I9Mm

jo8lold
Juswanoiduw|
90IMISS YINOA

BunoA 3 uaipiyd

sjoaloid
[eyded

s|ooyos
Aewud

SaJjjua)
s,uaIpIyYD

syIomjaN
S.uaipiyd

pieog weans

ajdoad

Inoineyag
[e100S-Huy/

SUIOAN
9OUD|OIA

awuD
3AIISINbOY

pleog weans
SaIUNWWO)

lajes

—— 12uI0D SpIepn

[UOTFeTuSwSau|
Abajens
410/ 4vO 0e0Y UBIH
Wweyusno
2JJuUdd UMO | usbay pue
9315 POOAA 29UMQ [1DUN0D

umopyealq
10} JROJIANO 39S

S99INISS
juaj@9x3

ajuag

ueqin ey
weyusyoy

spuejuesH
KabuueH

pieog wealns
uonesauaboay

pieog swweibold giN3Dd

uolejuawnoop Bunieme 1o padoos aq o} syoafold |
sj09f01d awwelboid pawiiuo) _H_

}I0M Jo sealy / sease Aoljod

sjoafold swweibold Jolepy l

ainjonuls sawwelboid juaiing



Page 240

1o8loug
Snoo4
Jawolsn)

ueld
juswanoidw|
590INI9S

suoneldepy

sSuoes0| |
g sbumen

Auadolid
Adwz

jJuswalinooid
slieday

pieog weans

paeog ‘boud

Aouaio3
|jeuonoesuel |

MaIne Y

174

ABajens
sjessy

pieog weau)s

ylomawelH
fousyedwo)

JuswainNd0ld

uejq uonoy
Aejes
® uyesy

Aousioiyg

d!l

MIINSY
Aed |enbg

pieog

Aauop
104 anjep

juswanoisduwi]
BuisnoH

sSn204
lawojsny

weaa}g ajdoad

v
ONIMHEOM LUVINS

S9OIAIOS

Jus||9oXxg




Page 241

© fingonpoid |

I Tgewn |

| eAgonpoid

_I|||||||I_
UOIJEPOWILLIODDE

L joasn g _

_ Buppiom 9|qixa|4 _

[ |

L Buisseooud |
_ uolnoesuel |

pieog weans

S$9sS9920.d
pue ajdoad

[ |

_ SMBIASY NN -
_

™ Jonemtell 1 — —— —— — 7
| seomes || Jone.Bajul
RIS seomes ||

| eurno sunpy | | SUSIPIND_

—r— — — 00— 7

L ABajess __ Buiiom T
_ Buljuoissiwwo) paseq-ealy

[ B e |
| aoussaud _ | seomies T
_ 19348 lswolsn)

pieog weans

joaliqg Lwoisn)d

[ |

| eanospyose |

suoneojdde ]|

- — — 1

_ S82IAISS _‘

08.eys [eulalu|

[ |
S82IAI8S

_ osieys T

_ BeuJe)x3y

- 1

_ juswainoo.d -

- — — 1

_ Juswabeuely T

abpasimouyy

pieog weans

SSaUaAD9Y]
leuonesiuebio

S991AI9S
jua||eax3

uonoNJISUOD
a|qeuleisng

uoneuodsuel |
a|qeulelsng

Aouaiowy3
92Inosay
[BJUSWIUOIIAUT

JUSWUOIIAUT
leinieN

JUSWIBA|OAU|
2 SsauaIEMY

pieog weans

KabuueH Jap39g

ISEVN[ETql |
swweibold |
endey |

juswabeuep
jossy

410
/ Buipung 4vo

Jaul0) SPIBM

dd.am..—dwduw._d.ﬂ._.
ABayens
peoy ybiH
weyuano |

Jabay pueT
paumQ [IoUNoYD

a1us) UMo |
ULl POOAA

anua)

ueqin sleH
weyuspo |

spuejuesH
AsbuneH

pieog weans
uonessuabay

pieog awweiboid gNTD

uonejuswnoop Buieme 1o padoos aq 0} syaloid
sjo09lo1d sawweibold pawuyuo)d
5109l014 sawuweiboud Jolepy

ainjonJ)s awwelboud pasodoid €|

3IOM JO Sealy / seale Adlj0d




Page 242



Page 243 Agenda ltem 11

Haringey Council Agenda ltem

CABINET On 19 June 2007

Report title: Financial Outturn 2006/07

Report of: Acting Director of Finance

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To set out the provisional revenue and capital outturn for 2006/07.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member for Resources (Clir Charles Adje)

2.1 In line with agreed financial strategy, this report sets out the Council’s Financial
Outturn for 2006/07 by directorate. The report identifies a revenue surplus of £2.946m
and proposes its utilisation. It further identifies a capital underspend of £6.9m with a
carry forward proposal of £6.6m and complies with Treasury Management policy.

2.2 The report also provides the opportunity for the purchase of a site enterprise licence
from SAP, which would deliver ongoing efficiency savings and service benefits. It
proposes funding investment through the Local Authority Business Growth Initiative,
(LABGI) grant.

2.3 | commend the report and the recommendations as set out in paragraph 15 to Cabinet
for approval.

3. Recommendations

3.1 To note the provisional service outturn set out at paragraph 8.1 for revenue and
paragraph 8.9 for capital. To note also the explanation of revenue variances in
Appendix A and capital variances in Appendix B.

3.2 To approve the contingency of £1 million for Asylum and the setting up of a Sustainable
Investment fund with a one-off resource of £0.5 million.

3.3 To note the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) outturn set out at paragraph 8.11.

3.4 That the revenue carry forward proposals set out at paragraph 9.2 (and Appendix C) be




Page 244

approved.

3.5 That the capital carry forward proposals set out in paragraph 9.6 (and Appendix D) be
agreed.

3.6 To note that the outturn and, therefore, carry forward for schools is provisional and to
delegate to the Acting Director of Finance the finalisation of the carry forward.

3.7To delegate to the Acting Director of Finance authority to prepare the Council’s financial
statements such that the financial position of the Council is optimised.

3.8 To note that the Council’s Financial Statements for 2006/07 are to be approved by
General Purposes Committee.

3.9 To agree the virements set out in section 13.
3.10 To note the treasury management outturn.

3.11 To approve the use of grant as set out in section 14 subject to Procurement
Committee decision.

Report authorised by: Gerald Almeroth — Acting Director of Finance

Contact officers: Kevin Bartle, Acting Head of Corporate Finance
John Hardy — Head of Finance — Budgeting, Projects & Treasury
Telephone: 020 8489 3726/3743

4. Executive Summary

4.1 This report sets out the Council’s service provisional outturn for 2006/07. The
outturn is based on Directorates prior to the Council’s Re-shaping that is effective
from 1 April 2007. Excluding schools and Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) there is
a surplus of £2.946m. It is proposed to utilise this to set up a £1 million
contingency for asylum costs in 2007/08, to set up a Sustainable Investment fund
of £0.5m and for the remainder to fund the carry forward requests as set out. The
report also sets out the capital outturn, an underspend of £6.9m and services have
proposed carry forwards of £6.6m.

4.2 Taking into account adjustments previously reported through the budget management
process, in overall terms the service outturn is in line with the agreed financial strategy.

5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

5.1 None




Page 245

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

SAP outturn reports
Final Accounts working papers

For access to the background papers or any further information please contact
John Hardy on 020 8489 3726.

7. Background

7.1 This report has five sections:
o service outturn — revenue and capital;
prioritised carry forward proposals — revenue and capital;
overall position;
provisions and contingent liabilities;
treasury management outturn, and;
financial administration.

8. Service outturn

8.1 The general fund revenue service outturn is shown in the following
table. The outturn is based on Directorates prior to the Council’s Re-
shaping that is effective from 1 April 2007. There is a net service
underspend of £2.946m. The variances are explained in more detail in
Appendix A. The overall reported underspend on general fund
expenditure (including DSG) is 0.7% of the total net budget.

Directorate Variance
from
budget
£°000
Children and Young People's Service (80)
(excluding schools and DSG)
Asylum Seekers 778
Housing Services (15)
Social Services (176)
Environment (422)
Finance (281)
Chief Executive’s (1,313)
Sub-total — all services (1,509)
Non Service Revenue (1,437)
Total (2,946)

8.2 This excludes a provisional outturn for schools that reduces balances
by £0.2m to a level of £5.6m at the end of 2006/07 (see paragraph 9.4)
and an underspend of £1.3m against the Dedicated Schools Grant
(DSQG) (see paragraph 9.3).




8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

Page 246

The joint Primary Care Trust (PCT) Learning Disabilities pooled budget
overspent by £42k in 2006/07 and this is excluded from the above table
as the overspend will be carried forward to be funded against future
years’ resources.

It should also be noted that the existing £1m contingency set aside for
the cost of asylum seekers over and above central government funding
has been fully utilised and the residual overspend noted above is after
use of this contingency.

The period 11 position reported to Executive in April was a projected
underspend of £1.1m. This outturn against services is broadly in line
with that with a slightly higher total £1.5m underspend. The significant
variation overall is that against the non-service revenue account at a
total of £1.4m and the main reasons are set out below:

e £0.5m in respect of the IT In-sourcing project. The in-source
project has recently closed and the final delivery of the project,
together with successful management of the risks during the
process, have meant that the approved contingency of £0.5
million has not been required;

e £0.4m in relation to the service development/contingency fund.
This budget of £1.6m was agreed in the Council budget report in
February 2006. Executive approved that this was to be partly
utilised to balance the cost pressures in Social Services this
year;

e £0.5m in respect of capital financing. The approved budget
included a significant revenue contribution to fund capital
expenditure in 2006/07 and the expected final position on capital
is that this is unlikely to be fully required.

The overall general fund revenue outturn position shows a surplus of
£2.946m above the net budget. This can be utilised as a one-off
resource going forward and | therefore propose its use in the following
way:

e there is a risk of the asylum seekers budget overspending in
2007/08 and a strong risk of claw back of subsidy from
challenge by the Home Office. It is proposed to allow £1m as a
contingency;

e that a Sustainable Investment fund of £0.5m is set up. This
should work on a bidding basis for invest to save schemes and
the revenue saving created should initially top the fund back up
by the amount invested. This would allow some early progress
on the green agenda, a key Council priority, in particular where
investment in energy efficiency projects can generate a financial
as well as environmental return, and;



8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

Page 247

e the balance of £1.446m can be used to meet the carry forward
requests as summarised in section 9 of this report.

The reported revenue outturn position includes the previously agreed
position in respect of the pension fund deficit costs for Alexandra
Palace. At a previous meeting, the Executive agreed to fund the one-
off pension fund deficit costs in 2006/07 in order to facilitate the
proposed development of Alexandra Palace on a long lease to Firoka.
This deal was not finalised by 31 March 2007.

In addition there is a substantial housing benefits claim, in particular,
in respect of homelessness. The position is still to be finalised before
the claim deadline. It is proposed that any additional estimated grant
above budget should be added to the reserve in respect of potential
claw-back subsequent to the audit of the housing benefits subsidy
claim.

The final approved capital programme was £114.4m. The overall
provisional underspend is £6.9m, as set out in the following table: -

Directorate Budget Outturn Variance
£°000 £°000 £°000

Children and Young People's 52,304 53,205 901
Service

Housing General Fund 3,222 2,135 (1,087)
Housing Revenue Account 18,136 18,033 (103)
Social Services 6,322 5,658 (664)
Environment 17,600 15,812 (1,788)
Finance 4,147 3,797 (350)
Chief Executive’s 12,667 8,870 (8,797)
Total 114,398 107,510 (6,888)

The projected underspend has increased by £0.7m since that reported
in the February monitoring exercise. Detailed explanations of the
variances are set out in Appendix B. The majority of the variations
relate to delays in the progress of schemes. This will need to be an
area of focus for improvement in 2007/08.

The Council’'s agreed capital programme for the period 2006/07 to
2010/11 is based on achieving usable capital receipts of £11m in
2006/07. The final position is that £14.1m has been generated, giving
an additional balance of £3.1m. This is largely in respect of the higher
amounts achieved through the sales of Cooperscroft and Trentfield.
These additional resources have already been committed as
approved by Members during the year.

The HRA outturn for the year was a variance of £641k, against a
surplus target of £114k. The working balance is decreased to just over
£3.8m at 31 March 2007, as shown in the following table, after taking
account of application of reserves and inclusion of provisions.



8.12

8.13

8.14

Page 248

Item Original Budget Outturn Variance
£°000 £°000 £°000

Income (100,689) (100,555) 134

Expenditure 100,575 101,196 621

Net Deficit / (surplus) (114) 641 755

Working balance b/fwd 1 April 2006 (4,383)

Application of Housing (885)

Subsidy Reserve

Provision for Homes for 795

Haringey

Working balance c/fwd 31 March 2007 (3,832)

Planned closing balance as at 31 March 2007 (3,878)

Variation in closing balance 46

The overall position is very close to the plans approved at Council in
February 2007 and the closing balance only varies by £46k.

Significant variances within the HRA against the original budget

include:
Budget Outturn Variance
£°000 £°000 £°000
Rent income (60,707) (61,350) (643)
Increase in provision for bad debts 699 1,553 854
Leaseholders’ Service charges (6,429) (5,827) 602
Other income (11,587) (12,243) (656)
Housing subsidy (21,966) (21,135) 831
Other expenditure 99,876 99,643 (233)
Net expenditure (114) 641 755

Income from dwelling rent charges is greater than budget mainly due to
the significantly greater than anticipated reduction in ‘right to buy’
(RTB) sales during the year. However, this is offset by an additional
provision for tenants’ bad debt being required of £854k due to lower
performance in the rent collection rate of 96.5% compared to the

budgeted 97.5%. Focussed effort will be required from Homes for

Haringey in 2007/08 to collect these arrears and improve the in year

collection rate.

Leaseholders' Service Charge income is less than budget due in part
to the reduction in RTB sales, and in part due to a lower than
anticipated benefit from the reduction in provision for leaseholders’ bad

debts.




9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

Page 249

Carry Forward Proposals

The Council’'s Finance Procedure Rules provide for this body to
determine any carry forward sums in respect of budget variations at
the year-end. For this year, in view of the potential adverse impact on
performance in 2007/08, it is proposed that no revenue overspend be
carried forward.

The net amount available to meet carry forward requests is £1.446m.
Services have proposed and prioritised revenue carry forwards and
high priority requests are able to be funded from this sum. The high
priority requests are summarised in the table below and set out in full
at Appendix C.

Directorate Proposed carry
forward
£°000

Children and Young People's Service (excluding 42
schools)

Housing Services 50
Social Services 176
Environment 275
Chief Executive’s 894
Total 1,437

The above table excludes the £1.355m carry forward that will be
funded from DSG. The DSG underspend was reported in the
February monitoring exercise; two key non-schools budgets funded
by the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) have underspent by £1.3m.
This is principally made up of £0.7m to support the Every Child
Matters Multi Agency budget that is unspent at the year end and
£0.5m being set up costs for the Sixth Form Centre required in
2007/08. Any balance of DSG funding is required to be carried
forward under legislation and will be needed to meet future
commitments.

9.4 The school balances are still provisional. The expenditure of £0.2m

9.5

9.6

shown for schools is that generated in 2006/07 above the in-year
budget. Therefore the schools’ balances, including the final brought
forward balance from 2005/06 of £5.8m, are provisionally estimated to
reduce to £5.6m. It is recommended that finalisation of the schools’
carry forward is delegated to the Acting Director of Finance.

As explained in paragraph 8.3 the joint pooled Primary Care Trust
(PCT) Learning Disabilities partnership budget overspent by £42k in
2006/07. This overspend will be carried forward and be funded
against future years resources and is excluded from the above table.

Carry forward proposals have been put forward by services for capital
which amount to £6.6m. It is recommended that all carry forwards,
which are analysed in detail in Appendix D, are approved. The



10.

10.1

11.

11.1

12

12.1

Page 250

Children and Young People's Service overspend will be funded in
2007/08.

Overall general fund position 2006/07

The overall net revenue services underspend provides a surplus of
£2.946m. After the proposed utilisation as set out in this report the
general fund shows a near balanced position. This is summarised in
the following table:

£°000
2006/07 general fund revenue surplus (2,946)
Less Asylum contingency 1,000
Less Sustainable Investment fund 500
Less funding of high priority carry forward 1,437
requests
Net service surplus (9)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

An accounting requirement is for the Council to consider any areas
where it feels there is a potential future liability. Depending on the
certainty of this liability and information on the value of the liability, the
Council will either raise a provision for this liability or disclose a
contingent liability in the notes to the accounts. All areas for provisions
and contingent liabilities have been reviewed and the following new
liabilities have been raised in the accounts:-

A provision for the potential non-payment by the Home Office of the
Authority’s asylum seeker grant, for 2006/07 cases where there may be
a dispute. The provision raised is for £312k.

A contingent liability note will be disclosed for a potential Home Office
claw back in relation to disputed prior year asylum grant claims. The
Home Office may additionally claw back grant for years as far back as
2002/03 but the extent of this possibility is as yet unknown, therefore
not enabling a provision to be raised.

Treasury management outturn

The Treasury Management Policy sets projections for treasury
management activity for the forthcoming year as well as limits on
borrowing and investment. The overall aim of the policy is to meet
borrowing requirements at the lowest cost and maximise investment
returns. The policy requires annual reporting of the outturn position.



12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

Page 251

Borrowing and Investment

The Council’'s borrowing strategy and funding requirement is
determined by the maturity of existing debt, new borrowing to fund
capital investment and amounts to be set aside from revenue and
capital receipts. The estimated position for 2006/07 and the outturn
position are shown in the following table:

Estimated Outturn
position position
£m £m
Borrowing approvals 18 18
Principal repayment 0 0
Less
Minimum revenue position (10) (10)
Usable capital receipts (11) (14)
Net Change (3) (6)
Indebtedness

The average level of debt in 2006/07 was £613m and the average level
of investments was £87m. We have, therefore complied with the limits
set out in the Council Treasury Management Policy. The limits and
performance for 2006/07 were:

Approved Limit Actual
performance
Overall borrowing £650m £613m
Short term borrowing 40% 0.02%
Proportion of debt at variable rates 30% 0

The average interest rate achieved on investments was 4.99%,
compared with the average market rate of 4.61%.

The average rate of interest on external debt (the Consolidated Rate of
Interest) was 7.26% in 2006/07 compared with 7.35% for the previous
year.

The maturity structure of the Council’s debt as at 31 March 2007 is
shown in the graph below. The Treasury Management Practices
require continual review of debt maturity to ensure that the optimal
position regarding risk profile, interest rates and redemption penalties is
obtained.



13.
13.1

13.2

Page 252

Outstanding Debt as at 31 March 2007

350 .
300 |
250 |
200 |

¢
™ 150 |
100 |

50 |

1 1-2 2-5 5-10 10-15 15+

Maturing within (years)

Financial administration

Financial regulations require proposed budget changes to be
approved by Executive. These are shown in the table below. These
changes fall into one of two categories:

) budget virements, where it is proposed that budget provision is
to be transferred between one service budget and another.
Explanations are provided where this is the case;

) Increases or decreases in budget, generally where notification
has been received in-year of a change in the level of external
funding such as grants or supplementary credit approval.

Under the Constitution, certain virements are key decisions. Key
decisions are:

. for revenue, any virement which results in change in a
directorate cash limit of more than £250,000; and

. for capital, any virement which results in the change of a
programme area of more than £250,000.

Key decisions are highlighted by an asterisk in the table.

13.3 The following table sets out the proposed changes. Each entry in the

table refers to a detailed entry in the appendices, which show the
budgets that it is proposed to change. There are two figures shown in
each line of the table and the detailed sheets. The first amount
column relates to changes in the current year's budgets and the
second to changes in future years’ budgets (full year). Differences
between the two occur when, for example, the budget variation
required relates to an immediate but not ongoing need or where the
variation takes effect for a part of the current year but will be in effect
for the whole of future years.




13.4

Page 253

Proposed virements are set out in the following table:

Period

Service

Key

Amount
current
year
(£°000)

Full year
Amount
(£°000)

Description

13

HRA

HRA

64

Costs of the Noise Nuisance
service to be reflected as a
Managed Budget rather than as
part of the Management Fee, as
these relate to services provided
by Environment under an SLA.

13

HRA

HRA

1,087

Cost and income of the
management and repair of HRA
Hostels to be reflected as a
retained budget rather than
include in management fee as
services are delivered by
Housing over which Homes for
Haringey have no remit.

13

HRA

HRA

2,940

Part of the costs of Supported
Housing to be included as a
retained budget (for the
supporting people funded
welfare element) and managed
budgets (for the emergency
response and out of hours
elements provided by the
Council under a SLA).

13

HRA

HRA

939

Costs of insurance to be
reflected as a retained budget
(in respect of insurance of
tenanted stock) rather than as
part of the management fee
(where employee related
insurance will continue to be
funded).

13

HRA

HRA

1,032

Costs of Housing Strategy,
Lettings and Waiting List
Management to be reflected as
retained budgets rather than
part of the management fee as
provided by Housing, and
Homes for Haringey has no
management role.

13

HRA

HRA

12

Costs of the administration of
Right to Buy Mortgages service
to be included in the
management fee budget rather
than a retained budget, as this
contract is cliented by Homes
for Haringey.

13

Children

Cap

3,455

Crowland Fire Reinstatement




Page 254

13 Children |Cap* 372 Increased allocation for NRF
funding

13 Children |Cap* 371 PFI variations charged to
schools

13 Children |Cap*] (2,427) Correction of budget for Plevna

13 Chief Cap*| (874) Neighbourhoods UCCG project

Executives spend that is non Haringey

spend

13 |Environment| Cap 75 Section 278 funding for Hornsey
High Street project

14. Other Issues

14.1 An opportunity has arisen in discussions with SAP to purchase a site
enterprise licence. The current licensing structure is based on a limited
number of users and flat rate costs are incurred for every additional user
licence. A site licence would be extremely beneficial in terms of
expanded use of the modules of the system, which in turn would deliver
further ongoing efficiency savings and service benefits. This would also
enable the Council to meet the aims in the IT strategy of rationalising the
number of applications. An upfront investment would be required for
this. The proposal is that a business case for contract award is
presented to Procurement Committee for decision.

14.2 It is recommended that the funding source for this investment is the Local
Authority Business Growth Incentive (LABGI) grant. When the council
tax was set at the Council meeting on 19 February 2007 the LABGI
figure was not known and therefore it was agreed that any sum received
should be added to balances. £1.4m was received and it is proposed
that this is the source of funding that it is used. Prudential borrowing is
an option, however, under this route the full efficiency savings delivered
as a result of the investment can then be added to the budget process.

15. Recommendations

15.1 To note the provisional service outturn set out at paragraph 8.1 for
revenue and paragraph 8.9 for capital. To note also the explanation of
revenue variances in Appendix A and capital variances in Appendix B.

15.2 To approve the contingency of £1m for Asylum and the setting up of a
Sustainable Investment fund with a one-off resource of £0.5m.

15.3 To note the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) outturn set out at
paragraph 8.11.

15.4 That the prioritised revenue carry forward proposals set out at paragraph
9.2 (and Appendix C) be approved.

15.5 That the capital carry forward proposals set out in paragraph 9.6 (and
Appendix D) be agreed.




Page 255

15.6 To note that the outturn and, therefore, carry forward for schools is
provisional and to delegate to the Acting Director of Finance the
finalisation of the carry forward.

15.7 To delegate to the Acting Director of Finance authority to prepare the
Council’s financial statements such that the financial position of the
Council is optimised.

15.8 To note that the Council’s Financial Statements for 2006/07 are to be
approved by General Purposes Committee.

15.9 To agree the virements set out in section 13.
15.10 To note the treasury management outturn.

15.11To approve the use of grant as set out in section 14 subject to
Procurement Committee decision.

16. Legal Comments

16.1 The Acting Head of Legal Services notes the report and confirms that
all statutory and constitutional requirements are met.

17. Use of Appendices

Appendix A - Explanation of significant revenue variances
Appendix B — Explanation of significant capital variances
Appendix C - Revenue carry forward requests

Appendix D - Capital carry forward requests



Page 256

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 257

Appendix A

Revenue - Service outturn 2006/07 - explanation of variances

Variation
£000’s

+/(-)

Children and Young People’s Service

Department wide

During 2006/07, a number of concerning overspends emerged (highlighted below)
which required urgent management action. Appointments were held while the overall
impact of the forecast overspends was quantified. This action, and judicious use of
grant funding, has delivered considerable savings across the service (including DSG
funded budgets).

(1,316)

Early Years (400)
This mainly DSG funded budget has underspent on salaries by judicious use of grant

funding for posts where base provision exists. This also resulted from the management

action during 2006/07 to constrain expenditure.

Every Child Matters: Multi Agency Budget (700)
This DSG funded budget was established with the agreement of the Schools Forum to

help with early intervention work channelled through Children’s Networks. The budget

was mainly unspent at the year end but is required for 2007/08 and the carry forward

agreed with the Schools Forum.

6™ Form Centre (500)
DSG funding for set-up costs is required to be spent in 2007/08 in readiness for the

planned opening of the Centre in September 2007. Significant staffing costs will be

incurred before opening, at which time the Centre’s delegated budget will fund all on-

going revenue costs.

Schools in Financial Difficulties (100)
The majority of this DSG funded allocation was awarded to qualifying schools during

2006/07; the remaining balance should be carried forward to supplement this budget

heading in 2007/08.

Curriculum development for 14-19 year olds (55)
The balance of this DSG funded budget is planned for the further development of

vocational courses in 2007/08.

Tuition Service 290
The high number of Year 11 young people not placed in schools resulted in
unprecedented demand pressure on this budget.

School Standards and Inspection 71

Net income shortfall on buy-back from schools.




Page 258

Appendix A
Revenue - Service outturn 2006/07 - explanation of variances
Variation

£000’s

+/(-)
Legal fees 322
Fees in respect of care proceedings, contracts and procurement were above the
available budget due to increased demand for legal services.
Transport services (253)

Savings secured in delivery of service to C&YPS and ASS, and in the charges received
in respect of transporting children with special educational needs.

SEN Recoupment (DSG) 296

The charges received in respect of the special educational needs of pupils living in
Haringey but educated in schools in Barnet, Camden, Enfield and Islington were higher
than anticipated.

Commissioning Budget for Looked After Children (LAC) 228

This budget has a net overspend, but the numbers of LAC have reduced over the year,
as has the average cost per child. There has been a shift away from external
placements to in-Borough residential homes and foster carers in line with the agreed
commissioning strategy.

Early Years Education Grant 125

The number of 3 and 4 year olds in the private, voluntary and independent sector was
higher than the budget could accommodate and rates are set in advance. This was a
demand pressure that could not have been reduced in year.

S$17 (Children in Need) and LAC Budget 261

Expenditure to prevent reception into care, and services to LAC other than placement
costs e.g. transport to school and the costs of supervised contact with parents.

Other (312)

Sundry underspends, some of which arose as result of direct actions by managers to
manage the effect of forecast overspends.

Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay (RCCO) 608
Less: DSG Carry Forwards (required under legislation) 1,355
Total for the Children and Young People’s Service (80)

Asylum Service

Expenditure incurred on asylum seekers above grant received and the contribution from 778
Council contingencies of £1m.




Page 259

Appendix A
Revenue - Service outturn 2006/07 - explanation of variances
Variation

£000’s

+/(-)
Housing General Fund (15)
Minor variances
Social Services (176)

The Social Services budgets achieved a slight underspend in 2006/07 mainly through
holding expenditure on supplies and services and maintaining some vacancies across
the Directorate.

Total Social Services (General Fund)

(176)

Environment

Management and Support

A variance of £74k arising from the part year effect of two vacancies, the annual Better
Haringey event not taking place this year and an underspend against the dedicated
personnel and legal support budget have resulted in this underspend.

Streetscene

The outturn is an overall underspend of £420k comprising £320k against the recycling
budget due to additional recycling credits from the NLWA; income from the sale of
materials being higher than budget and employee costs of the in-house operation being
less than anticipated. An underspend of £100k has accrued for the Highways budget
due to project management fee income exceeding the budget as a result of additional
capital allocations in year mainly from TfL.

Recreation
The overspend of £60k is due to an unbudgeted redundancy payment and energy and
fuel costs being higher than budgeted.

Other smaller variances under +/-£50k

(420)

60

12

Total for Environment

(422)

Finance

Property Services

The over spend was largely caused by under achievement of commercial rent income
and an in-year amendment to electricity charge rates for River Park House

Benefits & Local Taxation - Management Costs
An over spend on the use of agency staff
Benefits and Local Taxation - Ring-fenced Costs

The net underspend is mainly in relation to housing benefit overpayments and the net
proportionate improvement in the requirement for a bad debt provision.

71

109

(403)




Page 260

Appendix A
Revenue - Service outturn 2006/07 - explanation of variances
Variation

£000’s

+/(-)
Corporate Finance
The under spend is substantially as a result of income collection above target and some (39)
salary related savings.
Other minor variances (19)
Total for Finance (281)
Chief Executive’s Department
Organisational Development
Outturn under spend of £724k. Key factors are:
An improved position on the resource centre savings. Issues around embedding the (168)

processes for the new resource centre and delays in invoicing have made it challenging
to accurately forecast the final outturn position. This has been discussed at budget
meetings throughout the year but it was felt prudent not to over estimate savings until
the full level of commitment was agreed by all parties.

The OD&L redesign of the Leadership Programme including insourcing 70% of the (140)
coaching element of the programme and maximisation of available DCLG grant.
Delays in progressing projects on flexible working, competency framework and people
management support largely due to capacity issues. Carry forward requests have
been submitted to enable these projects to progress in 2007/08.

Performance & Improvement & Equalities — recruitment processes taking longer than
forecast compounded by additional staff losses in year. Expected expenditure around (203)
the production and printing of the 2007 Council Plan was delayed and will now occur in
2007/08.

Personnel — the budget set aside for consultancy work on progressing the Equal
Pay/Status work was not required this year for the development and negotiation stage, (50)
however it will be required for the implementation during 2007/08. A carry forward
request has been submitted.

Member Services — salary under spend due to vacancies and delay in implementing
the 2006 review of structure; project slippage in review of the constitution (69)

Electoral Services — delay in being able to implement the new duties and changes
arising from the Electoral Administration Act 2006 because of a slower phasing of the (75)
secondary legislation. The cost implications will now fall in 2007/08 and a carry forward
request has been submitted.

Other minor variances




Page 261

Appendix A
Revenue - Service outturn 2006/07 - explanation of variances
Variation

£000’s

+/(-)
Access
Outturn shows an under spend across Access services of (£485k). Key factors are:
IT core budgets under spend — the service has benefited this year from reduced (627)

expenditure due to one-off savings on maintenance contracts negotiated as part of the
refresh project and the usage of hardware stocks.

Neighbourhood Management under spend due to:-

e delays in progressing the 2006/07 ‘Making the Difference’ projects however,
spend is committed and has been requested as a carry forward (181)

e salary savings arising from the lead-in time to fully recruit to the new
Neighbourhood Management structure.

Customer Services over spend due to:-
e increased use of agency staff to improve performance and service levels 206
e early retirement costs.

The Libraries and Archives over spend was caused by delays to the proposed staffing 173
re-structure which has not enabled the proposed savings to be realised this financial
year.

Other minor variations (56)

Strategy

Strategy has an overall underspend of £281k largely relating to projects within Policy (281)
and Regeneration which, although now committed, were unable to complete in
2006/07. These include the Wood Green Spatial Plan (£50k); Archway Road Project
(£69Kk); Jackson’s Lane Community Centre (£70k) and the printing of corporate
documents such as Corporate Strategy, Community Strategy, Borough Profile and the
Local Area Agreement (£69K).

Carry forward requests for £273k have been put forward and spend is expected in the
early part of 2007/08.

Legal Services 177

The key factor causing the over spend has been an increase in un-chargeable time this
year as a result of the introduction and bedding in of the new case management
system and the absorption of costs associated with corporate and democratic core
work.

Total for Chief Executive Services (1,313)




Page 262

Appendix A
Revenue - Service outturn 2006/07 - explanation of variances
Variation
£000’s
+/(-)
Non Service Revenue
The underspend is largely due to an underspend of the Service Development (1,437)

Contingency of £373k, an underspend in the IT in-source contingency which has not
been required and a £350k underspend on the reduced need for the budgeted revenue
contribution to capital outlay. The in-source project has recently closed and the final
delivery of the project together with successful management of the risks during the
process has meant that the contingency of £0.5 million has not been needed.

Grand Total

(2,946)

Other budgets outside of the General Fund:

Variation
£000’s

+/(-)

Social Services
S31 Learning Disabilities Pooled budget

Repairs and maintenance expenditure incurred in the year. Some slight overspends in
staffing that will be contained in the new year.

42

Total for Social Services

42

Individual Schools Budgets

The school balances are currently provisional. Work is underway on consolidating
school accounts into SAP.

The balances position for schools, which was £5.757 million at the beginning of this
financial year, is estimated to reduce by £0.199 million to £5.558 million by 31 March
2007. This estimate is based on returns from 75 out of the 80 schools.

In addition, school capital balances stand at an estimated £1.547 million, compared
with £2.1 million at the end of 2005/06.

199

Total Schools (provisional)

199




Page 263

Appendix B
Capital - Service outturn 2006/07 - explanation of variances
The Children & Young People Service
Variation

£000’s

+/(-)
Coleridge Primary Expansion
Procurement of the main contractor was delayed in December 06 which led to a delay (969)
in commencement of demolition works on site originally programmed to take place in
2006/07.
Tetherdown Primary Expansion

(2,045)

Construction works on site have been delayed and therefore construction costs
programmed for 2006/07 have slipped into 2007/08.

Coldfall Primary Expansion
Additional budget provision agreed for this project in January 2006 will not be reflected
in the Children and Young People's Service overall capital programme until the 1416
complete programme rephrasing is carried out in 2007/08. There were some exira ’
costs and fees due to additional works, compliance with planning conditions and an
outstanding classroom fit out.

BSF Contribution TCF WHL
This project has been deferred until rebuilding commences in 2009 as part of the wider (964)
BSF programme.

Computers for Pupils
This grant is planned to be expended by August 2007 per the Standards Fund (336)
conditions of grant.

Children Centres Phase |

This overspend relates to a combination of phase 1 ineligible grant related expenditure
incurred by children’s centres (£101k) and some centres who have exceeded the grant
allocation (£136k).

237

Children Centres Phase Il
There has been slippage on Children Centres phase 2, mainly due to delays in (955)
receiving sure start approval on Seven Sisters & Welbourne.

Rokesley Infant & Junior expansion Phases I, Il & llI

There were a number of technical issues that arose during the project which increased
costs, including problems with the original design. In addition the contractor submitted a
claim in excess of the Council’s quantity surveyors draft final account. A specialist
dispute resolution resource was commissioned and a favourable result was secured in
conjunction with internal audit. The £345k variance includes a payment of £211k which
represents full and final settlement of the above account. The overspend will be funded
using formulaic funding and the resolution will form part of the Children and Young
People's Service Capital Programme rephrasing exercise mentioned above.

345




Page 264

Appendix B

Capital - Service outturn 2006/07 - explanation of variances

Variation
£000’s

+/(-)

Alexandra Park Expansion
The building works at the school were completed in September 2004 and retention was
allowed for on settlement of the final account. A number of outstanding items delayed

settlement but satisfactory resolution of these items was eventually achieved. However 17
funding was not available for carry forward into 2006/07.
Campsbourne Primary Phase lll
Contaminated land caused by an old oil storage container resulted in an expensive 1,011
clearance to make the site safe and in turn made the foundations unsuitable for the
existing design. This was rectified by amending the original design.
Crowland Uninsured Costs
Relates to project management fees and any other elements of betterment outside of 160
what is covered by the insurers.
Devolved Capital {354
Devolved Capital grant gives schools direct funding for the priority capital needs of their 35
buildings, which can be capital repair, remodelling or new build. All amounts in excess
of the budget allocation (£1.354m) are funded by Devolved Capital reserves. As at the
end of Mar 06 the reserves of Devolved Capital were £2.069m.
Strategic Technologies 11
This is a new one off grant aimed at supporting the Governments published e-strategy 8
for education. At the time the budgets were set this funding stream was not known and
therefore no budget was loaded. This will be addressed in 2007/08.
Big Lottery Fund 4
Some £300k worth of ineligible expenditure has been coded to NOF schemes. This 58
combined with previously agreed matched funding and contributions from schools yet to
be claimed has resulted in this adverse variance.
Plevna & Triangle
The NDC allocation was unexpectedly reduced in 2006 resulting in an overspend of 108
£108k. There are further costs expected for retention fees and equipment charges
which may result in an additional budget pressure in 2007/08.
Buildi hools for the Fut

uilding Schools for the Future 806

This variance is mainly a profiling issue in relation to 2006/07 only. The overall scheme
is on budgetary target for balance by the end of the BSF programme. However, some
minor overspends have occurred in year but will be addressed from within the overall
programme resource in 2007/08.




Page 265

Appendix B
Capital - Service outturn 2006/07 - explanation of variances
Variation
£000’s
+/(-)
Other minor variations 39
Total Children and Young People's Service 900
Social Services
Variation
£000’s
+/(-)
Older People’s Capital Refurbishments
The overall programme was £5.65m to fund the refurbishment of three residential (270)

homes and the demolition and rebuild of Osborne Grove. The overall programme is
within budget. The Osborne project is planned for completion in June 2007. This carry
forward will be required to complete the scheme.

Adaptations Service

There are an outstanding number of assessed cases which are with surveyors and (329)
contractors. This underspend will be required to fund the commitment into the new

year

Other variations (64)
Total Social Services (663)
Housing

Development Works

A proposed scheme was planned for Black Boy Lane area but was not completed. (313)
Private Sector Renewal

£1m was allocated from the London sub-regional housing pot: (targeted funding (844)
for private sector decent homes for vulnerable households). It is a 2 year
programme and £156k was spent in 2006-07.

Other capital budgets 70
Total for Housing (1,087)




Page 266

Appendix B
Capital - Service outturn 2006/07 - explanation of variances
Environment
Variation

Scheme £000’s

+/(-)
Finsbury Park Restoration
This was a 3 year programme for major refurbishment and landscaping to the park and 100
construction of a new café. An overspend of £100k is indicated but the main reasons
are still being investigated and reviewed by quantity surveyors involved with the project.
The findings will be reported as soon as they become available. The overspend will be
funded from planned underspends in other capital projects. The pending report will
conclude in the next financial year and include any funding issues.
Raising Standards in Parks
This planned underspend of £88k will contribute towards funding the overspend (88)
identified in the Finsbury Park Restoration project (see above)
Lordship Recreation Ground
An underspend of £444k is indicated comprising of £12k to contribute towards the (444)
overspend in Finsbury Park Restoration project (see above) and £433k to act as match
funding to help to secure HLF funding. £433k is the carry forward proposal request.
Leisure Centre Renewals
A dispute has arisen with regards to the final account for year 1 construction and (318)
refurbishment works with Crispen & Borst. Top level negotiations have taken place to
help resolve the issues. Final account will be settled in the new financial year.
Parking Plan
Majority of parking plan and pay and display schemes are being delayed due to
extended consultation. Schemes are expected to be implemented in new financial year. (457)
CCTV Control Room
Delay in tendering and contract award process has led to delay in completion. Project
anticipated to complete in first quarter of new financial year (246)
Street Scene Section 106
Delay in commencing Penstock path scheme has led to slippage. Scheme anticipated
to be completed in new financial year (63)
UDP
Delays in the production of a Joint Waste Development Plan has led to an underspend
on this project. There is a statutory requirement to produce this plan which will (58)
commence in new financial year
Variances under/Over £50k (214)

There are a number of schemes with under/over spends of less than 50k. The total
value of these schemes amounts to an underspend of £214k

Total for Environment

(1,788)




Page 267

Appendix B
Capital - Service outturn 2006/07 - explanation of variances
Finance Directorate
Variation
£000’s
+/(-)
Bernie Grant Centre (80)

Expenditure fully committed but programme slipped into 2007/08. The centre is due to
open in September 2007

Alexandra Palace & Park (118)

Slight slippage, however expenditure fully committed. The overall programme should
complete in July 2007

Reception Project (Property)

152
In order to maximise external capital grant funding for the YOS reception in 2006/07, (152)
the remaining reception works at 476 High Road were rescheduled to 2007/08.
Total for Finance Directorate (350)
Chief Executive Service
Variation

£000’s

+/(-)
LAMs
Reported slippage in the Hornsey Library re-wiring project creates a year end under (368)
spend of £368k. This is fully committed to spend in 2007/08 and a carry forward
request has been submitted.
Customer Services
Reported slippage on the procurement process around the Workforce Management (70)

system creates year end under spend of £70k. This is fully committed to spend in
2007/08 and a carry forward request has been submitted.

IT

Strategic reviews of key projects including SAP, Siebel, GIS, Web and Harinet meant (779)
they did not spend in 2006/07 and have created a year end under spend of £779k. As
part of this, discussions are in progress to broker a site SAP licence solution rather
than individual licences. A business case is being developed the outcome of which
could have a significant impact on SAP, Harinet and Siebel development programmes
if agreed.

A carry forward request for this amount has been submitted as it will be required to
progress IT developments whatever the outcome of the proposals outlined above.




Page 268

Appendix B
Capital - Service outturn 2006/07 - explanation of variances

Variation
£000’s

+/(-)

Neighbourhood Management

As reported over the last periods, work on the UCCG and some of the related (2,552)
Tottenham High Road projects has slipped during the FY 2006/07. Verbal agreement
to re-profile was obtained in early Autumn, however it has taken longer to receive the
written agreement so budgets were not able to be amended. Agreement has now been
obtained to re-profile expenditure into the first half of 2007/08.

All expenditure is due to complete within the first half of 2007/08

NDC (28)

Total for Chief Executive (3,797)




Page 269

Revenue Carry Forward Proposals — 2006/07

Appendix C

Budget / Description and Reason for Carry Forward

Carry Forward
Request
£'000

Children & Young People’s Service (Non DSG)

Learning Resource Centre
To allow the West Green Learning Centre additional start up costs in its first year
of independent operation (in line with report to Executive on 24 April).

14

Catering Service
Requested to buffer the impact of the cost of single status

28

Total Carry Forward Request — Children and Young People's Service (non
DSG)

42

Housing

Housing Needs and Strategy

Private Sector Stock Condition survey: The service is being inspected in October
2007. Our KLOE requires us to have up to date information on our Private Sector
stock condition. The survey could not be carried out in 2006/07 and the service
needs this budget provision in 2007/08.

50

Total Carry Forward Request - Housing

50

Social Services

Private Sector Adaptations

There is a historic waiting list which has developed over a number of years due to
demand for services against available funding. This provision would fund
approximately 130 additional bath lifts in 2007-08.

128

Additional funding required to maximise the Disabled Facilities Grant and meet the
conditions of the grant in 2007/08.

48

Total Carry Forward Request - Social Services

176

Environment

Recycling

The underspend is mainly due to recycling credits exceeding budget. There is a
high risk that some of these credits may be clawed back by NLWA in the new
financial year. A revenue carry forward proposal of £100k is requested to cover
this risk.

100

Highways

Additional Project management fees have been generated as a result of additional
allocations in year. There are a number of budget pressures anticipated within the
waste management budget for the Accord contract where a shortfall in resources
has been identified. A revenue carry forward proposal of £100k is requested to
cover this shortfall.

100

Director's Management and Support budget

A revenue carry forward proposal has been requested to fund Estates Clean
Sweep delayed from March to April/May in advance of inspection plus increased
costs of Better Haringey Green Summer Event in 07/08 and to fund the cost of
priority directorate training events.

75

Total Carry Forward Request - Environment

275

1of3




Page 270

Revenue Carry Forward Proposals — 2006/07

Appendix C

Budget / Description and Reason for Carry Forward

Carry Forward
Request
£'000

Chief Executive’s Service

OD&L - Personnel

External resources will be required to support the implementation stage of the
single status legislation in Haringey during 2007/08 as the Council may require
individual staff engagement, and agreement to variations in contact for some 1000
plus employees.

80

TOTAL Carry Forward Request OD&L

80

Strategy (Policy and Regeneration)

Wood Green Spatial Plan

This was delayed at the request of members to allow further initial consultation on
this key regeneration project. No budget is available in 2007/08 to take this
forward.

50

Archway Road Project
Slippage has meant that the works have fallen into 2007/08. The project is
contractually committed and will complete in May 2007.

69

Delays in agreeing text between Haringey and external bodies has created
slippage in the printing of key statutory documents including borough profile,
corporate strategy, community strategy and the Local Area Agreement. The work
has been commissioned so funds are contractually committed.

69

Jackson’s Lane

Members agreed a grant of £70k to Jackson’s Lane Community Centre to ensure
the Centre’s long term sustainability. £45k was released in 2006/07 with the
remaining £25k on receipt of a viable business plan.

25

Total Carry Forward Request Strategy (Policy and Regeneration)

213

Access - IT

One-off purchase of Oracle licenses to make up the current shortfall in numbers.
The budget will not be available in 2007/08 for this expenditure.

100

To fund outstanding training for new employees as part of the last phase of the
recruitment/restructure of the IT In-source project.

50

IT one-off savings in 2006/07 on maintenance agreements and use of existing
hardware stock — propose transfer to Infrastructure Reserve for future IT
investment subject to business case and Member approval.

276

Total Carry Forward Request — Access IT

426

Neighbourhood Management

Stoneleigh Road

Match funding for Stoneleigh Road capital project was identified from 2006/07
budgets but due to project delays, it has not been spent. The money needs to be
carried forward to cover Haringey’s commitment to the project.

60

Making the Difference

Due to the late approval of this year’s ‘Making the Difference’ projects , some
slippage in full completion has occurred however, all projects are fully committed
so carry forward of funds is crucial.

70

Total Carry Forward Request — Neighbourhood Management

130

20f3




Page 271

Revenue Carry Forward Proposals — 2006/07 Appendix C
Budget / Description and Reason for Carry Forward Carry Forward
Request

£'000

Policy & Performance

Funding is required for publicity and events associated with the commemoration of 30

the Abolition of the Slave Trade Acts events going on throughout 2007. Without

this carry forward, events will be curtailed and publicity limited.

Total Carry Forward Request — Policy & Performance 30

Safer Communities

The carry forward is required to complete the implementation of the Council’s new 15

Emergency Control Centre in Alexandra House.

Total Carry Forward Request — Safer Communities 15

Total — Chief Executive’s Service 894

Grand Total — General Fund 1,437

Other budgets outside of the General Fund:

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)

Sixth Form Centre 500

DSG carry-forward to fund the transition of the Sixth Form Centre in 2007/08

14-19 Personalised Learning 55

To support the post of 14-19 adviser. The 14-19 allocation has only been allocated

for 2 years, and is to support the development of vocational diplomas and the new

diploma qualification starting in 2008.

Children’s Network Projects 700

Whilst plans were developed during 2006/7, the expenditure has slipped into

2007/8

Contingency for Schools in Financial Difficulty 100

£400k of the £500k contingency was allocated in 2006/07 in consultation with the

Schools Forum. This carry forward will contribute to the reduced 2007/08 budget of

£250k.

Total DSG 1,355

Social Services: Learning Disabilities Pooled Budget

Learning Disabilities Partnership overspend will carry forward under the conditions (42)

of the agreement.

3of3




Page 272

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 273

Capital Carry Forward Proposals — 2006/07

Appendix D

Budget / Description and
Reason for Carry Forward

Carry
Forward
Request

£'000

Funding Source

Priority
(Contractual
Commitment, High,
Medium,

Low)

Finance

Corporate Finance

Alexandra Park and Palace
Landscape Development Project
— some residual expenditure will
fall into 2007/08.

118

Capital receipts

CC

Property Services
476 High Road works
rescheduled to 2007/08.

152

Capital receipts

CC

Bernie Grant Centre
Slippage into 2007/08
(construction due to complete
July / August 2007).

80

LPSA

CC

Total Carry Forward Request —
Finance

350

Chief Executive’s Department

Information Technology
Request to fund deferred spend
from 2006/07.

776

Capital receipts

Medium

Customer Services

Workforce Management System
— delays in the procurement
process.

70

Capital receipts

CC

Hornsey Library Rewiring
Project

Detailed supporting case
provided.

368

Capital receipts

CC

Stoneleigh Road

The LBH carry over is £250k for
Stoneleigh Road as per the
PBPR submission.

181

Capital receipts

CC

Tottenham High Road (HERS 2)
Delays due to TfL traffic order
delayed the start of the
construction phase.

34

Capital receipts

CC

Tottenham High Road (HERS 3)
As above.

38

Capital receipts

CC

Bruce Grove THI

Delays progressing Phase 2
because of negotiations with
traders and finalising drawings.

15

Capital receipts

CC

Hornsey High Street
Various delays.

66

Section 106

CC

Tottenham High Road Projects
Slippage

2,552

ERDF

CC

1of3




Page 274

Capital Carry Forward Proposals — 2006/07 Appendix D

Budget / Description and Carry Funding Source Priority

Reason for Carry Forward Forward (Contractual

Request Commitment, High,
£'000 Medium,

Low)

Other net overspends (303) Various

Total Carry Forward request - 3,797

Chief Executive’s Department

Housing

Development Works 313

Slippage

Private Sector Renewal 844

Slippage

Other net overspends (70)

Total Carry Forward request — 1,087

Housing General Fund

Environment

Parking Plan CPZ schemes — 456 Capital receipts/ Spurs High

Various delays.

CCTV Control Room 246 Capital receipts CC

Various delays.

Section 106 63 Section 106 CC

A late start to the Penstock Path

scheme.

Section 278 32 Section 278 CC

Slippage on two schemes due to

clash with utilities works

scheduled in the area.

Lordship Recreation Ground 433 Capital receipts High

Detailed supporting case

provided.

WHL Community Sports Centre 34 Private (Barclays) CC

Delays.

Leisure Centres Renewals 318 Prudential borrowing CC

Delays.

UDP/LDF 58 Capital receipts High

Project slippage. Production of

the Joint Waste Development

Plan is a statutory requirement.

Total Carry Forward Request - 1,640

Environment

Social Services

E-Care 17 IEG funding High

2nd phase of implementation

programme is over two years.

This funding will be required to

complete the second phase.

OPS Residential Strategy 270 Capital receipts High

This is a profiling issue, the

20f3




Page 275

Capital Carry Forward Proposals — 2006/07 Appendix D
Budget / Description and Carry Funding Source Priority
Reason for Carry Forward Forward (Contractual
Request Commitment, High,
£'000 Medium,
Low)
overall programme is within
budget.
Mental Health Projects 47 Mental health 2006/07 High
Various projects delayed. (SCE(R))
Adaptations Service 329 RCCO CC
There are an outstanding number
of assessed cases which are with
surveyors and contractors. This
underspend will be required to
fund the commitment into the
new year.
Total Carry Forward Request - 663
Social Services
Children and Young People’s
Service
Coleridge Primary: Expansion 969 Formulaic CC
Tetherdown Primary: Expansion 2,045 Formulaic CC
Coldfall Primary Expansion (1,416) Formulaic CC
BSF Contribution TCF WHL 964 TCF CC
Computers for Pupils 336 Standards Fund CC
Children’s Centres Phase | (237) Sure Start Capital Grant CC
Children’s Centres Phase Il 955 Sure Start Capital Grant CC
Rokesley Infant &  Junior (345) Formulaic/s.106 CC
expansion Phase |11, Il
Alexandra Park Expansion (117) Formulaic CC
Campsbourne Primary Phase |l (1,011) Formulaic CC
Crowland Uninsured Costs (160) Formulaic CC
Devolved Formula Capital (for | (1,354) Devolved Capital CC
schools)
Strategic Technologies (118) Standards Fund CC
Big Lottery Fund (458) New Opportunities Fund CC
(NOF)
Plevna & Triangle (108) New Deal for CC
Communities (NDC)
Building Schools for the Future (806) Building Schools for the CC
Future (BSF)
Other variations (39) CC
Total Carry Forward — Children (900)
and Young People’s Service
Grand Total 6,637

3of3




Page 276

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 277 Agenda ltem 12

HARINGEY COUNCIL &

Agends iNO.

Cabinet ' : On 19 June 2007

Report Title: Connexions services from April 2008

Report of: The Director of Children and Young People’s Service

Wards(s) affected: All

1. Purpose

1.1 To seek CAB support for the proposals on the future direction of Connexions Services from
April 2008 in Haringey.

2. Introduction by the Executive Member for the Children and Young People’s Service (if
required)
3. Executive Summary

3.1 Connexions services are currently delivered by the Connexions North London Partnership
which from April 2008 will become the responsibility of the Local Authority. The value of
Connexions work in 2007-08 is £2,456,104 which is determined through a national funding
formula. The level of grant from 2008 is not yet known but assuming it is at a similar level to
previous years it will be in the region of £2 million, excluding around £0.45 million for PAYP
which transferred to the Local Area Agreement in April 2007.

3.2 Connexions services provide all young people in Haringey aged 13-19 and up to 25 for those
with special educational needs, information, advice and guidance around education,
employment and training (careers advice and guidance). The service is currently delivered
through a sub contract with Prospects Services Limited and through Connexions centrally
employed staff including Personal Advisers. This is a detailed report which gives the
process that has been followed in developing the proposal and the implications of the
recommendations.

3.3 The proposal is that from April 2008 Connexions Services will be delivered in a different
way. The proposal builds on the 14-19 developments, the work of the Children’s Networks,
and will contribute to achieving the targets in the Local Area Agreement, for example around
young people who are NEET. The proposal is subject to a procurement process but
Appendix 3 gives a useful summary of how services could be delivered under this proposal.

4. Recommendations

4.1 To commission the schools (secondary and special), the sixth form centre, further education
providers (Conel) and the youth service to deliver universal services of information, advice
and guidance to all young people aged 13-19, and up to 25 for those with special or
additional needs who are registered at the school/ centre/ college/service against a contract
specification.




Page 278

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

To review the current ‘drop in’ facilities for young people through Connexions eg multi
agency centre in Wood Green library, Connexions, Tottenham High Road, with a view to
enhancing facilities and considering what synergy there is with existing Council Services in
the area. «

To provide a focused central team of Personal Advisers who are allocated to work in
Children’s Networks to deliver outreach services, for example to young people who are
educated other than at school aged 13-19 years, and NEET aged 16-18 years, where
appropriate working through host organisations such as CAMHS and YOT.

To establish a central team to provide an overview of Connexions services and in particular
to:

e ensure that young people are active in developing and improving service provision;
quality assure information, advice and guidance;

ensure that 14-19 developments are integral with Connexions services;

oversee workforce training and development to meet national standards;

monitor the contracts;

provide quality assurance;

ensure high quality impartial information for Years 9, 10 and 11 and appropriate access
electronically to careers information.

To ensure that in all aspects of Connexions services, young people are active in
consultations, recruitment, and quality assurance processes;

To commission CCIS services (mandatory requirement) for monitoring NEET, analysing and
reporting and tracking young people and use the information to produce reports.

Report Authorised by:

o S

Sharon Shoesmith
Director
The Children and Young People’s Service

Contact Officer: Janette Karklins, Deputy Director, School Standards and Inclusion

Telephone 020 489 5048
Belinda Evans, Head of Youth Service
Telephone: 020 8493 1009

5. Director of Finance Comments

5.1

5.2

The Director of Finance notes that the funding receivable for the additional responsibilities of
the authority in respect of delivering Connexions services, whether through a commissioning
process or directly, are to cover the full cost of the service including all management and
administration costs, monitoring costs and overheads, across all services involved, including
corporate costs.

The risk in respect of a potential pensions deficit is of concern, and the Director of Finance
will be directly involved in agreeing the way forward to ensure that the Council is not
exposed to additional liability.

Head of Legal Services Comments

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report. The framework
for the change to Connexions provision established as a result of the publication of Youth
Matters is set out within the report and needs no specific legal comment. Paragraphs 9.1

and 9.2 accurately reflect the necessary considerations regarding the transfer of staff under
TUPE and the particular issues that could arise regarding pension provision, which should
be broadly comparable within the new employment.




Page 279

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Documents used in the preparation of this report include:

Youth Matters: Next Steps 2006

Targeted Youth Support Toolkit 2006

Draft National Quality Standards for Information, Advice and Guidance 2006
Targeted Youth Support — a guide 2007

8.2

8.3

9.
9.1

Strategic Implications

Currently Connexions services are provided for young people 13-19 and 25 in the case of
those with special educational needs. They also provide a targeted service for young people
who are Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET). It is essential that there is no
break in service delivery and that quality levels are maintained and where possible
improved.

The changes should be set against a background of change for 14-19 curriculum provision
and the development of targets through the Local Area Agreement. The curriculum changes
will also enable considered strategies to prevent NEET through better choices at 14 and 16
and greater synergy across a wider range of services through the Children’s Networks.

There is a range of different ways in which the Connexions services could be delivered from
April 2008. Haringey indicated to Government Office for London (GOL) that we were looking
at a hybrid model which would include elements of a wide range of methods of delivery.

This gave the maximum flexibility to explore different arrangements to best meet the needs
of young people. CEMB received reports on Connexions Services in October and
December 2006, January and April 2007.

Financial Implications

The budget for Connexions 2008 is set by a national funding formula and has not been set
for 2008-09 but is likely to be at a similar level to previous years.

Connexions Grant Allocation to Haringey

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Estimate*

£2,405,754 £ 2,653,484 £2,456,104 £2,053,580

* Estimated by taking an average of the previous three years and excluding PAYP funding
(£451,534 in 2006-7) which transferred to the LAA in April 2007.

9.2

9.3

9.4

10.

10.1

Any proposal for delivering Connexions services will be subject to a planning process which
will include careful costing of each strand. However there will be a finite amount of grant
funding and this will require service delivery to be within that amount.

Achieving Best Value will be central to any commissioned services and procurement will
provide challenge through best value review.

Exactly how the funding will be made available has not been finalised but it is most likely that
this will be through the LAA.

Legal Implications

The delivery of Connexions services post April 2008 will be the responsibility of Haringey
and we will be accountable for the delivery of information, advice and guidance (IAG) to all
young people 13-19, and especially those at risk of becoming NEET or who are NEET, and
up to 25 for those with special educational needs. Delivery is against National Standards for
IAG. One of the ultimate performance indicators is the number of young people who are
NEET. This accountability is most likely to be through the LAA.




Page 280

11.

Personnel Implications

11.1 Assuming that the recommendations are accepted there will be personnel implications for the

11.2.

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

13.

13.1

14.

transfer of Connexions Personal Advisers both those currently employed by Prospects to
deliver for Haringey young people and those who are directly employed by Connexions.
Discussions have taken place with Personnel and a timescale of 6 months (from the point a
formal decision has been made) to obtain/exchange information about staff to complete the
consultation process and possible transfer of affected staff to the Council is proposed. The
TUPE arrangements would commence in September 2007, with full transfer of staff
completed by the end of March 2008.

Pensions

There may be a potential pension deficit if the pension terms of TUPE staff are higher than
those of the borough. Initial investigations indicate that this will not be the case, however
this has yet to be officially confirmed. It will be Connexions’ responsibility to identify any
pension differences and scheme transfer costs in the first instance with advice from their
actuaries. Haringey's pensions section would then involve the Council’s actuaries and the
two sides agree a way forward.

Equalities Implications

Connexions services are delivered to all young people with a targeted service for those most
at risk of becoming NEET, for example through special needs, mental health issues,
teenage mothers and those who leave school with one GCSE qualification. Earlier
intervention could help to reduce the number of young people who become NEET,
especially when this is coupled with 14-19 curriculum developments and greater integration
of services for young people. The number of young people who become NEET in Haringey
are concentrated in particular Wards which are linked with social deprivation indices.

Connexions data on the ethnicity of young people who are NEET is incomplete but in
January 2007 of those whose ethnicity was known, the largest ethnic groups of young
people who are NEET was White British (23.5%), any other White (19.4%) Caribbean/White
and Black Caribbean (15.9%).

There are currently more females who are NEET than male (52%).

Consultation

Haringey has. a transition period to develop services to ensure that they meet the needs of
young people and are of high quality. In framing the direction of travel there is a consultation
exercise with young people, their parents and other stakeholders to determine views on
current provision and to consider their aspirations for future provision. This has been carried
out by the Corporate Consultation Team.

Background

Connexions services currently delivered through Connexions North London Partnership will
become the responsibility of the Local Authority from April 2008. How these services are
delivered is up to Haringey to determine in consultation with young people and stakeholders.

The current value of the Connexions work in 2007-08 is £2,456,104 this is determined
through a national funding formula. In 2005-06 the grant was £2,405,754 and in 2006-07
£2,653,484. The level of grant from 2008 is not yet known but assuming it is at a similar
level to previous years it will be in the region of £2 million excluding around £0.45 million for
PAYP which transferred to the Local Area Agreement in April 2007.




Page 281

3.

4.

A shared arrangement with the other London Boroughs in the consortium was considered in
the early stages (Summer — Autumn 2006) of the development of the transition plan. This
was not supported by all four Boroughs. Waltham Forest commissioned a feasibility study to
assess the viability of partnering with the Connexions East London Consortium in the wake
of the Olympics and is proposing this option. Enfield has indicated that they are going to in-
source all Connexions Services specified by the DfES. Therefore this was not a viable
option.

In essence for Haringey, Connexions services can be divided into four key areas.

A) Universal services current value £966,000

5.

Currently these services are sub contracted through Prospects Services Limited a careers
company. They deliver universal services through schools and drop in centres. The service
is to young people 13-19 and comprises information, advice and guidance which include
work on the September Guarantee, the drop in centre in Tottenham, support for vulnerable
groups like LDD provision, NEET tracking and monitoring and advice for parents at school
based parent evenings. In addition Prospects provides in-service training and support on
careers and produces careers materials.

B) Targeted Directly Delivered Services current value £857,562

6.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Connexions directly employ 27 Personal Advisers as part of the borough delivery

team who work through host agencies such as CAMHS and YOT. The targeted support
service work specifically with hard to reach young people especially those young people who
are NEET or likely to become NEET in the age range 16-18. They track NEET and also
provide support for example, through the Multi Agency Centre in Wood Green library.

C) Positive Activities for Young People (PAYP) current value £451,534

Diversionary activity holiday programmes are targeted at young people at risk of
involvement in crime. This programme was subsumed into the Local Area Agreement from
April 2007.

D) Other Connexions Services current value around £378,388

CCIS

This is a management information and data system which is used to track

young people in employment, education and training. Maintaining the CCIS system will be a
mandatory element of future Connexions services.

Contract monitoring and quality assurance

This is an essential element of any performance management process and would

need to be continued to ensure high standards of service delivery to young people.
Participation of young people in evaluating, developing and governing

services

Young people’s direct input in quality assurance and consultation with young people as well
as quality marking provision would be an essential element of future service provision.
Information ,
Connexions offers impartial information in a range of formats on post 16 provision and this
should continue to ensure a measure of independent advice and guidance to young people
and would be part of the quality assurance role.

Workforce development

It is essential that all staff working with young people are appropriately qualified and have
met specified standards for training and professional development.

Employer links

Developing employment opportunities for young people through work based learning,
volunteering and job brokerage.




Page 282

Services from April 2008

14. There is a range of different ways in which the Connexions services could be delivered from
April 2008. Haringey indicated to Government Office for London (GOL) in December that we
were looking at a hybrid model which would include elements of a wide range of methods of
delivery. This gave the maximum flexibility to explore different arrangements to best meet
the needs of young people in Haringey. However, central government are placing
mandatory requirements on some aspects of future Connexions services such as the
Connexions brand name must remain, the continuation of the CCIS information system will
be a requirement and there are National Standards for the operation of information, advice
and guidance services which have to be met.

15. Alongside the consideration of delivery models there has been an extensive consultation
exercise carried out by the corporate Consultation Team to collect and analyse the views of
young people, parents/carers, schools, providers and other stakeholders. The consultation
is twofold, firstly to get a wide view of provision locally in terms of current provision, and
secondly, what they would like from a future service. This has been carried out using a
structured questionnaire and interviews as well as a consultation through the Youth Council.

16. Connexions services can be delivered in a variety of ways from April 2008 and the four North
London boroughs are all engaged in developing options, preparing proposals and making
transition plans. In previous years a partnership has existed for the careers contract but
through the transition process most boroughs are exploring the development of their
universal information, advice and guidance services through schools and post 16 providers.

17. A summary of the options and recommendations from April 2008 is given in Appendix 1. In
Appendix 2 there is an analysis of the risks and issues together with proposals for mitigating
actions. Appendix 3 gives a broad overview of service delivery from April 2008.

Universal Services from April 2008

18. The recommended proposal is that the secondary and special schools, the sixth form centre,
further education providers (Conel) and the Youth Centres would be commissioned to deliver
the universal information, advice and guidance services and some aspects of the targeted
support service. The current provision through the Multi Agency Centre in Wood Green
library would be enhanced. A feasibility study would be commissioned into the future use of
the Connexions Tottenham drop-in centre, including whether this would be better located
elsewhere and what synergy there is with existing Council Services in that area. If this
review concluded that the service is feasible then we would seek to use the two Centres for
the targeted work with bases in Wood Green and Tottenham.

19. A robust performance management framework will be introduced which we are proposing
will be monitored centrally to ensure that the commissioned universal information, advice
and guidance services will be accountable for quality assurance and control.

20. Schools in particular are very keen that the operational providers of services retain a level of
autonomy as they believe that is beneficial to the attainment, welfare and progression of the
young people (Draft Report from consultation with Headteachers).

Targeted Directly Delivered Services from April 2008

21. There are currently 27 Personal Advisers employed directly by Connexions delivering
services to reduce NEET amongst those aged 16-18, in many cases working through host
organisations such as CAMHS and YOT. The recommendation is that a review is
undertaken of the effectiveness of these targeted services. Where they are working
effectively services could continue to be commissioned through host organisations but this is
also an opportunity to consider new approaches.

PAYP
22. Positive Activities for Young People provides holiday activity programmes for young people




Page 283

15.

16.

23.

24.

25.

26.

particularly those at risk of crime. The funding for this service was transferred into the Local
Area Agreement from April 2007. PAYP could be developed through a commissioning
model against a needs analysis.

CcCis

Some aspects of service delivery are mandatory one of these is CCIS services which is a
management information system used to track, monitor and report on the destinations of
young people in terms of education, employment and training. This could be commissioned
from an external provider such as Connexions although there are moves to look at CCIS
systems pan London. The data from CCIS is used to collect and monitor NEET levels
across all London boroughs and the UK.

Central Services

We would propose to retain a core central service responsible for contract monitoring,
maintaining an overview of Connexions services, delivering the important QA role and
monitoring of provision, ensuring that young people are able to contribute to developing and
improving the service, co-ordinate the provision of impartial information, ensure that effective
workforce development is in place, including mandatory training and staff development is in
place to meet the IAG standards. Central to this work would be ensuring the active
participation of young people through evaluating service delivery and establishing
mechanisms to enable better consultation on provision. These developments would be
linked with current 14-19 developments which are central to better addressing vocational
choice and provision in Haringey for young people. The aim of these developments 14-19
being to help to prevent young people becoming NEET and ultimately to help to prevent
worklessness in the borough.

Developing effective links with employers is an area which we would like to develop in
tandem with the 14-19 developments, with increased vocational course choice and provision,
we also need to ensure that young people can make better informed choices through
experience of work placements and work experience. There is the possibility of
commissioning this aspect of work from local organisations like the Education Business
Partnership.

Workforce development could be integrated with existing systems for training and
development.

Conclusion

This is an important opportunity to consider the future delivery of Connexions services in
Haringey. It is closely aligned with developments locally and nationally 14-19 which will
enable young people to have a greater range of choice in terms of vocational provision and
opportunities. - It will also contribute to better preventing of young people becoming NEET.
The recommendation is for a hybrid model which includes some aspects of services
commissioned, other delivered centrally through the development of existing Council
services.

Appendices

Appendix 1 gives a summary of the service aspects and recommendations for 2008
onwards.

Appendix 2 gives an analysis of the risks and issues that have been identified together with
the mitigating action.

Appendix 3 gives an outline of what it is proposed Connexions Services will be like from
April 2008.




Page 284

*S92IAISS [IOUN0Y)
ss0.19E Buppiom uononpas | JIN pue
sjobie; Yy punoe uoi3UaAIlul pue
uonuaaaid pajebie; j0) wes) [enuad
llews e Guuieyal pue saibojens
|12UnoY 19piMm 3y} 0} pan uoisiaosd
61-€l pue siauised ybnoayy

S221AJ3S JO Buluoissiwwo yjog

‘Rabunep uj ssapjiom
Asiewgin pue | 33N

ale oym d|doad BunoA

40 Jaquinu Buronpai auyy

uo saibajelns 1ounoy j|essA0
|} ojul paf) 8q pinom siy}
Qg 28 LOA ‘991M8S YINoA
ay} Buipnjour uoisiroid
6L-¥ 1 pue suaupred ybnosyl
BIBIISSP BY PINOM SDIAIBS
10 BujuoISSIWLIWOD BLOS

(ma1na1 anjea
1s2q 0} J08igns) ssaocoud
ISSIWULIOD B|qBIS|IL0D

e yBnoly; Ino aojaies
suoissiwwos AabuueH

Bu

Aeiqy

Uaa19) POOAA Je anuag Acuaby

1 B2 paiojdxs aq pinoo saoies
s|iounos Bunsixs uim AB1suAs

Jsleg 133N 9Je oum sisyjow
sbeuas) jo Jaqwnu ayy Buonpal

Ba saifslens Buysixs yum pasuj

pue psiabie} ag piNod Wes) |BAUSD

-Aljenjua0 saoinss Bulaalsp vy aul
ybnoiy; puny ayi sswnsqns Asbuuey

‘A1sAlap 201A9s 0} aaniqiyoud
awoosqg speaylanc [enusiod
8U} S92IAISS SUOIXBULOY) oI
Ang sybnoiog 1noj e ssajun

“AsBulreH
10} 18U US2aQ JOU JE} 0S BABRY
syebie) pue uoponpas 133N
10} pes| 8U} aJe SUOIX3aUU0D

'sjebie} ybnotoq yum aujjut
syjuswalinbal juswabeuew
aouewIopad [BUOIPPE

UJIM ‘9IS JBAIBP O] “INXD
0} spuny suinial AsbupeH

295°1683

sgueleng Jequaides

Buppoelt 133N
ahuan Acuaby -nIN

S,Yd peseq jooyss pajsbiey

Aoueubsld sbeusa)

JuawAodwg

UiesH |elusiy

yjiesH

Buisnopy

Buipnioul suonuaAIBiul 8ouepIinb ue aolApe jo abuel J0SIApY
Jeuosiad ybnoiy} pajonpuod ‘gL- g} abuel abe uj uononpay 133N

ao1at9s poddns pajabae)

SLIOA PUB.SIWHYD se yons ‘salouabe 1soy ybnouy) Buppops
—(wea] Alaaljaq ubnosog ) sI0SIAPY [BUOSIS pakodw Apdailq /2

S991A13G PaJaAlRq Apoasig pelebie],

‘ABayens gl-p| pue

s991a18g Moddng uino 4 paleibaly]
ano jo Jed se ajdoad Hunok

0} @ouepinb pue IVIAPE ‘UoleULIOJUI
[ESIDAIUN I2AIOP O} PBUOISSIWILIOD
aie 991A19s YnoA ay) pue (jauon)
siaplacsd UoneINPa JBYINS *3UBD
W0} YIXIS 3} ‘S|ooyos [e1oads
pue A1epuo29s jey} puswiwosay

AleWWNS B PUB ‘PauIR)qo aq PINod sainbly 219Um SSOIAISS 858U} 4O JSO0 JUBLIND By} ‘gO0Z Ul

‘speal [eioads Ulim
sidoad BunoA Joy poddns
JaNaqg a|qeus Osje pinom
) -saibsiens uonuanaid
133N pue sjuswdojaAasp

6L-71 8yl Uyim

payuif 8q Os|e pnoo siu;
pue uoliusAIBIUl Ales Janaq
9]geuUS pINom 89JA19S YInoA
pUE JJUSD WO} LIXIS By}
‘sjooyos [e10ads ‘sjooyos
yBnoiy} seoiAIes [esianun
au) BuoIsSsIIWOoD)

(malnas anjea

1s9g 01 109fgns) ssanoid
BuIUOISSIWIWOD B|qE)SAIUOD
e yBnoiy) N0 aolnes
suoissiwwod AsBuley

I XION3ddV

"8002 1V UIpIIYD auy Ui
pasodoud se ] 10} 8]0} BUIOISSIWLIWOD
oibejesns sy Jsurebe ssob siyy

“Ajlesuas
201AJ8S 2y BunisAiep Yy 3yl
ybnoayy spuny sswnsans AsBuueH

‘uondo sty

10y Busuueid Jou sie sybnosog
1810 3y} SE spJemuo

800z uondo a[qeln ss9)|

€ $8008( S} WNIOSU0D
ay) Ul sybnolog uopuo YUoN
Inoy ay} jo diysuone|el-iaul
841 JO asneosq Ing 80-2002
Joy pasibe uopisod aul sI sy

‘syabie) ybnolog

UNM auijul siuswaiinbal
juswabeuew asuewiopad
|euoRIpPPE UNM 10BU0OgNS
$108ds01d JO) INXD

0} spunj sunjas Asbunep

lels)ew s1931e9 80Npoid

Bujusaa syuesed Buunp sjualed asinpy

sJssleD) punose Buluies] 19su|

Buoyuop pue Bupioel] | IIN

(swusussassy Oy LUONaG) UOISINDIH Q7]

(weyuano] ) sauag u-doiq

asjuelens) Jaquisides

s100ds0.1d YyBNOoIY) PaIBAIISP SOUEPING pUE SDIAPY UOEULIOH|

$8/3U80 UI-doJp puE SooYds YBNOIY} PIBAIIRP SSIAISS [BSISAIUN

01A19G PaJOBIUOIGNS [BSIBAIUN
- — v

"UOREPUBWILLIOOS) pUE suondo AlsAyap ay) jo

1suodsal Aionap awnsse |im Ajuoyine ayj yosiym diyssauped INXD 2yl jo Ajigisuodsal oy} AUSLIND S821AIBS BY] SBUINO MO[SQ LBUD 8L

SUOIIEPUBLIIODTY PUE SIDIAIIG SUOIXBUUCY J0 Alewiwing



Page 285

*9j0a Bujuoissimwos oibsjens

8L} 393w 0} Ajjeajuad palaalsp

8q pPINOYS pue [BNUSSSS 3q [fIM
soueinsse Ajljenb pue juewebeuew
aoueunopad ‘Buliojiuow JoRIJUOD

(mainai anjea

1s9q 0} }08fgns) sseooud
Buluolssiwwos a|qeisajuod
e ybnoiy) 1no aones
SUOISSILLIWIoD AsBuneH

9002

10V LIPIYD Y} JO SUOHEPUSILLIODS!
sy ylim au ul st soueinsse Ajfenb
pue Juswebeuew JOBIUOD U0 PISNI0}
8j0. Buluoissiwiwos o1bejens e yum
wes) [e4uso e Jo Juswdoaasp ay L

‘wes] soueInsse

Aljenb esjuso e ybnouy; Jo wea)
Bupnoenuos syl ybnoay) so1AIss sty
10} Ajjiqisuodsal sawnsse AsBupen

92IAI9S JOAIISP O} INXD
0] spuny suinja. AsbuneH

HIOMaLWEL) doueINSSE ANfen)
(Jo10B3U00-gng Auedwo) S19ale)) JO SUOIXSUUOY) ) BuLolUOW 198U
juswebeuew aouewWIONdd

‘sybBnoiog uopuo-

YUON Joyo yum Anpqissod siyy
0} se aoeyd Bupjey ale sUCISSNoSI(
*19)860) 921AI8S SIY3 UOISSILIWIOD
pinos Ajoyne jeso] suo

uey} alow se 9IS JO SIIIoOU0Id
10} sanipqissod ase asay|

-1edh 15113 3y} 10} ISBI|

je patoapisuod s| saijddns s1ayjoue

10 suoixauuo) woiy siys Buiseyasnd
10 Aiqissod ayyiey) puswituosay

‘sswweiBoud ay) Jo uopenjeas
yBnouou ajqeua o} papasu

9¢ PJNOoM SWISISAS UOHBWIOUL

pue swa)sAs asueinsse Ajjend)

*S90IAILS

[1ouUNoY jo BUILOISSIWIIOD J23IP
yBnouy} osje pue BuluoissSHULIOD
a|qelsauod ybnouy} saoiales
BuuoISSIWIWOD 0} PES| PINOD SILYL
sisAjeue spasu j@aw pue sjobie)
ay3 yim julj 0} vy oyl ybnoayy
Buluoissiwos pue uoljeuIpIo

~03 |BJUSD SUIOS B 0} SPAdU 313y L

(ma1aai anjea

1594 0} 108fans) ssaooud
Buiuoissiwwo? s|qejsauoo
e YBnouay; Ino aojaes
SUOISSIWWOO AabuneH

‘s1eb.18)

Vv14q psj pue paiojuow
ng spasu payiusp!

8y 1suteBe Janjjap 0}
8|qelISap 8q PINOM S99IAIBS
10 BuluoissIwwod swog

(mairal anjea

1589 0} J0alqns) sseooid
Bujuoissiwwoo ajgeIsaIu00
e YBnoJy; N0 ad1Ales
suoIssiWwWoD Asbuien

“uiod 8ining SWOoS 1e Welshs

SI100 uopuoT ued e Jo uoIsSNosIp
usaq sey asvy | ‘syjuswainbal s
193w 01 Buissaooid pue wWaishs ayy
wej s1 oym Jspiaoid e wolp
paseyosnd usneq aq Ajgeqoid pinom
welsAs G100 SY} 8dUEISU] IS 8L U}

‘9SBQBIEP S|00YDS JUBLIND JO
Jusweoueyue s|gissod ybnouy ‘'g109
1o Ajigsiuodsal sawnsse Aabupen

'sjebie) yy 1 Bunesw pue 133N
Bujwooaq jo ysu je sjdoad Bunok
Buronpal uo pasnooy Algyewnn pue
sisAjeue spaau e o} paublje Ajasojo
g P02 Siy1 'S8IAISS |1OUN0Y ||
$s0J08 awwwelBold dAVd 8l 1oAlep
0} @oe|d Ul 9q |Im sassaocold pue
sweyshs vy syl ybnouyy g0z oty

‘awiwesbold

dAVd au; Butaalep Aosuip vy ey
yBnoiy puny ayy sawnsqgns Asbuuen

‘ss9y|ddns Jayjo

ybnoJuy) 1o walshs ay} ypm
JEjjilE) 81 BOUM SUOIXSUUOD
ybnouy; paseyoind

g PInoo sIYl ‘Spiemuo
8007 Swawsbuele 10eNuU0D
4mny sy Jo Juswaiinbal

B SI YoIym WaYsAS uopeLuioul
Isijeloads e st 5100

'sjebie} ybnoiog yum auljul
sjuswalnbal Juawsbeuew
sougwouad [euonippe

UlIM ‘901AI8S JBAIRP 0} TNXD
0] spuny suinial Asbuuey

‘suejd aoines

AqQ ps| aie pue saolIAIes
uoneaI0al pue UNSI| ‘LOA
‘a2IAlas YINoA aul Aq pasanep
Alewnd ale Apusiino

yolym pouad Aepijoy ay} Jaro
SOHIAIOE AJBUOISIBAIP JaAlap
0} pig S82IAIBS |IDUNOY |IY
‘padojansp aq 0} sasssooid
pue sLe)sAs aU} 8|qeus 0} g0
-/00z 10} uopsod a3 sI SIYL

‘s19b.e) yBnoiog yum auyul
sjuswaimnbal Juswabeuew
souewlopad [euoippe ylim
‘SallAIIoE | JYN/AIBUOISIBAID
10 AISAI|8p 104 TNXD

0} spuny stuma. AsBuleHy

‘PaIBAIEP SI 80JAISS SUOIXBUUOY) JO
108dse §10D 8yl MOY UO SUOHILISAI JUSWILISAOE [enuad aq Aew 319y} :S10N

swialsAs |y Buneibaju)

ajdoad BunoA Bupoes |

Buiuodal pue sisAjeuy

VSd L33N jo Buuontiopy

wosAg wawsbeuepy JuayD e Jo soususiUEy

wes} SN Joqusw ¢ Jo 1S00 aU} 0} UORNQLIUOT ¥

soueinsse ANenp
Buiues ).
walshAs |

1ebie) yo1ans
pue jafig} uononpas | JIN 0} paysene Buipuny vy olu| pswnsgng

(£00z woy vy
8y} Ojul pawnsgns
ussq sey Bupuny
S PES LSY3

SO U] JUSWBAJOAUI JO YSU
1e ajdoad BunoA je pajsbie) ‘swwelboid Aeploy Ajiapoe Aleuoisisai(]

‘dAvd




Page 286

oL

‘uoisiaoad

8S4N03 uonedNps JBYBIysYLINg
Ym payuy) aq osfe pjnod

3] -ojdoad BunoX o} sadiales Ajjenb
Y61y apiaosd 03 sjge 2o10pH0M

9)ep 03 dn pue paujel) [[oMm B asnsu2
pinom sy "ssasoud Buiuolssiwwos
Aue jo yuawssnbai e aq

pInom juswdoiaAsp ad10HI0M 3L

(mo1nal anjea

1s9q 0} }o9fgns) ssevod
BuluoISSILILLOD B[qe)sajuod
e ybnouy 1no so1ases
suolssiWWo? AsBuueny

*g|doad BunoA yum yiom oym asoy}
104 sueid Juswdopasp a2i0poM
Bunsixa yum ul uil pINod sy L

‘wes) [eAuUad B Yybnolyy adjales siy
104 Ayjqisuodsal sswnsse Asbuley

991AIBS 1BAIP O TTNXD
0} spunj suinia. AsbuneH

SBOIAISS JUBLISSISSY

(sonoed Jo uoneatasqQ 'B'a) Juswanosdwi pue Buiules| snonuuod
(swswainbaJ Buuien Aouabe

-8 Buipnoul) splepuels payoads o} Juswdoljaaap jeuoissajold pue Bujuel |
suoneden) vd

JuatudojoAap 2210D10/M

“181j423 paynuapl seiunjzoddo
UOIJBLLIOJU] PUE S3DIAISS UOHBWIOHU}
91210010 Y)im paYyuy g pinom

siy} Buneysew pue suonedIUNWWOD
18}194q 9jqeus o} padojorap

asYng o [[Im Swa)sAs uonewaojul
sa|doad HunoA pue uaipiysn

{m3In81 BnjeA

1s8q 01 J08lgns) sseosoud
BUILIOISSILILIOD 3|qRISSIU0D
e ybnoJyl 1no aoia1es
SUO|SSIWLLWIOD AsbBuien

‘Wed) [BNUSD B YyBnouy) 8oja1es sy}
104 Aypigisuodsal sawnsse AsBuuep

92IAIS JSAIBP O} INXD
0) spuny suinjas Asbupep

20IMIBS //HZ 19941p SUOIXSUUOD) O} syui| Bulueiuley
juswdoiaasp pue Juawasbeusw a)sgap
OOgpUEY SUOIX3UUOD AW

SJUaA® pue s|eusiew Bunasepn

S)UDA BUNOA DILI0JID9ID PUE UOIE)NSUOD

Buneysely pue uopesIUNWWO)

*$901AI9S Jokojdwd yyum
sSyulj 18)33q apiaoad 03 pasueyus aq
pinom uoisiaold 3SINOD [BUOHEI0A

ybnonp gL~ siuawdojoasg

(mainal anjea

189 0} 109[gns) ssasoid
BUIUOISSILIWIOD BjqE)S|ILOD
e ybnoiy} Jno adjaIes
SUOISSILWIWOD AabuueH

*801AI3S YINOA 8y} UBNOIY} S193JUNJOA
wnuuajjiw ba sweawelboid

198)UN{OA pUB Uo|SIAOId [BUOIJESOA JO
A1auea e ybnoay) Buiusddey Apesie
s1 SIU} JeU} ueaw gL~} siuawdojaasq

‘wes) {enuas e ybnoiy) soinas syl
J04 AYijiqisuodsal sawnsse Asbuley

9OIA19S JBAIIDP O} "INXD
0} spuny suinal Asbupep

Bupaaiunjop

abelayoiq gop

uosiey| Jafojdwg

Bujuies) paseq — HIOA
UONBUIPIOOD JO}08S-SS0ID

fybnouays spdoad Bunok uog
ssunuoddo juswAojdwe Buidojansp ‘s1akojdwa yum sxuil Buipping

15901498 Jakojdwiy

-padojaasp Jayuny
aq [|Im swasAs asay} alojalay]
‘uoisiaoid Jiay3 papuaye ajdoad

BUNOA ul 152193l PAJSIA B 3ARY
pInoo siapiaoid se Juspuadspuy pue
[emdeduw s1 os|e g sjgepieAe Ajlpeal

st sjdoad Hunok 1o} uoieurIoyul

30 uossiaoad ayj jeyy Jueyioduwi S|

) -9|qejteae Ajipeas a1e apim UOPUOT]
pue AeBunel ssosoe sawmesbosd
PpUE S9SIN0D UO UOHeWIOUI Jey)
ueaw || ul pue gl-p| sjuswdolaasqg

(malna1 anjen

)saq 0} J0afqns) sseooid
BujuossIWWoD 3jge)SaIL0D
e ybnoay} 1no aoin1es
SUOISSItILIoD AabBunel

‘PIdUBYUS 8¢ pINoo

958U} pue swalsAs uopewiojut Jo
Aauea e ybnoyy Buiusddey Apeauje
S1 SIUY} Jey) uesw gL-y| sjuswdoRasq

‘wes} [enuad e ybnoly) aoiAIas S}
Joy Ajiqisuodsas sswnsse Asbuuey

B21AUSS IBAIRP O] TNXD
0} spunj suinia: Asbuuep

SJU9Ad 9|, 150

syoed uonewWIoUL Z| pue || JERA

SIBMYOS SI93JED ,0J2WO] ISE,

; waisAs 101
aidoad Bunok 1o} saniunjioddo uo uoneuliou)

‘(ejdoad Bunok Aq passaijep walsAs
VO B) YJewiyinox pue ounon

yinoA ayy ybnoay) sjuawdopasp
UBLIND Yym subije osje

31 "99onoeud JO uonen|eAs ayj pue
Ki1ana1jep 991Al8s 0) [eabajul aq pinom
11 910§018Y | "SODIAISS JO UOHEN|BAD
pue Buluoissiuwod Aue jo
Juswaanbas e ag pjnom uoljedisnsed
pue Juswadbebus saidoad Bunoy

(maln8l anjea

1599 0} J08fgns) ssaooid
Bujuolssiwwod 9|qe)sayuoo
e ybnoJy; Ino aoiAIes
SUOISSIWWOD AsbBuliey

"Alanjap ao1nas pue Absjens (19uno)
Bunsixa yiim jam uble pinom siy L.

“uswebebus

UINOA SAROE 10} SpoYiaL

pue spieog UinoA |BUOHIPPE JO
JusWdoldASP BU} PUE {IOUNOD YINOA
3y} sk yons ‘sainjonis uonedioped
lewusiul ybnoJyy a01AIas siu}

10} Aujiqisuodsal sawnsse Asbuley

90IAIS JOAIBP 0] TNXD
01 spuny suinjal Asbuie

pieog diysieuyed s,81doad Buno

sjoued jusuyinios) uo aidoad Buno

e LINOA

(sdnolb snooj ‘Bunoa-a ‘shanins) sjdoad BunoA Bupinsuoy

"$99IAJ9S O aourUIBACG
pue Juswidojansp ‘Bunenieas ui sjdoad BunoA jo uogedionied aanoe ayy




Page 287

L

‘asn 0) saibo)el)s Juswabebus
yum Buoje uo Aues paddew aq 1snw Yyum psyjnsuod

BDETEC
Ba yoeal 0} pley se paliuapi 8sSoy) Wolj
uIe}qo 0} JNoIYIp oq Aew uoneyNsSuUo? Ul

8q ued sdnoub assy} Yoym Ag swnioyswnipawi o1j1oadg | Mo MO MO sdnoub psjsbie) ooads wody yoeqpss
"SOIIIOYINY [BD0] 8Y) 0} Jajsuel] ay) "ssauIsng
JO Lied S| puelq B Se SUOIXauuo?) se aweu J1ay) abueyo ojeledss B sW0298(Q pue SBOIAISS
0} ARy |[Im A8y} SS8UISNg B SB anujjuod 0} aulwliaep Asy) J1sy) uspim pue dojaasp Jeyuny 0}
JI 'sybBnoiog oy} 0} SIY} 8}EdIUNWLWOD pUE UoIIIP 8Ininy uoljusiul Ue pajeaipul SABY SUOIXBUUOYD)
S} SUIWIS}BP 0} Pasu [|IM UOPUOT YUON SUOIXauuo) "a]qeuonsanb aq |Im g00Z [Mdy wiol)
‘sueid uoiysuel) jeuyy jo ydigoal wolj uo Buimojjo4 | YbiH ybiy ybiH UopuoT YHUON Suoixauuo) Jo Ajjigeia ay |
"‘Ajlloyne ayj pue ‘uonisuel
slopinold useamiaq suopelas Busiom poob Bululejuiew ay} Jaye Jo Buunp s|e} way Buonpal
pue ABajesis | 33N Isngos e Buiaey uo ybiy snooyAioud 0] paijdde s921n0s8J JO/puUe SN20J) BY)
8y} buideay 921nosal 0} pasu |im ybnoisoq ay] | YbiH ybiH ybiH Jl uoiusuesy ay) buunp Buisu s|A9| | 39N
"sse004d 8y} 0} |esbajul s| ojdoad BunoA yym uoie)nsuoo
Buunsus pue ‘malral anjeA 1saq ssed suondo Buunsus INXD wody sbusjieyd
‘yoeosdde Buiuueld j)snqou e ainsus 0) pasu |IIm AsbuleH | wnipsy | YBIH wnipsin [eba /mainey [eipnr Jo Aljgissod
'§$990.d Jajsuel} ay) o} uswsaibe 186 0 “paliejsuel)
aq o1 Ajoy1| yels yum diysuoneras Buppiom poob e ysijgeise ‘s}sod
0] pue uoljesuNWWOo Jopjoysyels Jo ped se yJejs ainyny BuuiooU0D Ajulepaoun 0} anp
$109dS0Id/}JE)S SUOIXBUUOD YIM UOoEDIUNWIWOD Jenbsy | ybiH ybiH ybiH uoljisuel) sy} Buunp yels Jo Ssof [enualod
‘puoAaq pue uonisuel '$S9001d UOIlISURI} 8} 0} S82IN0S8l
8y} Jo} pejeoo|e Ajojendoldde ale s9oInossal ainsus 0) ' @)enbape ajeo0j|e j10u saop Asbulien
ue|d ssauisng s,s|dosd BunoA pue ualpjiyd s Asbuley Jo ybnolog uopuo sy} JI palosye
OJul psuue|d 8q 0} pasU |IIM UOIlSUEBI] SUOIXaUU0) | YBiH ybiH ubiH

Al9SIaApe 3( [|IM SBOIAIBS SUOIX

auuo0n

sanss| pue sysiy :z xipuaddy



Page 288

¢l

‘ssjuedwos slesled pue

101988 AJBJUNOA 8U} UM Jaypny passnosip Buisg s) pue uoieuipIo-02 paau |m siyl Ing sajol s dapiaoid |je jo ped aq |m uoste)| Jekojdwa pue Buusaiunioa ‘Bujules) paseq yiom ‘@besaxolq qof ybnoi siakojdwa yiim syui

‘yBno.Joq sy} Jo) SJUBAS/UDAS SIDDIED JO UOHBUIPIO-07)
*SjuBWdoBABD -7 | Uiv ubie yoiym suswnoop pue suoieolignd jo sbuey

"PAJOENUOD BG PINOM YIOM SIU} JO Sjoadsy -paseq
-gam 8q [IM SIU] JO YoNW ‘SUOIXaULOY) Jo puelq ajyoid ybiy auyy
Buinunuoo o} |enuassse aq (M uoeunoul Ayenb ybiy o) sseooy

ajdoad BunoA ||y

uolew.oul SisaJed Jo
uoisirod pue Bujieysew
pue suoiesNWWo)

Juswdoisasp
pue Bujusel) 0} ss2008 pue sjaAs] uoleayljenb yd Jo swiay ul 19s siabie]

Jeuosiad Juswdojpnap pue Bujurel; Joy poddns sapnijoul
uoiym waisAs (esierdde sosueuopad e jo ped ag {im Hels |y

jels Iy

jusawdojanap
aotopliom 9 Juswabeuew
asuewLIOpad

‘slaleo/siualed
18y pue ajdoad BunoA yyum uaswabebus jo Alijenb sy pue Jepiroid
yoea uos yodai ‘sopoeid JO SUONBAISS]O 'SHSIA YD JO SWIS) U1 )9S s}eble]

*ss920.d v aut Jo ned aq pinom sjdoad

Buno -uolnsuel sy} Buunp aopuas ul dip, ou s| a1ay) pue
aoe|d | ale sprepuels ybly Jey) ainsus 0} ssao0.d asueInsse
Ayenb e 0} j08lgns aq pinom sjoeiUCD pue siapinoid |y

‘gidoad BunoA e
0} A19AI1Bp 10} $955200.4d pue SWaisAg

aourInssy Ajjend

‘sjusiebuene
Buipodas Buasw pue elep Sj00 dYi Jo AlaAIlep 8U} JO suwils) Ul jes syeble)

“PBUODISSILILIOD 8G PINOM IoMm SIUL S3Id aul Aq

pasnbai se ejep jo Buiodal pue saoinses Bupjoest §i00 spiaoid
0} ,piq, 0} Aj9)]| B18 S82IAISS SUOIXSUUOY) JUBLIND UOPUOT] YUON
SJoMm sy} Joj ybBnodoq pes| au; s Bas|ayD pue uoibuisusy
‘uopuo ued waisAs §100 sy dojeaap 0} Aemiapun si YOA

‘91 3s0d uoissaiboid
Jo Bupioe s|qeus 0} sseqe)ep uopuoT
ued e uo papioodal ale sidoad Bunok ||y

wajsAs Bupioes eiep 199

"s)eble] Yy JO JUSWaALILDE U} O} UopNgUIueD
"61-91 SLIIN JO UoRUABIC
'sssuIsSng pue siaAojduwe yum syl

"wes) [2auad () suoixauuo) e ybnoiuy

paJaAep 158 9q ABL UOIIUSAISIU BY} JO ainjeU Isljeioads

8y} Jo asnensq INg WwalsAs Joddns pue |eliajel [eNusd ay) Jo
yed aq pinom sy -Buiutes Jo/pue uoiedNps vy yum abebus

133N ae

oym asoyl pue Jusholdws so Buesn
‘uoljeanpa yim Jusweabebua-al Jay)
punuaaa.d aie ey si03oe) jeuondaoxe

souepinb pue adiape
‘UONBULION] UOHUBAISILY

uawAoldws ueb oy o Bujuren pue uonesnps -5J 0} Hoddns aAISUSIU paau pue ] N SJe oym sisieo/sjusied 8le asaU] sieym paau {eroads B aney SAlsuaU|
J1BU) snuuod o} sjdoad BunoA jo ewsbebua-al Jo susy ul jos siebie)y J18ys pue ajdoad BunoA paweu yim Loddns aasusiul oym Gz 0} dn pue g|-g| s|doad Bunoj
‘s18b1e] YY1 4O JUSWAASILDE 8U} O} UCHNGIIUCYD "SIWHVD PuUe SOA 3| S901AI3S UBNOoIY) PRUsISSILIWOD 84 pjnod
"61-91 S1TTN JO uonuanalg 201A19s Hoddns ay) jo sjoadsy “SHIOMIBN S,UBIPIIYD BUY} 10 Yoee ‘Roueubaid ebeuss) ‘yyesy souepinb
‘ssauisng pue sisAojdwe yim syur | u pajeiedo WajsAs poddns pue jeusiel [21U99 8U; 10 Wed aq jim [elusW se yons Juswabebus ey} pue 2o1Ape ‘uojleuLiojn
‘Buluien pue uoyeINPs siyl ‘Buuiely Jojpue uoneonpa JdY; Uum abebus-al/ssaooe 0} | U0 Joedw) PINOD UYoJUM S10}0B) [ELORIPPE —u@awm._m._.

JIay) 4O UONENURUOD 8u} pue asuepinb pue adjape ‘uolewlojul Buiuiego
10 ssaooud ay) yum aidosd BunoA jo wawsbebus-ai Jo swus) u; 18s s1ebie]

yoddns |euonippe Buipasu se ‘Yiomawel JUBWSSISSY UOWLWOD
ay} ybnouyy pauigsl sjdoad BunoA psweu yym uoddns payebiet

2le aI8Y) alaym pasu |epads e aaey
oym gz 01dn pue gL-¢| 9jdoad Bunox

's106.8) Wy JO JUSWAASIYOE BU} O} UOKNGLILOD

'6L-91 S133N Jo uousAald

'ssauisng pue sisfojdws yum syur

‘Bujuied) pue uopeonpa

J1I9Y} JO uonEeNUIIUOD 8y} pue aduepinb pue adlApe ‘uoiewlout Buuteyqo

10 ssaooid sy; ypm s|doad BunoA jo Juswebebus-ai jo swsy Ul 18s s}ebie |

uswaalby [aA9 a21AI8g B ybnodul aq o) Ajgxy) si Siy L
“Aljesonos|s Algeqold

‘SBOJAIOS SINOY HOM JO JNO 0} SSBIB pNdUl PINOAA "s1spiaoid
|esJaniun Jayio woly Yoddns ssao0e 0} 9jqeun (99} Aew Jo ‘soeld
1004os wieassulew e ul jou ‘Bujuiel) 1o uoleonps u) Ajuanng
10U aie A3y} a1suym asuepinb pue ao1Ape ‘uolewlol [ensedu)
ss92oe 0) yoddns Ayfenb ybiy aadal |jim ajdoad Bunoi

‘WEYUSHO | PUE U335

POOA 18 $811us2 Ut dolp 1o uoisiaoid
201A9S YN0 $S8008 OUM NS

ynm Gz o dn pue gL-g} ojdoad Bunok

"s}jobJe] Yy JO JUBLISABIUDE BUj) 0} UOINGIUOYD

'61-91 SLI3IN JO uohuaAlid

*$s8UISNg pue siakojdws Yym syur

'991AI9s/uoIsir0ld Bu) Buissasse ul pabebus

Alaanoe aq |im sjdosd BunoA pue uoisiaold jo asueinsse Alljlenb aq osje
a1ay] -swio) Aressadau Jo uons|dwod (|} Se Yons $8ssa001d SE |jom se ‘9sInoo

‘passnoasip Buaq s |ppow BuIUOISSILWILWOD

v 3sU e uone|duiod 8s.n0d sind souepusiie asoym Juspnls Aue
uo pasnoo) pue aAioe-oid aq {Im Hoddng “Ino |jou sjuswdojeasp
61-¥1 se Ajeloadss ‘ssnunuoddo juswAodwa pue Bujues

‘Buiuies| peseq yiom

pue (jsuon) sispiaold uonesnpa Jayung
‘94JudD LWIOJ YIXIS SUf} ‘SWIO) UIXIS
jooyos ubnouyy Bujuies; pue uoneonps

$991A9S aouepinb
pue 82iApe ‘UonBUIoN|

8y} Jo pue a8y} je s)nsal ‘uonejdwiod asinoa u) ‘ejdoad BunoA jo Juswebebus ‘uoireonpa BuipleBbal aouepinb pue S1Ape ‘UojewIoU! jeedw) 91 1sod $5900B Oym NS WIm GZ |esiIaAlIuUN
U} aNURUOD 0] douepiNG PUE BJIAPE ‘UONELLIOU] JO SLLIS) U) 18S 84 Im sjable| Anenb ybiy saleoas |pm siaseoysjualed say) pue aidoad BunoA | o1 dn pue g1-g| @jdoad BunoA Asbuuet
"sjeblel Yy JO JUSWSASIYDE aU) 0} UOHNQILIUCY) i
‘91 ¥ S1J3N jo uonuansid '
'ssaUIsng pue sisAojdwa uim sxu 'S|00UDS UM Justuaaiby
‘9o1AI8s/uUoIsiA0Id 8y} Buissasse ul pabebus Ajpajoe |aA87 801n18S B ybnolyy aq o) Alpl] I sy siued uopisuel)
a9 |im sjdoad BunoA pue uoisinoid jo soueInsse Alljenb oq os|e |im 818y} "StIo} A9y 10} Loddns aaisuaul YIM N0 [0 Siuswdo|aAap §L-f| se
Aressaoau jo uopaldwoo se Yyons sassaooud Se j|am SE ‘suoneupsap gl jsod Alreoadsa ‘saojoyo 1oslgns pue suopdo Joj uoisiacid |00Ys Yum
‘gl 1B SHNS3l ‘uopa|dWod B8SIN0Y ‘S8SIN0D J0) S3UEPING pUE SDIAPE ‘UOKELLLIOJ] pajeiBajul 89 |Im Jey] eouepInb pue a2IApE ‘UoKEULION (letosds/A1epuooss) jooyss Aabuiien
‘ajdoad BunoA yiim Juswabebus pue 109B1U02 punole }8s aq |m siabie] Ajenb ybiy saeoss [im sissedysiualed Jey) pue sjdoad Buno e je palasibal g|-g | 9|doad Bunok ||y
jordwi)jsainsespy asuewIod Kaneq dnoig jebuey ERTTNED

‘ajep o) sue|d pasodouid ayj jo auljino Yelp e si sy
8002 |dy 01 ssao0.ud uonisuesy ayy jo Hed ase podaa siyy ut sjesodoud ay) poddns jjim Yoiym swisjueyossw A1aAjjap pue ainjonays ay) Bulysijgelss Jo ssaooad ayl

£.800¢Z [11dy wou) 9)1] 8¢ SADIAIDG SUOIXdUUO) [|IM JBYAA € Xipuaddy




Page 289 Agenda ltem 13

HARINGEY COUNCIL E2

Agenda item: [NO.]

~ = 0n19June2007

Report Title: Haringey Catering Services

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference]

Report of: The Director of the Children and Young People’s Service

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To advise Members on the in-house school meals service, Haringey Catering
Services, and to set out proposals for its operation in the coming year, 2007/08, in
the light of national and local developments.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1 This report addresses the impact of the potential equal pay settlement on Haringey
Catering Services. While for some schools and parents the price rises
recommended in this report will be steep, the proposal to phase the increase will
allow schools time to plan. | will ensure that officers consult further with schools
before bringing back proposals to set prices for 2008/09 and for any variations in
the funding arrangements for school meals.

3. Recommendations

3.1 School meals charges for Haringey Catering Services for 2007/08 to be set as
shown in paragraph 7.6. These include a recommended charge per meal which
schools using the service will be required not to exceed.

Report Authorised by: % ;ﬁt’v\)\\

Sharon Shoesmith
Director
The Children and Young People’s Service

Contact Officer: lan Bailey
Deputy Director, Business Support and Development
020 8489 2450




Page 290

4. Executive Summary
4.1 The schools meals service (Haringey Catering Services) has in recent years
encountered budgetary difficulties, despite its success in implementing healthy
meals. The implementation of a recovery plan has so far been successful though
the cost of the upcoming equal pay settlement presents a serious risk.
4.2 This report updates Members on the background to current arrangements and the
national context, before setting out the implications of the equal pay settlement.
The level of charges to schools and prices charged to parents are recommended in
the light of the latest estimates of the cost of the equal pay agreement.
5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if
applicable)
51 N/A
6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
6.1 N/A
7. Background
7.1 The existing school meals service, Haringey Catering Services, was set up in its

present form in September 2003, following a failed attempt to outsource the service.

The outsourcing failed for two primary (and related) reasons:

° schools’ unwillingness to sign up in sufficient numbers to a long-term contract
with a single provider;

® lack of response from the market. Only one bid was received and this was
alarmingly high.

The service currently provides a school meals service to 59 primary schools and two
nursery schools and children’s centres and two secondary schools. It also supports
breakfast clubs at a number of schools. 261 staff are employed in the service.

The cost of school meals as charged to schools, alongside the recommended
charges to pupils, is as set out in the following table:

Charge to Schools Recommended Price
Infants £1.96 per meal £1.65 per meal
Juniors £1.96 per meal £1.70 per meal

Secondary Schools N/A (Cash Cafeteria)

Schools are free to choose either the in-house or an external provider, or to manage
the service directly. The current position is summarised in Appendix 1.




7.2

7.3

Page 291

Schools are funded, through Dedicated School Grant (DSG), on the basis of a
formula 75% based on Free School Meals take-up and 25% on pupil numbers.

From this allocation schools fund free school meals and should subsidise the cost of
paid meals. In practice, most schools charge more than the recommended price per
meal.

School Menus have been subject to ongoing revision and improvement since 2001.
The catering service has, and continues to work closely with Haringey Primary Care
Trust and Standards and Inclusion colleagues to promote a Healthy Schools
Initiative. Many of the recommendations resulting from Jamie Oliver's Campaign
and standards set out by the new School Food Trust were introduced in advance of
national requirements in Haringey primary and secondary schools. Levels of
saturated fats, salt and sugar have been reducing since 2001 in all schools and the
consumption of fresh fruit and vegetables has risen. In September 2005, all less
healthy processed food options, many of them very popular with children (Turkey
Twizzlers were never on our menus) were either removed from the menus or
substituted with more healthy alternatives eg fish products with added omega 3 oils.
Approximately 75% of all primary school food is now home made to recipes meeting
all the current guidelines. The guidelines are summarised in Appendix 2.

Meal numbers initially fell in many schools as pupils initially rebelled at the loss of
their favourite choices. This was a national trend (known as the “Jamie Oliver
effect”) but we are now seeing meal numbers rise again in most schools. Packed
lunches are not exempt and most schools have been very pro-active with parents to
discourage the provision of confectionary items, savoury snacks and high sugar
drinks.

Many Secondary schools saw a drop in income as crisps, confectionary items, fizzy
drinks and daily chips were removed from their menus. The recovery in some
secondary schools is slower, as student access to nearby outside facilities is
available over the lunchtime period. There is now evidence however, that numbers
and income is rising as children come to accept the new choices.

Teachers and parents continue to be very supportive with regard to healthy eating,
the new menus and the service as a whole.

For 2007/08 Haringey Catering Services’ cash limit requires a £217K contribution to
corporate overheads on a gross turnover of £5m per year. Meeting this target in
recent years has proved difficult, mainly due to the cost of meeting increasingly tight
food standards and latterly due to the fall in demand as new healthier menus were
introduced. Plans were made during 2005/06 to introduce a charge for clearing
packed lunches, in order to meet an expected shortfall in 2006/09. Following
adverse local newspaper reporting of this proposal in early 2008, this policy was
reviewed in consultation with the Cabinet Member and the across-the-board charge
was dropped.

In place of this a recovery plan has been implemented, based on:

e temporary subsidy of meal costs using Targeted School Meals Grant



7.4

7.5

Page 292

e intensive marketing and healthy food promotions;

» cost reductions, including tackling reliance on temporary staff and improving
flexibility;

e targeting schools with less than cost-effective meal servicing arrangements and
low take-up of meails.

These measures have proved successful, with meal demand rising steadily since
Autumn 2006.

Service level agreement

Concerns remain about the loose nature of current agreements between schools
and Haringey Catering Services and in particular that many schools charge more
than the recommended price for meals, deriving a net ‘profit’ from meals sales. In
reflecting the impact of the equal pay settlement, Members will wish to keep prices
as low as possible; we will accordingly propose as a condition of the Service Level
Agreement (SLA) between the school and Haringey Catering Services that schools
cannot charge above the recommended amount per meal. This price will be set to
ensure that school meals funding covers the expected costs.

Equal Pay Settlement and its Impact

Haringey Catering Services will bear a very significant additional cost from the Equal
Pay Settlement when agreement is reached. Negotiations continue, so it is not at
this stage possible to calculate the detailed impact of this, but it is clear that the
largely female, relatively high-skilled workforce can be expected to benefit from any
settlement.

Clearly such additional costs when reflected in prices could reduce the volumes of
meals sold and potentially threaten the viability of the service. However, schools
must still serve meals. Even if schools exercised their right to out-source or to
manage their service directly, staff would in practice still be transferred under TUPE
regulations to the school or a new provider. Schools or the new provider would still
be largely be liable for the on-going costs of the settlement

An alternative strategy would be to attempt a single out-sourcing of the service as in
2003. However, there is also no evidence, based on recent consultations with
headteachers that sufficient schools would be willing to participate in a single
contract exercise.

The national picture is as follows:

e 68% of schools have services from their local authority, via their direct service
organisation (DSO);

17% have services from their local authority, via an external provider:

10% arrange their own services through an external provider;

1% arrange to undertake the service themselves (also known as “in-house”);
1% undertake as above, but with other schools forming a local cluster. Some
schools may receive their service from a central school.

e 1% receive services through a PFI arrangement.

(source: DfES/ Food Trust)



7.6

Page 293

The positive side of the Equal Pay settlement is that it is likely to lead to a more
stable workforce and to support moves to increase skill levels and therefore the
quality of meals cooked with fresh ingredients.

Recommended charges

September is the time of year at which prices have historically been raised in
Haringey. Ideally, from the service point of view, prices should be raised from April,
the start of the financial year and thus at the point where charges and staff costs for
Haringey Catering Services rise. However, an April price rise incorporating the
impact of the expected equal pay settlement would have placed a disproportionate
burden on schools with high percentages of pupils in receive of free school meals.
This is because the whole cost of these meals must be borne by the schools.
Although they receive DSG funding, this would not, we estimate, cover all of these
costs.

Even with this later price rise, adding the costs of the expected equal pay settlement
would drive very high price rises. Prices to parents could rise to between £2.13 and
£2.76 per meal, depending on the details of the equal pay settlement.

On the basis of the above analysis, we consider it unreasonable to levy such
charges in full in 2007/08. Instead, the Haringey Catering Services, as a traded
service, should be permitted to carry forward deficits over future years, allowing
‘stepped’ price increases. This would also allow consideration of the formula for
distributing funding, to assess if the disproportionate burden on high-FSM schools
can be alleviated.

Accordingly, we recommend a stepped price increase on both per meal charge and
price to parent. The per meal prices proposed for September to March are as
follows:

Charge to school: £2.20
Capped price to parent: £2.00

We propose to follow common practice in schools and remove the differential

between Infants and Juniors, though schools will be free to maintain this if they wish.
At this price, we calculate that no school will be required to subsidise meals by more
than the funding received. Although the capped price is a substantial increase when
compared to the current recommended prices of £1.65 (Infants) and £1.70 (Juniors),
it is less steep in comparison with the prices schools are currently actually charging.

The charge to schools will result in a trading deficit for Haringey Catering Services
for 2007/08. In conjunction with the Acting Director of Finance we have reviewed
plans for recovering this deficit while avoiding too steep year on year price rises.
Even with the ‘worse case’ of six years equal pay back-pay / compensation, we
calculate that the service can break-even within five years.

Prices for 2008/09 and beyond will be reviewed and proposed to Cabinet in late
Autumn, by which time the impact of price rises on demand can be assessed and a



8.1

9.1

10

11

Page 294

final equal pay settlement will be known. This will also allow time for a further round
of consultation with schools.

Conclusions

Under present circumstances, we do not recommend a major procurement exercise
to seek a single external contract for the schools using Haringey Catering Services,
for two main reasons:

o lack of clear support from schools for a long-term agreement;
e concerns that the buoyancy of the market has not improved since 2003.

However we do propose to continue to review the market.

Prices will need to rise, but these rises should be stepped to avoid too high a year
on year rise. The recommended prices are set out in paragraph 7.6. This will result
in a deficit on Haringey Catering Services’ accounts which will need to be recovered
through price increases in future years.

Recommendations

School meals charges for Haringey Catering Services for 2007/08 to be set as in
paragraph 7.6. This includes a recommended charge per meal which schools using
the service will be required not to exceed.

Financial Implications

The impact of a substantial equal pay settliement does represent a significant
financial risk for the catering service and the council. This will be mitigated by
continued careful monitoring of costs and marketing of healthy meals.

Comments of the Acting Director of Finance

The funding for school meals has been delegated to schools, and the in-house
catering service is, therefore, required to breakeven.

The Local Management Scheme delegates funding to schools, using a number of
factors to reflect the different causes of financial pressures upon schools. The total
level of funding available for LA school services is fixed by the Dedicated Schools
budget, so that increased funding in one area will result in decreased funding being
available in another area.

Any proposed change to the funding formula requires consultation with the Haringey
Schools Forum and any formula change should only be made at the start of a multi-
year period. The next opportunity is to revise the formula for 2008-09 but then not
again until 2001/12. '

To phase the price increases in gradually would seem pragmatic, and ease the
transition. The Acting Director of Finance had been involved in on-going
discussions and supports the proposed stepped price changes. It should be noted,



12

13

13.1

14

Page 295

however, that for schools already charging £2.00 per meal, the price increase will
result in an unplanned revenue budget pressure in 2007/08 which cannot be off-set
by an increase to parents and will have to be managed by the schools affected in
year.

Given the current uncertainty as to the final agreement with regard to the single
status settlement, and the impact of changed prices on take up rates, any new meal
charging policy will require careful monitoring. Future price increase, after the
current year, will be re-assessed in the light of information available at that time.

Comments of the Head of Legal Services

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report. As the
report makes clear maintained schools may opt to choose to obtain school meals
from the in-house Council service, from an external provider or provide the meals
themselves. In all cases meals must meet the nutritional standards set out in the
Education (Nutritional Standards for School Lunches) (England) Regulations 2008,
other than in maintained nursery schools or nursery units within maintained primary
schools.

A robust service level agreement should be in place to regulate all aspects of the
provision of the service provided by Haringey Catering Services. One of the
conditions proposed in this report for the service level agreement is that schools
purchasing the service should not charge above the amount per meal recommended
by the authority. Section 533 of the Education Act 1996 provides that the governing
bodies of schools with delegated budgets may charge for meals provided at the
school. This power to make charges on the part of the governing body would not be
fettered by a condition freely entered into regarding the SLA since the governing
body is free to consider other options with regard to the provision of school catering.

Liability for the payment of back pay and/or compensation arising from settlement or
agreement of equal pay claims for in-house staff providing school catering would
rest with the authority. Should the in-house service be outsourced and the work
force transferred, any outstanding liability for equal pay settlements would pass to
the new provider. However, it is certain that a new provider would seek an indemnity
in relation to any such historical liabilities prior to transfer of the service. Legal
advice should be sought regarding any firm proposal regarding the out sourcing of
the service. In addition the impact of the developing legal framework regarding equal
pay matters in local government will need to be consistently monitored and taken
into account in relation to the assessment of the cost to the service.

Equalities Implications

Healthy eating, including the availability of healthy school meals is central to
improving the life-chances of disadvantaged children.

Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs



Page 296

14.2  Appendix 1: Current arrangements
14.3 Appendix 2: Standards for food in schools



Page 297

Appendix 1

Current Service Arrangements.

Primary/Special/Nursery Schools.

Haringey Catering Services provide a meal service to the majority of schools.
The exceptions are:
o St Michael's N6 (external provider - Scholarest)
o St James N10 (packed lunch service only by parents)
Chestnuts & North Haringey Primaries which
recently undertook the service themselves.
One other primary school is currently tendering their service. (Lordship Lane)
There are currently 49 primary school kitchens producing meals on site,
including this year to date, Campsbourne and North Harringay.
Tetherdown Primary will also have a new on site kitchen operational later this
year. ‘
Three children’s centres currently receive meals. The remainder undertake their
own provision.
The new centres at Plevha & Woodside have incorporated new kitchen/dining
areas. Park Lane and Stonecroft centre kitchens have recently been upgraded
and the new facilities at Broadwater Farm Nursery dre now operational.
The meals on wheels service, undertaken on behalf of Social Services,
transferred back to Social Services in July 2005.

Secondary Schools/Academies

Haringey Catering Services currently provide the service at Woodside High and
Highgate Wood Secondary schools.

Fortismere*, Gladesmore & Alexandra Park, use Scholarest.

Hornsey Girls School uses Duchy/Hopkinsons.

Northumberland Park uses OCS Catering

Park View Academy uses Harrisons

St Thomas More, Greig City Academy & John Loughborough undertake the
service themselves.

* Scholarest have now given notice to Fortismere and will cease to provide their
service at the end of this summer term.

Each of the above has its own on site kitchen and dining facilities. Schools using
external contractors or undertaking the service themselves, are responsible for
agreeing all contract terms and conditions (subject to approval by the Councils
Legal Department). These may vary dependant upon service requirements,
investment etc.



Page 298

APPENDIX 2

A SUMMARY OF THE GOVERNMENT’S NEW STANDARDS FOR FOOD IN
SCHOOLS

STANDARD: DATE OF INTRODUCTION:

New interim food based standard for September 2006 (all schools)

School lunches.

More fruit & vegetables

More oily fish

Bread available daily

Fresh Drinking water available at all times

Healthier drinks. No sweetened soft drinks

No: confectionary/savoury snacks

Restricted: salt- no condiments on tables

Restricted: fried food. Maximum twice in one week

Restricted: manufactured meat products —minimum
meat content. No offal.

The above standard includes packed lunches provided by
the school or caterer.

Food based standards for schools September 2007 (all schools)
- other than lunch

As above but applicable to breakfast, mid-morning

Breaks, tuck shops, vending & after school clubs

Nutrient-based standards for school lunches September 2008 - Primaries
: September 2009 - Secondaries

Nutrient specifications to be shown on menus.

Maximum levels to be set for total fat, saturated fat,

Sodium/salt & sugar.

Further information to be given for the above plus

catering for pupils with allergies and special dietary

needs.

Note:
- The above standards are mandatory.
- Schools have a legal responsibility to comply.
- Where budgets have been delegated, the ultimate responsibility for ensuring the standards are
met lies with the school Governing Body.
- Parents, carers & pupils need to see the standards are being met
- Where packed lunches are provided by parents, Schools need to remind parents of the new
standards and encourage “healthier lunch boxes”.
OFSTED will monitor the way schools approach healthier eating as part of their school
inspection.

10



Page 299 Agenda ltem 14

REPORT TEMPLATE:
FORMAL BODIES &
e ————— MEMBER ONLY EXEC
& HARINGEY COUNCIL
Agenda item:

CABINET 19 June 2007

Report Title: Provision in Haringey for the Gypsy and Traveller Community

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable):

Report of: Director of Urban Environment

Wards(s) affected; ALL Report for: KEY DECISION

1. Purpose

1.1 To consider and agree the recommendations of the CRE report “Common Ground”
and the advice of the CRE in its feedback to Haringey, relating to services for Gypsies
and Travellers and to agree the proposed strategic approach in Haringey.

2. Introduction by Executive Member

Haringey Council welcomed the opportunity to work with the Commission for Racial
Equality on the important issue of Gypsies and Travellers. We are committed to
improving the co-ordination of services to this group who are often living at the margins of
society.

A key element of our response to the report will be to ensure services are overseen at a
strategic level by an Assistant Director in the Urban Environment Directorate and that |
will take responsibility for this area of work within the Cabinet.”

3. Recommendations

3.1 In order to comply with the recommendations of the CRE report “Common
Ground” and the advice of the CRE, in their individual feedback to Haringey:

3.1.1 That a Lead Councillor and Lead Officer at no less than second tier level be
appointed to co-ordinate the Local Authorities work on sites and to ensure
consistency and links to equality issues.




Page 300

3.1.2 That the Borough's Gypsy and Traveller Service provision be more
strategically sited under one second tier officer;

3.1.3 That the Gypsy and Traveller Joint Services Team meetings be chaired by
an Officer at least second tier who shall determine the required attendance from
statutory and voluntary sectors; and

3.1.4 That reports of the Joint Services Team be submitted at appropriate
intervals to the Executive (i) on policy formulation, service delivery and a
programme of familiarisation training and (ii) on consultation with the Gypsy and
Traveller community;

3.2. That two separate categories for Gypsies and Travellers be included in all ethnic
monitoring arrangements, and that steps be taken to encourage them to provide such
information.

3.3 That the GLA be requested to allocate in the London plan Review sites, in each
borough for Gypsies and Travellers to meet the accommodation needs of the community
residing in or resorting to the London area established by Gypsy and Traveller
Accommodation Assessments under the Housing Act 2004, and supplemented by
including information of households in these ethnic groups accommodated as Homeless
and recorded in the Notify system;

3.4 That the UDP Inquiry inspector's recommendations in respect of Gypsies and
Travellers, and the adoption of the UDP with those recommendations incorporated, be
noted.

Report Authorised by: Director of Urban Environment \/\%f_‘

Contact Officers: Philip Cunliffe-Jones, Planning and Regeneration Lawyer
Tricia Garwood, Head of Housing Strategy & Performance
Cecilia Hitchen, Deputy Director, The Children & Young People’s
Service
Inno Amadi, Snr Development Officer, Equalities & Diversity Division

4. Executive Summary

4.1 The CRE inquiry report “Common Ground” was published on 15" May 2006. Nine
local authorities, of which Haringey was one, were the subject of in depth case studies.
The report made 86 recommendations of which 42 were for local authorities. The
summary report contains the key recommendations and in the case of local authorities




Page 301

selects 22 of the 42 recommendations. The full list of 42 recommendations is attached as
Appendix 1.

4.2  Legislative changes to the Housing Strategy under the Housing Act 2004 require
every housing authority to carry out an assessment of the accommodation needs of
Gypsies and Travellers. This duty and a statutory and definition of the terms Gypsies
and Travellers for this purpose were brought into force on 2 January 2007 Practice
Guidance on conducting Accommodation Needs Assessments is at draft stage .Final

4.3 A London wide Needs Assessment has been commissioned with the Greater
London Authority as contracting agency. The report is at draft stage and the final report
is expected in July or August 2007.

5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

5.1 There has been a change in legislation and national policy and a CRE Inquiry report.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 Housing Act 2004, Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessments- Draft Practice
Guidance (ODPM).

6.2 Home Office Guide to the effective use of enforcement powers — Part 1: Unauthorised
encampments.

6.3 ODPM Circular 01/2006 — Planning for Gypsy and Traveller Caravan Sites.
6.4 CRE Strategy Gypsies and Travellers 2004-2007.

6.5 CRE Scrutiny report Common Ground Equality, good race relations and sites for
Gypsies and Irish Travellers 2006.

6.6 Statutory Instrument 3190 of 2006 — the Housing (assessment of Accommodation
Needs)(Meaning of Gypsies and Travellers) (England) Regulations 2006

7. Background

7.1 In October 2004 the CRE invited Haringey Council to be one of 9 Authorities to be
visited as part of its remit to produce a national report on provision and policies for the
Gypsy and Traveller communities in the UK. The scrutiny visit took place over a week in




Page 302

April 2005 and included meetings with Housing staff, Travellers Support team, Travellers
Education project, Planning and Development, Supporting People, Equality and Diversity
unit, Legal services, the PCT Members and Communications.

7.2 Whilst not a part of the final CRE report, they suggested Haringey received separate
written feedback on their perspective of how provision is managed in Haringey. A follow
up meeting was arranged with the CRE in order to iron out differences of view and clarify
action points. The Council has not taken a formal position on this feedback but welcomed
the opportunity to learn from an external viewpoint and noted several key findings

7.3 As census information on Gypsies and Travellers is not reliable enough a more
accurate determination of the Gypsy and Traveller population residing in or resorting to
the Borough is needed. This should be built up from several databases, and the Gypsy
and Traveller Accommodation Assessments to be carried out based on ODPM Guidance;

7.4 Haringey Council’s good and innovative work with Gypsies and Travellers through the
Traveller Education Team was not recognised in the CRE scrutiny report — in contrast to
the work of the Travelling People’s Team which was recognised and commended - but is
an important resource for both Traveller children and for community relations

7.5 The location and reporting lines of the current teams should be more strategically
sited in order to improve cross departmental work in the community;

7.6 Equality Impact Assessments (ElAs) need to take specific account of the needs of this
community, when relevant. This was a reaction to there being no specific reference to
them in EIAs up to the time of the visit: and

7.7 The Council noted concern over the lack of prioritisation for larger accommodation in
Housing Corporation subsidies which affects provision for this and other Black and Ethnic
Minority communities with larger families.

7.8 The CRE's national report “Common Ground. Equality, good race relations and sites
for Gypsies and Irish Travellers” was published in May 2006. The report concluded that
the approach taken by most local authorities to discharging their duties to Gypsies and
Irish Travellers drives and perpetuates a vicious circle of failure to provide services, and
poor race relations.

7.9 The CRE defines its goal as follows:” to replace the vicious circle of unmet need and
public hostility that this enquiry identified with a sustainable approach to planning,
providing and managing Gypsy sites in England and Wales” To this end the report makes
a number of recommendations to achieve the following core objectives:

7.9.1 Effective implementation of the new national policy framework on assessing
need, providing and managing sites planning and enforcement, to ensure sufficient,
good, legal sites.

7.9.2 Positive engagement and good relations between Gypsies and Irish Travellers
and other members of the public;

7.9.3 Strong local leadership on equality and Gypsy sites from local councillors and
leadership by Gypsies and Irish Travellers.



Page 303

7.9.4 Quality services both mainstream and those developed for Gypsies and Irish
Travellers in all types of accommodation, through coordinated strategies linked to
front line operations.

7.9.5 A strong evidence base for developing policies and services

7.9.6 A robust performance management framework for gypsy site services setting
standards comparable to those in conventional social housing.

7.9.7 Targeted and proportionate policing on Gypsy sites earning the confidence of
site residents and other members of the public; and

7.9.8 Achievement of these objectives through full and effective implementation of
the statutory duty on public authorities, including local authorities and police
services, to eliminate unlawful racial discrimination and promote equality of
opportunity and good race relations.

7.10 The report makes 86 recommendations for central Government, Local Authorities,
the Police, Inspectorates and other agencies, this report will concern itself with the 22
recommendations for Local Authorities contained within the summary report. The
recommendations are set out under seven headings as follows;

7.10.1 Leadership, strategy and practice

7.10.1.1 Develop a holistic corporate vision. for all work on Gypsies and lIrish
Travellers, and anchor it within the community strategy, the local development
framework and any other relevant strategy, including the race equality scheme.

7.10.1.2 Review all policies on accommodation for Gypsies and Irish Travellers, to
ensure a long-term, coordinated and strategic approach that promotes race equality
and good race relations. This should include policy on planning and providing sites,
managing authorised and unauthorised encampments and conventional housing,
and be supported by data collection and consultation with local communities.
Strategy on accommodation should be linked to wider service areas, such as health
and education, and to a communications strategy.

7.10.1.3 Designate a councillor at cabinet (or equivalent) level, and an officer at no
less than assistant director level, to coordinate the authority’s work on sites
(authorised and unauthorised), to make sure it is consistent across departments,
and is linked to its work on equality.

7.10.1.4 Develop a robust performance management system for all aspects of
services for Gypsy sites, within a wider accommodation framework, including
providing and managing sites, and managing unauthorised encampments. Include
these functions in internal reviews of services.

7.10.2 The duty to promote race equality and good race relations

7.10.2.1 Add two separate categories for Gypsies and Irish Travellers in all ethnic
monitoring arrangements, and take steps to encourage them to provide information
about their ethnicity.

7.10.2.2 Make sure the duty to promote race equality and good race relations, and
issues relating to Gypsies and Irish Travellers, are written into all partnerships with



Page 304

the police, and providers of education and health services, and into all relevant
procurement arrangements, including those with external trainers, site managers
and bailiffs.

7.10.3 Pubilic sites

7.10.3.1 Conduct a reliable and full assessment of the need for residential and
transit sites (as required by the Housing Act 2004), by making sure that
questionnaires take account of Gypsies’ and Irish Travellers’ cultural traditions, and
that staff responsible for the assessment have been trained to understand the
needs of these groups, both on sites (including private and public sites, and
unauthorised encampments) and in housing.

7.10.3.2 Review the quality of sites, and arrangements for managing them
(including allocation policies, repairs services and the costs of utilities), to ensure
that they are providing essential services, and at standards comparable to those in
conventional social housing.

7.10.3.3 Consult everyone concerned at the earliest stage of developing a site, and
make sure all stages of consultation on unauthorised encampments, and proposed
public and private sites, allow Gypsies and Irish Travellers, as well as other
members of the public, to take full part, are effectively chaired, and contribute to
better relations between different groups.

7.10.3.4 Develop formal policies on pitch allocations for all new sites, similar to
those for conventional housing, and draw up a reasonable timetable for extending
the policies to existing sites.

7.10.4 Planning

7.10.4.1 Refer to Gypsies and lIrish Travellers in the statement of community
involvement (which explains how all groups will be consulted on planning policy),
and take practical steps to get them meaningfully involved, where possible building
on existing relationships.

7.10.4.2 Give specific advice to Gypsies and Irish Travellers, at an early stage, on
the most suitable land for residential use, and on how to prepare applications, and
help them to find the information they need to support their application.

7.10.4.3 Develop an internal policy on how to handle racist representations, and
make sure officers know how to use it, so that only material considerations relating
to the application are presented to members of the planning committee.

7.10.4.4 Monitor all planning applications and instances of enforcement action at
every stage, by type and racial group, including Gypsies and Irish Travellers, as two
separate categories, in order to assess the effects of policies and practices on
different racial groups.



Page 305

7.10.4.5 Consider using the overview and scrutiny committee, or any other suitable
formal mechanism, to assess the effects on race equality and race relations of any
major decision to enforce planning requirements on Gypsy sites.

7.10.5 Unauthorised encampments

7.10.5.1 Review and monitor policies for dealing with unauthorised encampments,
to make sure they promote access to services for occupants, and good race
relations between them and other groups; in doing this authorities should focus in
particular on providing basic facilities, assessing welfare needs and communicating
effectively with the public.

7.10.5.2 Make sure the duty to promote race equality and good race relations is
built into any contracts for managing or evicting from, unauthorised encampments;
and that contractors are given clear guidance on how this might affect their policy
and practice, and monitored on their compliance with the guidance.

7.10.6 Housing

7.10.6.1 Conduct research to identify the numbers and needs of Gypsies and Irish
Travellers in conventional housing, and explicitly include these groups in relevant
housing policy (including housing, homelessness and supporting people strategies),
with links to site-related services.

7.10.6.2 Formally record, investigate and monitor all reported incidents of racial
harassment made by Gypsies and lIrish Travellers in conventional housing, take
steps to encourage reporting and develop targeted preventive strategies.

7.10.7 Promoting good race relations and integrated communities

7.10.7.1 Encourage dialogue and positive interaction between Gypsies and Irish
Travellers and other groups, through effective engagement with leaders and
members of all communities.

7.10.7.2 Actively promote better public understanding of Gypsies and Irish
Travellers, and the consequences of unmet need for sites: and take steps
to counter stereotypes in the media and in public perceptions.

7.10.7.3 Encourage and Support mainstream voluntary organisations to build
bridges between Gypsies and Irish Travellers and other members of the public.

7.11 The CRE originally intended to publish its report to coincide with the publication of
revised National Guidance. However, the ODPM and the Home Office published
Guidance ahead of the report in early February which makes clear the Government
objective to increase significantly the number of Gypsy and Traveller sites in
appropriate locations with planning permission over the next 3 — 5 years. ODPM
Circular 01/2006, paragraphs 19, 22 and 23, require the GLA and other regional spatial
authorities to identify the number of pitches required for each local Planning authority
area and maintain an up to date understanding of the likely strategic accommodation



Page 306

requirements of their areas. Pitch numbers can be identified by a sub-regional area if a
joint Development Plan Document is produced by agreement between the local
planning authorities involved (paragraph 26)

7.12 The North London Housing Sub-Region is participating in the London Wide
project to commission a consultant to undertake a Gypsy and Traveller
Accommodation Needs Assessment (GTAA) at borough, sub regional and regional
levels (The North London sub region comprises Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey,
Islington and Westminster). The project partners are: the GLA acting as contracting
agency, ALG, the London boroughs represented by the Sub Regional Housing Co
coordinators , advisors from DCLG Gypsy and Traveller unit, and representatives from
the Gypsy and Traveller communities. The draft final report is due to be completed in
early May 2007 with the final report in June 2007.

7.14 So far as the Haringey UDP is concerned, the Inspector’s report into Haringey's
Revised UDP makes two recommendations in respect of Gypsies and Travellers. First
he proposes that the Council should adopt a criteria based land use policy, and second
he recommends the deletion of Site Specific Policy 40 which proposed that part of the
former Friern Barnet Sewage Works site be set aside as a Travellers site, subject to
relocation needs. The Inspector considered this policy to be premature in advance of a
Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment. The UDP was adopted in
July 2006.

8. Haringey Situation and Service Provision

8.1 Travelling Peoples Team and Travellers Education Team

8.1.1 The CRE commended Haringey Council's Travelling Peoples Team and the
initiatives taken in outreach and youth work. The CRE express the firm view, however,
that the service lacks strategic direction and is fragmented in different departments.
The convenor of the Joint Service Meetings to which the PCT and Police are invited
has been at Team Manager level. The Travellers Education Team carries out good and
innovative work with schools, in partnership with Housing, Health and Social Care, as
well as YOT and Connexions. The Traveller Team use a broader definition than that of
the CRE and include work with Roma and New Age Travellers within their remit. Whilst
continuing the specialist work within departments there is a need to develop a more
strategic approach across all services working with travellers which will raise the profile
of all of their work and enable them to be part of a wider cross department and
interagency network

8.1.2 The responsibility for site provision will remain in Environmental services. A
designated arrangement to meet the needs of this community must be included in all
planning for land use in the borough and in the sub region.

8.2 Housing Services

8.2.1 The statutory requirement under the 2004 Housing Act to undertake an
assessment of the accommodation needs of Gypsies and Travellers will be met
through the London wide needs assessment being undertaken at sub regional
level. The results from this will be known later in 2007.



Page 307

8.2.2 Housing has completed a Housing Diversity & Equalities Framework that sets
out how inequalities impact upon particular communities not having their housing
needs met, and the work we intend to undertake to improve upon this. The Action
Plan is committed to ascertaining more information on the housing needs of
gypsies and travellers. From existing knowledge and research, we recognise the
need for larger units of housing which apply to the travellers’ community as well as
other ethnic minority communities.

8.2.3 Our 2006 Housing Needs survey surveyed only households living in
permanent fixed accommodation. It is possible that traveller households may be
residing in such accommodation, but experience elsewhere suggests reluctance on
the part of such households to confirm their ethnicity as that of a gypsy or traveller
for fear of discrimination.

8.2.4 The new Housing Prevention & Options service has close links with the
Travellers Liaison Team in social services. The link is useful for establishing any
issues that arise with Travellers that require the involvement of P&O staff esp. in
relation to homelessness. Research undertaken by the Travellers Team in
developing the Supporting People strategy suggested 60% of their time was taken
up providing housing related support especially in relation benefits and rent arrears
to prevent evictions.

8.2.5 In Sept 2006, a new Lettings Policy was agreed for the Housing service. At
the same time, a re-registration exercise of housing applicants also took place.
This saw the introduction of new registration forms. The ethnic minority categories
for that form do not specifically include gypsies and / or travellers as a distinct
ethnic category, although there is space for housing applicants to add their own
ethnic category.

8.2.6 The community has a long track record of poorer health, lesser educational
achievement and lack of access to services. There has been a trend for some in
the travelling community to become semi permanent in recent years, and provision
through the Supporting Peoples programmes has helped with the transition form
one life style to another. Hence strategic planning will enable the Council to better
accommodate changing needs in the community and also ensure resources are
joined together and are working to the same goals.

8.2.7 The Housing Strategy 2008-2012 will need to address the needs of this
community as part of equalities issues

9. Comments of the Head of Legal Services

9.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on this report and comments
that the statutory definition of Gypsies and Travellers for the purposes of Housing
Needs Assessment is broader than the definition for land use planning purposes
and includes members of an organised group of travelling show people or circus
people (whether or not travelling together as such).



Page 308

9.2 The CRE Scrutiny report covers Gypsies and Travellers who are currently
recognised as racial groups for the purposes of the Race Relations Act. It does
not cover New Age Travellers or Occupational Travellers (Travelling show
people, circus and waterway communities) as these wider social groups are not
necessarily racial groups within the CRE statutory remit. Nor does the CRE
report specifically cover Roma. The CRE are developing separate strategies
covering European policy and Refugee and Asylum policy since the accession
states following EU enlargement have Roma and other Traveller populations with
the right of freedom of movement to the UK.

9..3 The Planning Circular advises that the need identified by the Gypsy and

Traveller Accommodation Assessments should inform the amount of |and
required by the planning system, including gypsies and travellers who do not fall
within the Planning definition. In land use terms it is the need for planned caravan
sites for Gypsies and Travellers which is now being addressed on a regional
basis.

10. Comments of the Director of Finance

10.1  The new arrangements proposed for the strategic management of the

Gypsies and Travellers service will need to be managed within the overall
existing approved resources.

10.2  In addition there may be a financial impact, both capital and revenue, if new

11.
11.1

11.2

12,

sites are identified in Haringey. There will be a need to refurbish the site and
install the amenities. (Cost will depend on the quality of the site). Also there
will be an ongoing maintenance cost. However, this may be offset by
charging a rent. Any additional capital and/or revenue requirements would
need to be considered as part of the Council’s resource allocation process at
the appropriate time

Comments of the Director of Adult Culture and Community Services

A range of social services are provided to people from the Gypsy and Traveller
Communities. The Social Care Person Database includes the sub-categories of
Gypsy, Irish Traveller and Traveller. Services to this group are delivered in line
with the Council’'s eligibility criteria Fair Access to Care Services. The boroughs
Libraries, Leisure Centres and Parks are open and available to all residents,
including the Travelling Community, and our pricing policy provides discounted
access for those on low income.

Haringey Libraries, in partnership with the Haringey Travelling Peoples Team
and CARA [Housing Association] have successfully provided support to Irish
Travellers to enable them to pass the driving theory test. This involves Library
staff working with small groups of Travellers, offering 1-1 support and using
specialist IT facilities.

Comments of the Director of Children and Young People’s Service

10



Page 309

12.1 | am pleased that the CRE inspection recognised the very good work of the
Travellers Team and the Travellers Education Team. The co ordination of the work of
the teams in relation to the needs of the gypsy and traveller community will have to
take account of the extended remit of the education team and the need for that team to
continue to deliver services to other communities such as the Roma community. Any
implications for service delivery will have to be contained within existing budgets

11



Page 310

13. Comments of the Director of Urban Environment.

13.1  The Borough’s UDP, which has been through a Public Local Inquiry and
considered by an independent planning Inspector, accords with the new ODPM
Circular 01/2006 on ‘Planning for Gypsy and Caravan Sites’.

13.2  The Inspector recommended that a new criteria-based policy be drafted which
can be used to assess the appropriateness of any proposed new traveller's sites. This
would help guide development control to determine any planning applications and also
be used by the Council as the basis of ts search for potential new sites following an
assessment of need. This approach will give greater certainty to potential applicants
The Inspector also recommended the deletion of Site Specific Policy 40, which
proposed part of the former Friern Barnet Sewage Works be set aside as a travellers’
site, subject to need.

13.3 The Council accepted the Inspector’'s recommendations, which were addressed
in the UDP Modifications, considered by Executive on 21% March 2006. The
modifications to the Gypsy and Travellers policy were incorporated in the adopted
UDP.

14. Equalities Implications

14.1 Gypsies and Irish Travellers have been recognised in case law as distinct and
separate ethnic groups and therefore entitled to the same protection afforded to other
ethnic minorities under the Race relations Act 1976 and as amended in the Race
Relations (Amendment) Act 2000.

14.2 These communities are historically vulnerable to exclusion unless specific steps
are taken to address their needs and .include them into the mainstream. This means
ensuring that in everything we do as Council, we take account of the needs and the
issues facing them, and generally ensuring that in regard to the Gypsies and lIrish
Travellers communities, we discharge our equalities public duties including the duty to
promote good relations between these two communities and the wider Haringey
community.

14.3 Haringey has taken a decisive step in this respect, with the recognition and
inclusion of these communities in the Equality Public Duties Scheme adopted by the
Council in December 2006. That document makes specific references to Gypsies and
Traveller communities commits the Council to much of what has been set out in this
report. Our equalities monitoring framework has been reviewed and the draft being
prepared for Member consideration now includes separate categories for Gypsies and
Irish Travellers respectively. This should enable the Council to track the impact of our
policies on those communities and make corrections where adverse impacts are
identified. Similarly, as this report recommends, our equalities impact assessment
framework will be reviewed with the aim of including Gypsies and Irish Travellers so
that potential adverse impacts on them can be identified and corrected before draft
proposals are taken forward for formal decisions.

12



Page 311

14.4 The Gypsy and Traveller community had a higher profile in the borough several
years ago, which has fallen as more disadvantaged groups have come in since then.
The CRE's scrutiny visit has given the opportunity for a new look at this community in
terms of provision and consultation. The main findings listed in the report require
implementation. Haringey Council has taken a wider view on provision for the Gypsy
and Traveller community than the original CRE scrutiny review and so has covered all
the issues in an EIA (Attached as Appendix B).

Once the decision of the CEMB and Executive has been made consultation with the
community on its implementation can be made, bearing in mind the fragmented nature
of groups within that community means that will not be a one off exercise.

15. Appendices (attached)

Appendix A — Full list of CRE recommendations

13



Page 312

Annex A
Recommendations

Governmental organisations

The government should:

[ ]

Develop a realistic but ambitious timetable for local authorities to identify land for sites, and
where necessary establish them, and make sure it is met. Local planning authorities should
also be required to include reports on the progress they have made in identifying sites in
their annual monitoring reports on their local development frameworks.

e Require regional housing boards and regional planning bodies (and any merged bodies) to
make the promotion of race equality and good race relations integral to their work on
allocating land for Gypsy sites. This should include their work with individual local
authorities on developing housing strategies, and finding land for sites, and their
consideration of funding bids for Gypsy sites.

e Develop key performance indicators for public sites, which set standards or quality and
management that are comparable to those for conventional accommodation.

e Produce up-to-date guidance for local authorities on designing and managing sites for
Gypsies and Irish Travellers.

e Consider developing a national framework for encouraging and supporting local authorities
and mainstream voluntary organisations to take the initiative in promoting social integration
and civic participation, including strategies for preventing and resolving conflict.

e Fund the development of a toolkit for resolving conflict, for use by local authorities in
relation to sites, pilot the toolkit and distribute it to local authorities.

* Require local authorities to monitor and provide data on planning applications, outcomes
and enforcement, and on housing and homelessness, by racial group, using two separate
categories for Gypsies and Irish Travellers.

* Require police forces to collect information on Gypsies and Irish Travellers, as two
separate ethnic categories.

e Issue guidance for local authorities on developing homelessness strategies that consider
Gypsies’ and Irish Travellers’ needs for accommodation, advice and support.

» Ensure that, in areas of work that affect Gypsies and Irish Travellers, including work to

tackle social deprivation and to promote community cohesion, issues concerning Gypsies

and Irish Travellers are recognised and resourced in the same way as for other groups.

Government offices for the regions should:

e Ensure, on behalf of the secretary of state, that regional spatial strategies and local
development frameworks take proper account of the need to provide accommodation, and
that local authorities provide or facilitate suitable sites, and work with upper tier authorities
to coordinate provision across regions.

Local authorities should:

Leadership, strategy and practice

» Develop a holistic corporate vision for all work on Gypsies and Irish Travellers, and anchor
it within the community strategy, the local development framework and any other relevant
strategy, including the race equality scheme.

14



Page 313

Review all policies on accommodation for Gypsies and Irish Travellers, to ensure a long-
term, coordinated and strategic approach that promotes race equality and good race
relations. This should include policy on planning and providing sites, managing authorised
and unauthorised encampments and conventional housing, and be supported by data
collection and consultation with local communities. Strategy on accommodation should be
linked to wider service areas, such as health and education, and to a communications
strategy.

Designate a councillor at cabinet (or equivalent) level, and an officer at no less than
assistant director level, to coordinate the authority’s work on sites (authorised and
unauthorised), to make sure it is consistent across departments, and is linked to its work on
equality.

Develop a robust performance management system for all aspects of services for Gypsy
sites, within a wider accommodation framework, including providing and managing sites,
and managing unauthorised encampments. Include these functions in internal reviews of
services.

The duty to promote race equality and good race relations

Add two separate categories for Gypsies and Irish Travellers in all ethnic monitoring
arrangements, and take steps to encourage them to provide information about their
ethnicity.

Make sure the duty to promote race equality and good race relations, and issues relating to
Gypsies and Irish Travellers, are written into all partnerships with the police, and providers
of education and health services, and into all relevant procurement arrangements, including
those with external trainers, site Mmanagers and bailiffs.

Public sites

Conduct a reliable and full assessment of the need for residential and transit sites (as
required by the Housing Act 2004), by making sure that questionnaires take account of
Gypsies’ and Irish Travellers’ cultural traditions, and that staff responsible for the
assessment have been trained to understand the needs of these groups, both on sites
(including private and public sites, and unauthorised encampments) and in housing.

Review the quality of sites, and arrangements for managing them (including allocation
policies, repairs services and the costs of utilities), to ensure that they are providing
essential services, and at standards comparable to those in conventional social housing.
Consult everyone concerned at the earliest stage of developing a site, and make sure al|
stages of consultation on unauthorised eéncampments, and proposed public and private
sites, allow Gypsies and Irish Travellers, as well as other members of the public, to take full
part, are effectively chaired, and contribute to better relations between different groups.
Develop formal policies on pitch allocations for all new sites, similar to those for
conventional housing, and draw up a reasonable timetable for extending the policies to
existing sites.

Planning

Refer to Gypsies and Irish Travellers in the statement of community involvement (which
explains how all groups will be consulted on planning policy), and take practical steps to get
them meaningfully involved, where possible building on existing relationships.

Give specific advice to Gypsies and Irish Travellers, at an early stage, on the most suitable
land for residential use, and on how to prepare applications, and help them to find the
information they need to support their application.

Develop an internal policy on how to handle racist representations, and make sure officers
know how to use it, so that only material considerations relating to the application are
presented to members of the planning committee.

15



Page 314

Monitor all planning applications and instances of enforcement action at every stage, by
type and racial group, including Gypsies and Irish Travellers, as two separate categories, in
order to assess the effects of policies and practices on different racial groups.

Consider using the overview and scrutiny committee, or any other suitable formal
mechanism, to assess the effects on race equality and race relations of any major decision
to enforce planning requirements on Gypsy sites.

Unauthorised encampments

Review and monitor policies for dealing with unauthorised encampments, to make sure
they promote access to services for occupants, and good race relations between them and
other groups; in doing this authorities should focus in particular on providing basic facilities,
assessing welfare needs and communicating effectively with the public.

Make sure the duty to promote race equality and good race relations is built into any
contracts for managing, or evicting from, unauthorised eéncampments; and that contractors
are given clear guidance on how this might affect their policy and practice, and monitored
on their compliance with the guidance.

Housing

Conduct research to identify the numbers and needs of Gypsies and Irish Travellers in
conventional housing, and explicitly include these groups in relevant housing policy
(including housing, homelessness and supporting people strategies), with links to site-
related services.

Formally record, investigate and monitor all reported incidents of racial harassment made
by Gypsies and Irish Travellers in conventional housing, take steps to encourage reporting
and develop targeted preventive strategies.

Promoting good race relations and integrated communities

Encourage dialogue and positive interaction between Gypsies and Irish Travellers and
other groups, through effective engagement with leaders and members of all communities.
Actively promote better public understanding of Gypsies and Irish Travellers, and the
consequences of unmet need for sites; and take steps to counter stereotypes in the media
and in public perceptions.

Encourage and support mainstream voluntary organisations to build bridges between
Gypsies and Irish Travellers and other members of the pubilic.

Police forces should:

Include Gypsies and Irish Travellers in mainstream neighbourhood policing strategies, to
promote race equality and good race relations.

Target individual Gypsies and Irish Travellers suspected of anti-social behaviour and crime
on public, private and unauthorised sites, and not whole communities, and work with
people from these groups and local authorities to develop preventive measures.

Treat Gypsies and Irish Travellers, both when they are victims and suspects, as members
of the local community, and in ways that strengthen their trust and confidence in the force.
Provide training for all relevant officers on Gypsies’ and Irish Travellers’ service needs, so
that officers are able to do their jobs more effectively, and promote good relations between
all groups in the community they serve.

Review formal and informal procedures for policing unauthorised eéncampments, to identify
and eliminate potentially discriminatory practices, and ensure that the procedures promote
race equality and good race relations.

16



Page 315

Parish and community councils should:

e Make sure councillors represent all groups in their local community, and are aware of the
statutory duty to promote race equality and good race relations, and its practical
implications in relation to Gypsies and Irish Travellers.

Inspectorates

The Audit Commission should:

* Include consideration of Gypsies and Irish Travellers in all relevant aspects of its audit and
inspection work, including comprehensive performance assessments, paying particular
attention to questions of leadership, training, provision and management of services, and
local authorities’ relative expenditure on providing and managing legal sites and on
enforcement.

The planning inspectorate should:

e Take into account, when making decisions on Gypsy site planning appeals, whether there
has been a material breach of the RRA by the local authority in exercising its planning
functions (including both the discrimination provisions of the law and the duty to promote
race equality and good race relations).

Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary should:

* Include Gypsies and Irish Travellers in all relevant inspections of police performance.

Other organisations

The Local Government Association and the Welsh Local Government
Association should:

« Consider the supplementary guidance local authorities may need on providing sites (and on
enforcement), with special attention to their effects on community relations.

- Identify and develop strategies to meet training needs in local authorities arising from the
new national policy framework on providing sites, and from the statutory duty to promote
race equality and good race relations, including training about Gypsies and Irish Travellers.

The Association of Chief Police Officers should:

e Identify and publicise good practice in dealing with crimes against Gypsies and lIrish
Travellers, and crime and anti-social behaviour on all sites, and in managing unauthorised
encampments in a way that promotes race equality and good race relations, drawing on
any good practice developed with other ethnic minority groups.

The Royal Town Planning Institute should:

* Make race equality and planning for Gypsy sites a specific part of the continuing
professional development programme for all planning officers.

e Supplement its guidance on ‘racist representations’ with specific advice on handiing
applications for Gypsy sites.

17



Page 316

The Improvement and Development Agency should:

¢ Develop, within existing modules of its leadership academy programme for councillors, a
specific strand on political leadership, achieving crossparty consensus, and engaging with
local communities in the context of Gypsy sites.

* Develop job-specific training for local government officers on Gypsies’ and Irish Travellers’
interests and needs, including an understanding of how the duty to promote race equality
and good race relations applies to these groups.

The Improvement and Development Agency (or Audit Commission) should:

e Develop a library of local performance indicators on the provision and management of
sites, for use as benchmarks of good practice by local authorities.

The National Association of Local Councils and One Voice Wales should:

* Raise awareness among parish and community councils of their statutory responsibilities
for promoting race equality and good race relations in relation to Gypsies and Irish
Travellers, and support and advise them.

The voluntary sector Independent funding bodies should:

e Consider the importance of including Gypsies and Irish Travellers in initiatives to promote
equality and social integration when allocating funds to voluntary and community
organisations.

The National Council for Voluntary Organisations should:

* Include Gypsies and Irish Travellers in relevant work programmes and training, and
encourage mainstream voluntary organisations to involve members of these groups in their
work.

Voluntary organisations working with Gypsies and Irish Travellers should:

* Encourage Gypsies and Irish Travellers to register to vote, and to exercise their voting
rights.

Gypsy and Irish Traveller representatives should:

* Engage with mainstream voluntary organisations to explore ways of increasing social
interaction and participation. :

e Consider further ways of entering into constructive dialogue with local authorities, to make
sure Gypsies’ and Irish Travellers’ needs are understood and met, and to demonstrate their
commitment to participation.

18



Page 317 Agenda ltem 15

Agenda item:
>abinet On 19 June 2007

Report Title: Homes for Haringey Quarterly Performance Report

Report of: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose

1.1 The report provides an update of the progress made in relation to key targets and
objectives and summarises the main issues discussed at the Quarterly Performance
Monitoring Meeting of 25 May 2007

1.2 This report also incorporates the client side response to Homes for Haringey year
end performance report for 2006/07 focussing on Best Value indicators for Income
Collection, Re-lets, Repairs and Tenant Satisfaction and compares HfH performance
with that of other providers in the London region.

1.3 A full copy of the report is available in the Member's Room at the Civic Centre

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)

2.1 This is a report from HfH in accordance with our agreement.

2.2 It provides the Council with a summary of performance issues and compares HfH
performance with that of other ALMOs in the London area.

2.3 The report shows that HfH has had a varied year in performance terms achieving
targets in 4 out of 9 key performance indicators. However action plans are in place
to address areas where performance needs to improve especially voids, income
collection and repairs. Monitoring of HfH performance will continue by way of the
monthly and quarterly monitoring meetings.

2.4 | would welcome Cabinet Members’ comments and suggestions.

3. Recommendations
3.1 The content of the report be noted.

Report Authorised by: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment

Contact Officer: Carl Bradley, ALMO Liaison and Consultation Officer
Tel: (020) 8489 4454 e-mail: carl.bradley@haringey.gov.uk




Page 318

4. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

4.1 Homes for Haringey Quarterly Performance Monitoring Meeting Reports
4.2 Housing Revenue Account Statement

4.3 Capital Account Statement

4.4 Homes for Haringey Improvement Plan

4.5 Homes for Haringey Delivery Plan

4.6 Management Agreement

4.7 Service Level Agreements

5. Strategic Implications

5.1 A key element of the Housing Strategy is the successful delivery of the decent homes
standards, providing decent homes for all tenants and regenerating the borough. In the
client role it is therefore important that these strategic aims are met and the regular
monthly and quarterly meetings are the tools by which this is measured.

5.2Financial Implications
Progress of key targets and objectives identified in the Improvement Plan is essential in
order to secure 2 stars status in the May 2007 Audit Commission Inspection of HfH and
succeed in obtaining the necessary funding to deliver the decent homes programme.

The HRA is regularly monitored by the councils Director of Finance and finance forms part
of the discussions at the regular monthly meetings

5.3 Director of Finance Comments

The Director of Finance has been consulted on this report and is part of the regular
monitoring process. The overall Housing Revenue Account provisional outturn position is
in line with the revised financial plans approved by Council in February. | am concerned
that the reduced performance in rent income collection translates into arrears that could
become un-collectable and may also require increased bad debt provisions. Although in
recent months performance has improved HfH are to put further focus on reducing the
arrears position in the new financial year and ensure that the target of 97.5% is achieved
for the new year.

The provisional capital outturn position for 2006/07 is within the approved revised budget
of £18.135m, recording a small underspend.

The outcome of some of the value for money reviews will result in cost savings being
required to be made by the Council, which is in addition to the savings proposals in the
approved budget. These will need to be dealt with on an individual basis as and when
they arise.

6. Legal Implications

6.1 Legal Services have been consulted on this report and have provided the following
comments:

VFM Reviews
Legal Services confirm the accuracy of the reference to clause 68 of the management
agreement. Notice of termination is required to be served on the Chief Executive.



7.

7.1

8.
8.1

9.
9.1

10.

Page 319

Performance Report
The report provided, when read in conjunction with the Improvement Plan report, appears
to comply with the requirements of Annex 2 to the management agreement.

Equalities Implications

Improvements to tenants’ homes and environment will enhance living conditions of those
who experience disadvantage because of their gender, race and ethnicity, disability, sexual
orientation, age and faith.

Consultation
Not applicable.

Background

Homes for Haringey’s performance is formally monitored by way of monthly and quarterly
meetings. The format of the monthly meetings has recently been enhanced by the council
to ensure a focus on key performance areas where there are concerns and to give the
council a more detailed opportunity to ‘drill down’ into the detail. However it should be
noted that this approach is not to ‘micro manage’ the organisation but for the council to
understand the reasons why performance may have fallen.

Performance Report for the 4th Quarter and year end 2006/07

This report will provide information on the 2006/07 outcomes for Best Value indicators on
Income Collection, Re-lets, Repairs and Tenant Satisfaction as well as information on
other local key performance indicators. Appendix A provides comparison of HfH
performance with that of other providers in the London region. Appendix B shows HfH
performance against selected indicators for 2006/07.

11.0 Income Collection

11.

11.

1 Collection rates (BV66A) Quarter end collection rates have remained constant at 96.53%

for both Q3 and Q4 against a target of 97.5%.

e HfH collection rate excluding hostels is 96.7% which puts their performance in the top
quartile in London. However, HfH’s own collection rate declined from 97.04% in Q3 to
96.97% in Q4.

e The collection rate for hostels was 93.95% against the same target of 97.5% in
2006/07. However, applying the same target to both hostels and general needs
accommodation does not take account of the different issues involved in the
management of hostel accommodation which traditionally have higher turnover rates
and levels of rent arrears. Therefore the target for hostels is 94% in 2007/08 to take
account of these differences. (Appendix A table 1)

e The number of tenants owing 7+ weeks rent (BV66b) has decreased during the quarter
from 15.59% at end of Q3 to 14.74% at end of Q4 due to increased income recovery
activity. (Appendix A table 2 and Appendix B table 3)

e The number of tenants in arrears with NOSPs (BV66c¢) has increased from 8.07% in Q3
t0 9.96% in Q4. (Appendix A table 3)

e The number of evictions (BV66d) has decreased from 0.55% in Q3 to 0.51% in Q4%

2 The Client side has been kept informed throughout the year of the issues relating to



Page 320

income collection. Performance information has been reported at monthly and quarterly
meetings.

11.3 In addition to HfH action plan which was introduced in October, rent arrears were the
focus of the March 2007 monthly meeting between the Council and HfH. In this meeting
HfH explained the issues affecting income recovery. They had recently appointed an
income recovery manager and were beginning to see results. HfH also looked again at
their targets, policies and procedures in terms of Best Value indicators as some
indicators may have an adverse impact on performance e.g. Best value indicator BVPI
66C — the % of tenants with Notices of Seeking possession. This figure should be low
suggesting that the organisation considers alternative methods of income recovery
before resorting to the legal process. As will be seen from table 3 below, HfH have done
very well in this aspect of the indicator, however it has adversely impacted on income
collection rates. The need for HfH to ensure that the systems and support for the tenants
on prevention of the arrears was highlighted at the meeting. HfH raised the issue of the
difficulty of making agreements with tenants to repay arrears where tenants also had
arrangements to pay off Council tax arrears which affected their ability to pay off their
rent arrears. The need for the council to address this through a debt management policy
was acknowledged and this is a piece of work which will need to be developed by the
council.

11.4 A more detailed briefing on the relationship between NOSPs, rent actions and evictions
will be prepared by HfH and circulated to members.

12.0 Re-lets
BV 212 Average relet time for local authority voids 2006/07
the 2006/07 year end figure shows that it took 36.76 days on average to relet a void
property against a target of 27 days. The issues have been highlighted elsewhere. The
April 2007 monthly monitoring meeting focused on Voids and improvements to the
turnaround time was reported there. Some of the improvements discussed include the
following:
e HfH Building surveyors to update OHMS as soon as possible to let Lettings Team
know the property is suitable for advertising
e An exception report has been developed which shows void properties that are not
marked suitable for advertising.
e Lettings team to check OHMS daily and begin the lettings process immediately
when the property is marked suitable for advertising.
e Viewing officers are now to be employed by HfH and located with Building surveyors
e HfH to be responsible for all sign ups (including direct lettings) from 08.05.07
Therefore the target for this indicator has not been met, the council is working closely
with HFH to ensure business processes continue to improve on both sides so the target
can be achieved. (Appendix A table 4 and Appendix B Table 5).

13.0 Repairs
BV 72 % specified urgent repairs completed in Government time limits
The year end outcome for 2006/07 was 97.1% against a target of 97%. This figure is
different from the figure of 93.22% reported elsewhere and the reasons for the difference
will be discussed at the June monthly meeting. (More information on performance is
provided in Appendix A table 5).




Page 321

BV 73 Average time taken to complete all non urgent repairs 2006/07
HfH achieved an average of 11.79 days against a target of 14 days so the target has been
met. (Appendix A table 6 and Appendix B table 7)

14.0 Tenant satisfaction
BV 74A Satisfaction of Tenants with overall services 2006/07
Tenant satisfaction has declined from 73.67% in 2005/06 to 59% in 2006/07. Therefore the
target for 2006/07 of 75% has not been met. This is due to a number of possible reasons
which are highlighted in Appendix A table 7

BV 75A % of Tenants satisfied with opportunities to participate in management

and decision making 2006/07

There has also been a decline in performance against this indicator as with indicator
BV74A above. Therefore the 2006/07 target of 71% target has not been met. (Appendix A
table 8)

15.0 Local Performance indicators

15.1 Customer Contact
In March 2007 HfH received 38,272 calls, 29% of which were received by the call centre.
All call centre indicators improved in March, but remained be low target. 65% of calls were
answered in 15 seconds. The outcome for the year was 36.01% against a target of 70%.
The call centre now has a dedicated HfH team in place and March 2007 figures show an
improvement in performance which can be further improved as the HfH team continues to
learn and develop.

The joint HfH and Customer Services improvement team are working to understand and
reduce repeat call volumes (a target of 20%) which will ease the pressure of increasing call
volume.

The percentage of callers to customer services seen within 15 minutes at customer service
centres was 49.2% just below the yearly average (and under year end target of 70%).
Having made improvements in the call centres the same approach is to be rolled out to the
Customer Service Centres.

15.2 Stage 1 and 2 complaints and Members Enquiries
Performance for on Stage 1 complaints was 80% in March 2007. The year outcome was
70% against a target of 80%.
Performance on Stage 2 complaints was 73% in March 2007.The outcome for the year
was 74% against a target of 80%.
Performance on Members enquiries was 85% in March 2007. The outcome for the year
was 70% against a target of 90%. (More information in Appendix B tables 1 + 2)

15.3 Homes with Valid Gas Certificate
The percentage of homes with a valid gas certificate remains at 98% against a target of
100%. HfH are taking actions to achieve target which include Gas Access Warning Tape,
evening cold calling and a dedicated officer to access performance. (Appendix B table 8)

15.4 Home Ownership
The target for service charge collection was achieved.



Page 322

15.5 Estate Services
The overall quality of estates as monitored by Estate Services Managers has been high
over the year. The end of year figure for the internal standard of blocks is below the 95%
target at 91%. The figure for external areas is 89% against a target of 95%. Action plans
are in place to address issues of concern. The Accord figure for Estate cleanliness for the
year end is 98.14% against a target of 95%.

15.6 Tenancy Management
The percentage of stage 1 anti-social behaviour cases completed in timescales was just
below target in March, but performance over the last two months has been the best of the
year.

97% of tenancy checks were completed by the end of March. . A detailed analysis of the
3% of cases deemed not to have been checked has been completed and necessary action
taken or planned.

There was an improvement in the percentage of welcome visits completed by tenancy
managers within six weeks of a new tenant moving into their property but this is still
someway below target.

Two recent developments will contribute to improved performance in this area going
forward into 07/08. Since February, a report has been available that allows managers to
track progress on a weekly basis. This has directly led to the improved performance in
March. Tenancy Management Officers took over the signing up of new tenants from the
Lettings Team in December, which again led to improved performance as they were able
to make firm appointments there and then with new tenants.

16.0 Fixed Penalty notices

At the quarterly monthly meeting on 25.05.07 between HfH and LBH it was agreed in
principle that the management agreement be amended to allow HfH staff to issue fixed
penalty notices targeted at a range of anti social behaviour such as dumping of refuse and
litter. HfH to provide legal clarification regarding HfH officers not being able to attend court.
Once this clarification has been provided the Lead member for Housing will sign the
agreement to amend the Management agreement.

17.0 Conclusion

17.1 Performance against the key 9 indicators in the first year of operation for Homes for
Haringey has been disappointing, 5 out of 9 targets have not been met. However it has to
be remembered that performance indicators are only one part of the overall performance of
any organisation but more improvement work has to be done if the performance against
these indicators is going to improve. .

17.2 Partnership work with the Council has continued to develop and evolve. The format of the
monthly monitoring meetings has changed to enable issues to be investigated more fully
and understood by all parties involved.

17.3 Action plans have been developed to address areas where improvement is needed e.g.
income collection and procedures have been streamlined to ensure that actions take place
on time, coordinating the HfH void process with the Councils lettings process to reduce the
void turn around times or addressing the backlog of requests for aids and adaptations.

17.4 The Council will continue to monitor performance through the monthly and quarterly
performance meetings.



Page 323

Appendix A
In terms of comparison with other Local Authorities and ALMOs in the London region the
tables below from Housemark and HFH/LBH data show the position for year ending March
2007.
e BV 66a Collection rates including arrears 2006/07
There were responses from 13 organisations included in table 1 below. The figure of
96.53 shows HfH ranks 9. The data shows that the overall collection rate in Haringey
remains just below the median however, HfH performance ranks in the top quartile for
rent collection for the properties it manages when the council’s hostels are taken out of
the equation. The combined 2006/07 year end target for HfH and hostels was 97.5%
Therefore the target has not been met.

BV66a Collection rate incl arrears, excl
water rates

98.00%
Haringey Target 97.5%
97.50%
97.00%
(o] y

96.50% +— / %
96.00% +— / /
95.50% 7 %

Top quartile | Median Lower HfH 06/07 | Collection

06/07 06/07 quartile  |excl hostels | incl hostels

‘D Series1 | 96.93% 96.56% 96.34% 96.97% 96.53%

Table 1 (Source Housemark and HfH report)

e BV 66b % of tenants owing over 7 weeks gross rent 2006/07
Twelve organisations provided data for the indicator below. HfH was ranked 12" in terms
of performance against this indicator. At the end of 2006/07, 14.74% of tenants owed

over 7 weeks gross rent against a year end target of 10.0%. Therefore this target has
not been met

BV 66b % of tenants owing over 7
weeks gross rent
20.00%
15.00% 7
Haringey Target 10% //
10.00% 1 2
7
5.00% | /
0.00% "= til L til A
Op quartie . ow er quartile
06/07 Median 06/07 06/07 HfH 06/07
‘D Series1 7.42% 8.73% 10.87% 14.74%

Table 2 (Source Housemark and HfH report)



Page 324

e BV 66C % of tenants in arrears with Notice of Seeking Possession 2006/07
Thirteen organisations provided data on this indicator. HfH was ranked first in terms of
performance against this indicator. (For this particular indicator low performance is
good.) This indicator shows if the organisation is relying too heavily on the legal process
to recover income and not considering alternative methods of arrears recovery. This
indicator has to be read in context with the other elements of the indicator. This will be
explained in more detail in the Members briefing to be prepared by HfH referred to
above. Therefore HFH outperformed on this indicator but this adversely affected the
collection rate as previously mentioned.

BV 66¢ % of Tenants in arrears with
Notices of Seeking Possession

30.00%

25.00% -

20.00%

15.00% Haringey Target 12%

10.00%
5.00% VZ
0.00% Top quartile Median 06/07 Low er quartile HfH O(;O7

06/07 06/07
‘D Series1 21.10% 23.93% 27.98% 9.96%

Table 3 (Source Housemark and HfH report)

e BV212 Average re-let time for local authority voids
Thirteen London based organisations provided data for this indicator. HfH was ranked
12™ and is in the lower quartile in terms of performance. As shown in the table below
the 2006/07 year end figure shows that it took 36.76 days on average to relet a void
property against a target of 27 days. The issues have been highlighted elsewhere.

BV212 Average relet time for local authority
voids

50

Haringey Target 27 days

40

30 -

Days

20 -

10

DN\

Top quartile . Low er
Median 06/07 HfH 06/07
06/07 an quartile 06/07

‘D Series1 24.86 30.53 39 36.76

Table 4 (Source Housemark and HfH report)



Page 325

e BV 72 % specified urgent repairs completed in Government time limits
Eleven respondents provided data for this indicator. HfH was ranked 10" out of the 11
organisations that provided data.

BV 72 % specified urgent repairs completed in

100

Government time limits

98 Haringey Target 97%
f— 1
96 /
94 /
o /
90 A
Top quartile . Low er quartile
7 HfH 7
06/07 Median 06/0 06/07 06/0
‘D Series 98.96 97.2 93.98 971

Table 5 (Source Housemark and HfH report)

e BV 73 Average time taken to complete all non urgent repairs 2006/07
Twelve organisations provided data for this indicator. HfH was ranked 11" in terms of
performance and is in the lower quartile in terms of performance.

Days

BV73 Average time taken to complete all non

15

10 -

urgent repairs

Haringey Target 14 days

7/
5 %
0 %
Top quartile . Low er
oplo7 | edan 08071 - riie 0gr07| T 0807
‘D Series1 7.25 8.95 10.52 11.79

Table 6 (Source Housemark and HfH report)

o BV74A Satisfaction of Tenants with overall services

The table below demonstrates tenant satisfaction with the services provided by HfH has
declined in 2006/07. This decline reflects an overall decline in tenant satisfaction among
other organisations in London. There are several possible explanations for this decline
which will need to be investigated over the coming months. However one of the main
possible reasons is that the 3 yearly National Federation of Housing Tenant Satisfaction
(STATUS) survey was a postal survey in 2006. Postal surveys traditionally have lower



Page 326

response rates and possibly different outcomes than other forms of survey. Previously
Haringey used telephone and face to face surveys. Out of the 11 organisations who
provided data for this indicator HfH was ranked 10™ in 2006/07. Therefore this target has
not been met.

BV 74a Satisfaction of Tenants with overall
services
80 Haringey Target 75% 06/07
el -
2 — OO
@ 70 + ' N
® \
(/7]
o 60 | \
()]
£ \
c 1]
g 50 \
5 \
e 40 3 A\
Top quartile | Median OWEr | | BH HfH
quartile
@ 2005/06 76.61 731 63.86 73.67
m 2006/07 70.5 68 64.5 59

Table 7 (Source Housemark and HfH report)

e BV 75A % of Tenants satisfied with opportunities to participate in management
and decision making 2006/07

As with table 7 above the data in this table shows a decline in tenant satisfaction as this
data was collected in the STATUS survey. HfH reflects this trend. In 2006/07 11
organisations have provided data on this indicator and HfH is ranked 7. As for table 7
above this decline in satisfaction will be investigated over the coming months. Therefore
this target has not been met.

BV75A % of Tenants satisfied with
opportunities to participate in management
and decision making

80

701 Haringey Target 71% 06/07

60 -
3 B R

Low er

percentage of tenants satisfied

Top quartile Median . LBH/ HfH
quartile
@ 2005/06 69.37 60.8 51.5 71
m 2006/07 62.05 56 54 55

Table 8 (Source Housemark and HfH report)



Appendix B Table 1: % of Stage 1 and Stage 2 complaints answered in target

100%

90%

80% A

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

2006/07 performance - % stage 1 and stage 2 complaints answered in target

/\

/™~

Target 80%

N

N\

—&—Stage 1 complaints
—8—Stage 2 Complaints

\ /
X/
KN

N

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

11

/2€ abed



Appendix B Table 2: % of Members enquiries answered in 10 day target

2006/07 - % members enquiries answered in 10 day target

100%

O% QO0/

Q0%
88%
0 \ 850
\ _A83% /

\ A\ /

60%

\\5% / \ /
52%

%
>0 \ / 52%

gce obed

40%
35%

30%

20%

10%

O% T T T T
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar



Appendix B Table 3: BV 66b % of tenants owing over 7 weeks gross rent

18%

16%

14%

12%

10%

8%

6%

4%

2%

0%

2006/07 - % of tenants owing over 7 weeks gross rent

== N o / :
i ¢ M
—
Target 10% - down is good
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

13

62¢ obed



Appendix B Table 4: % of stage 1 ASB tasks completed in target

2006/07 - % of stage 1 ASB tasks completed in target

100%

90% -

80%

Target - 70%

70%

60% -
55%

50%

0gg obed

40%
39%

30%

20%

10%

0%
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec



Appendix B Table 5: BV212 average void turnaround in calendar days

50

2006/07 - average void turnaround in calender days

45

40 A

35

30

I

pd

25 4

20

\/

Target 27 days - down is good

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec Jan

Feb

Mar

15

1£¢ abed



Appendix B Table 6: BV 73 Average time in calendar days to complete non-urgent repairs

2006/07 - Average time in calender days to complete non-urgent repairs

20

8 17.7

\().9
16

\ 14.1

14 4
13.7

N}
S
~
)
oS

11.9 12.6 \\/1.1.8—(”'8

Calender days
o

8 ,
Target -14 calender days
down is good

6

4

2 ,

0

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan

Feb

Mar

16

2e¢ obed



Appendix B Table 7: % of homes with valid gas certificate

2006/07 - % of homes with valid gas certificate

100%

99%

. W
97%

» / /
95%

cee obed

94% /
93% \

92% /

91%

90%
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar



Page 334

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 335 Agenda ltem 16

Agenda item: [NO.]
Cabinet On 19 June 2007

Report Title: Response to the Scrutiny Review of Improving the Health of People
with Profound and Multiple Learning Disabilities

Report of: Director of Adult, Culture and Community Services

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non Key

1. Purpose
1.1 To respond to the recommendations of the recent scrutiny review

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1 As Executive Member for Social services and Health | welcome the publication of this
scrutiny report.

2.2 There is clear evidence to show that Adults with learning disabilities (LD), particularly
those with profound and complex needs face terrific inequality in accessing many
aspects of health care. An action plan has been developed jointly with the Teaching
Primary Care Trust (TPCT) to ensure that the recommendations can be implemented
in a planned way.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That members welcome the recommendations of the scrutiny review
3.2 That members agree the action plan as set out in Appendix A

Report Authorised by: Mun Thong Phung, Director of Adult, Culture and Community
Services

Contact Officer: Gary Jefferson, Head of Service, Learning Disabilities Partnership.
gary.jefferson@haringey.gov.uk, 020 8489 1383

4. Director of Finance Comments

4.1 The Director of Finance has been consulted and there are no specific financial
implications arising from this report. The financial implications arising from
implementing the action plan will need to be fully identified and reported through
financial management processes of the council.

Page 1 of 4



Page 336

5. Head of Legal Services Comments
5.1 There are no legal implications in the consideration of this report and action plan.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 Report to Scrutiny Committee — Improving the health of people with profound and
multiple learning disabilities

6.2 [Also list reasons for *exemption or confidentiality (if applicable)]

7. Strategic Implications

7.1Adults with learning disabilities (LD) including those with Profound and Multiple
Learning Disabilities (PMLD) and people with milder forms of disabilities face clear
health inequalities.

7.2Many of the recommendations contained in the report are clearly the responsibility of
the local specialist Learning Disabilities Partnership. However for change to take place
other non specialist services will need to ensure that that they respond in a positive
way to what is proposed.

7.3The report also highlights the needs of carers in their role in ensuring that the person
that they care for remains healthy. Many of these people also have poor health
themselves which at times affect their ability to care.

7.4The scrutiny review made 21 recommendations and the initial responses to these are
outline in Appendix A

8. Financial Implications

8.1There are no financial implications in the delivery of the recommendations of this
review. All change can be achieved from available resources.

9. Legal Implications
9.1There are no legal implications contained in this report.

10.Equalities Implications

10.1 People with PMLD are amongst some of the most disadvantage members of our
community.

10.2 Within the local population of people with a learning disability there is a higher
proportion from certain African/Caribbean and Asian communities than the wider
population. For example, there is a higher prevalence of autism amongst the males
from African/Caribbean community.

10.3 In addition there is a higher prevalence of learning disability in the east of the
borough than the west.

11. Consultation

11.1 The review panel included members from the local patient and public Involvement
Group, voluntary organisations and staff both from the NHS and local authority.
The National Development Team for Learning Disabilities undertook a detailed
consultation with a group of carers of people with a PMLD. This included individual
and group interviews together with the keeping of a diary about experiences of
accessing health care.

Page 2 of 4



Page 337

In addition, the review and recommendations have been discussed at the Learning
Disabilities Partnership Board, Carers Forum, and Service Users Forum.

All consultations were positive and many people appreciated that their individual
experiences were taken into consideration by the review.

12. Background

12.1 The scrutiny review of health services for people with profound and multiple learning
disabilities started in May 2006 and was completed in February 2007.
The review had two strands:
¢ A health scrutiny review by a panel of members and key stakeholders
e “Action Learning” which looked at how the review worked and the lessons for
similar reviews
A vast amount of research was undertaken and the National Development Team for
Learning Disabilities undertook a detailed consultation exercise with a sample of eight

carers.

12.2 People with learning disabilities have much poorer health than the general population
and services have traditionally failed to ensure the health needs of people with
learning disability are met
Research has shown that:

People with learning disabilities, particularly people with Down’s
Syndrome have an increased risk of early death to the general population
The incidence of deaths from cancer in the UK is currently higher than the
general population (26% vs. 11.7% - 17.5%)

Women with learning disabilities are less likely to undergo cervical smear
tests than the general population (19% vs. 77%). There is a similar
situation for breast cancer examinations.

People with a LD are affected by Coronary Heart Disease at higher levels
than other members of the community.

Respiratory disease is the leading cause of death for people with learning
disabilities (46% - 52% compared to0 15% - 17%)

Health screening when undertaken reveals high levels of unmet physical
and mental health needs

People with learning disabilities are between 8.5 and 200 times more
likely to have visual impairment in comparison to the general population
Prevalence rates for schizophrenia in people with learning disabilities are
approximately three times greater than the general population.

12.3 This review concluded that:

People with learning disability are seen as a low priority in many services.
Many healthcare staff do not understand much about the differing needs
of people with a disability.

Staff rarely consult or involve families and carers.

Many people do not get appropriate treatment that would help them as
staff are unsure about how people can give their consent.

Access to complaints are often ineffectual

People are seen as often only needing help in relation to their learning
disability and not wider health needs.

The needs of carers in how they are able to support somebody is often
not taken into consideration

Page 3 of 4



Page 338

13. Conclusion

13.1 The scrutiny review was both wide ranging and timely and has focussed on key
issues relating to the health of local residents with learning disabilities

13.2 The approach of the review in involving and taking evidence from the local groups
and carers is to be welcomed.

13.3 We are confident that if the recommendations of this review are implemented many of
the barriers that exist to prevent equal access to healthcare for people with PMLD will
be reduced.

14. Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs
Appendix A — Action Plan

Page 4 of 4



Page 339

o0p"Q L xipuaddy9 L wale190.0021ouUIgeD\ L0 20000IV\P\0\ L\sooqweljepusby\ereq\robulepown:J / J0 | abed

dVH uo uonoes
apNjoul 0] PESIASI S1BWIO) MBIASY

Alyuow
pauodal pue 80//0 40} 18s 10bue |

wes] pauiquod
9yl jo pesH —lejize pezieq

wea] pauiquod
9y} jo pesH —lejize pezieq

£0/20/10

80/¥0/10

(po2.1by)
'SOUIODINO UD|d UOIOY YlOSH

10J $s©2001d Bunojiuow ol1oads o spnoul|
a1 yim eidoad jo diysieupnd seiligosiq
Buiuina] eyl Ag usyopuspun qlAd

pupL 7 ylm ajdoad Jo smalnal [pnuuy/|

"syuow
2l uyum suo yum papiroid e
ale pue Awoud jseybiy ayj usalb aq
dNd yum sjdoad jeyl pue wayl yum
g|doad jo ebejusoled ay) Buiseatoul
1o} diysieuned sangesiq BuiuiesT
ayl Ag 10s sI 18buey oyoads Y =

isue|d UOIOY YlesH Jo 1oadsal ul ‘ley|
OM | uoljepuawiLioody

‘uoijeindod Japim JO Jeyl 0} aseoylesay Jo
pJepuels a|qelinbs ainsua 0} paje|dwod
aq 0} sI upny Anjenbas yiesy v

'$S9204d |eJUBWAaIOUl/
ABajes1s BuluoISSIWIWOD | D] O} YuIT

s|alueq a|1ayd1N/1eqoH AYOIA

19d1 Puluoissiwwon
J0 J0}03.1q — 10]Ae] A

80/¥0/10

(posiby)

‘uonendod]

Japim 8yl Jo 1eyl Se aJedyjeay Jo pJepuels
awes ay] 1ses| e aAlgdal qINd PUB 1 yum
a|doad jey} 8iNsud 0} S|BPOW BIIAIBS MU

1o ‘yoeasino aendoidde jo Buiuoissiwwoo)
dY} JepIsu0d 1Dd1 8yl {(QHQ) uoissiwwo)
siybiy Aupgesiq syl Ag pepuswiwioos.

se (S3Q) swayog Ayenb3 Anjgesiq sy

uo yJom Juawdojansp Jayuny Jo ued se ‘ley |
auQ uonepuawWWoddy

paje|dwoo aq jsnw Siy |

AJIIQDSIP bulwpg|
a|diyjnw pup punojoid

JO yjjpay ay} Buiroidwi
Uuo MaIASY Auljniog

*ON/S®A

(Yeym pue oym)

31vddn ANILNHOS

Vv Xipuaddy - upb|d uoyoy




Page 340

o0p"Q L xipuaddy9 L wale190.0021ouUIgeD\ L0 20000IV\P\0\ L\sooqweljepusby\ereq\robulepown:J

19s aJe sjabie)

Jeajd pays||gelss ale 8say] 80uo Jey |
"paJapISU0d

ag sangesip Buiuies| yum sjdoad Aq

alen Aewnd
JO J019a.1q / diysiaupied
sanljiqesiq Buluiea

/ 10 g obey
diysiaupued sanjigesiq buiuiea ayl

:ybnoayl @INd pue a1
yum ojdoad 1o} sbBulussids aullnNod U0} S|BA9|

dn a)e} a8y} Bullonuow Jo swalsAs ey | JO pedH - uosiayar Aien /0/0L/10 dn oyel anoidwi 0} udyel aq uonoe eyl
XIS UoEpUaWWO0I9Y
(pea.by)
"dTNd pue aT
yum ajdoad yum Bujiom ui 8o1j0e.d 1599 UO
‘JJels aseoyleay aouepInb pue uoljew.lojul [eiouab Buipinoid
0] 9|ge|leAe apew SI qJIAd & yum ajdoad s|euoissajoud yyeay Jaylo pue sisuoioeld
JO Spaau Buudyip 8y} UO UOIBWIOUI pUB diysiauped aJed Arewud Joy 19)je8] 8ouepInb 8|qIssedoe
9|ge|leAR BpEeW S| puBlSIapun O} Joise] sanjgesiq buiuiean pue 8s1ou09 e 8onpo.d diysieuled
uonew.ou| Buiyepy Jo Bulurely rey | JO pedH - uosiayar Aien /0/01/10 saiigesiqg buiutesa AebuueH 1ey |
oAl uolepuUBWIWIOIdY
(pos.by)
‘aJe poddns Buipuny
10} saijiqisuodsal ayj leym Ajueo
0} [edsoH AusiaAiun xass|ppIN YHON O}
B1IM 0] | 4D '1SnJ] 81Nde YlIM JOBJIJUOD
ay] ul ajdoad a|qeJduInA 10} Sjuswale ‘lendsoy 0] paliwpe aJe Aay} uaym
pue e} Japun paJsA0d 8q PINoys SIy | dTNd pue g1 yim ajdoad Joj poddns jo
Buipuny ayi 1o} AyjiIgqisuodsal uo uoleoljLB|o
aoe|d ul aJe sauldpInb Jesjd pue paljIelo 19d1 uawaindoud Jo Jojdallqg sapIn0.d ‘SISnJ} 81NoE Ylm mmmooa_
aJe saliqisuodsal Juasaid ayl 1ey | aleloossy — luepueyojeg eAep 10/°01/10 Buluoissiwwoo ay} jo Ued se ‘| Ddl dyl leyl|
1IN0+ uonepuswiuioddy
(pos.by)
‘pasijendsoy ae gNd
pue g7 yum ajdoad uaym sdu) pue sjendsoy
pajo|dwod aq 0} [eudsoy usamlaq uosiel| apinoid 0} uosiad olj0ads
01 payiwpe ajdoad Buiuoddns ur wes | weaj pauiquod e BuiAyuapl o} diysieuned saijigesiq
pauIquwo) ay} JO 9]0J 8y} JO M3IABI Y 9y} Jo peaH — Jejizeq pezieq /0/0L/10 Buiurea ayl Agq uanib aq uoieIapISUOD ey |

984l UOIBPUBWILLIOIdY

paja|dwod aq jsnwi Siy |

xON/S9A

(Yeym pue oym)




Page 341

o0p"Q L xipuaddy9 L wale190.0021ouUIgeD\ L0 20000IV\P\0\ L\sooqweljepusby\ereq\robulepown:J / J0 ¢ abed

sue|d uonoe yyesy
Ul papnjoul Alessadau a1aym pue siaied

diysiauped
sanljiqesiq Buluiea

'SUE|d UOIJY YlfesH ulylim
papnjoul 8q uolleWIOUl JUBAS|SI 1By} pue
S82IAI8S Yleay Buissaooe uo Buluiel) pue

aouepinb ajeudoidde yum siaied sapinoid]

10} padojanap 18|ed| UolBeWIOUI Uy JO pedH - uosiayar Aien /0/0L/10 diysieuned saijgesiq buiuies ayl ey
SUIN uOiEPUAWIWIOIdY
(pos.by)

Wwea| uolesIWIXep
BaWOooU| 0] apeW SI [B1I9)8I B 1By "SHjouaq 0} JUBW|JIIUS SSasse
dn aye] 1ysuaq pasealoul 1o} jenuajod weaj pauiquod Ajpunnou diysisuped sanjigesiq buiuiesa
B SalJIJuUsp! JUBWISSOSSE UE aI19ym Jey | 9y} Jo peaH — lejizeq pezieq 10/20/10 9yl Ag uayeUBpUN SUBWISSASSY SIIe) Jey ]|
1yb13 uonepuswuioday
(pos.by)
EEIEHITETN
a.Jed Buipinoud anuiuoo o} o_o_mc:_
BWO0998( SJ8Jed pINoys 8J4ed JO UOIIENUIUOD
ayj Joy suejd Aouabunuod pue suoleidepe
M3IABJ BY] Spusle 82IAI8S pue spie jo Aoenbape Buinuijuod ayy Jo
suoleldepe syl wolj | O ue pue soe|d diysiaulied uoljeIapIsSu0d apnjoul diysiauled saijigesiq
Soye] uoljeidepe U0 pie ue yim a9IAI8S saliqesiq buiuiean Buiurea] ayl Aq uaxeuspun qIAd pue
@7 o1 umouy| 8jdoad jo lpne ue jey] JO peaH - uosiayar Aien 10/20/10 a1 yum ajdoad o smainal [enuue |je jey

UdASS UOIBpUALLILIOIdY

(pos.by)
‘Juswaoidwi 10}

sjebue} ajendoidde Buimes pue sjoas| dn
aye) Buuoyuow pue Buipiooal ‘S3Q By}
uo lom Buiobuo syl jo ped se ‘] 9dl ayl
pue ‘sue|d uonoy yiesH buipnjoul ‘sugld
a.Jed ajeudouidde ul ssaibo.id Bulioyuow
pue Buipiodal pue Jeis uoddns
ajendoidde pue siased 0} souenodwl
pue Ajigejreae Jiay) Buisiolgnd

paja|dwod aq jsnwi Siy |

xON/S9A

(1eym pue oym)




Page 342

o0p"Q L xipuaddy9 L wale190.0021ouUIgeD\ L0 20000IV\P\0\ L\sooqweljepusby\ereq\robulepown:J

Buuoyuow /
S]OBJIUOD BY} Ul SI JBYM M3IABI BY] ¥o8yD

S]0BJIUOD |[B Ul papnjoul
ale yQQ @y} Jo sjuswalinbal sy} tey |

19je|s sawep

s|aiueq ajdYydIN

10dl

Buluoissiwwod Jo iojdal1qg
— 10jAe] Alev/Jusawaindoid
JO J10323a41q Jouin] AlieH

80/¥0/10

/ 10 { abey

B|QISSODID A||N} SPOWI BID $SDIAISS ||0 LOYY
8INsus 0] 10]08s AIDIUN|OA pUD 81PAlLd
*2llgnNd 8yl Ul SI9pIA0Id YLM SIODIIUOD
[I0 Ul UoISN|OUI 1O} spIopUD]S Alljlonb puo
$59000 AISIP JsNgos sdojeAsp 1 Ddl
Byl ‘D 8yl AQ papuswLIODal S ‘1Y
UddLIY ] UOIBPUBWILIOIDY

‘suolepuswwoal

a.ed Arewud 0] uolje|al ul 82IAI8S
paoueyu3 [eoo] dojgeasq "asemyos
LI &1 wes} || yum dn mojjo} 0} || Jo pesH

"sal|igesip Buiures| yum
g|doad Ajiuspi 01 8|ge saoioeld 4o Jo
Jaquinu ay} Jo} paiiuapl ase syebiel ey

ale)
Atewid pue asuew.oiad
JO 10}0311q ‘J9)e|S sawep

L0/01/10

(po2.by)
"uolew.ojul

alelidoidde ayy Buios||0o seanoeid]

Jo abejusaiad sy} Buinoidwi 1oy | DL By}

AqQ 188 8q 18b.e] [B20] B 1ey] pue ao1j0e.d J18yY])
yum palaisibal g1 yum ajdoad jo siaisibal
9]ealo 0} 81emlyos | | Airessaoau syl aney

[le Aoy} 1eyl ainsua 0} ybnoiog sy} uiyym
saoljoeld 45 Yim SyIom | Dd1 dui feyl
9A[oM UOHEPUBWILLIOIdY

uaAIb Apeale Juswiwwon)

1abeuepy
ABajeng Joluag — 0971q |1ud

£0/¥0/10

(posiby)

‘ubredweo siale\ pIIYD pajgesid

KlaAg a8y} 1oy JapeyD SaljIIoyINe |80

ay1 0} dn Buiubis s1episuod |1ouno) ayl ey |
U993 UOIIBPUAWILLIOIdY

6 UOIBPUBWIWLODD) 89S

diysiauped
salyjiqesiq buiuiea
JO pedH - uosiayar Aien

L0/0L/10

(pos.by)

ENIRETIE)

passalppe aie aJejjom pue Spaau Jiay] 1ey)
ainsus 0] sJaied 1o} Aordoape pue Loddns
o1j108ds JO JUBWIYSI|gRISS 8y} SIapISuod]
diysieuned sanjjiqesiq buluses ayy ey
U9 uonEpUAWIWIOIY

(pa2iby)

paja|dwod aq jsnwi Siy |

xON/S9A

(Yeym pue oym)




Page 343

o0p"Q L xipuaddy9 L wale190.0021ouUIgeD\ L0 20000IV\P\0\ L\sooqweljepusby\ereq\robulepown:J / J0 G abed

€ UOIBpUBIWLODa) 89S

wea] pauiquo)
9y} JO peaH — je|izeq pezieg]

L0/0L/10

0} uolpial Ul Buisinu AUNUIWOD Jsiipoads
10 $8|0J By} malnal diysisulnd 1 8y4 1oyl
U9dJUBASS UOEPUAWIWIOIDY

S37 Jepun donoeud
poob Jo Juswdojansp ay) uoidweyd o0}
dD B Sey Jaisnjo aAleIoqe||0d yoes ey

alen Aewnd @ asuew.o}iad
JO 10}0911( - 191e|S sawer

L0/0L/10

(pos.by)

*Buiurel; ayeudoidde jo uoisinoid ay} pue
ao110e4d 159q Jo Buleys pue juswdojaasp|
ay} “Jejnoiued ul ‘pue ybnoiog ayy

uiyum saonoeld 4o Jo Jaisnio aaeioqel ool
yoea UIylm sanssi g 10} 4O pe9)

B JO UOIJBUIWOU 8y} JBPISUOD 1Dl 9yl leyl

Ud3JXIS UOIBPUBWILIOIdY

G UOIBPUBWIWODa) 89S

diysiauped
sanljiqesiq buluiea
JO pedH - uosiayar Aien

L0/01/10

(pos.by)

‘ubisap pue Buiuue|d Sl Ul PaA|OAUI BB

a1 yum ajdoad 1eyl pue ‘yeis uondadal pue
siabeueyy ao11oeid Aenoiued ‘sisuoliioeld]
aJeo Arewd 1o} sanssi 1 uo Bulured) Jenbal
apinoid ‘diysisuned sanjigesiq buluies

ay} ynm uonounfuod ul ‘10d1 AebuleH jeyl
udd}jI4 UOIBPUBUILIOIY

G UOIBPUBWIWO0Da) 89S

diysiauped
sanljiqesiq Buluiea
JO pedH - uosiayar Aien

L0/0L/10

(posiby)
"a1Nd Pue g1 yum ajdoad 1o} sjuswiuiodde

Buew usym ssadoe alell|ioe} 01 sjuswisnipe
d|qeuoSeal pue 9|ge}NS }sanbal Ajsuinol

0] salabins 4o o1 ajdoad Builooss Jeis

pue sJaied 0] 8suepinb pue adiape sapiro.id]
diysieuped sanjjiqesiq buluses ayy ey
ud@8LIN0 UOIEPUBWILIOIDY

(poo.by)

"PeONPOILUI

ad [|M sUOILLBIICO [PNOIUOD MU
Uons yolym Ag ajop 2110eds D s1es puo

paja|dwod aq jsnwi Siy |

xON/S9A

(1eym pue oym)




Page 344

o0p"Q L xipuaddy9 L wale190.0021ouUIgeD\ L0 20000IV\P\0\ L\sooqweljepusby\ereq\robulepown:J / J0 9 abed

"paJapISuU0d
89 TNd ® yum ajdoad 10} pieo
aAlloe pasipisgns e Jo dn Bumes ayl ey

— siop uyopr g diysiaupied
saly|iqesiq buluiea]
JO peaH - uosiayar Aien

L0/01/10

e Buiysi|geise 0] MaIA B YlIM 82IAI8S 8INsIaT
pue suodS a8yl ylm UuOISSNOSIP Olul JBJud
diysiouped seniigesiq Buiutes] aui eyl

auQ Ausm] uoijepuawiuioddy

SwialsAs
wawabeuew adsuewlopad ensn ybnoay}
paJojuow pue 18s aq siebiel ey

uonealoay ‘103oaliqg
juejsissy — SO uyopr

L0/0L/10

(pos.by)

‘saljiqesIp|

YUM UBIPJIYD 10} SBIIAISS 0} SS90k [enbd
Buinaiyoe ul ssaiboid Joyuow 0} ABerens
Ke|d su ul 8211188 s,81doad BunoA pue
ualpiy9 ayl Aq 18s aq sjabie) oi10ads ey |
Ajuam] uonepuawuioday

aiind
e yum ajdoad jo spasu oi10ads syl

apn|oul 0} pamalnal si Abajelis ayl 1ey |

uieaH d1qnd Jo
ajelo10a.1q — 9jbog essauep

L0/01/10

(pa2iby)

‘a1 yum ajdoad Buipnjoul ‘sdnoub ysiu ybiy
JO Spaau a8y} ssaippe Ajleoioads sisuped
sl pue | Ddl AebuureH Ag padojansp
Bulaq Ajjuauino Abajens Alsaqo ayl 1ey |
uddjauUIN UOEPUAWIWIOIY

pamaIABJ SI UOISIOap SIYl Tey |

19d1 Buluoissiwwo)
J0 10308.41q — 10]AeL Ay

L0/0L/10

(pos.by)

"POMBINBI BQ BJIAIBS Y} UIYIM

sjoAg| Buiyjels Jualno Jo Aoenbape |[eiono
ay} Jeyi pue g//002 Ul 10d1 au} Aq Buipuny
Jo} Ayond e spew aq /£/900g Buunp paJinbal
sbuines 196pnq Jo Led se uazol) a1om

ey} 82IAI8S [elusg Alunwiwo) ayj ulylim
sisod AJsijuap Jo Juswalelsulal ayj ey
uaajybig uonepuswiwioddy

(pos.by)

'SISNJL BN00 “IoINDId Ul ‘puUD

$ODINIBS Y}oay [pisusb Buissaoo0 s1aiod
pUp slasn 2oIA18s Lloddns Asyl moy|

paja|dwod aq jsnwi Siy |

xON/S9A

(Yeym pue oym)




Page 345

o0p"Q L xipuaddy9 L wale190.0021ouUIgeD\ L0 20000IV\P\0\ L\sooqweljepusby\ereq\robulepown:J / J0 L ebed

uoieald9y ‘1010a11q JuelSISSY

(pos.by)
"S]u8I|o 10} sp.Jeo|
BAIlOB JO0 8seyoind pasIpisqns Joj 8wayds

paja|dwod aq jsnwi Siy |

xON/S9A

(1eym pue oym)




Page 346

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 347 Agenda ltem 17

HARINGEY COUNCIL

Agenda item:

The Cabinet ‘ 19 June 2007

Report Title: Appointment of the Procurement Committee and the Voluntary Sector
Committee

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): n/a

Report of: The Chief Executive

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: . key decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To appoint Cabinet Members to serve on the Procurement Committee and the
Voluntary Sector Committee for the 2007/08 Municipal Year and to confirm the terms
of reference of the two committees.

2. Introduction by Executive Member

2.1 This report sets out proposals for the appointment of Members to serve on two
Executive decision-making committees, the Cabinet Procurement Committee and the
Cabinet Voluntary Sector Committee. Their terms of reference are outlined for our
confirmation.

2.2 The Procurement Committee will play an important part in enabling us to undertake
our responsibilities in relation to contract and procurement decisions. Good
procurement decisions are central to sound financial management and our continued
commitment to achieving value for money and the delivery of excellent services to
Haringey’s communities.

2.3 The Voluntary Sector Committee will enable the Council to build on the constructive
and positive relationships with our partners within the Voluntary Sector. The remit of
this Committee now goes beyond the scope of solely allocating grant aid to that of
issues relating to the Voluntary Sector in general.

2.4 These Cabinet decision-making Committees will continue to operate in the spirit of
openness, transparency and accountability.

3. Recommendations

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 1



Page 348

3.1 That the Cabinet appoint Members to serve on the Procurement Committee and on
the Voluntary Sector Committee for the 2007/08 municipal year.

3.2 That the terms of reference of the Cabinet Procurement Committee and of the
Cabinet Voluntary Sector Committee as outlined in paragraphs 8.2 and 8.3 below
respectively be confirmed.

Report Authorised by: Dr. Ita O’Donovan, Chief Executive \,&,/L Y/
vg

Contact Officer: Richard Burbidge, Principal Support Manager, Member Services
(Tel. No. 8489 2923 Fax No. 8881 5218)

4. Executive Summary

4.1 Because of the need to arrange meetings of the Cabinet Procurement Committee
and of the Cabinet Voluntary Sector Committee it is necessary to ensure the early
appointment of Members to serve on these on these two sub-ordinate bodies of the
Executive in the 2007/08 municipal year.

5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

5.1 The Constitution sets out rules for the Responsibility for Functions as well as the
terms of reference of the Cabinet and Cabinet Committees.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 Report to the meeting of the Executive on 13 June 2006 entitled ‘Appointment of the
Executive Procurement Committee’ and the ‘Appointment of Executive Voluntary
Sector Committee'

6.2 Agenda for the Annual Meeting of the Council held on 21 May 2007.

7. Background

7.1 The Council at their Annual Meeting on 21 May 2007 adopted a revised
Constitution which included, amongst other things, the terms of reference of the
Cabinet and of Decision Making Committees of the Cabinet.

8. Description

8.1 As decision making Committees of the Cabinet, the membership of the
Procurement Committee and the Voluntary Sector Committee may only include
Cabinet Members.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec




Page 349

8.2 ltis proposed that for the municipal year 2007/08 the membership of the
Procurement Committee be 4 with a quorum of 2 and consist of -

Cabinet Member Resources (Chair)

Leader of the Council

Cabinet Member Children and Young People
Cabinet Member Housing

It is also proposed that the Members appointed be entitled to name any other
Member of the Cabinet as a substitute in the event of absence from a meeting and
that substitutes, when attending in that capacity, be recorded in the minutes as so
doing and be entitled to carry full voting and other rights and responsibilities.

The Terms of Reference of the Committee agreed by the Council were as follows

a) To exercise the functions of the Cabinet in respect of all contracts for
procurement for works, goods or services in accordance with the Contract
Procedure Rules set out in Part Four Section J of the Constitution except for
those matters expressly delegated to any other body or person;

b) To undertake particular powers included within (a) as follows:

(i) waiver of Contract Procedure Rules where appropriate;

(ii) acceptance of tenders/award of contracts where appropriate;

(iify  approving variations, extensions and novations of contracts where
appropriate;

(iv)  annual review of Contract Procedure Rules;

(v) receive quarterly reports of the Director of Adults, Culture and
Community Services and the Director of the Children and Young
People’s Services in relation to 'spot contracts';

(vi)  agreeing of approved lists of contractors;

c) To oversee the process and receive reports at key milestones in respect of
procurement of strategic service areas;

d) To advise the Cabinet on all matters concerned with procurement generally.

8.3 It is proposed that for 2007/08 the membership of the Voluntary Sector
Committee be 5 with a quorum of 2 and consist of-

Cabinet Member for Community Cohesion and Involvement (Chair)
Cabinet Member for Enforcement and Safer Communities
Cabinet Member Resources

Plus 2 other Members of the Cabinet (All Members of the Cabinet to act
as a panel of substitutes with three to be selected according to whose

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



Page 350

portfolio responsibilities were relevant to the particular areas of activity
under review).

The Terms of Reference of the Committee agreed by the Council were as
follows —

a) To consider officer recommendations for future funding and agree the
awarding of grant aid to the voluntary and community sector;

b) To review funding to organisations where there is a potential breach of
conditions of grant aid and/or service level agreement

c) To advise the Cabinet on variations to the overall grant policy;

d) To advise the Cabinet on all aspects of the Council’s relationship with the
Voluntary Sector including the management and use of the community
buildings portfolio.

9. Comments of the Acting Head of Legal Services

9.1 The Council's Constitution sets out the relevant Cabinet arrangements at Part
Three, Section D and confirms that the Cabinet may establish decision making
committees, which may only include Cabinet Members. The Cabinet may establish
advisory Committees, the membership of which need not be limited to Cabinet
Members. The Cabinet may change them, abolish them, or create further ones, at
its own discretion. Unless changed or abolished, the two decision-making
Committees continue in operation without the need for formal renewal each year.

10. Comments of Director of Finance

10.1  The Director of Finance has been consulted on this report and has no comments
to add. '

11. Summary and Conclusions

11.1  This report sets out the provisions contained in the Constitution in relation to the
establishment of Committees of the Cabinet and the appointments to the two
decision making committees which were made in the 2006/07 Municipal Year.
The Cabinet is asked to appoint Members to serve on the committees for
2007/08 and to confirm the terms of reference of the committees

12. Recommendations

12.1 That the Cabinet appoint Members to serve on the Procurement Committee and
on the Voluntary Sector Committee for the 2007/08 municipal year.

12.2 That the terms of reference of the Cabinet Procurement Committee and of the

Cabinet Voluntary Sector Committee as outlined in paragraphs 8.2 and 8.3
above respectively be confirmed.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4



Page 351 Agenda ltem 18

HARINGEY COUNCIL

Agenda item:

The Cabinet 19 June 2007

Report Title: Appointment of Representatives to Serve on the Haringey Strategic
Partnership and its Theme Boards

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): n/a

Report of: The Chief Executive

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non key decision

1. Purpose

I.1 To propose the appointment of Members to serve on the Haringey Strategic
Partnership and its six Theme Boards.

2. Introduction by the Leader of the Council

Haringey Council joined with local agencies to create the Haringey Strategic Partnership
(HSP) in April 2002.

One of this administration’s priorities is to continue to work constructively with
stakeholders and partners and to build on the successes of recent years. The Haringey
Strategic Partnership aims to improve the lives of all Haringey residents through effective
partnership working between all the service providers across the borough. The role of the
Haringey Strategic Partnership Theme Boards is to manage and develop the key
objectives of the partnership

The Cabinet is asked to confirm the appointment of Cabinet Members to serve on the
HSP and its respective Theme Boards and to authorise the Chief Executive in
consultation with me to approve the remaining appointment of non-Cabinet Members.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Chief Executive be authorised in consultation with the Leader to appoint
three to serve on the Haringey Strategic Partnership Board in the light of
nominations received from HSP Theme Boards at their initial meetings in the current
municipal year.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 1



Page 352

3.2 That approval be granted to the following appointments of Cabinet Members to serve
on the HSP Theme Boards indicated —

Better Places Partnership - Cabinet Member for Community Cohesion and
Involvement

Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership Board - Cabinet Member for
Children and Young People (Chair), the Leader and the Cabinet Member for Enforcement
and Safer Communities

Well Being Partnership Board - Cabinet Member for Housing

3.3 That approval be granted to the continuation of the following non Cabinet Members
on the Theme Boards indicated pending the first meetings of those Boards following
which the Chief Executive be authorised in consultation with the Leader to make any
necessary changes:

Children and Young People’s Theme Board — Councillor Jones

Enterprise Partnership Board - Councillor Egan

Safer Communities Executive Board - Councillor Cooke

Well Being Partnership Board — Councillor Bull (as Chair of the Overview &
Scrutiny Committee) and Councillor Dogus.

Report Authorised by: Dr. Ita O’Donovan, Chief Executive t:’*% },?éw

I

Contact Officer: Richard Burbidge, Principal Support Manager, Member Services
(Tel. No. 8489 2923 Fax No. 8489 2660).

4. Executive Summary

3.1 The Haringey Strategic Partnership and its Theme Boards will be meeting before
the summer recess and it is proposed that the present Council representatives both
Cabinet Members and non Cabinet Members continue to serve on those bodies for
the time being. Following the first meeting of the respective Theme Boards it is
proposed that the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader make any
necessary changes to that representation.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

5.1 Report to the Annual Meeting of the Council held on 21 May 2007 entitled
‘Appointments to Outside Bodies' and report to the Haringey Strategic Partnership
Board held on 22 May 2007 entitled ‘Proposal for an integrated Housing Board'.

6. Background

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 2




Page 353

6.1 The Council at their Annual Meeting on 21 May 2007 referred to the Cabinet for
consideration the appointment of Members to serve on the Haringey Strategic
Partnership (HSP) and its Theme Boards. The HSP at their meeting on 22 May
adopted a recommendation to establish a (sixth) integrated Housing Theme
Board.

6.2 This report asks the Cabinet to confirm the appointment of Cabinet Members to
serve on the Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP) and its Theme Boards, to
approve the continuation of current non Cabinet Member representation pending
the first meeting of the Theme Boards and to authorise the Chief Executive in
consultation with the Leader to approve any necessary changes.

. Description

7.1 The current list of HSP bodies to which this report relates are -
¢ Haringey Strategic Partnership Board (parent body of the theme boards below):

Better Places Partnership Board

Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership Board
Enterprise Partnership Board

Integrated Housing Theme Board

Safer Communities Executive Board

Haringey Well-Being Partnership Board

Haringey Strategic Partnership

There are two ex-officio positions which are filled by the Leader and the Chief
Executive. There are 3 other vacant positions. The Cabinet is asked to confirm the
appointment of the following Members to serve on the Board —

Cabinet Member for Enforcement and Safer Communities
Cabinet Member for Housing
Cabinet Member for Community Cohesion and involvement

Better Places Partnership Board

There is one ex-officio position filled by the Cabinet Member for Environment and
Conservation and 1 vacant position. The Cabinet is asked to confirm the
appointment of the Executive Member for Community Involvement to serve on
this Theme Board.

Children and Young People’s Theme Board
There are three ex-officio positions filled by the Cabinet Member for Children and
Young People (Chair), the Leader and the Cabinet Member for Enforcement and Safer

Communities. There is 1 vacant position. The Cabinet is asked to confirm
Councillor Jones continuing to serve on this Theme Board.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



Page 354

Enterprise Theme Board

There is one ex-officio position filled by the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and
Enterprise and 1 vacant position. The Cabinet is asked to confirm Councillor Egan
continuing to serve on this Theme Board.

Housing Theme Board

This Theme Board was only recently established by the HSP Board on 22 May 2007.

. Proposals as to membership and the level of Council representation on the Theme
Board will be considered at the next meeting of the HSP on 19 July 2007.

Safer Communities Executive Board

There is one ex-officio position filled by the Cabinet Member for Enforcement and Safer
Communities and 1 vacant position. The Cabinet is asked to confirm Councillor
Cooke continuing to serve on this Theme Board.

Well Being Theme Board

There is one ex-officio position filled by the Cabinet Member for Health and Social
Services and 2 vacant positions. The Cabinet is asked to confirm the appointment
of the Cabinet Member for Housing and to Councillor Bull (as Chair of the
Overview & Scrutiny Committee) and Dogus continuing to serve on this Theme
Board.

9. Comments of Head of Legal Services

9.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on this report and has no
comments to add.

10. Comments of Director of Finance

10.1 The Director of Finance has been consulted on this report and has no comments
to add.

11. Summary and Conclusions

11.1  This report sets out proposals for the appointment of representatives to serve on
the Haringey Strategic Partnership Board and its six theme boards.

12. Recommendations

12.1 That the Chief Executive be authorised in consultation with the Leader to
appoint three to serve on the Haringey Strategic Partnership Board in the
light of nominations received from HSP Theme Boards at their initial meetings
in the current municipal year.

12.2 That approval be granted to the following appointments of Cabinet Members to
serve on the HSP Theme Boards indicated —

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4



Page 355

Better Places Partnership - Cabinet Member for Community Cohesion and
Involvement

Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership Board - Cabinet Member
for Children and Young People (Chair), the Leader and the Cabinet Member for

Enforcement and Safer Communities
Well Being Partnership Board - Cabinet Member for Housing

12.3 That approval be granted to the continuation of the following non Cabinet
Members on the Theme Boards indicated pending the first meetings of those
Boards following which the Chief Executive be authorised in consultation with

the Leader to make any necessary changes:

Children and Young People’s Theme Board — Councillor Jones

Enterprise Partnership Board - Councillor Egan

Safer Communities Executive Board - Councillor Cooke

Well Being Partnership Board — Councillor Bull (as Chair of the Overview &
Scrutiny Committee) and Councillor Dogus.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec



Page 356

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 357 Agenda ltem 19

HARINGEY COUNCIL

Agenda ltem

The Cabinet On 19 June 2007

Report title: URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH CABINET
MEMBERS

Report of: The Chief Executive

1. Purpose

To inform the Cabinet of urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with Cabinet
Members.

The report details urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with Cabinet Members
since last reported. ltem number 26 (2006-7) has not previously been reported.

2. Recommendations

That the report be noted.

Report authorised by: Ita O’Donovan, Chief Executive /:E //,i V4
fv I Ty -
§i ¢ .

Contact officer: Richard Burbidge

Telephone: 020 8489 2923




Page 358

4. Access to information:
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

4.1 Background Papers
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report;

Executive Member Consultation Forms
Those marked with  contain exempt information and are not available for public
inspection.

The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood
Green, London N22 8HQ.

To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Richard Burbidge
on 020 8489 2923.




Page 359

'suoijejobeu Buimoyio} sjgejieae uoisod jseq

207010 L0v0%0 SaAljnoaxy
BY] UC paseq suoiun apel] 8y} 0} J8lo ue jo mc_me 3y} 0} jeaosddy 1910 Aeyd lenbg ueUyssiN' o m::o>.w 0%0¢CL BIYD | 9z
Japesn
Haquisiy
dAlNOaXy O3
Aq panoidde 10393411 Ag ul paAIadal
uois199(] L ajeq paroidde sjeq ajeq ajeloydaaqg ON

+ Aq psjousp ale swioy jdwexg
£0-900C — NOILOV S:yO103Ia 'L




Page 360

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 361 Agenda ltem 20

HARINGEY COUNCIL

Agenda ltem

The Cabinet On 19 June 2007

Report title: DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS

Report of: The Chief Execﬁtive

1. Purpose
To inform the Cabinet of delegated decisions and significant actions taken by Directors.
The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors under delegated

powers. Significant actions (decisions involving expenditure of more than £50,000) taken
during the same period are also detailed.

2. Recommendations

That the report be noted.

Report authorised by: Ita O’'Donovan, Chief Executive ., |/
A1 wﬂ%x}ﬁ“ "g BN
%,—/! 7 LA 5 J

Contact officer: Richard Burbidge

Telephone: 020 8489 2923




Page 362

4. Access to information:
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

4.1 Background Papers
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report;

Delegated Decisions and Significant Actions Forms

Those marked with ¢ contain exempt information and are not available for public
inspection.

The background papers are located at River Park House 225 High Road, Wood
Green, London N22 8HQ.

To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Richard Burbidge
on 020 8489 2923.




Page 363

polad 10eiuU02 JO UOND31I0)

JOBJJUOD JO UOHEUILLIS] JO UOHEDIION

J0B1JUOD JO UOHELEBA — £'C| OSD 0 uonejuswa|dwi o) jsenbay

JOBJJUOD JO UOISUBIXa — B "¢l OSD Jo uoneluswa|dwi ioj 1senbay

L0'€L OSD Japun J0BIUOD JO UOISUS)IXS 10} [eroiddy

Z0°LlL OSD Jepun }0ejjuo0d jJo pieme 1o} jerosddy

Z0°'L 1 OSD lepun Joeju0d jo pieme 10} jerocidde pue JOSD Jepun 0'9 OSD JO JaAlem Joj }sanbay

[ap2RS Sl Rl Rl Rl R ol o

€0°9 OSD Jo uoejuswa|dw 1o} }sanbay

uonoy pajebajag

seljiue]
panoiddy | pue uaipjiyd ui sisod jo uonaiag judy €7

‘Jdwex3 ale siaded punoibyoeq sajousp ¢

/00 udy / yosey  uonoy pajebsjaq - suoisioap juesyiubig

JOIAY3S S:3TdO3d ONNOA ANV N3¥ATIHO 3HL 40 ¥0103iId



Page 364

4

ypm jjesp suoneoljdde g0z PV Buisuaor]

Z suonne) ajdwis / jewio
9l salnzieg
/12 90IAISS 104 [BJO ]
L9 usplepn 19ails - SOON
0 Juswaoioug AneaH - 99110N
(44 901JON SSION
L/  '92iojug 198sS -yN uonvadsul
[ 9211ON ONH
I 2oljoN Ajejes pood
vG 901}0N asuodsay 08l uoljewlojul 1o} sysanbai ‘uoniqiyold ‘Juswienoldul JO SHIOM — panss| Sa2IJON
yZ senssi ajsep pue Buijno4 6o * Buusii 4o} paAles S,NdH
o¢es 90IAISS 10} |BJO |
961 dnolg swu) - olAUg
ol splepueyg Buipes]
ze Ayejes pue yjesH
201 aualbAH+ Ajojes poo- pouad 10} suoioadsul 10} pasn Aiu3g Jo Jamod
L

[ebo7 0] uonnoasold 1o} paliajal sased — polad 10} SUO)NOBSOId

uonoy pajebajaq

* 9oue||I9AING pajoali(] Jo} suoesUouine Jlojoali( JuBlsISSY auked uiqoy Areniqo4 ‘1

dwex3 ale siaded punoibyoeq sajousp ¢
/0 Aleniga4 uonoy pajebala - suoisiosp jueoyiublg

(991A19g JUBWSIOJUT) JUBWIUOIIAUT UBgIN 40 YOLO3FHId



Page 365

pauwiiejoal sjuelb Jo JaquinN — Sjuelic) Jo Wieoay juswanoldw| buisnoH

snosuejj@osiy Buisuao

L
oy

[elol

901ON sjuanz Arejodwa

yg uonoag

sanLeyd

suosiod

uswieai] jeoadg pue abessepy
panssi suoneuep

ponss| $aoua0I SasiWald MaN
Josinedng sesiwald pajeubisag jo abuey)
80UBDIT S8sIWBId JO Jajsuel]
panss| ,$8oUadIT [BUOSIad




Page 366

Aioyine pajebosja(

€
|4

5089

uonoy pajebajag

S)Ye8m ¢ 10} py uohedliqed [EjoN O} GL0'¢c3
‘gN 1o uekiap — swiwelboid juswanoidw| sjejs3 AsbulieH Jajeg €9 0SO dI3HSg ‘8N 1D ueliap LO/VIS) 'l
196pnq Juswabeuely pooyinoqubiaN wolj 6828y 63 Bunsod abieyoal JapjoyaseaT]
1eaJ pue Juoly ‘s1oop AJJUS [BUNLWIWIOD JO [eMaudy ‘¢ souenul /LN peoy Asjanep JO JaAlep — HIH L0/VIS) "9
403 - 00¥'83 Bunsod
g/, swwelboid [emauay ajejsy QAN — sjuswanoidw) Bunybi sjejs3 uopaall €9 0SO —HiH L0/vIT) S
Aem jo spybry
‘Pali}osy "G///y UO pajnuiw jou 9do JO Uoisideq a1iqnd jo depy aAniuyaqQ L0/vIge b4
Jue}INSUO0? |0JJU0D)
000°01 3 Buipesoxe jou syjuow ¢ ‘1o6png jojuo) Buipjing wolj pspung £0°9 OSO Buipjing jo jusuwuioddy L0/vi6l ‘¢
/LN aue diyspio pue zzN peoy ybiH buoje uoge}nsuo)
suonosal Bupped Bunsixe ayy 0} sjuswpuswe pasodoud Jojy Ajuoyine pajebajeg Aioynyes jo poday 10/v102 rA
saxog
JyBresg woly LA + 26° 10.'€23 104 Spi| pue soxoq 989 oseyoind 0} €0'9 0OSD udalg JO juswaindoid L0/¥10C ‘b

1dwexg ale siaded punoibyoeq ssjousp ¢

Iudy - 8/,00Z uonoy pajebejeq - suolsioap juedliubls

juswiuoldiaug ueqin 40 ¥OLOZNIA



Page 367 Agenda ltem 21
MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE

TUESDAY, 17 APRIL 2007

Councillors *Mallett (Chair), *Diakides, Haley and *Meehan

*Present
MINUTE ACTON
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PROC50. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda ltem 1)

An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Haley.

PROCS51. MINUTES (Agenda ltem 4)

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 March 2007 be HLDMS

approved and signed.

PROC52, CORPORATE LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME
(Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (People and Organisational
Development) — Agenda ltem 6)

Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

We noted that it was the aim of the tender to identify and implement cost
savings through the process used to access learning and development
activities across the Council. The approach was to introduce framework
agreements, covering all learning and development activities, including
courses, that were applicable across the Council, excluding areas such
as specialist, technical and professional training and the framework
agreements covered five Lots. We also noted that only one supplier had
tendered for Lot 3 — Accreditation of Development Programmes for
which ILM was a component and because the submission had not met
the requirements consideration was being given to providing these
programmes in-house.

We were advised that the services having been tendered on the basis of
framework agreements subsequent awards of contract would be made
either by way of call off or by mini competition.

RESOLVED

1. That, in accordance with Contract Standing Order 11, approval be ACE
granted to framework agreements being entered into with the | (POD)
suppliers detailed below in respect of the Lots indicated based on
the schedules of rates set out in the interleaved report -




Page 368

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 17 APRIL 2007

Lot 1 — Short Courses to Supply the Newly Developed
Competency Framework

Bray Leino Ltd.

Deborah West Consultancy and Training
Excellence in Business

Maven Training Ltd

T-three Consulting

Vivid Developments Ltd.

Lot 2 — IT Training for Standard MS Office Based Applications or
Upgraded Equivalents
e New Horizons Computer Learning Centre

Lot 4 — Facilitation of Workshops and other Team Based Activities
based in the Directorates

e Bray Leino Ltd.

e Deborah West Consultancy and Training

e Excellence in Business

e T-three Consulting

e Vivid Development Ltd
Lot 5 — Diagnostic, Design and Delivery of Programmes Cutting
across the Organisation

e Bray Leino Ltd.

e Deborah West Consultancy and Training

e Excellence in Business

e T-three Consulting

2. That the agreements be awarded for a period of two years with an
option to extend for two further periods of one year on the basis
detailed in the interleaved report.

3. That the awards of contracts to be made following mini
competitions under the framework be submitted to our Committee
for approval and a further report be submitted on the framework
arrangements after six months operation.

ACE
(POD)

ACE
(POD)

PROCS53.

PROVISION OF ICT GOODS AND SERVICES FOR THE 6TH FORM
CENTRE UNDER THE BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE
(BSF) PROGRAMME (Report of the Director of the Children and Young
People’s Service — Agenda ltem 7)

Our Chair agreed to accept the report as urgent business. The report
was late because of the need to complete necessary consultations. The
report was too urgent to await the next meeting because of the need for
an interim ICT Managed Service Provider (MSP) to be appointed prior to
the opening of the 6™ Form Centre in September 2007.

Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the




Page 369

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 17 APRIL 2007

interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

We noted that the £1.35 million capital costs outlined in the interleaved
report did not cover capital or revenue from year 2 onwards, that the
funding to pay for these costs had not yet been fully identified and that
this represented a risk. Having also noted that the shortfall would have to
be met from the on-going revenue budget for the new Sixth Form
Centre, we asked that a further report be submitted to the June meeting
of our Committee indicating how these ICT costs would be incorporated
into the 5 year operational budget of the Centre. The report should also
set out the decision taken by the Director of the Children and Young
People’s Service under the delegated authority now sought.

RESOLVED

1. That approval be granted to the delegation of authority for the
award of contract for the provision of an ICT Solution and
Managed Service to the Director of the Children and Young
People’s Services in consultation with the Executive Member
for Children and Young People, the Chair of the Executive
Procurement Committee and the Leader of the Council.

2. That the award of contract be for a period of up to 2 years,
with an option to extend for a further period of up 3 years until
the responsibility for the provision of the managed service was
transferred to the ICT Managed Service Provider.

DCYPS

DCYPS

DCYPS

PROC54.

HORNSEY LIBRARY REWIRE PROJECT - AWARD OF CONTRACT
(Report of the Director of Adult, Culture and Community Services —
Agenda ltem 8)

Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

RESOLVED

That in accordance with Contract Standing Order 11, approval be
granted to the award of the contract for the Hornsey Library
Rewire project, to Cosmur Ltd. on the terms and conditions set
out in the interleaved report.

HALLAM
/HP

PROCS55.

TRANSFER OF CONTRACT OBLIGATIONS FOR RESIDENTIAL
ACCOMMODATION FOR PEOPLE WITH SEVERE LEARNING AND
PHYSICAL DISABILITIES FROM HOLM TO HAIL (Report of the
Director of Adult, Culture and Community Services — Agenda ltem 9)




Page 370

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 17 APRIL 2007

We noted that in paragraph 8.3 the description of HAIL as a ‘larger
national organisation’ should read ‘larger local organisation’.

RESOLVED

That, in accordance with Contract Standing Order 14.1, approval
be granted to the transfer of the contract for residential
accommodation for people with severe learning and physical
disabilities from Homes of Our Lady of Muswell to Haringey
Association for Independent Living on the terms and conditions
set out in the interleaved report.

DACCS

PROCS56.

EXPANSION OF COLERIDGE PRIMARY SCHOOL FROM TWO FORM
TO FOUR FORM ENTRY (Report of the Director of the Children and
Young People’s Service — Agenda ltem 10)

Our Chair agreed to accept the report as urgent business. The report
was late because of the need to complete necessary consultations. The
report was too urgent to await the next meeting because not appointing
a main contractor at this stage would result in major programme failure,
with admission of pupils in September 2008 delayed.

Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

RESOLVED

1. That, in accordance with Contract Standing Order 11,
approval be granted in principle to the award of the contract
for the refurbishment and construction works to provide a new
teaching block and ancillary spaces at the existing TUC site
adjacent to the existing Coleridge Primary School to Jerram
Falkus Construction Ltd.

2. That approval be granted to the delegation of authority to
finalise the contract price with Jerram Falkus Construction Ltd.
to the Director of the Children and Young People’s Service in
accordance with the terms of the Framework Agreement, the
price not to exceed the Agreed Maximum Price as stated in
the Appendix to the interleaved report.

DCYPS

DCYPS

PROC57.

APPOINTMENT OF CONTRACTOR PARTNERS TO A BUILDING
SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT (Report
of the Director of the Children and Young People’s Service — Agenda
ltem 11)

Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and




Page 371

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 17 APRIL 2007

public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

We noted that the report sought approval to award the framework
agreement contract for the Contractor Partners for the Building Schools
for the Future (BSF) programme which had confirmed funding of £179
million from the Department of Education and Skills. We also noted that
the Council already had a number of other construction framework
agreements from which it could call off professional service consultants
and construction contractors arising from which concern was expressed
about the management of certain of these contracts, in particular some
school projects. Clarification was then sought of what measures would
be put in place to ensure the adequacy of project management
arrangements for individual BSF schools projects and, having noted the
response given, we asked that we be provided with stage reports at key
stages of the programme.

Clarification was also sought of the timetable, once the framework was in
place, for the mini competition to appoint contractors to start on the first
three schools projects in the programme. Having been advised that there
would be a ‘cooling off’ period following the decision to award the
framework agreement which would end on 10 May followed by a
competitive process lasting 4 — 6 weeks, we were of the view that the
award of the call off contracts should be made by our Committee rather
than delegated to the Director of Children and Young People as
proposed in the report.

RESOLVED

1. That approval be granted to the award of the framework
agreement contract for the Contractor Partners for the Building
Schools for the Future programme to the following contractors

Apollo London Ltd

Breyer Group plc

Willmott Dixon Construction Ltd.

Durkan Ltd.

Balfour Beatty Construction Scottish and Southern Ltd.
Galliford Try Construction South

2. That the award the call off contracts for the contractors for the
individual school projects under the Building Schools for the
Future Programme be made by the Executive Procurement
Committee.

DCYPS

DCYPS

DCYPS

PROCS58.

TERMINATION OF CONTRACT, DEARLE AND HENDERSON,
PROJECT MANAGERS FOR THE BSF PROGRAMME (Report of the
Director of the Children and Young People’s Service — Agenda ltem 19)

The interleaved report was the subject of a motion to exclude the press
and public from the meeting as they contained exempt information




Page 372

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 17 APRIL 2007

relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular person
(including the Authority holding that information).

RESOLVED
1. That the report be noted.
2. That a further report be submitted to the Committee on all

of the contracts on which Dearle and Henderson were
acting as project managers on behalf of the Council.

HPr

ANTONIA MALLETT

Chair




Page 373

MINUTES OF THE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 17 MAY 2007

Councillors *Mallett (Chair), *Diakides, Haley and *Meehan

*Present
MINUTE ACTON
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PROC59. APOLOGY FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was submitted by Councillor Haley.

PROC60. CORPORATE LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME -
AWARD OF CONTRACTS (Report of the Assistant Chief Executive
(People and Organisational Development) — Agenda ltem 4)

Our Chair agreed to accept the report as urgent business. The report
was late because the proposals could not be evaluated until 16 May.
The report was too urgent to await the next meeting because if the
matter was not considered by the Committee it would materially affect
the commencement date of a staff development programme that had
already been published.

Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

We noted that pursuant to our decision vide Minute PROC52 a mini-
competition exercise had been held to identify suppliers to provide short
training courses under Lot 1 of the Framework Agreement. We also
noted that the suppliers proposed had been selected to provide high
quality, value for money services for a period of two years with the option
to extend for two further periods of one year each.

We were concerned that the mini competition process had, in the case of
a number of the courses, resulted in only one supplier responding and
we asked that a further report be submitted to us in due course which
reviewed the framework agreements and included an evaluation of the
courses provided.

RESOLVED:

ACE -

1. That approval be granted to the appointment of the following POD

suppliers under Lot 1 of the Corporate Learning and
Development framework agreements on the terms detailed in
the Appendix to the interleaved report:

Learning & Managing Change — D. West
Project and Programme Management — Maven
Sustaining Effective Partnership — D. West
Making Public Consultation Work — D.West




Page 374

MINUTES OF THE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 17 MAY 2007

Clear & Critical Thinking — Vivid

Emotional Intelligence — Vivid

Effective Writing Skills for all Staff — T-3

Time Management — Vivid

Effective Communication & Presentation — Bray Leino
Finance for Budget Holders — Bray Leino

Planning for Retirement - Bray Leino

Managing Health & Safety - Bray Leino

Health & Safety Risk Management - Bray Leino

2. That a further report be submitted in due course which ACE -
reviewed the framework agreements and included an POD
evaluation of the courses provided.

3. | APPOINTMENT OF CONSULTANT FOR THE BSF AND ACHIEVING
EXCELLENCE PROGRAMMES (Report of the Interim Director of
Corporate Services — Agenda Item 8)

Our Chair agreed to accept the report as urgent business. The report
was late because of the need to complete necessary consultations. The
report was too urgent to await the next meeting because of the need to
agree a short term arrangement pending the procurement of Council
Project/Programme Consultancy Framework Agreement.

The interleaved report was the subject of a motion to exclude the press
and public from the meeting as they contained exempt information
relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular person
(including the Authority holding that information).

We were advised that it was important to regularise the arrangements
that were needed to support the Building Schools for the Future and
Achieving Excellence programmes but without compromising the
programmes timetables.

We noted that it was equally important to ensure value for money which
it was considered in the short term could best be achieved by calling off
consultancy services provided by Qedis via Tribal and from the Office of
Government Commerce Buying Solutions (OGCbs) Framework
Agreement. However, we also noted that in the longer term this
arrangement might not offer best value and alternative and more cost
effective solutions needed to be explored.

RESOLVED

1. That approval be granted to the short term appointment of DCorpS
Qedis for the Building Schools for the Future programme
and Phase 1 of the Achieving Excellence programme on
the terms and conditions set out in Section 3 of the
interleaved report at a total estimated cost of £1, 662,625.

2. That an internal audit investigation be conducted into the DCorpS
systems in place to ensure that the appointment of service




Page 375

MINUTES OF THE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 17 MAY 2007

providers under framework arrangements, particularly
those appointed to Children and Young Peoples
Directorate, were compliant with the Public Contracts
Regulations 2006 and the results be reported back to our
Committee.

. That the Head of Procurement conduct a review of

payments made to outside suppliers of more than £10,000
in value to ensure they were compliant with the Council’s
Contract Standing Orders.

That consideration be given to alternative arrangements for
the provision of programme support to the Building Schools
for the Future and the Achieving Excellence Programmes
including the possible employment of staff on fixed term
contracts and market testing of the OGCbs Framework
Agreement consultancy rates and a report back be made in
six months time.

HPr

DCorpS

4. | VOTE OF THANKS

We placed on record our thanks to Councillor Mallettt for her services as
Chair of our Committee in the 2006/07 municipal year.

Councillor Mallett responded and thanked other Members of the
Committee and officers for their support throughout the year.

ANTONIA MALLETT
Chair




Page 376

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 377

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE MEMBER SIGNING
FRIDAY, 18 MAY 2007

Present: Councillor Nilgun Canver (Executive Member for Crime and Community
Safety).

IEXM1 MINUTES
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 November 2006 be approved and
signed.

IEXM2 ENFORCEMENT FEES AND CHARGES (Report of the Director of
Environmental Services — Agenda ltem 5)

It was noted that the report set out a range of fees and charges for services provided
through the Enforcement Business Unit. It was also noted that some fees were prescribed
by relevant Secretary of State but some were set as an Executive function. Charges which
reflected normal inflationary increase were proposed for agreement by way of an
Executive Member signing. The report also included proposed charges for pest control
based on a charging structure which would, in some cases, reflect above inflation
increases.

It was reported that fees and charges in the report did not include the setting of fixed
penalty notice charges which would be reported separately with recommendations that
covered levels and payment methods. Approval of charges and fees was sought for
Enforcement services for 2007/8 as set out in Appendices A to E to the interleaved report
covering Pest Control, Street Trading, Licensing and other miscellaneous charges.

RESOLVED:

That approval be granted to the fees and charges as set out in Appendices A — E of
the interleaved report in relation to the following services provided through the
Enforcement Business Unit —

Pest Control Services

Miscellaneous

Street Trading

Licensing Fees (Set Locally)

Fees Prescribed by the Secretary of State

NILGUN CANVER
Executive Member for Crime and Community Safety



Page 378

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Matters, if any, Referred to the Executive for Consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Cabinet_2007.06.19_Item 6b_ Scrutiny Review of Fly Tipping

	7 Programme Highlight Report - April 2007
	Cabinet_2007.06.19_Item 7_Programme Hight Report Appendix 1

	8 Towards Excellence - The Council's End of Year Performance - April 2006 to March 2007
	Cabinet_2007.06.19_Item 8 _Appendix A
	Cabinet_2007.06.19_Item 8 _Appendix B

	9 The Draft Council Plan 2007 - 2010
	Cabinet_2007.06.19_Agenda Item 9_Appendix 1

	10 Achieving Excellence
	Cabinet_2007.06.19_Item 10_ Appendix A

	11 Financial Outturn 2006/07
	Cabinet_2007.06.19_Item 11_Appendix A
	Cabinet_2007.06.19_Item 11_Appendix B
	Cabinet_2007.06.19_Item 11_Appendix C
	Cabinet_2007.06.19_Item 11_Appendix D

	12 Connexions Services from April 2008
	13 Haringey Catering Service
	14 Provision for Gypsies and Travellers
	15 Homes for Haringey (Quarterly Report)
	16 Executive Response to the Scutiny Review of Access to Health Services for Adults with Profound and Multiple Learning Disabilities
	Cabinet_2007.06.19_Item 16_Appendix 1

	17 Establishment of the Procurement Committee and Voluntary Sector Grants Committee
	18 Appointment of Representatives To Serve on the Haringey Strategic Partnership and its Theme Boards
	19 Urgent Actions in Consultation with Cabinet Members
	20 Delegated Decisions and Significant Actions
	21 Minutes of Sub-Bodies
	Cabinet_2007.06.19_Item 21_Procurement Committee Minutes 17 May 2007
	Cabinet_2007.06.19_Item 21_ Minutes for the Executive signing on 18 May 2007


